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Explanatory Note:

This Amendment No. 1 on Form 10-K/A to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended September 26, 2008, which was filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
November 20, 2008 (the “Original Filing”), is being filed to provide the information required by
Part 111 of this Form 10-K/A. As a result of this amendment, (1) the certifications pursuant to
Section 302 and Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxtey Act of 2002 filed as exhibits to the Original Filing,
have been re-executed and re-filed as of the date of this Form 10-K/A; and (2) a revised Consent of
our Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm dated January 16, 2009, relating to its reports
dated November 20, 2008 inctuded in this Form 10/K-A relating to the consolidated and combined
financial statements of Tyco Electronics Ltd. and subsidiaries and the effectiveness of Tyco
Electronics Ltd. and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting, is being filed. Accordingly,
the exhibits listed under Item 15 of Part IV of this Form 10-K/A are being updated to reflect the
consent and new certifications described above.

For the conveniznce of the reader, this Form 10-K/A sets forth the Original Filing in its entirety. .
and, no attempt has been made in this Form 10-K/A to modify or update the disclosures in the
Original Filing except as described above. This Form 10-K/A continues to describe conditions as of the
date of the Original Filing, and the disclosures contained herein have not been updated to, reflect
events, results or developnients that occurred after the ‘Original Filing, or to modify or update those
disclosures affected by subsequent events. Among other things, forward-looking statements made in the
Original Filing have not been revised to reflect events, results or developments that occurred or facts
that became known to us after the date of the Original Filing, and such forward-looking statements
should be read in conjunction with our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission subsequent
to the filing of the Original Filing.
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SPECIAL NOTE ABOUT FORWARD;LOOKJNG STATEMENTS

We have made forward-looking statements in this Annual Report, including in the sections entitled
“Business,” “Risk Factors,” “Legal Proceedings,” “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations,” and “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market
Risk,” that are based on our management’s beliefs and assumptions and on information currently
available to our management. Forward-looking statements include, among others, the information
concerning our possible or assumed future results of operations, business strategies, financing plans,

" competitive position, potential growth opportunities, potential operating performance improvements,
the effects of competition, and the effects of future legislation or regulations. Forward-looking
statements include all statements that are not historical facts and can be identified by the use of
forward-looking terminology such as the words “believe,” “expect,” “plan,” “intend,” “anticipate,”
“estimate,” “predict,” “potential,” “continue,” “may,” “should,” or the negative of these terms or
similar expressions.

I ¢

Forward-looking statements involve risks, uncertaintics, and assumptions. Actual results may differ
materially from those expressed in these forward-looking statements. You should not put undue
reliance on any forward-looking statements. We do not have any intention or obligation to update
forward-looking statements after we file this report except as required by law.

The risk factors discussed in “Risk Factors” and other risks identified in the Annual Report could
cause our results to differ materially from those expressed in forward-looking statements. There may be
other risks and uncertainties that we are unable to predict at this time or that we currently do not
expect to have a material adverse effect on our business.
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L ) - . ' PARTI' . -
ITEM 1. BUSINESS .

Overview ' T

Tyco Electronics Ltd. (“we,” “Tyco Electronics,”} or the “Company”} is a leading global provider of
engineered clectronic components, network solutlons undersea telecommunication systems, and
wireless systems. We design, manufacture, and market producte for customers in industries ranging
from automotive, appliance, and aerospace and -defense to telecommunications, computers and
consumer electronics. Our products are produced in over 100 manufacturlng sites in approximately 25
countrics. With nearly 8,000 engineers-and worldwide manufacturing, sales, and customer eemce
capabilitics, Tyco Electronics’ commitment is our customers’ advantage.

Tyco Electronics Ltd. was incorporated in Bermuda in fiscal 2000 as a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Tyco International Ltd. (“Tyco International”). For the period following its incorporation, Tyco
Electronics Ltd. did not engage in any significant business activities and held minimal assets. In
connection with our separation from Tyco International, the equity interests in the entities that-hold all
of the assets and Habilities of Tyco International’s electronics businesses were transferred to Tyco
Electronics.

Our business was formed prmmpally through a series of acqulsrtrons from fiscal 1999 through
fiscal 2002, of established clectronics companies and divisions, including the acquisition of AMP
Incorporated and. Raychem Corporation in fiscal 1999 and the Electromechanlcal Components Division
of Siemens and OEM Division of Thomas & Betts in fiscal 2000. These companies each have more
than 50 years of history in engincering and innovation excellence. We operated as a segment of Tyco
International prior to our separatron :

Effective June 29, 2007, Tyco International dlstrlbuted all of its shares of Tyco Electronics to its
common shareholders, Tyco ; E]ectromcs Ltd. became an mdependcnt publicly traded company ownmg
the former electronics businesses of Tyco' International L.

‘Our reporting segments manufacture and distribute our producls and So]utlons toa number of end
markets. The table bélow provides a summary of our reporting segments, the fiscal- 2008 net sales
conmbutlon of each segment, and the key products and markets that we serve:

‘ *Electronic Network - Undersea- ) Wireless
Segment Components Solutions . Telecommunications Systems
% of Fiscal 2008 Net Sales 4% . . | ‘ e 15% . . 8% . . 3%
Key Products . . ... ... + Connector systems ~ * Connector systems  * Undersea * Land mobile radios

* Relays + Heat shrink tubing telecommunication and systems
* Heat shrink tubing  * Fiber optics . systems
- '1. = Fiber optics - ¢ Wire and cable” oo, ‘ )
+ * Circuit.protection . * Racks and panels. :
devices . +, * Intelligent buitding |
* Wire and ¢able controls )
* "Touch screens - » Network interface N
-« Application tooling - - devices :

Key Markets ... ..... * Automotive = Energy * Cdmmunication * Public safety
) * Computer. + Communication | service providers :
» Communications service providers * Oil and gas

*’Industrial "« Building networks
* Acrospace and ’ '
- defense Co )
' , . * Appliance _
* Consumer . - , . )
electronics
* Medical
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See Note 25 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for certain segment and
geographic financial information relating to our business.

Our Competitive Strengths

2

We belleve that we have the following competitive strengths:

* Global leadm in passive components. With net sales of approximately $14.8 billion in fiscal 2008
we are significantly larger than many of our competitors. In the $43 billion fragmented
connector industry, our net sales were approximately $8 billion in fiscal 2008. We have
established a global leadership position in the connector industry with leading market positions,
in the following markets:

* Automorive—#1

* Industrial—#1

.. Comp‘utcrs and peripherals—#2

* Telecom/data communications—#?2

Our scale provides us the opportunity to accelerate our sales growth by making larger
investments in existing and new technologies in our core markets and to expand our presence in
emerging markets. Qur leadership position also provides us the opportunity to lower our
purchasing costs by developing lower cost sources of supply and’to maintain a flexible
manufacturin footprmt worldwide that 1s close to our customers’ locations,

« Strong customer relatzonshtps As an mdustry leader we have established close working

relationships with our customers. These relationships allow us to better anticipate and respond
to customer needs when demgmng new products and new technical solutions. By workmg with
our customers in.developing new products and technologies, we believe we are able to ;dentlfy
and act on trends and leverage knowledge about next-generation technology across our products.
In addition, we operate-a broad Global Account Management program through which we
maintain close working relationships with the key customers in the end markets that we serve..

» Process and product technology leadership. We employ nearly 8,000 engineers dedicated to
product research, development, and engineering. Our investment of over $600 million in product
and process engmcermg and development together with our capital spending of over '
$600 million in fiscal 2008, enable us to consistently pr0v1de innovative, high-quality products
with efficient manufacturing methods.

» Diverse product mix and customer base. We manufacture and sell a broad portfolio of products to

customers in various industries. Our customers include many of the leaders in their respective
industries, and our relationships with them typically date back many years. We believe that this
diversified cusromer base provides us an opportunity to leverage our skills and experience across
markets and reduces our exposure to particular end markets, thereby reducing the variability of
our financial performance. Additionally, we believe that the diversity of our customer base
reduces the level of cyclicality in our results and distinguishes us from our competitors.

* Balanced geographic sales mix. We have an established manufacturing presence in approximately

25 countries and our sales are global. Our global coverage positions us near our customers’
locations and allows us to assist them in consolidating their supply base and lowering their
production costs. We believe our balanced sales distribution lowers our exposure to any
particular geography and improves our financial profile. In addition, our strategy is to continue
to increase the percentage of production from low-cost countries.
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* Strong and experienced management team.. We believe-we have a management team that has‘the
experience necessary to effectively execute our strategy and advance our product and technology
leadership. Qur Chief Executive Officer and segment leaders-average.more than 20 yéars of
experience in the €lectronics industry: They are supported by an -experienced and talented
management team that is dedicated to mamtammg dnd expandmg our posmon as a global leader
in the industry. Y - et :

0urStrategy~ b oo S ' Lo

Our goal is to bée the world leader in provrdrng custom: engmeercd clectronic’ components “and
solutions for an increasingly connected world. We believe that in achieving this goal we will increase
net sales and. profitability across our segments in the markets that we serve: Our business strategy is
based upon the following priorities: Lo P < . s

. Levemge our market leadership position to mcrease “our market share We are a global leader in
many of the markets that we serve. For example within our, Electromc Components segment, we
are the leading global supplier of connectors and connector ‘systems to the automotive and
industrial markets. We believe that these and other markets are critical to our success and that
we must continue to strengthen our leadership position in these markets. We plan to caprtalrze
on the expected long-term growth in these markets by leveraging our significant scale in thé
industry, the breadth of our product portfolio, our established relationships and leading
specification' positions with our customers, and our extensive worldwide distribution channels

» Achieve market leadershtp in attractive and under-penetrated industries. We plan to accelerate
growth in end-user markets in which we do not have the number one market share but which we
believe have attractive growth and profitability characteristics. These markets include: aerospace
and defense, mobile phone, and medical markets with respect to our Electronic Components
segment; the energy and communication service provider market with respect to our Network
Solutions segmerit;“and the land mobile radio market with tespect to our Wireless Systems
segment. We believe that we can further leverage our customer service and our new product and
technology capabilities in order to achieve a leading position in these markets

-» Fxtend our leadership,in key emerging markets. We seek to improve, our, market leadership
position in emergrng geographic regions, mcludrng China, Eastern. Europe; and India, which we .
expect will experience higher growth rates than those of more developed regions in the world. In
fiscal 2008, we generated $1.8 billion of net sales in Chma $1.2 billion of net sales in Eastern,
Europe, and $0.2 billion of net sales in India. We hdve been 1ncreasrng our sales and marketmg, '
engineering, and manufacturmg resources in these emerging regions in order to more fully =
caprtalrze on our skills and technologtes We believe that expansron in these regrons w1ll enable
us ‘to grow faster than the overall global market ’

[ 1 LIS S ' !

. Supplemem organic growth with: Strategic acqmsmons We wrll evaluate and selectwely pursue
strategic acquisitions that strengthen our market position, enhance our existing product offering,
enable us to enter attractrve markets expand our technologrcal capabilities, and prov1de synergy
opportunmes - : : :

* Continue to facus our extstmg ponfolro As part of our strategy, we regularly revrew and wilt
consider the drvestlture of underperformrng or non- strategic businesses to improve our operating
results and better utilize our capital. We have made strategic divestitures in the past and expect
that we may make additional divestitures in the future. Some of these dwest1tures may have a
material impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements. See “Management’s 'Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operatrons-—Dlvestltures and Manufacturmg
Simplification.” A e
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* Improve operating margins. We intend to continue to increase our productivity and reduce our
manufacturing costs. We plan to achieve this by developing best in class manufacturing,
enhancing our purchasing strategy through design initiatives -and sourcing of materials.from
suppliers in lcw-cost regions, simplifying our distribution network, and further implementing best
practice continuous improvement programs. We also plan to continue to simplify our global
manufacturing footprint, both by migrating facilities from high-cost to low-cost countries and by
consolidating within countries. With respect to our manufacturing rationalization plan, we expect
to incur restructuring charges of up to $200 million from fiscal 2009 through 2010. These
lnltlatlves are de31gned to he]p us mamtaln our competitiveness in the industry.

' Accelemte new product developmem rhrough research and development excellence. We seek to -

" continue to increase the percentage of our annual net sales from new products. In fiscal 2008, -
we derived approximately 34% of our net sales from new products launched within the previous
three years. In order to accomplish this goal, we intend to focus our research, development, and
engineering invéstment on Jniext generation technologies and highly engmeered products and
platforms ancl Ieverage mnovatton ACTOSS Our segments

Our Products . , - R

Our net sales by réporting segment as a pereentage of our total net sales was as follows

) Fiscal )
| , 08 2007 2006
Electronic 'Components e A . 14%  18% - 19%
Network Solutions ... ...............oeiin.. L FETE &) 15 15
Undersea Telecommunications .......... R PR ... 8 4 3
erelessSy'tems ceee Do e coi... 37 33
Total . . . ... N e .100% 100% 100%

Electronic Components

Our Electronic Components segment is one of the world’s largest suppliers of passive electronic
‘components, which includes connectors and interconnect systems, relays, switches, circuit protection
devices, touch screens; sensors, and wire and cable. The products sold by the Electronic Components
segment are sold primarily to original equipment manufacturers and their contract manufacturers in the
automotive, computer, communications, industrial, aefospace and defense, appliance, consumer
electronics, and medical markets. The following are the primary product families sold by the segment:

+. Connector Systems and Components. We offer an extensive range of clectrical and electronic
interconnection products. These connectors include a wide variety of pin and socket, terminal,
USB, coaxial, IO, fiber optic, and power connectors, as well as sophisticated mterconnecnon
products used in complex telecommunications and computer equlpment

. Relays. Our re-lay products can be used in a wide range of appllcatlons in the automotive,
telecommunications, industrial, and aerospace industries, including electric sunroofs, anti-lock
braking systems, and fuel injection coils for the automotive industry, signal and power relay
technologles for the telecommunications’ mdustry, and hlgh performanee products for the
aerospace industry. '

« Heat Shrink Tubmg We offer hundreds of reliable, cost—effectwe products to seal, connect
insulate, protect, hold, and bundle high-performance electrical harnesses. We also prowde
customized harnessing d651gn prototype, and build services.
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Fiber Optics. We manufacture fiber optic connectors, cable assemblies, adapters, and accessories.
We provide highly engineered products that connect, configure, and control light.

» Circuit Protection Devices. We offer a range of circuit protection devices, which limit the flow of
high current during fault conditions and automatically reset when the fault is cleared and power
to the circuit is removed. We also offer surface-mount fuses, surge protectors, gas discharge '
tubes for overvoltage protection, and electrostatic discharge protection devices. -

* Wire and Cable. We provide highly engineered cable and wire products to the data transmission,
aerospace, automotive, telecommunications, industrial, and medical markets. We offer a broad
range of cable, including UTP and PVC ribbon cables, SCSI and IEEE 1394 computer cables,
NASA-spec cable, and other. cables suitable for use in the aerospace industry.

» Touch Screens. We develop, manufacture, and market a complete fine of touch products for
transactional kiosks, point-of-sdle terminals, machine and process control, and automated teller
machines. We offer component touch systems for original equipment manufacturers and a broad
line of standard and custom LCD and CRT touch monitors. We believe that we are an industry
leader in advancing surface wave, resistive, infrared, and capacitive technologies. ‘

» Application Tooling. We offer a broad portfolio of hand tools, serhi-automatic bench machines,
and fully-automatic machine systems for processing terminal products. ‘

In addition to the above product families which represent in excess of 90% of the Electronic
Components segment net sales, we also offer identification products, antennas, magnetics, sensors, and
switches.

Network Solutions

Our Network Solutions segment is one of the world’s largest suppliers of infrastructure
components and systems for telecommunications and energy markets. These components include
connectors, above- and below-ground enclosures, heat shrink tubing, cable accessories, surge arrestors,
fiber optic cabling, copper cabling, and racks for copper and fiber networks. This segment also provides
electronic systems for test access and intelligent cross-connect applications as well as integrated cabling
solutions for cabling and building management. The products are grouped into the following product
families: :

« Connector Systems and Components. We offer an extensive range of low, medium, and

high-voltage connectors and splicés, cable assemblies, sealing systems, terminals, fittings, lugs and

clamps, transmission line fittings, splice closures, grounding hardware, and wall and floor outlets
for voice and data connection to local area networks. ' ' '

* Heat Shrink Tubing. We offer heat shrink tubing, heat-shrinkable splice closures, wrap-around
sleeves, and molded parts designed to better protect both high- and low-voltage circuits against
harsh aerial, buried, and abc'ove-ground environments.

* Fiber Optics. We provide fiber optic connectors, splices, fiber optic splice closures, fiber
management systems, high density cable assemblies, couplers and splitters, and complete cabling
systems. These products find use in both local-arca and wide-area networks, and emerging
“Last-Mile” Fiber-to-the-Home installations.

 Wire and Cable. We provide,wire and cable for indoor and outdoor use in office, factory floor,
school, and residential voice, data, and video networks, including copper and fiber optic
distribution cables, shielded and unshielded twisted-pair cables, armored cable, and patch cords.

* Racks and Panels. We provide racks and panels that are used to integrate, organize, and manage
fiber and copper cables and splices, thereby simplifying installation, maintenance, and upgrades
for both exchange/head end and customer premise environments.
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In addition to the above product families which represent in excess of 90% of the total Network
Solutions segment net sales, the segment also sells insulators, surge arrestors, power méasurement
products, CATV accessorics, network interface devices, raceway systems, and duct accessories.

Undersea Telecommunications _

Our Undersea Tzlecommunications segment designs, builds, maintains, and tests undersea fiber
optic networks for both the telecommunications and oil and, gas markets.

Wireless Systems " \

Our Wireless Systems segment is an innovator of wireless technology for critical communications
systems. We provide state-of-the-art two-way land mobile radio technology products and systems,
including network and system infrastructure, portable radios, service, and maintenance. These products
and systems are used primarily by public safety and government organizations.

Markt;.ts .

We scll our products to manufacturers and distributors in a number of major markets. The
approximate percentage of our total net sates by market in fiscal 2008 was as follows:

Markets : . ' . - Percentage
AUTOMOLIVE .« o L e et et et et et e e 30%
Telecommurications. .. ... .. ... . 23
COmMPULET . . . . L e e 7
Energy .. e e 7
Industrial . ... ......... e J N e e 5
Acrospace and Defense . [ .. ... e e 5
Appliance . ... . 4
Medical ... e 2
Consumer Electronics ........... PR e -, 2
Other ..o oo i i e, e e e e . _g
Total . o e e e 100%

Automotive. The automotive industry uses our products in motor management systems, body
electronic applications, safety systems, chassis systems, security systems, driver information, passenger
entertainment, and comfort and convenicnce applications. Electronic components regulate critical
vehicle functions, frorn fuel intake to braking, as well as information, entertainment, and climate
control systems. - o ' - '

Telecommunications.  Our products are used in telecommunications products, such as data
networking equipment, switches, routers, wire line infrastructure equipment, wireless infrastructure
equipment, wireless base stations, mobile phones, and undersea fiber optic telecommunication systemns.

Computer.  Our products are used in computer products, such as servers and storage equipment,
workstations, notebook computers, desktop computers, and business and rétail equipment.

Energy. The energy industry uses our products in power generation equipment and power
transmission equipment, The industry has been investing heavily to improve, upgrade, and restore
existing equipment and systems. In addition, this industry addresses the needs of emerging countries
that are building out and upgrading their energy infrastructure. '
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Industrial.  Our products are used in factory automation and process control systems, photovoltaic:
~ systems, industrial motors and generators, and general industrial machinery and equipment.

Aerospace and Defense. . Our products are used in military and commercial aircraft, missile ., :
systems, satellites, space programs, and radar systems.

Appliance. Our products are used in many household appliances, including refrigerators, washers,
dryers, dishwashers, and microwaves. : D -

Medical. Our products are used in medical equipment for imaging, surgical,_aﬁd monitoring
applications, ranging from general surgical to ultrasound to “smart” vital sign monitoring equipment.

Consumer Electronics. The consumer electronics industry uses our products to produce digital
cameras, plasma and LCD televisions, electronic games, and DVD recorders and players. '

Other.  Our products are used in numerous products, including instrumentation and measurement
equipment, commercial and building equipment, building network and cabling systems, and railway
equipment. Other also includes products sold through third-party distributors.

Customers

Our customers include automobﬂe, telecommunication, compUte'r, industrial, acrospace, and’
consumer products manufacturers that operate both globally and locally. Our customers also include
contract manufacturers and third-party distributors. We serve approximately 200,000 customer locations
in over 150 countries, and we maintain a strong local presence in each of the geographic areas in which

[

we operate. . ; . . :

Our net sales by geographic area as a percentage of our total net sales were as follows:

" Fiscal -
208 2007 2006
Americast) L 36% 35% 36%
Europe/Middle East/Africa ... ....... e - 37 37 36
Asia-Pacific . . . . . L e R - 27 28+ 28
CTotal ..o O P 100% 100% 100%

(1) The Americas includes cur Undersea Telecommunications segment.

We collaborate closcly with our customers so that their product needs are met. There is no §ingle
customer that accounted for more than 10% of our net sales in fiscal 2008, 2007, or 2006. Our ‘ '
approach to our customers is driven by our dedication 1o further developing our product families and
ensuring that we are globally positioned to best provide our customers with sales and engineering ‘
support. We believe that as electronic component technologies continue to proliferate, our broad
product portfolio and engineering capability give us a potential competitive advantage when addressing
the needs of our global customers. - : -

Raw Materials ’ ’

We use a wide variety of raw materials in the manufacture of our products. The principal raw
materials that we use include plastic resins for molding, precious metals such as gold and silver for
plating, and other metals such as copper, aluminum, brass, steel for manufacturing cable, contacts, and
other parts that are used for cable and component bodies and inserts. Many of these raw materials are
produced in a limited number of regions around the world or are only available from a limited number
of suppliers. The prices of these materials are driven by global supply and demand dynamics.
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Working Capital

We consistently maintain an adequate level of working capltal to support our business needs.
There are'no unusual industry practices or requirements relating to working capital items.

Research and Development

We are engaged in both internal and external research and development in an effort to introduce .
new products, to enhance the effectiveness, ease of use, safety, and reliability of our existing products,
and to expand the applications for which the uses of our products are appropriate. We continually
evaluate developing technologies in areas where we may have technologlcal or marketing expertise for
possible investment or acquisition.

Qur research and development expense for fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006 was as follows:

Fiscal
, o ' 2008 2007 2006
(in millions}

Electronic Components .. ..........ouiurieneenennn.. $393  §341  $302

Network Solutions . .. ...................... P 61° 56 50

Undersea Telecommunications . ............... e 29 24 23

Wireless Systems . ............... ...l PR 47 61 53
cTotal ... .. U e e $530 $482 $428 -

Our research development and engineering efforts are supported by approxrmately 8 000
engineers. These engineers work closely with our customers to develop application specific, highly
engineered products'and systems to satisfy the customers’ needs. Our new products, including product

extensions introduced during the past year, comprised approximately 12% of our net sales for fiscal
2008.

Sales, Marketmg, and Dtstrlbutlon

We sell our products into more than 150 countries, and we sell pr1marlly through direct ‘selling
efforts. We also sell some of our products indirectly via third-party distributors. In fiscal 2008, our
direct sales represented 85% of net sales, with the remainder of net sales provided by sales to third-
party distributors and independent manufacturer representatives,

‘We maintain distribution centers around the world, Products are generally delivered to these
distribution centers by our manufacturing facilities and then subsequently delivered to the customer. In
some instances, product is delivered directly from our manufacturing facility. to the customer. We
contract with a wide range of transport providers to deliver our products via road, rail, sea, and air.
Seasonallty and Backlog '

Customer orders typically fluctuate from quarter to quarter based upon business conditions and -
because unfilled orders may be canceled prior to shipment of goods. We experience a slight seasonal
pattern to our business: The third fiscal quarter is typically the strongest quarter of our fiscal year,
while the first fiscal quarter is negatively affected by winter holidays and the fourth fiscal quarter is
negatively affected by European holidays. The second fiscal quarter may also be’ atfected by adverse
winter weather conditions in certain of our end markets.

8 2008 Form 10-K




Backlog by reportable segment at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007 was as follows:

Fiscal
2008 2007
" (in millions)
Electronics COMPONENIS . . . ..o\t i et vivne e icanneass . 81,655 §1,663
Network Solutions . . . oo vt i n i e e i e e 339 277
Undersea Telecommunications . .-........ e 1,128 560
Wireless Systems™ . ... ... . ... AP 351 260
Total .o ovo i P P $3,473  $2,760

(1) Includes approximately $50 millioﬁ related to the Wireless Systems segment’s contract with the State of New‘
York at September 26, 2008. ’

We expect that the majority of our backlog at September 26, 2008 wili be filled during fiscal 2009.

Competition

+

The. industries in which we operate are highly competitive, and we compete. with thousands of ,
companies that range from large multinational corporations to local manufacturers. Competition is - - .-
generally on the basis of breadth of product offering, product innovation, price, quality, delivery, and
service. OQur markets have generally been growing but with downward pressure on prices.

¢ Electronic Companent&. This segment competes against numerous companies, including Molex,
Amphenol, FCI, JST, and Omron.

» Network Solutions. This segment’s major competitors include Corning, Commscope, and 3M.
». Undersea Telecommunications. This segment primarily competes with Alcatel-Lucent.

+ Wireless Systems. This segment primarily'co‘mpetes with Motorola.

Intellectual Property

Patents and other prppriefary, rights are important to our business. We also rely upon trade secrets,
manufacturing know-how, continuing technological innovations, and licensing opportunities to maintain
and improve our competitive position. We review third-party proprietary rights, including patents and _
patent applications, as available, in an effort to develop an effective intellectual property strategy, avoid
infringement of third-party proprietary rights, identify licensing opportunities, and monitor the

_intellectual property claims of others. ' '

Lo

i

We own a large portfolio of patents that principally relate to electrical and electronic products. We
also own a portfolio of trademarks and are a licensee of various patents and trademarks. Patents for
individual products extend for varying periods according to the date of patent filing or grant and the .
legal term of patents in the various countries where patent protection is obtained. Trademark rights
inay potentially extend for longer periods of time and are dependent upon national laws and use of the
trademarks. . ’ ' o

While we consider our patents and trademarks to be valued assets, we do not believe that our
competitive position is dependent on patent or trademark protection or that our operations are
dependent upon any single patent or group of related patents. '

Employees

As of September 26, 2008, we employed approximately 96,000 people worldwide, of whom 26,000
were in the Americas region, 27,000 were in the Europe/Middle East/Africa region, and 43,000 were in
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the Asia-Pacific region. Of our total employees, approximately 58,000 were employed in manufacturing

and 19,000 were repiesented by collective bargaining agreements. Approximately 57% of our employees
were based m low- cost countries, pnmanly China. We believe that our relations with our employees are
satisfactory. ' )

Government Regulatlon and Supervision

The import and export of products are subject to regulation by the United States and other
countries. A small portion of our products, including defense-related products, may require
governmental import and export licenses, whose issuance may be influenced by geopolitical and other
events. We have a trade compliance. organization and other systems in place to apply for licenses and
otherwise comply with such regulations. Any failure to maintain compliance with domestic and foreign
trade regulation could limit our ability to import and'export raw matenals and finished goods into or
from the relevant jurisdiction.

P T .' . ' '

Envirenmental

We are committed to complying with all applicable environmental, health, and safety laws and to
the protection of our employees and.the environment. We maintain a global environmental, health, and
safety program that includes appropriate policies and standards, staff dedicated to environmental,
health, and safety issues, periodic compliance-auditing, training, and other measures. We have a
program for compliance with the European Union (“EU”) RoHS and WEEE Directives, the China
RoHS law, and 51mll.lr laws

We have projects underway at a number of current and former manufacturing facdltles to-
mvesugate and remediate environmental contamination resulting from past operations. Based upon our
experience, current information'and applicable laws, we believe that it is probable that we will incur
remedial costs in the range of approximately $13 miilion to $25 million. As of September 26, 2008, we
believe that the best =stimate within this range is approximately $16 million.

Available Information

All periodic and current reports, registration filings, and other filings that we are required to file
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) including annual reports on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed
or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange
Act”) are avallable frze of charge through our internet website at www. tycoelectronics.com. Such
documents are available as soon as reasonably practlcable after electronic fi lmg or furnishing of the
matenal with the SEC.

The public may also read and copy any document that we flle, including this Annudl Report, at the
SEC’s Public Referenee Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, DC 20549. Investors may obtain
1nf0rn}at|0n on the, operation of the Public Reference Room by calling ‘the SEC at 1- 800-SEC-0330. In
addition, the SEC maintains an internct site at www.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy and information
statements and other information regarding issuers that file electronicdlly with the SEC, from which
investors can electronically access our SEC filings. :
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ITEM 1A. ' RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the risks described below before investing in our securities. The risks
described below are not the only ones facing us. Our business is also subject to risks that affect many other
companies, such as general economic conditions, geopolitical events, competition, technological
obsolescence, labor relations, and international operations. Additional risks not currently known to us or
that we currently believe are immaterial also may impair our business operations, financial condition, and
liquidity. ' : ’ g

. . ‘ . .

Risks Relating to Our Business

Current and future conditions in the global economy and global capital markets, and cyclical
industry conditions, may adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows.

Our business and operating results have been and will continue to be affected by worldwide
economic conditions. As a result of slowing global economic growth, the credit market crisis, declining )
consumer and business confidence, fluctuating commodity prices, and other challenges currently
affecting the global economy, our customers may experience deterioration of their businesses, cash flow
shortages, and difficulty obtaining financing. As a result, existing or potential customers may delay or
cancel plans to purchase our products and may not be able to fulfill their obligations to us in-a timely
fashion. Further, our vendors may be experiencing similar conditions, which may impact their ability to
fulfill their obligations to us. If the global economic slowdown continues for significant periods or’
deteriorates significantly, our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows could be
materially adversely affected.

Additionally, we are heavily dependent on the end market industry dynamics for our products, and
our operating results can be adversely affected by cyclical and reduced demand patterns of these |
markets. For example, the automotive industry, which accounted for approximately 30% of our net
sales in fiscal 2008, is experiencing a signifipanf downturn described below. The telecommunications
industry, which accounted for approximately 23% of our net sales in fiscal 2008, has historically
experienced periods of Tobust capital expenditure followed by periods of retrenchment and. o
consolidation, which reflects current market conditions. The aerospace and defense industry, which
accounted for 5% of our net sales in fiscal 2008, has similarly undergone significant fluctuations in
demand, depending on worldwide economic and political conditions. These periodic downturns in our '
customers’ industries can significantly reduce demand for certain of our products, which could have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows. e

We are dependent on the automotive industry which is experiencing significant declines in the
current economic environment. S - ‘

Approximately 30% of our net sales for fiscal 2008 were to customers in the automotive industry.
Automotive manufacturers globally are experiencing significant declines in sales of vehicles from the
current ecodomic downturn, credit conditions, and volatile fuel costs. Additionally, the automaotive
industry is dominated by large manufacturers that can exert significant price pressure on their suppliers.
As a supplier of automotive electronics products, our sales of these products and our profitability have
been and could continue to be negatively affected by changes in the operations, products, business '
models, part-sourcing requirements, financial condition, and market share of automotive manufacturers,
as well as potential consolidations among automotive manufacturers.

We are dependent on the telecommunications, computer, and consumer electronics industries.

. Approxima{tely 23% of our net sales for fiscal 2008 came from sales to the telecommunications ;
industry. Demand for these products is subject to rapid technological c¢hange and has been affected by, x
declines in consumer and business spending due to global economic conditions. Additionally, these
markets are dominated by several large manufactuters that can exert significant price pressure on their
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“suppliers. There can be no assurance that we wnll be able to continue to compete successfully in the

telecommunications industry, and our failure to do so would materlally impair our results Of operatlons
financial condition, and cash flows '

Approx1mately 9% of our net sales for fiscal 2008 came. from sales to the computer and consumer .
electronics industries. Demand for our computer and consumer-electronics, products depends primarily
on underlying-business and consumer demand for new computer and consumer electronics: products,
which has been affected by reduced spending due to global economic conditions. The amount of this
demand and therefore our sales and profitability will be affected by a variety of factors, including the
rate of technological change, degree of consumer acceptance of new products, and general economic * *
conditions. We cannot assure you that existing levels of busmess and consumer demand for new
computer and consumer clectroftics products will not decrease

. '.' el
Dlsruptlon in credlt markets and volatlllty in equity markets may affect our abrllty to access
sufﬁcrent fnndmg

The global, equily markets have been volatlle and credit markets globally have been dlsrupted
which has reduced the availability of investment capital and credit. If these conditions continue or
worsen, we may be unable to access adequate funding to operate and grow.our business. Our inability .
to access adequate funding or to generate sufficient cash from operations may require us to reconsider
certain projects and capital expenditures. The extent of any impact will depend on several factors,
including our operating cash flows, the duration-of tight credit conditions and volatile equity markets,
our credit ratings and credit capacity, the cost of financing, and other general economic and business
conditions. . - '

We encounter competition in substantially all. areas of the electronic components industry, .

We operate ‘in highly competmve markets for e[ectromc components The competmon we
experience across product lines from other compames ranges in size from large, diversified
manufacturers to small, highly specrallzed manufdcturers The electronic components industry has
continued to become increasingly concentrated and globahzed in Tecent years, and our major
competitors have significant financial resources and technologlcal capabilitics. A number of these
competitors compete with us prlmarlly on prlce and in ‘some instances may enjoy lower production
costs for certain products We canfot assure you ‘that additional competltors will not enter our markets,
or that we will be able to compete successfully agamst exrstmg or new competitors. '

‘We are dependent on market acceptance of new pmduct mtroductlons and product mnovatlons for
continved revenue growth.

3 s . , v . Yy % IS 4 .""

The markets in which we operate are subject to rapld technologlcal change. Our long-term
operating results depend substantially wpon our ability to continually develop, introduce, and market
new and innovative products, to modify ex1sting products to respond to technological change, and to
customize certain products to meet customer requlrements There are numerous rlsks inherent in this
process, including the risks that we will be unable to antlcrpate the direction of technologlcal change or
that we will be unable to develop and market new products and appllcauons ina tlmely fashion to
satlsfy customer dem‘lnds

lee other suppliers to the electromcs mdustry, we are suhject to contmumg pressure to_lower our
prices. s e \ e

3

Over the past several years we have experienced, and we expect to continue to experience,
pressure each year to lower our prices. In recent years, we have experienced price erosion averaging
from 1% to 3%. In otder to maintain our marglns we must continue to feduce our costs by similar -
amounts. We cannot assure you that continuing pressures to reduce our prices will not have a materral
adverse effect on our results of operatlons fmancral condrtlon and cash flows. *

[
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We may, be negatively affected as our customers and vendors continue to consolidate.. . -

Many of the industries to which wé sell our products, as well as many of the industries from which
we buy'materials; have become increasingly concentrated-in recent years, including the automotive;
telecommunications, computer, and aerospace and defense industries., Consolidation of customers may
lead to decreased product purchases from us. In addition, as our customers buy in larger volumes, their
volume buying powér has increased, and they have been able to negotiate more favorable pricing and
find alternative sources from which to’purchase. Our materials suppliers' similarly have increased their
ability to negotiate favorable pricing. These trerids may adversely affect the profit margins on our A
products, particularly for commodity components. R B

Our results are sensitive to raw material availability, quality, and cost. S
. P ‘ ' ) . . . )

'We are a large buyer of resin, copper, gold, brass, steel, chemicals and additives, and zinc. Many of
these raw materials are produced in a limited number of regions around the world or' are only. available
from a limited nu'rr'lber of suppliers. In addition, the price of many of these raw materials, including '
coppet and gold, has in¢reased in’ recent years and continues to.fluctuate. Over the last three years, wé
have only beéen able to partially offset these increases through higher selling prices. Our results of,
operations, financial condition, and cash flows may be materially and adversely affected if we have
difficulty-obtaining these raw materials, the ‘quality of available raw materials deterioratés, or there are’
continued significant price increases for these raw materials. Any of these events could have a "
substantial impact on the price we pay for raw materials and, to the extent we cannot compensate for
cost increases through productivity improvements or price increases to Our customers, our margins may
decline, materially affecting our results of operations,. financial condition, and cas‘h flows.

Foreign currency exchange rates may adversely affect our results. -~ : ot -

We are exposed to a variety of market risks, including the effects of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates. Approximately 54% of our net sales for fiscal 2008 were invoiced in currencies other
than the U.S: dollar, and we expect revehue from rion-U.S. markets to continue tolrlepresen,t a |
significant portion of ‘'our net revenue. Therefore, when the U.S. dollar strengthens in relation to the
currencies of the countries where we sell our products, such as the Euro, dur U.S. dollar reported -
revenue and income will decrease. Changes in- the relative values of currencies may have a'significant

"effect on our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows. We: manage this risk in part by .
entering into financial derivative contracts. In addition to the risk of non-performance by the .. ..
counterparty to the contracts, our efforts to manage these risks might not be successful. "

- "

The life cycles of our products can be very short. o ) o .

The life cycles of cértain of our products can be very short relative to the development cycles. As a
result, the resogrcés‘dcyb'ted to product sales a'm;d ma_rke.tiﬁg may not result jn material revenue, and,
from“time to time, we may need to write off excess or obsolete inventory or equipment. If we were 'to
incur significant engineering expenses and ivestments in inventory and equipment that we were not "
able to fecover and we weré niot.able to’compensate for those expenses, our results of operations,
financial condition, and cash flows would be mat'erially and ad.'versely’ affected. ‘ ) '

Y "
~ 4

_ * Divestitures of some. of our businesses or product lines may materially adversely-affect our results
_of operations, financial condition,.and cash flows. ; o -

During fiscal 2008, we have sold or discontinuéd businesses and product lines with annualized net
salés of approximately $1 billion, and we continue to evaluate the performance of all of our businesses
and may continue to sell businesses or product lines. Any divestitures may result in significant .
write-offs, including those related to goodwill and other intangible assets, ‘which: could have a material -

adverse effect on our-results of operations and- financial condition. Divestitures could involve additional

risks, including difficulties in the separation of operations, services, products and personnel, the |
diversion of management’s attention from other business concerns, the disruption of our business, and. .
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the potential loss of key employees. There can be no assurance that we will be successful in addressing
these or any other significant risks encountered. :

A decline in the market value of our pension plans’ investment portfolms could adversely affect
our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows. : :

Concerns about deterioration in the global economy, together with the current credlt Crisis, have
caused significant volatility in interest rates and equity prices, which could decrease the value of our
pension plans’ investment portfolios. A’ decresse in the value of our pension plans’ investment
portfolios could have: an adverse affect on our results of operatlons, financial condition, and cash flows.

We may use components and products manufactured by third parties.

. We.may rely on third-party suppliers for the components used in our products, and we may rely on
third-party manufact Jrers to manufacture certain of our assemblies and finished products. Our results
of operations, financial condition, and cash flows could be adversely affected if such third parties lack
sufficient quality control or if there are significant changes in their financial or business condmon We
also have third-party arrdngements for the manufacture of certain products, parts, and components. If
* these third parties fail to deliver quality products parts and components on time and at reasonable
prices, we could have difficulties fulfilling our orders, sales and profits could decline, and our
commercial reputaticn could be damaged.

, Our future success is substantially dependent on our ability to attract and retain hlghly quallf ed
technical, manageriai, marketmg, finance, and administrative personnel. - - .

Our success dep‘,nds upon our continued ability to hire and retain key employees at our
operations afound the world. We depend on highty skilled technical personnel to design, manufacture,
and support our wide range of ¢lectronic components. Additionally, we rely upon experienced
managerial, marketmg, and support personnel to manage our business effectively and to successfully
promote our wide range of products. Any difficulties in obtammg or retaining the necessary global
management, technical, human resource, and fmanmai skills to achieve our objectives may have adverse
affects on our results of operations, {inancial COI‘ldlthI’l and cash flows.

If we. fail to remediate the matenal weakness in our mtemal control over financial reporting
relating to accounting for income taxes, concerns about the potential for material errors in our .
financial reporting could cause the value of our securities to be adversely affected.

Subsequent to the filing of our Combined Financial Statements for fiscal 2006, 2005, and 2004 in
the initial filing of our registration statement on Form 10 with the SEC, we determined that our
Combined Financial Statements contained certain errors. The errors primarily resulted from the
process of carving out certain income tax accounts from Tyco International’s consolidated financial
statements and related information. We substantially relied upon the processes at Tyco International to
prepare our carve-ou: accounts for income taxes. We have determmed that certain of those tax
processes utilized by 'Tyco International in determining certain carve-out amounts for i income taxes did
not operate at a sufficient level of precision relative to our materiality for us to ensure that the
carve-out accounts were materially correct. Concurrently, we determined that we did not have sufficient
control processes:in place to ensure that the information provided by Tyéo International was. complete
-and accurate and concluded that the absence of these control processes was a material weakness in our
internal control over flnanmaf reporting relating to accounting for income taxes.

.~ Subsequent to separation, in our periodic reports we continued to disclose a matcnal weakness in
our internal control over financial reporting relating to accounting for income taxes. As of
September 26, 2008, management has concluded that recently enhanced resources and processes related
. to this previously identified material weakness have not been operating for a sufficient period of time
and, accordingly, has further concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was not
effective as of September 26, 2008. T oo
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‘Unless we remediaté the material weakness, concerns about the potential for material errors in our
financial reporting could adversely affect the value of our securities.

If any of our operations are found not to comply with applicable antitrust or competition laws,
our business may suffer. .- : ' -

" Our operations are subject to applicable antitrust and competition laws in the jurisdictiohs in’
which we conduct our business, in particular the United States and the European Union. These laws
prohibit, ‘among other things, anticompetitive agreements and practices. If any of our commercial,
including distribution, agreements and practices ‘with respect to the electrical components or other
markets is found to violate or infringe such laws, we may be subject to civil and other penalties. WF
also may be subject to third party claims for damages. Further; agreements that infringe these antitrust
and competition laws may be void and unenforceabie, in whole or in part, or require modification in
order to be lawful and enforceable. If we are unable to enforce any of our commercial agreements,
whether at all or in material part, our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows could be
adversely affected. : :

We are subject to the risks of political, econemic, and military instability in countries outside the
United States. : ' . . '

Non-U.S. markets .account for a substantial portion of our business. During fiscal 2008, non-U.S.
markets constituted over 69% of our net sales. We employ more than 82%-of our workforce outside
the United States. Our customers are located throughout the world and.we have many manufacturing,
administrative, and sales facilities outside the United States. Because of our extensive non-U.S.
operations, we are exposed to risks that could negatively affect sales or profitability, including:

« tariffs, trade barriers, and trade disputes; . - .
. .’ . v R ' . . . , . .

« regulations related to customs and import/export matters;

* longer payment cycles; : - ‘

* tax issues, such as tax law changes, examinations by taxing atthorities, variations in tax laws from
country to country as compared to the United States, and difficulties in repatriating in a
tax-efficient manner cash generated or held abroad; - ' . L

. challqngés in collecting accounts receivable;

+ employment regulations and local labor conditions;
. t # . R .

.+ difficulties protecting intellectual property;

+ ‘instability in economic or political conditions, including inflation, recession, and actual or
anticipated military or political conflicts; and ' . .

+ the impact of each of the foregoing on our outsourcing and procurement arrangements. o

Many of our products that are manufactured outside of the United States are manufactured in

Asia. In particular, we have sizeable operations in China, including manufacturing .operations, and in

fiscal 2008, 12% of our net sales were made to customers in China. The legal system in China is still

developing and is subject to change. Accordingly, our operations and orders for products in China

could be adversely affected by changes to or interpretation of Chinese law.
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We could be adversely affected by violations of the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and similar
worldwide anti-bribery laws. T ‘ oL

The U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (“FCPA”) and similar worldwide anti-bribery laws
generally prohibit companies and their intermediaries from making improper payments to non-U.S.
officials for the purpose of obtaining or retaining business. Our policies mandate compliance with these
anti-bribery laws, Wz operate in many parts of the world that have éxperienced governmental
corruption to some degree and in certain circumstances, strict compliance with anti-bribery Taws may, L
conflict with local customs and practices. Despite our training 'and compliance program, we ¢annot
assure you that our internal control pohc1es and procedures always will protect us from reckless or
criminal acts commitied by our employees or agents. Violations of these laws, or allegations of such
violations, could disrupt our business and result in & material adverse effect on our results of
operations, financial condition, and cash flows.

e

Our operations expose-us to the risk of material environmental llabllltles, litigation, and,
violations,

We are subject to numerous, federal, state, local, and non-U.S. environmental protection and health
and safety laws governing, among other things:

* the generation, storage, use, and transportation of hazardous materials;
* emissions or discharges of ‘substances’into the envnronment'

R mvestlgatlon and remediation of hazardous substances or materials at various s:tes and
» the health and saféety of our employees. . - ' .

We may not have been, or we may not at all times be, in compliance with environmental and
health and safety laws. If we violate these laws, we could be fined, criminally charged, or otherwise
sanctioned by regulators. Environmental laws outside of the United States are becommg more
stringent, resulting in increased costs and compliance burdens. -

Certain environmental laws assess liability on current or previous owners; or operators of real -
property for the costs of investigation, removal, or remediation of hazardous substances or materials at
their properties or at oroperties at which they have disposed of hazardous substances. Liability for
investigative, removal, and remedial costs under certain federal and state laws are retroactive, strict,
and joint and several. In addition to cleanup actions brought by governmental authorities, private
parties could bring personal injury or other claims due to the presence of, or exposure. to, hazardous
substances. We have received notification from the U.S, Environmental Protection Agency and similar
state environmental agencies that conditions at a number of formerly owned sites where we and others
have disposed of hazardous substances require investigation, cieanup, and other possible remedial .
action and may require that we reimburse the government or otherwise pay for the costs of -
investigation and remediation and for natura] resource damage claims from such sites.

While we plan for future capltal and operatmg expendttures to maintain compliance with
environmental laws, we cannot assure you that our costs of complying with cuirent or future -
environmental protection and: health and safety laws, or our liabilities arising from past or futuré
releases of, or exposures to, hazardous substances will not exceed our estimates or adversely affect our
financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows or that we will not be subject to additional
environmental claims for personal injury or cleanup in the future based on our past, present, or future
business activities.

Our products are subject to various requirements related to chemical usage, hazardous material
content, and recycling.

The EU, China, and other jurisdictions in which our products are sold have enacted or are
proposing to enact laws addressing environmental and other impacts from product disposal, use of
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hazardous materials in products, use of chemicals in manufacturing, recycling of produicts at the end of
their useful life, and other related matters. These laws include the EU Restriction on Hazardous -
Substances, End of Life Vehicle and Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment Directives, the EU’
REACH (chemical registration) Directive, the China law on Management Methods for Controlling
Pollution by Electronic Information Products, and various other laws. These laws prohibit the use of
certain substances in the manufacture of our products and ditectly and indirectly impose a variety of
requirements for modification of manufacturing processes, registration, chemical testing, labeling, and
other matters. We cannot predict the extent to which these laws will proliferate in other jurisdictions or
expand to address other materials or other aspects of our product manufacturing and sale. These laws
could make manufacture or sale of our products more. expensive or impossible and could limit our
ability to sell.our-products in certain jurisdictions. ‘

Our ability to compete effectively depends, in part, on our ability to maintain the proprietary |,
nature of our technology. :

ta

The electronics industry is characterized by litigation regarding patent and other intellectual
property rights. Within this industry, companies have become more aggressive in a,ssérting and
defending patent claims against competitors. Thére can be no assurance that we-will not be subject to
future litigation alleging intellectual property rights infringement or that we will not pursue litigation to
protect our property rights. Depending on the size and importance of the patent or trademark in
question, an unfavorable outcome regarding one of these matters may have a material adverse effect on
our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows. ' ‘ '

We are a defendant to a variety of litigation in the course of our business that could cause a
material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows.

In the ordinary course of business, we are a defendant in litigation, incl,udigg litigation alleging the
infringement of intellectual property rights, anti-competitive behavior, and-groduct liability. In certain
circumstances, patent infringement and antitrust laws permit successful plaintiffs to recover treble
damages. The defense of these lawsuits may divert our management’s attention, and we may incur
significant expenses in defending these lawsuits. In addition, we may be required to pay damage awards
or settlements, or become subject to injunctions or other equitable remedies, that could cause a
material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows. i

Covenants in our debt instruments may adversely affect us. v v

Our bank credit agreement contains financial and other covenants, such as a limit on the ratio of
debt to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, and limits on subsidiary debt and
incurrence of liens. Our outstanding indentures contain customary covenants inctuding limits on
incurrence of liens, sale and lease-back transactions, and our ability to consolidate, merge, and sell
assets, ' '

Although we believe none of these covenants are presently restrictive 1o our operations, our ability

“to meet the financial covenant can be affected by events beyond our control, and we cannot provide

assurance that we will continue to comply with the covenant. A breach of any of these covenants could
result in a default under our credit agreement or indentures. Upon the occurrence of certain defaults
under our credit facility and indentures, the lenders or trustee could elect to declare all amounts
outstanding thereunder to be immédi,atelir due and payable, and our lenders could terminate ,
commitments to extend further credit under our bank credit facility. If the lenders or trustee accelerate
the repayment of borrowings, we cannot provide assurance that we will have sufficient assets to repay
our credit facility and our other affected indebtedness. Acceleration of any debt obligation under any of
our material debt instruments may permit the holders or trustee of our other material debt to
accelerate payment of debt obligations to the creditors thereunder. ' ' ,
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The indentures governing our oulstandmg senior notes contain covenants that may require us to
offer to buy back the notes for a price equal to 101% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid
interest, to the repurchase date, upon a change of control triggering event (as defined in the
indentures). We cannot assure you that we will have sufficient funds available to repurChﬂse the notes
in that event, which could result in a default under the notes. Any fututé debt that we incur may
contain covenants rzgarding repurchases in the event of a change of control triggering event.

" Future acquisitions may not be successful. - e

We will continue to investigate the acqummon of strategic businesses or product lines.with the
potential to strengthen our market position or enhance our existing product offering. We cannot assure
you, however, that we will identify or successfully complete” transactions with suitable_acquisition
candidates in the future. Nor can we assure you that completed acquisitions will be successful, If an
acquired business fails to operate as anticipated or cannot be successfully integrated with our existing
business, our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows could be materially and adversely
affected.

1
. \

Future acquisiiions could require us to issue additional debt or equity.

. H we were to undertake a substantial acquisition for cash, ihe acquisition would likely need to be
financed in part through: additional financing from banks, through public offerings or private
placements of debt or equity securities, or other arrangements. This acquisition financing might
decrease our ratio of earnings to fixed charges and adversely affect other leverage measures. We cannot
assure you that the niecessary acquisition financing would be available to us on acceptable terms if and
when required. If we were to undertake an acquisition by issuing equity securities or equity-linked
securities, the issued saggrities may have a dilutive effect on the interests of the holders of our common
shares. N

hY
~

Risks Relating to Our Separation from Tyco International

We are responsible for a portion of Tyco Internatlonal’s contingent and other corporate liabilities;
including those relating to shareholder litigation,

In connection with our separation from Tyco International on June 29, 2007, we, Tyco

" International, and Covidien Ltd. (*“Covidien”) entered inta & Separation and Distribution Agreement
which governs the relationships among us, Tyco International, and Covidien subsequent to the
separation and provided for the allocation among us, Tyco International, and Covidien of Tyco
International’s assets, liabilities, and obligations attributable to periods prior to the separanon Under
the Separation and Distribution Agreement subject to certain exceptions contained in the Tax Sharing
Agreement among thz parties, we, Tyco International, and Covidien have agreed to assume and be
responsible for 31%, 27% and 42%, respectively, of certain of Tyco International’s contingent and
other corporate liabilities. All costs and expenses associated with the management of these contingent
and other corporate liabilities are shared equally among the parties. These contingent and other
corporate liabilities primarily relate to consolidated securities litigation, any actions with fespect to the
separation plan or the distribution brought by any third party and 1ax liabilities for periods prior to and
including the date of separation of June 29, 2007. For more information on the contingent tax
liabilities, sce “We share respons:blllty for certain of our, Tyco International’s, and Covidien’s income
tax liabilities for tax periods prior to'and including the dlstributmn ddte Cantingent and other
corporate liabilities do not include liabilities that are specifically relatédto one of the three separated
companics, which wer: allocated 100% to the relevant company.

If any party respcnsible for such liabilities were to default in its payment, when due, of any of
these assumed obligations, each non-defaulting party would be required to pay equally with any other,
non-defaulting party the amounts in default. Accordingly, under certain circumstances, we may be
obligated to pay amounts in excess of our agreed-upon share of the assumed obligations related to such
contingent and other corporate liabilities, including associated costs and expenses.
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Prior to the announcement by Tyco International of the planned separation of Tyco Electronics
and Covidien in January 2006, Tyco International and certain of its former directors and officers were
named as defendants in over 40 purported securities class action lawsuits, most of which were part of a
class action settlement of 32 lawsuits reached in 2007, for which we were. responsible for 31%. Holders
of approximately 4% of the shares owned by class members opted out of the class action settlement
and a number of these individuals and entities have filed actions separately against Tyco International
and/or Tyco International, Covidien, and us. Two additional securities cases were settled in fiscal 2008.
Several securitics cases remain outstanding, including several cases asserting claims arising under the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act (“ERISA”). As a part of the Separation and Distribution
Agrecment, any existing or potential liabilities related to the securities actions were allocated among

Tyco International, Covidien, and us. We are responsible for 31% of potential liabilities that may arise

upon the resolution of the remaining pending litigation. If the unresolved securities proceedings were
to be determined adversely to Tyco International, our share of any, additional potential losses under the
terms of the Separation and Distribution Agreement, which are not presently estimable, may have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition, and cash.flows.

Tyco International has the right to control the defense and settlement of outstanding securities
litigation, subject to certain limitations. The timing, nature, and amount of any settlements of
outstanding litigation may not be in our best interests. Furthermore, in the event of any future
settlements, we may have limited notice before we would be required to pay our portion of the
settlement amount. Moreover, Tyco International stipulated, pursuant to a court order, that, we, Tyco
International, and Covrdlen cach, will be primarily liable for a portion of the obligations arising from
the Tyco International shareholder litigation. The stipulation also provides that if any party defaults on
its obligations, the other parties are jointly and severally liable for the defaulting party’s obligations.

We share responsibility for certain of our, Tyco International’s and Covidien's income tax
liabilities for tax periods prior to and including the distribution date.

Under the Tax Sharing Agreement, we share responsibility for certain of our, Tyco International’s,
and Covidien’s income tax liabilities based on a sharing formula for periods prior to and including
June 29, 2007. More specifically, we, Tyco International, and Covidien share 31%, 27%, and 42%,
respectively, of U.S. income tax liabilitics that arise from adjustments made by tax authorities to our,
Tyco International’s, and Covidien’s U.S. income tax returns, certain income tax liabilitics arising from
adjustments made by tax authorities to intercompany transactions or similar adjustments, and certain
taxes attributable to internal transactions undertaken in anticipation of the separation. All costs and
expenses associated with the management of these shared tax liabilities will be shared equally among
the parties. We are responsible for all of our own taxes that are not shared pursuant to the Tax Sharing
Agreement’s sharing formula. In dddlthl’l Tyco International and Covidien are responsible for their tax
liabilities that are not subject to the Tax Sharing Agreement’s sharing formula. .

All the tax liabilities that are associated with our businesses, including liabilities that arose prior to
our separation from Tyco International, have become our tax liabilities. Aithough we have agreed to
share certain of these tax liabilities with Tyco International and Covidien pursuant to the Tax Sharing
Agreement, we remain primarily liable for all of these liabilities. If Tyco International and Covidien
default on their obligations to us under the Tax Sharing Agreement we would be liable for the entire
amount of these liabilities.’

If any party to the Tax Sharing Agreement were to default in its obligation to another party to pay'
its share of the distribution taxes that arise as a result of no party’s fault, each non-defaulting party
would be required to pay, equally with any other non-defaulting party, the amounts in default. In
addition, if another patty to the Tax Sharing Agreement that is responsible for all or a portion of’ an
income tax liability were to default in its payment of such liability to a taxing authority, we could be
legally liable under applicable tax law for such liabilities and required to make additional tax payments.
Accordingly, under certain circumstances, we may be obligated to.pay amounts in excess of our
agreed-upon share of our, Tyco International’s, and Covidien’s tax liabilities.
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Our, ‘Tyco International’s, and Covidien’s income tax returns are examined periodically by various
tax authorities. In connection with such examinations, tax authorities, including the U.S. Internal
Revenue Service (“IRS”), have raised issues and proposed tax adjustments. We are reviewing and
contesting certain of the proposed tax adjustments. Amounts related to these tax adjustménts and other
tax contingencies that we have assessed under the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board
Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an interpretation of FASB Statement
No. 109,” have been reflected as a liability in the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements.
The calculation of our tax liabilities includes estimates for uncertainties in the application'of complex
tax regulations across multiple global jurisdictions where we conduct our operations. We recognize
liabilities for tax as well as related interest for issues in the U.S. and other tax jurisdictions based on
our estimate of whether, and the extent to which, additional taxes and related interest will be due.
These tax liabilitics and related interest are reflected net of the impact of related tax loss
carryforwards. These estimates may change due to changing facts and circumstances; however, due to
the complexity of these uncertainties, the ultimate resolution may result in a settlement that differs -
from our current estimate of the tax liabilities and related interest. ‘

Under the Tax Sharing Agreement, Tyco International has the right to administer, control, and
settle all U.S. income tax audits for periods prior to and including June 29, 2007. The timing, nature;
and amount of any settlement agreed to by Tyco International may not be in our best interests.
Moreover, the other parties to the Tax Sharing Agréement will be able to remove Tyco International as
the controlling party only under limited circumstances, including a change of control or bankruptcy of
Tyco International, or by a majority vote of the parties on or after the second anniversary of the '
distribution. All other tax audits will be administered, controlled, and settled by the party that would be
responsible for paying the tax,

If the distribution or certain internal transactions undertaken in anticipation of the separation
are determined to be taxable for U.S. federal income tax purposes, we could mcur significant U.S.
federal income tax linbilities. .- g . , :

Tyco International received private letter rulings from the IRS regarding the U.S. federal income
tax consequences of the distribution of our common shares and Covidien common shares to the Tyco
International shareholders substantially to the effect that the distribution, except for cash réceived in
lieu of a fractional share of our common shares and the Covidien common shares, will qualify as
tax-free under Sections 368(a)(1)}(D) and 355 of the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”). The private
letter rulings also provided that certain internal transactions undertaken in anticipation of the
separation would qualify for favorable treatment under the Code. In addition to obtaining the private
letter rulings, Tyco International obtained opinions from the law firm of McDermott Will &

Emery LLP confirming the tax-free status of the distribution and certain internal transactions. The
private letter rulings and the opinions relied on certain facts and assumptions, and certain
representations and undertakings, from us, Tyco International, and Covidien regarding the past and
future conduct of our respective businesses and other matters. Notwithstanding the private letter rulings
and the opinions, the IRS could determine on audit that the distribution or the internal transactions,
should be treated as raxable transactions if it determines that any of these facts, assumptions,
representations, or undertakings are not correct or have been violated, or that the distributions should
be taxable for other reasons, including as a result of significant changes in stock or asset ownership
after the distribution. If the distribution ultimately is determined to be taxable, Tyco International
would recognize gain in an amount equal to the excess of the fair market value of our common shares
and Covidien common shares distributed to Tyco International shareholders on the distribution date
over Tyco International’s tax basis in such common shares, but such gain, if recognized, generally would
not be subject to U.S, federal income tax. However, we would incur significant U'S. federal income tax
liabilities it it is ultlme.tely determined that certain internal transactions undertaken in anticipation of
the separation should be treated as taxable transactions.
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In addition, under the terms of.the Tax Sharing Agreement, in the event the distribution or the
internal transactions were determined to.be taxable and such determination was the result of actions - -
taken after the distribution by us, Tyco International, or Covidien, the party responsible for such failure
would be responsible for all taxes imposed on us, Tyco International, or Covidien as a result thefeof: If
such determination is not the result of actions taken after the distribution by us, Tyco International, or
Covidien, then we, Tyco Internatlonal or C0v1dlen would be responSIble for 31%, 27%, and 42%,\
respectively, of any taxes imposed on us, Tyco Internatlonal or Covidien as a result of such ,
determination. Such tax amounts could be significant. In the event that any party to the Tax Sharing
Agreement defaults in its obligation to’ pay-distribution taxes toanother party that arise as a.result of
no-party’s fauli, each non-defaulting party would be responsible for an equal amount of the defaulting
party’s obligation to make a payment to another party in respect of such other party’s taxes. -

We might not be able to engage in desirable strategic- transactions ‘and equity issuances becanse of
restrlctlons relatmg to U.S. l‘ederal mcome tax requlrements for tax-free distributions. .

Our abﬂlty to engage in 51gmflcant equlty transactlons could be limited or restricted in order to
preserve for U.S. federal income tax purposes the tax-free nature of the distribution by Tyco ‘
International. Similar limitations and restrictions app!y to Tyco International and Cowdlen The
distribution may result in corporate level taxable gain to Tvco International under Sectlon 355(e) of the
Code if 50% or more, by vote or value, of our common shares, Tyco Intemanonal s common shares, or
Covidien’s common shares are acquired or issued as part of a plan or series of related transactlons that
includes the distribution. For this purpose, any acquisitions or issuances of Tyco International’s common
shares within two years before the distribution, and any acquisitions or issuances of our common
shares, Tyco International’s commion shares, or Covidien’s common shares w1thm two years after the
distribution, generally are presumed to be part of such a plan, although we, "Tyco International or
Covidien may be'able to rebut that presumption. We are not aware of any such acquisitions or
issuances ‘of Tyco International’s common shares within the two years before the distribution. If an
acquisifion or issuance of our comimon ‘shares, Tyco International’s common shares, or Covidien’s
common shares triggers the application of Section 355(¢) of the Code, Tyco International would

recognize taxable gain as described above, but such gain generally would not be subject to U.S. federal
" income tax. However, certain subsidiaries of Tyco International or Covidien or subsidiaries of ours
would' incur significant U.S. federai income tax liabilities as aresult of the application of Section 355(¢)
of the Code.. . N : . o .

Under the Tax Sharing Agreement, there are restrictions on our ability to take actions that could
cause the distribution or certain internal transactions undertaken in antlclpatlon of the’ separatlon to
fail to qualify as tax-favored transactions, 1ncludmg entermg into, approving, or allowing any transaction
that results in'a change in ownership of more than'35% of our common shares, a redemption of equity
securities, a sale or other disposition of a substantlal portion of our assets, an acquisition of a business
or assets with equity securities to the extent one or more persons woutd acquire 35% or more of our
common shares, or engdging in certain internal tr_ansacnons These restrictions apply for the two-year
period after the distribution, unless we obtain the consent of the other parties or we obtain a private
letter ‘ruling from the IRS or an unqualified. opinion of a nationally recognized law firm that such .
action will not cause the distribution or the internal transactions undertaken in anticipation of the ./
separation to fail to qualify as tax-favored transactions,.and such letter ruling or opinion, as the case
may be, is acceptable to the parnes Tvco International and Covidien are subject to similar restrlctlons
under the Tax Sharing Agreement. Morgover, the Tax Sharing Agreement generally provides that a
party thereto is responsﬂ)le for any taxes imposed on any other party thereto as a result of the fallure
of the distribution Or certain internal transactions to qualify as a tax—favored transaction under the
Code if such failure is attrlbutable to certain post-distribution actions taken by or in respect of the
responSIble party or its sharéholders, regardless of whether the actions occur more than two years after
the distribution, the other parties consent to such actions or such party obtams a favorable letter ruling
or opinion of tax counsel as described above. For example we would bé responsible for a third party’s
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acquisition of us at a time and in a manner that would cause such failure. These restrictions may.
prevent us from entering into transactions which might be advantageous to our securityholders.

'
i o 1

Risks: Relating to Our Jurisdiction of Incorporation '

1

Legislation and negative publ|c1ty regardmg Bermuda companies could increase our tax burden
and adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows.

Tax ‘Legzslatton

We continue to assess the impact of various U.S. federal and state legislative proposals, and”
modifications {o existing tax treaties between the United States and foreign countries, that could result
in a material increase in. our U.S. federal and state taxes. The U.S. Congress has in the past considered
and is anticipated to continue to consider legislation affecting the tax treatment of companies that have
undertaken certain types of expatriation transactions or companies’ use of or relocation to offshore
jurisdictions, includinz Bermuda. We continue to monitor such potential U.S. federat legislative
proposals, as well as potential proposals relating to deductible payments from U.S, subsidiaries to
foreign parents. Tax lzgislation may be introduced, passed, or modified by the U.S. Congress'in the
future that would have material adverse effects on us if enacted. Such adverse effects could include
Substantlally reducing the tax benefits of our corporate structure, materially increasing our tax burden
or othermse materlally adversely affectmg our results of operations, flnancxa] condmon and cash flows.

Negative Publzctt}

There is contmumg negatlve publicity regardmg, and criticism of, compames use of or relocation
to offshore jurisdictions, including Bermuda. As a Bermuda company, this negative publicity could
harm our reputation and impair our ability to generate new business if companies or governmental
agencies decline to do business wnth us as a result of any perceived negative public image of Bermuda
companies or the possibility of our customers receiving negative media attention from doing busmess
with a Bermuda company. .

Legislation Relating to Govemméntal Contracts

We expect the U.S. Congress to continue to consider implementation and/or expansion of policies
that would restrict the federal and state governments from contracting with entities that move their
corporate locations abroad. We are unable to predict the likelihood that, or final form in which, any
such proposed legislarion might become law, the nature of regulations that may be promulgated under
any'future legislative enactmerits or the effect such enactments and increased regulatory scrutiny may
have on our business. We ar¢ unable to predict whether the final form of any potential legistation
discussed above also would affect our indirect sales to the U.S. federal or state governments or the
willingness of our non- governmental customers to do business with us. As a result of these _
uncertainties, we are unable to assess the potential impact of any proposed legislation i m this arca and _
cannot assure you that the, impact will not be materially adverse to us.

Bermuda law differs from the laws in eﬂ‘ect in the United States and may aﬂ'ord less protection to
holders ‘of our securities.

We are organizec| undcr the laws of Bermuda. It may not be p0851ble to enforce court judgments
obtained in the United States against us in Bermuda based on the civil liability provisions of the U.S.
federal'or state securities laws. In addition, there is some uncertainty as to whether the courts of
Bermuda would recogmze or enforce judgments of U.S. courts obtained against us or our directors or
officers based on the civil liabilities provisions of the U.S. federal or state securities laws or hear
actlons against us or ihose persons based on thos¢ laws. We have been advised that the United States
and Bermucla currently do not have a treaty providing for the reciprocal recognition and enforcement
of judgments in c1v1] and commercial matters. Therefore, a final judgment for the payment of money
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rendered by any U.S. federal or state court based on civil liability, whether or not based solely on U.S.
federal or state securities laws, would not automatically be enforceable in Bermuda.

As a Bermuda company, we are governed by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, which differs
in some materiat respects from laws generally applicable to United States corporations and
shareholders, including differences relating to interested director and officer transactions, shareholder
lawsuits, and indemnification. Likewise, the duties of directors and officers of a Bermuda company
generally are owed to the company only. Sharcholders of Bermuda companies generally do not have a
personal right of action against directors or officers of the company and may exercise such rights of
action on behalf of the company only in limited circumstances. Under Bermuda law, a company also
may agree to indemnify directors and officers for any personal liability, not involving fraud or \
dishonesty, incurred in relation to the company. Thus, holders of our securities may have more
difficulty protecting their interests than would holders of securities of a corporation 1ncorp0rated in a
jurisdiction of the United States.

s

Risks Relating to QOur Common Shares
The market price of our common shares may fluctuate widely.

The market price of our common shares may ﬂuctuate widely, dependmg upon many factors
including: o ‘

*.our quarterly or annual earnings;
* changes in quarterly or annual sales or earnings guidance that we may prowde
* actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operating results;

* extreme volatility in financial markets and market fluctuations caused by the global economlc
downturn and deterioration of credit conditions;

* changes in earnings estimates by securities analysts or our ability to meet those estimates;
* changes in accounting standards, policies, guidance, interpretations, or principles;

+ announcements by us or our competitors of significant acquisitions or dispositions; and

* the operating and stock price performance of comparable companies.

Certain provisions of our bye-laws may reduce the likelihood of any unsolicited acquisition
proposal or potential change of control that our shareholders might consider favorable.

Qur bye-laws contain provisions that could be considered “anti-takeover” provisions because they
make it harder for a third party to acquire us without the consent of our incumbent board of directors.
Under these bye-law provisions:

* sharcholders may not remove directors without cause, change the size of the board of dlrectors
or, except in limited circumstances, fill vacancies on the board of directors;

» shareholders may act only at shareholder mectmgs and not by written consent;

* shareholders must comply with advance notice provisions for nommatmg directors or presenting
other proposals at shareholder meetings;

* restrictions will apply to any merger or other business combination (including an amalgamation
under Bermuda law) between our company and any holder of 15% or more of our issued voting
shares.who became such without the prior approval of our board of directors; and

* our board of directors may without shareholder approval issue preferred shares and determine
their rights and terms, including voting rights, or adopt a shareholder rights plan.

" These provisions, which may only be amended by the affirmative vote of the holders of 80% of our
issued voting shares, could have the effect of discouraging an unsolicited acquisition proposal or
delaying, deferring, or preventing a change of control transaction that might involve a premium prlce or
otherwise be considered favorably by our shareholders.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS .
Not applicable. ’ ' '

ITEMZ PROPERI‘IES C

Propertles

' AOur_ principal offices in the United States are located in Berwyn, Pennsylvania in a facility that we'
rent. We operate nearly 150 manufacturing, warehousing, and office locations in dpproximately 30 -
states in the United States. We also operate over 250 manufacturing, warehousing, and office locations
in approximately 50 countries and territories outside the United States. . ’

We own approxnmately 18 million square feet of space and lease approx:mately 11 million square .
feet of space. Our fucilities are reasonably maintained and suitable for the operations conducted in
themn.

Manufacturing

We manufacture our products in approximately 25 countries worldwide. These manufacturing sites
focus on various aspects of the manufacturing processes, including our primary processes of stamping,
plating, molding, extrusion, beaming, and assembly. We expect to continue to migrate our
manufacturing activities to low-cost countries as our customers’ requirements shift. In addition, we will
continue to look for efficiencies to reduce our manufacturing costs and believe that we can achieve cost
reductions through improved manufacturing efficiency and through the migration of manofacturing to
low-cost countries.

e . ’ ’ ]
Our centers of manufacturing output at September 26, 2008 included sites in the following
countries: :
' Number of Manufacturing Facilities

o . .. Electronic Network Undersea Wireless
Components  Solutions  Telecommunications  Systems  Total

Americas:
United States . ...... ‘ 24 3 o 1T : 1 .29
Mexico........ N | 1 — — -6
Brazil , ............ ' 1 — — — 1

Europe/Middle East/Africa: .
United Kingdom . . . . . .
Germany ..........
India .......... e
France . ..........
Switzerland . .. ... ...
Spain . ....... ... v
Belgium ...........
Czech Republic. . . . ..
Ireland . ... ........
Italy .. ....
‘Austria ... ... .. -
Hunpary .. .........
Poland .............
Portugal. .. .. ... R
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, . Number of Manufacturing Facilities

Electronic Network Undersea Wireless
* Components Solutions Telecommunications Systems  Total

. Asia-Pacific: ; S ,

CChina .ol 13 r 2 — — 15
Japan............. 3 — — — 3
Indonesia . ......... — 1 — — 1
Korea............. 1 — —_ — 1
Malaysia........... — 1 — — 1
New Zealand ....... 1 — — — 1
‘Singapore . ......... 1 — — — 1.
Thailand........... — 1 — — 1

Total ................. 79 2 1 2 104

We estimate that our manufactunng production by region in flscal 2008 was approxnmately
Americas—30%, Europe/Mlddle East/Afr1ca—40%, and Asia-Pacific—30%.

We expect that manufacturing production will continue to increase in the Asia- Pac1ﬁc region as a
percentage of total manufacturing as this region continues to experience strong growth and our
customers’ manufacturlng continues to migrate to the rcglon

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Tyce Electronics Legal Proceedings

In the ordmary course of business, we are subject to various legal proccedmgs and claims,
including antitrust claims, product llablhty matters, environmental matters, employment disputes,
disputes on agreements, and other commercial disputes. In addition, we operate in an industry ,
susceptible to significant patent legal claims. At any given time in the ordinary course of business, we
are involved as either a plaintiff or defendant in a number of patent infringement actions. If '
infringement of a third party’s patent were to be détermined ~against us, we might be rcqmred to make
significant royalty or other payments or might be subject to an injunction or other limitation on our
ability to_manufacture or sell one or more products. If a patent owned by or licensed to us were
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, we might be required to reduce the value of the patent on
our balance sheet and to record a correspondmg charge, which could be significant in amount.

Management believes that these legal proceedings and claims likely will be resolved over an
extended period of time. -Although it is not feasible to predict the outcome of these proceedings, based
upon’our experience, current information and- applicable law, we do not expect that these proceedings -
will have a material adverse effect on our financial position. However, one or more of the proceedlngs
could have a material adverqc effect on our results of operatlons for a future period. .

g

Legal Matters under Separation and Dlstnbutmn Agreement - .

Th'e Separation and Distribution Agreement provided for the allocation among us, Tyco
International, and Covidien of Tyco International’s assets, liabilities, and obligations attributable to
periods prior to our and Covidien’s separations from Tyco International on Jupe 29, 2007. Under the
Separation and Distribution Agreemient, we assumed the liability for, and control of, all pending and
threatened legal matters at separation related to our own business or assumed or retained liabilities,
and will indemnify the other parties for any liability arising out of or resulting from such assumed legal
matters. Tyco Electronics will be responsible for 31% of certain potential liabilities that may arise from
litigation pending or threatened at separation that was not allocated to one of the three parties, and
Tyco International and Covidien are responsible for 27% and .42%, respectively, of such liabilities. 1f
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any party defaults in payment of its atlocated share of any such liability, each non-defaulting party will
be responsible for an equal portion of the amount in default together with any other non-defaulting
party, although any such payments will not release the obligation of the defaulting party. Subject to the
terms and conditions of the Separation and Distribution Agreement, Tyco International manages and
controls all the legal matters related to the shared contingent liabilities, including the defense or
settlement thereof, subject to certain limitations. All costs and expenses that Tyco International incurs
in connection with the defense of such litigation, other than the amount of any judgment or settlement,
which will be allocated in the manner described above, will be borne equally by Tyco International,
Covidien, and us.

Tyco International Legal Proceedings
Securities Actions
Securities Class Actions and Settlements

As previously reported in our periodic filings, prior to the announcement by Tyco International of
the planned separation of Tyco 'Electronics and Covidien in January 2006, Tyco International and
certain of its former directors and officers were named as defendants in-over 40 purported securities
class action lawsuits. As a part of the Separation and Distribution Agreement, any existing or potentiaj
liabilities related to the securities class actions were allocated among Tyco International, Covidien, and
us. We are responsible for 31% of potential liabilities that may arise upon the resolution of the
remaining pending litigation.

Most of the securities class actions were transferred to the United States District Court for the
District of New Hampshire for coordinated or consohidated pre-trial proceedmgs A consolidated
securities class action compldmt was filed in ‘these proceedings, and on June 12, 2000, the court entered
an order certifying a class “consisting of all persons and entities who putchased or otherwnse acquired
Tyco securities between December 13, 1999 and June 7, 2002, and who were, damaged thereby,
excluding defendants, all of the officers, directors and partners thereof membcrs of their immediate
families and their legal representatives, heirs, successors or assigns, and any entity in which any of the
foregoing have or had a controlling interest.” As previously reported, ‘Tyco International settled 32 of
the purported securities class action lawsuits arising from the actions alleged to have been taken by its
prior management, for which we were responsible for 31%. All legal contingencies that could have
affectéd the final order entered in the United States District Court for the District of New Hampshire
approving the settlement expired on February 21, 2008. As of the opt-out deadline for the settlement,
Tyco International received opt-out notices from individuals and entities totaling approximately 4% of -
the shares owned by class members. A number of these individuals and entities have filed actions
separately against. Tyco International and/or Tyco International, Covidien, and us. Generally, the claims
asserted by these plaintiffs include violations of the disclosure provisions of federal securities laws. Tyco
International has advised us that it intends to vigorously defend any litigation resulting from opt-ouit
claims. It is not possible at this time to predict the final outcome or to estimate the amount of loss or
range of possible loss, if any, that might result from an adverse resolution of the asserted or unasserted
claims from individuals that have opted out. One of the opt-out lawsuits was filed by certain BlackRock
funds against Tyco International, Covidien and us. One_ of our direciors, Robert M. Hernandez, is a
trustee/director.of certain of the BlackRock funds named as plaintiffs in the lawsuit. However,

Mr. Hernandez was not informed and had no knowledge of the lawsuit because he had beéen recused
from all discussions and decisions relating to the lawsuit. Mr, Hernandez will continue to recuse himself
from any and all matters relating to the lawsuit in both his capacity as a dlrector of Tyco Electronics
and as a trustee/dlrector of certain BlackRock funds.

Two additional securities cases were settled in fiscal 2008, and since the end of fiscal 2008, two
additional securities cases, Hess v Tyco International Lid., et al. and Sciallo v. Tyco International Lid.,
et al., have been settled as described below. A few securities cases remain outstanding, including
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Stumpf v. Tyco Intemational Lid., et al., Jasin v. Tyco International Ltd., et al., and Hall v. Kozlowski, et al.
Additionally, several cases asserting claims arising under ERISA remain outstanding.

If the unresolved securities proceedings were to be determined adversely to Tyco International, our
share of any additional potential losses under the terms of the Separation and Distribution Agreement,
which are not presently estimable, may have a material adverse effect on our results of operations,
financial position, or cash flows. ‘

Securities Actions Not Covered by the Class Action Settlement or Other Settlements '

As previously reported in our perlodlc filings, an action entitled Hess v. Tyco Intemational Ltd., et '
al. was filed on June 3, 2004 in the Superior Court of the State of Cilifornia for the County of Los
Angeles against certain of Tyco International’s former directors and officers, Tyco International’s
former auditors, and Tyco International. The complaint assérts claims of fraud, negligent
representation, aiding and abetting breach of fiduciary duty, and breach of fiduciary duty in connection
with, and subsequent to, an underlying settlcment of litigation brought by shareholders in Progresswe 7
Angloplasty Systems, Inc. where the plaintiffs received Tyco International’s stock as consideration. In"
November 2008, Tyco International entered into a definitive agreement to settle this action, and our
allocated portion of the settlement amount under, the Separation and Distribution Agreemem is
approximately $5 mitlion.

]

- As previously reported in our periodic filings, on October 30 2003, Stumpf v. Tico
International Ltd., et al was transferred to the United States District Court for the District of New
Hampshire by the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation. The complaint asserts claims against Tyco
International based on Sections 11 and 15 of the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities Act”) and
Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Exchange Act. This action is in the pre-trial stage.

‘As previously reported in our periodic filings, an action entitled Sciallo v. Tyco Intemational Ltd., et
al. was filed on September 30, 2003 in the United States District Court for the Southern District of
New York against defendants Fyco International and certain former Tyco International directors and-

. executivés. The complaint alleged plaintiffs traded U.S. Surgical stock options for ‘Tyco International

stock options when Tyco International acquired U.S. Surgical on October 1, 1998 and asserted causes of
action under Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder, for common
law fraud and negligence, and violation of New York General Business Law Section 349, which
prohibits deceptive acts and practices in the conduct of any business. The Judicial Panel on

Multidistrict Litigation transferred this action to the United States District Court for the District of
New Hampshire. In November 2008, Tyco International entered into a definitive agreement to settle
this action, and our allocated portion of the settlement amount under the Separatlon and Distribution
Agreement is less than $1 million.

As previously reported in our periodic filings, an action was filed on September 2, 2004 in the
Court of Common Pleas for Dauphin County, Pennsylvania, entitled Jasin v Tyco International Lid., et
al. This pro se plaintiff named as additional defendants Tyco International (U.S.) Inc. and certain of

- Tyco International’s former executives, Plaintiff’s complaint asserts causes of action under Section 10(b)
of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder, as well as Section 11 of the Securities
Act. Claims against the former executives also are asserted under Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act
and-Rule 14a-9 promulgated thereunder and Section 20A of the Exchange Act, as well as Sections 11,
12(a)(2) and 15 of the Securities Act. Plaintiff also asserts common law fraud, negligent
misrepresentation, unfair trade practice, breach of contract, breach of the duty of good faith and fdll’
dealing, and violation of Section 1-402 of the Pennsylvania Securities Act of 1972. Tyco International
removed the complaint to the United States District Court for the Middle District of Pennsylvania and
the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation transferred: this action to the United States District Court
for the District of New Hampshire. This action is in the pre-trial stage.
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As previously reported in:our periodic filings, the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation
transferred Hall v. Kozlowski, et al., an action relating to plaintiff’s employment, 401(k) and pension .
plans, and ownership of Tyco Internatlonal stock, to the United States District Court for the District of
New Hampshire. This action is in the pre-trial stage.

ERISA Litigation

As previously reported in our periodic filings, Tyco International and certain of its current and
former employees, officers, and directors have been named as defendants in eight class actions brought
under ERISA. All eight actions were consolidated in the United States District Court for the District
of New Hampshire. The consolidated complaint purports to bring claims on behalf of the Tyco
International Retirement Savings and Investment Plans and the partlc:lpants therein and alleges that the
defendants breached their fiduciary dutics under ERISA by negligently misreprésenting and negligently
failing to disclose material information concerning, among other things, the following; related- -party
transactions and executive compensation; Tyco International’s mergers and acquisitions and the
accounting therefor, as well as allegedly undisclosed acquisitions; and misstatements of Tyco
International’s financial results. The complaint also asserts that the defendants breached their flduc:lary
duties by allowing the Plans to invest in Tyco International’s shares when it was not a prudent
investment. The complaints seek recovery of alleged plan losses arising from ajleged breaches of
fiduciary duties. On August 15, 2006, the court entered an order certifying a class “consisting of all
Participants in the Plans for whose individual accounts the Pians purchased and/or held shares of Tyco
Stock Fund at any time from ‘August 12, 1998 to July 25, 2002.” This action is in the pre-trial stage.

Investigations '

As previously reported in our periodic filings, Tyco International and others have received various
subpoenas and requests from the SEC’s Division of Enforcement, the U.S. Department of Labor, the
General Services Administration, and others seeking the production of voluminous documents in .
connection with various investigations into Tyco International’s governance, management, operations,

. accounting, and related controls prior to the separation. The Department of Labor is investigating Tyco

International and the administrators of certain of its benefit plans. Tyco International has advised us
that it cannot predict when these investigations will be completed, nor can it predict what the results of
these investigations may be. It is possible that Tyco International will be required to pay material fines -
or suffer other penaities, and pursuant to the liability sharing provisions of the Separation and
Distribution Agreement a portion of such payments may be allocated to us. It is not possible to
estimate the amount of loss, or range of possible loss, if any, that might result from an adverse
resolution of these matters. As-a result, our share of such potential losses also is not estimable and may
have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial p051t10n or cash flows, '

Compliance Matters

s

As previously reported in our periodic filings, Tyco International received and has responded to
various allegations that certain improper payments were made by Tyco International subsidiaries,
including Tyco Electronics subsidiaries, in recent years prior to the separation. Tyco International
reported to the U.S. Department of Justice (“DOJ”) and the SEC the investigative steps and remedial
measures that it had taken in response to the allegations, including that it retained outside counsel to
perform a company-wide baseline review of its policies, controls, and practices with respect to
compliance with the, FCPA, that it would continue to make periodic progress reports to these agencies,
and that it would present its factual findings upon conclusion of the baseline review. To date, our’
baseline review has revealed that some of our former business practices may not comply with FCPA
requirements. At this time, we cannot predict the outcome of these matters and other allegations
reported to regulatory and law enforcement authorities and therefore cannot estimate the range of
potential loss or extent of risk, if any, that may result from an adverse resolution of these matters.
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However, it is possible that we may be required to pay judgments, suffer penalties, or incur settlements
in amounts that may have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial position, or
cash flows. Any judgment, settlement, or other cost incurred by Tyco International in connection with
these matters not specifically allocated to Tyco International, Covidien, or us would be subject to the
liability sharing provisions of the Separatlon and Distribution Agreement.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to security holders for a vote during the fourth quarter of the fiscal
year ended September 26, 2008 : ’
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PART 1I

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
' MATTERS AND ISSUER ‘PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Informatmn

Tyco Electronics’ common shares are listed and traded on the New York Stock Exchange
(“NYSE”) and the Bermuda Stock Exchange under the symbol “TEL,” and began trading on the
NYSE on a “when-issued” basis on June 14, 2007 prior to Tyco Electronics’ spin-off from Tyco
International on June 29, 2007. The following table sets forth the high and low closing sales: prices of
Tyco Electronics’ common shares as reported by the NYSE for the quarterly periods froni and after
June 14, 2007.

Market Price Range

Fiscal Year Ended September 28, 2007 ' High Low
Third Quarter (June 14, 2007 through June 29, 2007) . .................... $39.75 $35.95
Fourth QUarter . . ..ot e et e e e e e e e e e 40.30 32.45
Fiscal Year Ended September 26, 2008

First QUam T o . vt e e e e e e $37.97 $31.36
Second Quarter ....... ... e e e e e e e 37.13 31.18
Third QUAT ST . . . . . e e 40.12 34.04
Fourth QUarter . .. . e e e e e e 37.40 26.90

The number of registered holders of Tyco Electronics’ common shares at November 17, 2008 was
39,071. -

Dividends

The following table sets forth the dividends declared on Tyco Electromcs common shares for the
quarterly periods presented below.

Dividend per

Fiscal Year Ended September 28, 2007 : : Common Share
FOUIth QUAT ET . o o v ottt et e e et e e e e e $0.14
Fiscal Year Ended September 26, 2008

First QUarter . . ... o i e e e e 0.14
Second QUATIET . . o o vttt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 0.14
Third QUarter . . .o e e e e e e e e e e e 0.14
Fourth Quarter., .. ... .............. e e 0.16

Future dividends on our common shares, if any, will be at the discretion of Tyco Electronics® board
of directors and wilt depend on, among other things, our results of operations, cash requirements and
surplus, financial condition, statutory requirements of Bermuda law, contractual restrictions, and other
factors that the board of directors may deem relevant. We may from time to time enter into financing
agreements that contain financial covenants and restrictions, some of which may limit the ability of
Tyco Electronics to pay dividends.

Performance Graph

Set forth below is a graph comparing the cumulative total shareholder return on Tyco Electronics’
common shares against the cumulative return on the S&P 500 Index and the Dow Jones Wilshire
Electrical Components & Equipment Index, assuming investment of $100 on June 14, 2007, the first
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day of “when-issued” trading of Tyco Electronics’ common shares on the NYSE prior to ‘our -separation
from Tyco Internationial on June 29, 2007, including the reinvestment of dividends, and the investment
of $100 in the Indexes on May 31, 2007. The graph shows the cumulanve total return as of the fiscal
years ended September 28, 2007 and September 26, 2008. The comparisons in the graph below are |
based upon historical data and are not indicative of, nor intended to forecast, future performance of
the common shares. ‘

$120

$100 Pz B T RRCECRTTEESITPTERTTRTRIT

$80

$60

$40 .________.‘__-_”...--____-_-_-________________.________________-___-____________;____‘_ __________ PRI
$20 """"""" :“"""“"""""""""":"""""‘""""""""""", """"""""" Pl
50 —— S — , : _
6/14/07 9/28/07 . . o . 9/26/08
—8B—— Tyco Electronics Lid.
— —A— — S&P 500 ' o ' -om
RRERE. O ] - Dow Jones Wilshire Elecltrical Components & Equipment l
, 6/14/07%  9/28/07 ' 9/26/08
Tyco Electronics Ltd. . ... ......... e e 100.00 9120 70.50 -
S&P 500 . . e e e e e e 100.00 . 100.34 78.29
Dow Jones Wilshire Electrical Components & Equipment . ... .......... 100.00 100.72 76.90

* $100 invested on 6/14/07 in Tyco Electronics’ common shares or on 5/31/07 in Indcx—mcludmg reinvestment of dmdends

Indexes calculated on month-end basis.

Recent Sales of Unreg;stered Securities

Under the Separation and Distribution Apreement among Tyco International, Covidien, and Tyco
Electronics, we were required from time to time to issue common shares upon the conversion of -
convertible notes of Tyco International that were outstanding at the time of the separation. During the
fiscal quarter ended September 26, 2008, we issued 201,669 unregistered common shares upon the
conversion of Tyco International convertible notes.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information as of September 26, 2008 with respect to Tyco
Electronics’ common shares issuable under its equity compensatlon plans or equity compensat:on plans

of Tyco Internatlonal prlOl‘ to the separation:

Number of securities
to be issued upon
exercise of outstanding
options, warrants

'

Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance nnder
equity compensation
plans (excluding
securities reflected

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding options,

: and rights warrants and rights in column (a))
Plan Category (@ - (b) (c}
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders: :
2007 Stock and Incentive Plan® . . . .. 5,076,564 $39.39 19,766,888
Equity conipensation plans not approved
by security, holders:
Equity awards under Tyco
International Ltd. 2004 Stock and
Incentive Plan and other equity
incentive plans® . . ... ... ....... 23,766,736 $43.79
Total .......c.. . i 28,843,300 19,766,888

(1) The Tyco Electronics Ltd. 2007 Stock and Incentive Plan (the “2007 Plan”) provides for the award of share options, stock
appreciation rights, annual performance bonuses, long-term performance awards, restricted units, deferred stock units,
restricted shares, promissory shares, and other share-based awards (collectively, “Awards™) to board members, officers, and
non-officer employees. The 2007 Plan provides for a maximum of 24,843,452 common shares to be issued as Awards,

subject to adjustment as provided under the terms of the 2007 Plan,

(2) Includes common shares that may be issued by Tyco Electronics pursuant to the Separation and Distribution Agreement
under equity awards, including share options, restricted shares, restricted stock units, and deferred stock units, granted to
current and former employees and directors of Tyco International Ltd. and its subsidiaries, which may include individuals
currently or formerly employed by or serving with Tyco Electronics, Tyco International, or Covidien subsequent to the
separation. See Note 24 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for additional information regarding these

- outstanding awards.
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archases of Zquity Securities - Co

1ssuer P
in-table presents information about our purchases of our common shares durlng the

{’ a?gi:g}:?‘:rd September 26, 2008
18C
. . Maximum
Lo Total Number of Approximate
Shares Purchased - | Dollar Value
! as Part of of Shares that May
. Total Number  -Avernge Price  Publicly Announced  Yet Be Purchased
of Shares ‘ Paid Per . Plans or Under the Plans ,
Purchased™ Share!" Programs'® or Programsm
period /-—July 25,2008. . ......... 3,210,671 $35.23 3,210,604 $268,747,820
]U‘}—August 29,2008 ......... 4,370,064 33.25 . -4.370,064 873,445,780
Y5t 30—September 26, 2008 . 4,905,043 2898 . 4,904,744, 731,320,097
7 P i aclba RECAL e il
/A[ ............. e e 12,485,778 $32.08 125485,4]2 ‘ $73],320,097

(1) This column includes the following transactions which occurred during the fiscal quarter ended Scptember 26, 2008:'

,~ (i) the acquisition of 366 common §hares from individuals in order to satisfy tax withholding rcqmrements in connectlon
with the vesting of restricted shares issued under equity compensanon plans; and

(i) the purchase of 12,485,412 common shares, summarized on a trade—ddtc basis, in conjunction with the repurchase
’ program announced in September 2007, which transactions occurred in open markct purchases and pursuant to a
trading plan under Rule 10b3-1 of the Exchange Act.

{2) On July 28, 2008, our board of directors approved and authorized an increase of the share repurchase program from
$1 225 billion to $2.0 billion. The share. repurchase program authorizes the company 10 purchase a portion of our
’ outstandmg common shares from time to time through open market or private “transactions, dependmg on business und

! market conditions. The share repurchase program does not have an expiration date.
v

[

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA '

The followingtable presents selected consolidated and combmed fmancnal and other operatmg
data for Tyco Electronics. The consolidated and combined statement of operations data for fiscal 2008,
2007, and 2006 and the consolidated balance sheet.data as of September 26, 2008 and September 28,
2007 are derived from our audited consolidated and combmed financial statements included elsewhere
in this Annual Report. The combined statement of operations data for fiscal 2005 and 2004 and the
combined balance sheet data as of September 29, 2006 and September 30, 2005 are derived from our
audited combined financial statements not included elsewhere in this Annual Report. The combined
balance sheet data as of September 30 2004 is denved from our unaudited combined financial- ,
statements not included elsewhere in this Annual Report. The unaudited combined financial statements
have been prepared on the same basis as the audited consolidated and combined financial statements
and, in the opinion of management, include all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring
adjustments, necessary for a fair presentation of the information set forth herein.

The data presented below should be read in conjuncti(lfb with our Consolidated and Combined
Financial Statements and accompanying notes, and “Management’s Discussion-and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results:of Operations” included elsewhere in this Annual Report. Our consolidated and
combined financial information may not be indicative ‘of our future performance and does not
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Management believes-such allocations were- reasonable however, they may not be indicative of our
actual results had | we “Been operating ds an mdependent publicly-traded. company for the periods |
presented.. See Note 18 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for, further, -
information regarding allocations. Do

- As discussed elsewhere in this Annual Report, prior to the Separation,we used the corporate
services of Tyco International for a vanety of functions including treasury, tax, legal, internal audit,
human resources, and risk management We no longer rely on Tyco International for these services.

Overvrew
Al Vr. . P . Ler TRy

We are a leadmg global provider of engineered electromc components -network: solutrons undersea
telecommunication systems, and wireless systems. We operate through four reporting segments::
Electronic. Components, Network Solutions, Undersea Telecommunications, and Wireless Systems We
design, manufacture,.and market approxrmately 500,000 different products for customers in industries
ranging from automotive, appliance, and aerospace and defense to telecommumcatrons computer, and
consumer electronics. We believe the end markets ‘that we sell into ‘are balanced with the total end

market demand for ‘electronic components. B S

We service our customers primarily tllrough our dlrect sales force that serves customers in over 150
countries. The sales force is supported by nearly 8,000 engmeers as well as globally deployed
manufacturing sites. Through our sales force and engineering resources, we are able to collaborate w1th
our customers anywhere in the world to provrde highly engmeered products and solptrons to'meet their

needs

\ .
Our strateglc Ob_}CCthC is to mcrease our revenue ‘and profitability across’all of our segments mhthe
markets we setve. This strategy is’ dependent upon the followmg strategrc pnormes

HEEE oty i D .t

-, .* leverage our -market leadershrp position'to increase our market share; . Con Ve

. achreve market leadershlp in attractlve and under—penetrated mdustnes

vt % TR T e e 4

. extend our leadership in key emerging markets S S s
* supplement organic growth with strategic acquisitions;

s continue to fOCUs our existing portfollo

1 P [T .

" s improve operatmg margins; and. ., ,, .- ‘ ' St
» accelerate new’ product developmént through research “and’ development excellence R ‘
T P L,
Key business’ factors that 1nfluenced our results: of operattons for,the perlods dlscussed in this.

Management S Dtscussron and Analysrs of Financial Condrtlon and Results .of Operations mclude
rreya

* Market candmans. We have experren(:ed sales growth that was driven by the contmued 1ncreased'
\, . use of electronics across the,end markets that we serve. This sales growth was achieved despite_

. industry pricing pressures, Over the per1ods shown, we have experienced price erosion of M
approximately 1% to 3%. We expect price erosion to continue in the future. The increase in our
net sales for each fiscal year in the periods shown reflects volumg increases that more than
offset the rmpact of pncmg pres5ures ' !

i . v , im0, L

- * Raw.material price increases. .We purchase approxtmately 200 million pounds of copper and . -,
approximately 220,000 troy ounces of gold annually. During the periods shown, the prices:of
these key raw ‘materials, as well[as the prices of certain other raw materials, have increased, ;.

. substantlally Copper prlces remain high relative to historical levels, but the rate of increase has.,

L - o ' wr ’ J'll' - € e . v -t

"
TR

B 1 S T o b o "
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities o

The following table presents information about our purchases of our common sha'res'du-ring the
fiscal quarter ended September 26, 2008:

) Maximum
Total Number of Approximate
Shares Parchased . Dollar Vaiue
as Part of of Shares that May
Total Number  Average Price  Publicly Announced  Yet Be Purchased’
of Shares Paid Per Plans or Under the Plans ,
Period Purchased!" Sharel ~ Programs'® or Programs®™
June 28—July 25, 2008. .......... 3,210,6M $35.23 3,210,604 $268,747,820 -
July 26—August 29,2008 . .. ... ... 4,370,064 3325 . 4,370,064 873,445,780
August 30—September 26, 2008 . ... 4,905,043 2898 - 4,904,744 731,320,097

Total . ............ e 12,485,778 $32.08 12,485,412 - $731,320,097

(1) This column includes the following transactions which occurred during'lhc' fiscal quarter ended Scptember 26, 2008:
It
(i) the acquisition of 366 common shares from individuals in Ordcr to satisfy tax withholding requirements in connection
with the vesting of restricted shares issued under equity compcnsatlon plans; and

(i} the purchase of 12,485,412 common shares, summarized on a tl‘dde date basis, in con]unctlon wnh the repurchase
program announced in September 2007, which transactions occurred in open mdrkcl purchascs and pursuant to a
trading plan under Rule 10b5-1 of the Exchange Act.

(2) On July 28, 2008, our board of directors approved and authorized an increase of the share repurchase program from
$1.25 billion 1o §2.0 billion. The share. rcpurchdse program authorizes the company (o purchase a portion of our
* outstanding common shares from time to time through open market or private transactions, depending on business and
* market conditions. The share repurchase program does not have an expiration date.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA '

The followmg:table presents selected consolidated and combined f1nanc1a[ and, other operatmg
data for Tyco Electronics. The consolidated and combined statement of operations data for fiscal 2008,
2007, and 2006 and the consolidated balance sheet.data as of September 26, 2008 and September 28,
2007 are derived from our audited consolidated and combmed financial statements included elsewhere
in this Annual Report. The combined statement of operations data for fiscal 2005 and 2004 and the
combined balance sheet data as of September 29, 2006 and September, 30, 2005 are derived from our |
audited combined financial statements not included elsewhere in this Annual Report, The combined
balance sheet data as of September 30, 2004 is derived from our unaudited combined financial ,
statements not included .elsewhere in this Annyal Report, The unaudited combined financial statements
have been prepared on the same basis as the audited consolidated and combined financial statements .
and, in the opinion of management, include all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring
adjustments, necessary for a fair presentation of the information set forth herein, .

The data presented below should be read in conjunctic'i‘h with.our Cdns.c')llfdatéd and Combined
Financial Statements and accompanying notes and “Mapagement’s Discussion- and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” included elsewhere in this Annual Report. Our consolidated and
combined financial information may not be indicative ‘of our future performance and does hot- '

2008 Form 10-K 33




Management believes-such alldcations were: reasonable; however, they may not be indicative of 'our "
actual results had 'we ‘been operating s an independent, publicly-traded ‘company for the periods
presented. See Note 18 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for.further =~ !
information regarding allocations. S

. As discussed elsewhere in this Annual Report, prior to'the Separation, we used the corporate -
services of Tyco International for a varrety of functions-including treasury, tax, legal, internal aundit,
human resources and risk management We no longer rely on Tyco International for these services.

Overview
1 | . r o W . s g " ‘

We are a leadmg global provrder of engmeered electromc components network solutions, undersea
telecommunication systems, and wireless systems. We operate through four.reporting segments:
Electronic Components, Network, Solutions, Undersea Telecommunications, and. Wireless Systems. We
design, manufacture, and market approximate]y 500,000 different products for customers in industries
ranging front -automotive, .appliance, and aerospace anddefense to telecommunication$, computer, and
consumer electronics. We believe the end ‘markets ‘that we sel] into are balanced with the total end
market demand for-electronic components. - e .

0o . -

We service our customers primarily through our dlrect sales force that serves customers in over 150
countries, The sales force is supported by nearly 8,000 engineers, as well as globally deployed v
manufacturing sites. Through our sales force and engineering resources, we are able to collaborate wrth
our customers anywhere' in thé world to ‘provide highly englneered products and solut:ons to meet their
needs

Our strategtc objectwe is to mcrease our revenue ‘and’ profitability across all of our segments m the
markets we serve ThlS strategy is dependent upon the followmg strateglc prrontres ce et

i o T 4 +
N leverage our. market leadershrp position”to increase our market share; , | Y

* achieve’ market leadershlp m attractive and under-penetrated mdustrles

. 1
Lo P 4 P

* extend our leadership in key emerging markets S o e e e
* supplement organic growth with strategic acquisitions;
* continue to focus our existing portfolio;

S Tt ' -t P ot r.f"':.". 1 . E e T

. improve operating margins" and ,,, .. . B C . .

. accelerate new product development through research and development excellence W )
o 170

Key busmess factors that mfluenced our resultSrof operattons for.the perlods dtscussed in thls P
Management § Dlscussmn and Analy51s of Financial Condltlon and Results of Operatlons mclude

* Market condrtwns We have experlenced sales growth that was driven by the- contmued mcreased
f, - use of electronics across the,end markets that we serve. This sales growth was achieved despite
industry pricing- pressures. Over the periods shown, we have experienced price erosion of =~ -
approximately 1% to 3%. We expect price erosion to continue in the future. The increase in our
net sa]es for ¢ach fiscal year in the perlods shownlreflects volume i increases that more than

offset the lmpact of prtcmg pressures - b ’ ’ -
e L P RN

. Raw material price increases. We purchase approxrmately 200 million pounds of copper and Ty,
approxtmately 220,000 troy ounces of gold annually: During the periods shown, the prices-of
these key raw ‘materials, as well as the prices of certain other raw materials, have increased, .-, ;

- substantially. Copper prices remain h1gh relative to hlstorrcal levels, but the rate of increase, has .
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table presents information about our purchases of our common shares during the
fiscal quarter ended September 26, 2008:

Maximum
Total Number of Approximate
Shares Purchased Doltar Value
. as Part of of Shares that May
Total Number Average Price  Publicly Announced Yet Be Purchased
of Shares Paid Per Plans or Under the Plans
Period Purchased'V ShareV Programs® or Programs®
June 28—July 25,2008........... 3,210,671 $35.23 3,210,604 $268,747.820
July 26—August 29, 2008 . .. ... ... 4,370,064 33.25 4,370,064 873,445,780
August 30—September 26, 2008 . . .. 4,905,043 28.98 4,904,744 731,320,097
Total .. ........ ... 12,485,778 $32.08 12,485,412 M’I‘_

)] This column includes the following transactions which occurred during the fiscal quarter ended September 26, 2008:

(i} the acquisition of 366 common shares from individuals in order to satisfy tax withholding requirements in connection
with the vesting of restricted shares issued under equity compensation plans; and

(i) the purchase of 12,485,412 common shares, summarized on a trade-date basis, in conjunction with the repurchase
program announced in September 2007, which transactions occurred in open market purchases and pursuant to a
trading plan under Rule 10b5-1 of the Exchange Act. '

(2} On July 28, 2008, our board of directors approved and authorized an increase of the sharc repurchase program from
$1.25 billion to $2.0 billion. The share repurchase program authorizes the company to purchase a portion of our
outstanding common shares from time td time through open market or private transactions, depending on business and
market conditions. The share repurchase program does not have an expiration date.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table presents selected consolidated and combined financial and other operating
data for Tyco Electronics. The consolidated and combined statement of operations data for fiscal 2008,
2007, and 2006 and the consolidated balance sheet.data as of September 26, 2008 and September 28,
2007 are derived from our audited consolidated and combined financial statements included elsewhere
in this Annual Report. The combined statement of operations data for fiscal 2005 and 2004 and the
combined balance sheet data as of September 29, 2006 and September 30, 2005 are derived from our
audited combined financial statements not included elsewhere in this Annual Report. The combined
balance sheet data as of September 30, 2004 is derived from our unaudited combined financial
statements not included .elsewhere in thl: Annual Report. The unaudited combined financial statements
have been prepared on the same basis as the audited consolidated and combined financial statements
and, in the opinion of management, include all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring
adjustments, necessary for a fair presentation of the information set forth herein.

The data presented below should be read in conjunctio‘n with our Consolidated and Combined
Financial Statemenis and accompanying notes and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” included elsewhere in this Annual Report. Our consolidated and
combined financial information may not be indicative of our future performance and does not
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necessarily reflect what our financial position and results of operations would have been had we
operated as an independent, publicly-traded company during the periods presented.

As of or for Fiscal
2008™ 2007@® 2006316 20056 20045®)
(in millions, except per share data)

Statement of Operations Data

Netsales.......... ... i, $14,834 . $12,959 $11,811  §$10924  $10,079
Gross income . ........... e 3,770 3,339 3,194 2,978 2,901
Litigation settlement, net .. .. .............. 22 887 — — —
Separation CoStS . .. ............ .. ... . — 44 — — —
Restructuring and other charges (credits), net . . . 185 92 - 7 (11) (34)
Impairment of goodwill and long-lived a‘;sets. e 137 — — — —_
Gain on divestiture . .............. e — — — (301) . —
Income from operations. .. ................ 1,746 716 1,742 1,961 1,574
Income (loss) from continuing operations . . . . . . 1,594 (178) 1,447 o979 - 726
Income (loss) from discontinued operauons, net

of income taxes . .............. ...... i 188 (376) (246) 154 36
Cumulative effect of accounting Change ncl of ‘

incometaxes ......... ... i ., — — (8) 11 —
Net income (loss) ... ....... ... oo, $ 1,782 § (554) $ 1,193 §$ 1,144 § 762

Per Share Data‘”
Basic earnings (loss) per share:

Income (loss) from continuing operations .... $§ 330 '$ (0.36) $ 291 § 197 § 146

Netincome (loss). ..................... 3.69 (1.11) 2.40 2.30 1.53
Diluted earnings (loss) per share: :

Income (loss) from continuing operations . ... $§ 328 § (036) § 291 § 197 § 146

Net income (loss) . .. ....... .. ... ...... 3.67 (1.11) 2.40 2.30 1.53
Cash dividends per share ......... P $ 058 $ 014 § — $§ — § —
Balance Sheet Data . '
Total current assets . ... ..........ceoun.. $ 7095 $99% - $ 6686 § 6339 § 6246
Total assets .. ... ... oo e ©21,600 - 23,688 19,091 18,473 18,789
Total current liabilities . .. ......... S 3,332 6,204 - 3,167 - 3,188 3,004
Long-term debt and obhgauons under capital ' '

leases . ... ... ... i . 3,161 3373 3,371 3,816 5,208
Totalequity . . . ... ... ... 11,073 11,377 ° 1,160 9,842 8,242
Working capital® ... ... .. oo oL 3,763 3,792 - 3519 " 3,151 - 3242
Othér Operating Data ’ ' ' ' '
Capital expenditures . ........0 . .......... $§ o619 $ 875 § 519 § 467 $ 384

(1) Fiscal 2008 income from continuing operations includes net litigation settlement costs of $22 million, net restructuring and
other charges of $185 million, impairment'of goodwill and long-lived assets of $137 million, other income of $567 miltion
pursuant to the Tax Sharing Agreement with Tyco International and Covidien, and an income tax benefit of $33 million
related to the analysis and reconciliation of tax accounts. (See Notes 17, 4, 5, 20, and 19 to the Consolidated and Combined
Financial Statements.) Fiscal 2008 net income includes $188 million of income, net of income taxes, from discontinued
operations. {See Note 6 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements.)

(2) Fiscal 2007 loss from continuing operations includes net litigation settiement costs of 3887 million, separation costs of
$44 million, net restructuring and other charges of $92 million, and allocated loss on retirement of debt of $232 million.
{See Notes 17, 3, 4, and 13 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements.) Fiscal 2007 net loss includes
$376 million of loss, net of income taxes, from discontinued opcmtlons (See Notc 6 to the Consolidated and Combined
Financial Statements.)
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(3) Fiscal 2006 net income includes a 3246 miltion loss, net. of income taxes, from discontinued operations as well as an
$8 million loss, net of income taxes, related to the cumulative effect of accounting change recorded in conjunction with the
adoption of Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 47, “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement
Obligations-—an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143.” (See Notes 6 and 2 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial
Statements.) v

(4) Fiscal 2005 income from continuing operations includes,a $301 million gain-on the divestiture of the Tyco Global Network
4s well as a $365 milhon loss on rcuremcnt of.debt. Fiscal 2005 nct income includes $154 million of income, net of i income
taxes, from discontinued operations and an $11 million gain, net of income taxcs, related to the cumulative cffect of ,
accounting change recorded in conjunction with the change in measurement date for pension and postretirement benefit’
plans.

(5) Fiscal 2004 income from continuing operations includes $102 million of loss on retirement of debt. Fiscal 2004 net income
includes $36 million of income, net of income taxes, from discontinued operations.

{6) The Radio Frequency Components and Subsystem and Automotive Radar Sensors businesses met the held for sale and ™
discontinued operations criteria in fiscal 2008. As such, we have reclassified amounts previously reported to reflect these
businesses as discontinued operations in all periods presented. For additional information regarding discontinued

_ operations, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Discontinued
Operations” and Note 6 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements,

(7) For all periods prior to our separation from Tyco International, basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share were caleulated -
utilizing the basic shares outstanding at June 29, 2007, the date of separation. -

(8) Working capital is defined as current assets minhs current liabilities.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be
read in conjunction with our Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements and the accompanying
notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report. The following discussion may contain forward-looking
statements that reflect our plans, estimates, and beliefs. Our actual results could differ materially from
those discussed in these forward- lookmg statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to these
differences include those factors discussed below and elsewhere in this Annual Report, partlculdrly in
“Risk Factors” and “Forward-Looking Information,” - !

Separation From Tyco International Ltd.

Effective June 29, 2007, Tyco Electronics Ltd. (“Tyco Elcctronics” or the “Company”, which may
be referred to as “we,” “us,” or “our”), a company organized under the laws of Bermuda, became the
parent company of the former electronics businesses of Tyco International Ltd. (*Tyco International™).
On June 29, 2007, Tyco International distributed all of its shares of Tyco Electronics, as well as its
shares of its former healthcare businesses (“Covidicn ), to its common shareholders (thc “Scpdratlon ).

The Consolidated and Combined Financial Statéments reflect the consolidated operatlons of Tyco
Electronics Ltd. and its subsidiaries as an independent, publicly-traded entity subsequent to the .
Separation and a combined reporting entity comprising the assets and liabilities used in managing and
operatmg the electronics businesses of Tyco International, mcludmg Tyco Electromcs Ltd., for penods
prior to the Separation.

Our Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements have been prepared in United States
dollars, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(“GAAP”). The Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for periods prior to the Separation
may not be indicative of our future' performance and do not necessarily reflect what our consolidated
and combined results of operations, financial position, and cash flows would have been had we
operated as an independent, publicly-traded company during the periods presented, Certain general
corporate overhead, net class action settlement costs, and other expenses as well as debt and related
net interest expense for periods prior to the Separation were allocated to us by Tyco International.
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Management believes such allocations were reasonable however, they may not be indicative of our
actual results had ‘we ‘been operating as an independent, publicly-traded company for the periods |
presented. See Note 18 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for further
information regarding allocations.

As discussed elsewhere in this Annual Report, prior to the Separation, we used the corporate
services of Tyco International for a variety of functions including treasury, tax, legal, internal audit,
human resources, and risk management. We no longer rely on Tyco International for these services.

Overview

. . Ty

We are a leading global provider of engineered electronic components, network- solutions, undersea
telecommunication systems, and wireless systems. We operate through four reporting segments:
Electronic Components, Network Solutions, Undersea Telecommunications, and Wireless Systems. We
design, manufacture, and market approximately 500,000 different products for customers in industries
ranging from automotive, appliance, and aerospace and defense to telecommunications, computer, and
consumer electronics. We believe the end markets 'that we sell into are balanced with the total end
market demand for ‘electronic components.

We service our customers primarily through our direct sales force that serves customers in over 150
countries. The sales force is supported by nearly 8,000 engineers as well as globally deployed
manufacturing sites. Through our sales force and engineering resources, we are able to collaborate with
our customers anywhere in the world to provide highly engmeered products and solutions to' meet their
needs

"Our strategic objective is to increase our revenue ‘and profitability across all of our segments in the
markets we serve. ThlS strategy is dependent upon the followmg strateglc pnormes

. leverage our market leadershlp position to increase our market share;
* achieve market leadershlp in attractive and under-penetrated industries;
= extend our leadership in key emerging markets;
* supplement organic growth with strategic acquisitions;
* continue to focus our existing portfolio;
* improve operating marginS' and |
* accelerate new product development through research and development éxcellence.

Key business factors that influenced our results of operatlons for. the periods discussed in thls
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations include:

* Market conditions. We have experienced sales growth that was driven by the continued increased
< . use of electronics across the end markets that we serve. This sales growth was achieved despite
industry pricing pressures. Over the periods shown, we have experienced price erosion of
approximately 1% to 3%. We expect price erosion to continue in the future. The increase in our
net sales for each fiscal year in the periods shown reflects volume increases that more than
offset the impact of pricing pressures.

= Raw material price increases. We purchase apprommately 200 million pounds of copper and :,
approximately 220,000 troy ounces of gold annually. During the periods shown, the prices of
these key raw materials, as well as the prices of certain other raw materials, have increased -
substantially. Copper prices remain high relative to historical levels, but the rate of increase has
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slowed over the past year. The following table illustrates'the increase in average prices related to
our most significant raw materials, copper and gold, during the periods presented: '

Fiscal Year
Measure 2008 2007 2006
COPPEL « . v e e ee i I .. 7 ' Lb. $3.40 $3.20 $2.80
Gold........ Troyoz 5870 $653° $572

- Foreign exchange. Approximately 54% of our net sales are invoiced in currencies other than the
U.S. dollar. Our results of operations are influenced by changes in foreign currency exchange
rates. Increases or decreases in the value of the U.S. dollar, compared to other currencies, will
directly affect our reported results as we translate those:currencies into U.S. dollars at the end
of each fiscal period. The percentage of net sales in fiscal 2008 by major currencies mvmced was

as follows:

USDollar;J "46%.
Euro ....... F e e <
Japanese Yen ... ... ... ... .. e e PR LT

Chinese Renminbi..... [ R B 37

Korean Wom . . ... i i i i et e e s 3

British Pound Sterling . . .. .. .. e e S

Al] others . ......... e 44 e e e e e e e e i T e it e e e ‘:_.._1 '

Total ... I U S 100%

Econormc Condmons

Current instability in the worldwide’ f1nanc1al markets, mcludlng volatility in and dlsrupnon of the -

credit markets, has resulted in uncertain economic cond;tlons along with significant volatility in raw

- material costs and currency markets. Our business and operating results have been and will continue to, . |
be affected by worldwide economic conditions. Our sales are dependent on certain end markets that
are impacted by consumer as well as industrial and infrastructure spending, and our operating results I
can be adversely affected by reduced demand in those markets. As a result of recent economic trends,
we anticipate a 15% to 209 decrease in net sales in the first quarter of fiscal 2009 as compared to the
first'quarter of fiscal 2008 primarily as a result of slowing demand in the consumer related end markets
served by our Electronic Components scgmeént. Specifically, the economic uncertainty has had' the most
pronounced effect in the automotive market, where major manufacturers in all regions have
srgmﬁcamly reduced their production forecasts for the December quarter As a result, we expect our
automotive net sales to decline approximately 20% to 25% in the first quarter of fiscal 2009 as
compared to the same period of fiscal 2008. . . L X

i

W

The decline in net sales coupled with anticipated' ‘unfavorable factory cost absorption will result i in
lower operating income in the first quarter of fiscal 2009 as compared to the first quarter of fiscal 2008.
In addition, we utilize financial derivative instruments to nidnage our currency exposures related to
operating costs. In early fiscal 2009, there has been significant volatility in certain eastern European
currencies which has resulted in foreign currency losses of approximately $50 million prlmarlly related
to the mark-to-market of derivative financial instruments. b

We are monitoring the current environment and its potenttal effects on our customers and on the
end markets we serve. Additionally, we continue to closely manage ‘our costs in order to respond to
changing conditions. We are also managing our capital resources' and monitoring capital availability to’
ensure that we have sufficient resources to fund our future capital needs. (See further discussion in

. . e - 4 P 1 T - L .

LTI

- Vo .-
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“Liquidity and Capital Resources—Capitalization.”’) A more severe and/or prolonged economic
downturn could adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows.

Discontinued Operations

During fiscal 2008, our board of directors authorized us to pursue the divestiture of our Radio
Frequency Components and Subsystem and Automotive Radar Sensors businesses. In September 2008,
we completed the sale of the Radio Frequency Components and Subsystem business for net cash
proceeds of $427 million and recorded a $184 million pre-tax gain on the sale. In September 2008, we
also completed the sale of the Automotive Radar Sensors business for net cash proceeds of $42 million
and recorded a $31 million pre-tax gain on the sale. The proceeds received in both transactions are
subject to final working capital adjustments.

The divestiture of our Power Systems business was authorized during fiscal 2007. As a result, we
assessed Power Systems’ assets for impairment and determined that the book value of the Power
Systems business exceeded its estimated fair value. We recorded a $585 million pre-tax impairment
charge in fiscal 2007 in income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes on the
Consolidated and Combined Statement of Operations. In fiscal 2008, we completed the sale of the
Power Systems business for $102 million in net cash proceeds and recorded a $51 million pre-tax gain
on the sale.

During fiscal 2006, we entered into a definitive agreement to divest our Printed Circuit Group
business. In fiscal 2007, we completed the sale of the Printed Circuit Group business for $227 million in
net cash proceeds and recorded a $45 miltion pre-tax gain on the sale.

The Radio Frequency Components and Subsystem, Automotive Radar Sensors, Power Systems, and
Printed Circuit Group businesses have been included in discontinued operations in all periods
presented in our Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements. Prior to reclassification to
discontinued operations, the Radio Frequency' Components and Subsystem and Automotive Radar
Sensors businesses were components of the Wireless Systems segment. Both the Power Systems and -

Printed Circuit Group businesses were components of the Other segment, which has been renamed the™ -

Undersea Telecommunications segment. See Note 6 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial
Statements for additional information‘ regarding discontinued operations.

Divestitures and Manufacturmg Slmpllﬁcatlon

As part of our strategy, we regularly review and consider the divestiture of underperforming or
non-strategic businesses to improve our operating results and better utilize our capital. We have made
strategic divestitures in the past and expect that we may make additional divestitures in the future.
Some of these divestitures may have a material impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

We plan to continue to simplify our global manufacturing footprint, by migrating facilities from
high-cost to low-cost countries, consolidating within countries, and transferring product lines to low-cost
countries. These initiatives are designed to help us to mamtam our competitiveness in the industry. In
connection with our manufacturing rationalization plan, we expect to incur restructuring charges of up
to $200 million from fiscal 2009 through 2010.

Class Action Settlement

As previously reported, Tyco International settled 32 purported securities class action lawsults
arising from actions alleged to have been taken by its prior management. All legal contingencies that
could have affected the final order approving the settlement expired on February 21, 2008. Tyco
International received opt-out notices from individuals and entities totaling approximately 4% of the
shares owned by class members, including shares owned by the State of New Jersey pension funds
mentioned below. A number of these individuals and entities have filed claims separately against Tyco
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International and/or Tyco International, Covidien, and us. Under the terms of the settlement, the - -
plaintiffs agreed to release all claims against Tyco International, the other settling defendants, and ten .
other individuals in consideration for the payment of $2,975 million from Tyco International to the
certified class. = . . ‘ . .

Under the terms of the Separation and Distribution Agreement entered into in connection with -
the Separation, each of Tyco International, Covidien, and Tyco Electronics are jointly and severally.
liable .for the full amount of the class action settlement and any judgments resulting from opt-out. -
claims. Additionally, under the Separation and Distribution Agreement, the companies shared in the ..
liability and related. escrow account, with Tyco Internatlonal dssummg 27%, Covidien.42%), and Tyco
Electronics 31% of the settlement amount.. - : : e : P

In fiscal 2007, we were allocated a charge from Tyco Internatlonal of $922 m1|l10n for whlch no
tax beriefit was available. In addition, in fiscal 2007, we were allocated $35 million of i income relatmg to
Tyco International’s expected recovery of certain ¢osts from insurers. The net charge of $887 miltion
was recorded on the Consolidated and Combined Statement of Operations as l1t1gdt10n settlement, net.
The portion allocated to us was consistent with the sharing percentage included in the.Separation and
Distribution Agreement. Tyco International placed funds in escrow for the benefit of the class. The
escrow account earned interest that was payable to the class. In addition, interest was accrued on the
class action settlement: liability. At fiscal year end 2007, we reflected $928 million on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet for our portion of the escrow. We also reflected a $2,992 million liability anda . . -
$2,064 million receivable from Tyco International and Covidien for their portion of the l1ab1l|ty on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet at September 28, 2007. - ‘

The finalization of the settlement in February 2008 resulted in the extmgmshment of our class’
action settlement liability of $3,020 million, interest in the escrow of $936 million, and class action
settlement receivable of $2,084 million from.the Consolidated Balance Sheet in the second guarter! of
fiscal 2008.' The finalization of the class action settlement resulted in a decrease to cash flows from
operating activities and an increase to cash flows from investing activities during fiscal 2008. It did not
affect the cash balance on the Consolidated Balance Sheet because we had previously fully funded.our:
port1on of the class action settlement into an escrow account intended. to be used to settle the:hablhty,
as mentioned above. - . . . . -

‘The settlement did not resolve all securities cases, and several Témain outstandmg In addmon the
settlement did not resolve clalms arising under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act .
(“ERISA”) and the lawsuits arising theteunder. See “Part I. Item 3. Legal Proceedirigs” for additional
information about these proceedmgs If the unresolved securities proceedings, mcludmg the opt-out
cases noted above, were to be determined adversely to Tyco International, our share of any addmonal
potential losses, which are not presently estimable, may have a materlal adverse effect on our fmancnal
posmon results of operations, and cash flows

Settlement of Securities Proceedmgs Not Covered by the Class Action Settlement

As previously reported, on Aprit 29, 2008, Tyco International .signed a defm1t1ve agreement w1th
the State of New Jersey, on behalf of several of the State’s pension funds, to settle the action captioned
New Jersey v. Tyco International Ltd., et al., brought by the State in 2002 in the United States District
Court for the District of New Jersey against Tyco International, its former auditors, and certain of its

- former officers and directors, alleging that the defendants had, among other things, violated federal and
state securities and other laws through the unauthorized and improper actions of Tyco International’s
former management. The agreement with the State of New Jersey provided for Tyco International to
make a payment of $73 million to the plaintiffs in exchange for the plaintiffs’ agreement to dismiss the
case and release all claims asserted or which might have been asserted therein, which payment was
made on June 2, 2008. In fiscal 2008, we recorded a charge of $23 million, for which no tax benefit was
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available. The.charge represented our share of the settlement costs in accordance with the sharing
percentages included in the Separation and Distribution Agreement: o

As previously reported, on June 2, 2008, Tyco International entered into an agreement in principle
with the trustee of various trusts that brought claims against Tyco International in the previcusly
disclosed action captioned Ballard v. Tyco International Ltd., et.al., in the Unitéd States District Court
for the District of New-Hampshire, alleging, arhong other things, securities fraud in connection: with
Tyco International’s acquisition in 1999 of AMP Incorporated. A definitive settlement agreement and
release was executed on June 10, 2008. The settlement agreement and release set forth the terms
pursuant to which the parties settled: all claims between them that were raised or could have been
raised in the litigation. The settlement agreement and release provided that Tyco International make a.
payment of $36 million to the plaintiffs, which payment was subject to the sharing formula contained in
the Separation and Distribution ‘Agreement. Pursuant to the sharing formula, our net liability was
approximately $11 million, with Tyco Intematlonal and Covidien respon51ble for approx1mately
$10 million and $15 m1lhon respectively.

(S

Non-GAAP Flnanclal Measures C

Organic'net sales growth, which is mcluded in the dlscussmn below, is a non-GAAP fmancnal
measure. The difference between reported net sales growth (the most comparable GAAP measure) and
organic net sales growth (the non-GAAP measure) consists of the impact from foreign currency
exchange rates,.acquisitions, and divestitures. Organic net:sales growth is a useful measure of the -
underlying results and trends in our business. It excludes items that are not completely under
management’s control, such as the impact of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, and 1tems that
do not reﬂect the underlylng growth of the company, such’as acqulsmon ‘and dlvestlture actmty

" .We believe organic net sales growth provides useful mformatlon to investors because it reﬂects the
underlying growth. from the ongoing activities of our business. Furthermore, it provides investors with a
view of our operations from management’s: perspectivé. We use organic net sales growth to monitor -.
and evaluate performance, as it is an important measure of the underlying results of our operations. -
Management uses. organic net sales growth together with GAAP measures such as net sales growth and
operating income in its decision making processes related to the operations of our reporting segments
and our overall company. Organic net sales growth is also a component of our compensation programs.
We believe that investors benefit from having ‘access to the same financial measures that management
.uses in evaluating operatlons The discussion and .analysis of organic net sales growth in Results of
Operations below utlhzes organic net sales growth as management does’ mternally Because orgamc net .
sales growth calculatlons may vary among other compames ‘organic net sales growth amounts prcsented
below imay not be comparab]e with' similarly tltledpmeasures of other companies. Organic net sales
growth is a non-GAAP financial measure that is not meant to be considered in isolation or as a
substitute for GAAP measures. The primary limitation of this’ measure is that it excludes items that
have an impact on our net sales. This llmltatlon is best addressed by evaluating organic net sales
growth in combination with our GAAP nét sales. The tables presented in Results of Operations below
provide reconciliations of organic net sales growth to net sales growth calculated under GAAP.

f 7 0 : L LA
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Results of Operations
Consolidated and Combined Operations

The following table sets forth certain items from our Consolidated and Combined Statements of
Operations and the percentage of net sales that such items represent for the periods shown.

Fiscal
2008 2007 2006
($ in millions) .

Netsales............ ... ..........., $14834 100.0% $12,959 100.0% $11,811 100.0%
Costofsales ......................... 11,064 746 9620 742 8,617 730

Grossincome . . ..................... 3,770 254 3339 258 3,194 270
Selling, general, and administrative expenses . . 1,680 11.3 1,600 123 1,445 12.2
Litigation settlement, net . ............... 22 0.1 887 6.8 —_ —
Separationcosts. . ..................... — — 44 0.3 — —_
Restructuring and other charges, net........ 185 1.2 92 0.7 ) 0.1
Impairment of goodwill and long-lived assets . . 137 0.9 — — — —

Income from operations ............... 1,746 11.8 716 5.5 1,742 ° 147
Interestincome . ...................... 32 0.2 53 0.4 48 0.4
Interest expense ...................... (188) (1.3) 231y (1.8) {256) (2.2)
Other income (expense), net . ............ 567 38 219y (1.7 — —

Income from continuing operations bhefore

income taxes and minority interest ... .. 2,157 14.5 319 2.5 1,534 13.0

Income taxes . . ................ ... ..., (558) (3.8) (491 (8 (81) (0.7

Income (loss) from continuing operations . . 1,594 107 (178) (1.4) 1,447 123
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, _

netof income taxes .................. 188 1.3 (376) (2.9) (246) (2.1)

Net income (loss) . . .................. $ 1,782 120% $ (554) (4.3)% $ 1,193  10.1%

Net Sales. Net sales increased $1,875 million, or 14.5%, to $14,834 million in fiscal 2008 from
$12,959 million in fiscal 2007. In fiscal 2007, net sales increased $1,148 million, or 9.7%, (o
$12,959 million from $11,811 million in fiscal 2006. On an organic basis, net sales increased 7.9% in
fiscal 2008, reflecting growth in all of our business segments with above Company average growth in
our Undersea Telecommunications and Wireless Systems segments. Organic net sales increased 5.9% in
fiscal 2007 as a result of strong growth in our Undersea Telecommunications segment and sales in
international markets. Foreign currency exchange rates, primarily the Euro, favorably impacted net
sales by $850 million, or 6.6%, in fiscal 2008 and $429 million, or 3.6%, in fiscal 2007. Price crosion
adversely affected net sales by $191 million in fiscal 2008, $197 million in fiscal 2007, and $286 million
in fiscal 2006. See further discussion below under Results of Operations by Segment.

The following table sets forth the percentage of our total net sales by geographic region:

Fiscal
208 207 2008
AMETICAS . o v v e e e e et et e e e 36% 35% 36%
Europe/Middle East/Africa (EMEA) . ..................... 37 .37 36
Asia-Pacific . .. ... e e e 27 28 28

Total ....oovenn.. e PR 100% 100% 100%
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The following 1able provides an analysis of the change in our net sales compared to the prior fiscal
year by geographic region:

Fiscal i
2008 ) 2007 |
Change in Net Sales versus Prior Fiscal Year Change in Net Sales versus Prior Fiscal Year ,
Organic® Translation® Total Organic') Transtation'®  Acquisitions Total |
: {$ in millions)
Americas® L. L. $ 710 - 159% - § 87 £ M7 i79% 3173 41% $101 $— $ 2714 65%
Europe/Middle East/Africa. . . 116 24 . 383 699 145 227 53 308 17 352 129
Asia-Pacific. .. 0. ... L. 199 54 180 379 M3 302 90 20 - 322 9.6
Total .......... P $1,025 7.9% $850 $1,875 t45% $702  59% $429 $17 $LMR 97%

I

(1) Represents the change in net sales resulting from volume and price changes, before consideration of acquisitions, divestitures, and the impact
of changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

(2)  Represents the change in net sales resulting from changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

{3)  The Americas includes our Undersea Telecommunications segment,

The following table scts forth the percentage of our total net sales by segment:

Fiseal ,
2008 2007 2006 '
Electronic Components . ............. .. ... 4% 78% 79%
Network Solutions . .............. e 15 15 15
Undersea Telecommunications .. ....... ... ... . 8 4 3
Wireless Systems . ................ e e 3 3 3

TOMAl .+ et 100% 100% 100%

The following table provides an analysis of the change in our net sales compared to the prior fiscal
year by segment: . : -

Fiscal
2008 2007
Change in Net Sales versus Prior Fiscal Year Change in Net Sales versus Prior Fiscal Year *
Organic'" Translation® Total - Organic'? Translation'?  Acquisitions Total
. ($ in millions)

Electronic Components . ... § 243 24% $689 $ 932 92% $3715 4.0% $333 $17 $ 785 1%
Network Sofuttons . . . . . .. Hé 6.1 150 66 140 61 35 96 — 157 90
Undersea Telecommunications . 597 1057 3 600 + 106.2 2660 889 - (1} - 265 883
Wireless Systems . .. .. ... 8 180 8§ 77 19 — — 1 — 1 03
Total ... ... ... ... $1,025 19% $850 51,875  145% $702 59% $429 $17 $1,148 9.9%

I

(1) Represents the change in net sales resulting from volume and price changes, before consideration of acquisitions, divestitures, and the impact
of changes in foreign currency cxchange rates.

(2}  Represents the change in net sales resulting from changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

Gross Income. Gross income increased $431 million in fiscal 2008 over fiscal 2007 primarily as a
result of higher sales volume. Gross income as a percentage of net sales decreased by 40 basis points in
fiscal 2008 as compared to fiscal 2007. We were negatively impacted by lower volume growth in certain
consumer related end markets in our Electronic Components segment and significant growth in our
Undersea Telecommunications segment which has a margin below cur Company average.

In fiscal 2007, gross income increased by $145 million over fiscal 2006; however, gross income as a
percentage of net sales decreased by 120 basis points. Qur margin percentage declined due to higher
organic growth in lower margin markets such as Undersea Telecommunications. We also were
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negatively impacted by lower plant productivity in North America as a resuit of sales declines in that
market by our Electronic Components segment in fiscal 2007. : '

Selling, General, and Administrative Expenses. Sclling, general, and administrative expenses as a
percentage of net sales decreased to 11.3% in fiscal 2008 as compared to 12.3% in fiscal 2007. In fiscal
2008, selling, general, and administrative expenses included a $36 million gain on the sale of real estate
related to our Electronic Components segment. Excluding this gain, selling, general, and administrative
expenses were lower as a percentage of sales in fiscal 2008 due to sales volume leverage of our .
overhead structure. In 2007, selling, general, and administrative expenses included aliocated overhead
expenses from Tyco International of $152 million. Also, we incurred costs of $41 million in fiscal 2007
related to building separate company functions. A portion of these costs were duplicative in fiscal 2007
as we were also allocated costs related to these functions from Tyco International until the Separation
date.

Selling, general, and administrative expenses as a percentage of net sales were 12.3% and 12.2% in
fiscal 2007 and 2006, respectively. Prior to Separation, selling, general, and administrative expenses
included allocated overhead expenses from Tyco International, which decreased by $25 million to
$152 million in fiscal 2007 as compared to $177 million in fiscal 2006. As discussed above, we incurred
costs of $41 million in fiscal 2007 related to building separate company functions that did not exist in
the prior fiscal year. '

Litigation Settlement, Net. In fiscal 2008, we recorded a net charge of 322 million related to legacy
securities litigation. A charge of $11 million, for which no tax benefit was available, was recorded in
connection with Tyco International’s settlement of previously disclosed securities Iljtigation captioned
Ballard v. Tyco International Lid., et al. for $36 million. Also, in connection with Tyco International’s
settlement of securities litigation with the State of New Jersey for $73 million, we recorded a charge of
$23 million, for which no tax benefit was available. These charges represent our share of the settlement
costs in accordance with the sharing percentages included in the Separation and Distribution
Agreement. Also, we recorded income of $12 million in ﬁscal 2008 related to Tyco Internauonal 5
recovery of certain costs from insurers.

As discussed above in “Overview—Class Action Settlement,” in connection with the class action
settlement, we were allocated a net charge from Tyco International of $887 million in fiscal 2007.

See Note 17 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for further information
regarding the class action settlement and the settlement of legacy securities litigation,

Separation Costs. In conncction with the Separation, we incurred costs of $44 million in fiscal
2007, primarily related to cmployee costs, including non-cash compensation expense of $11 million
related to the modification of share option awards at Separation and $12 million related to the
acceleration of restricted share award vesting as a result of Separation. See Note 24 to the
Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for further information on the conversion of Tyco
International share option awards into Tyco Electronics share option awards.

Restructuring and Other Charges, Net. Net restructuring and other charges were $185 million in
fiscal 2008 as compared to $92 million in fiscal 2007. Total charges, including amounts reflected in cost
of sales, increased $97 million to $194 million in fiscal 2008 from $97 million in fiscal 2007. Increases
resulted from our strategic priority to simplify our manufacturing footprint.

During fiscal 2008 and 2007, we initiated restructuring actions primarily relating to the migration
of product lines to low-cost countries and the exit of certain manufacturing operations in the Electronic
Components and Network Solutions segments. Fiscal 2007 actions aiso related to the rationalization of
a product line in the Wireless Systems segment. Restructuring charges recorded in both fiscal 2008 and
2007 primarily related to employee severance and benefits.
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See Note 4 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for further information
regarding restructuring and other charges, net.

Impairment of Goodwill and Long-Lived Assets. During fiscal 2008, we recorded impairment charges
of $137 million in the Electronic Components segment, consisting of a goodwill impairment of
$103 miltion and long-lived asset impairment of $34 million. The goodwill impairment, which related to
the Global Application and Tooling Division reporting unit, was incurred when the reporting unit
experienced slower growth and profitability than management’s previous expectations and lower future
expectations in certain end markets. The long-lived asset impairment was comprised of $22 million
related to the pending divestiture of our Battery Systems business and $12 million related to certain
dedicated manufacturing lines serving the North American automotive market.

In September 2008, our board of directors authorized management to proceed with strategic
alternatives with respect to our Battery Systems business. Subsequent to fiscal year end 2008, we signed
an agreement with a third party to sell this business for $30 million. Consequently, a pre-tax
impairment charge of $22 million has been recorded in fiscal 2008 to write the carrying value of the
assets and liabilities. down to the fair value.

See Notes 5 and 10 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for further
information regarding the impairment of goodwill and long-lived assets.

Income from Operations. Income from operations was $1,746 million, or 11.8% of net saies, in
fiscal 2008 as compared to $716 million, or 5.5% of net sales, in fiscal 2007. In fiscal 2008, rr;—:_slructuring
related costs and legacy litigation expenses were $194 million and $22 million, respectively. Fiscal 2008
results also included $137 million of impairment charges and a $36 miltion gain on the sale of real
estate. Fiscal 2007 results included $887 million of allocated net class action settlement charges,
$44 million of separation costs, $41 million of costs related to building separate company functions, and
$97 million of restructuring related and other charges. Excluding these items, higher sales levels drove
the increases in income from operations. The increase as a percentage of net sales resuited from
increased operating margin in our Undersea Telecommunications and Wireless Systems segments,
primarily due to sales volume leverage of our overhead structure.

Income from operations was $716 million, or 5.5% of net sales, in fiscal 2007 as compared to
$1,742 million, or 14.7% of net sales, in fiscal 2006. The decline resulted primarily from allocated net
class action settlement costs of $887 million in fiscal 2007 and a higher level of restructuring and other
charges of $84 million related to our strategic initiative to simplify our manufacturing operations.

Results of Operations by Segment

Electronic Components

Fisecal
2008 2007 2006
($ in millions)
Netsales . ..ottt $11,043 510,111 $9,386
Income from operations . ................. ..., $ 1,287 §$ 1,339 §1,404

Operating margin. . . .. .......vuenennnn.. 11.7%  132% 150%
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The foliowing table sets forth Electronic Components’ percentage of total net sales by primary
" industry end market{"):

. ' Fiscal
_ 2008 2007 2006
Automotive . ... ... . . e e 40% 39% 38%
’ Computer ... ... .. e e 9 11 12
Communications. . . . . et e 9 8 8
Industrial . ... ... ... . 6 6 5
Aerospace and Defense . ........................ 6 6 5
Appliance, ... ... .. 5 5 5
Consumer Electronics . . . .. e . 2 2 2
Other ............. P B 23 25

Total ... ..o o e 100% 100% 100%

(1) Industry end market information about net sales is presented consistently with our internal management reporting
and may be periodically revised as management deems necessary,

The following table provides an analysis of the change in Electronic Components’ net sales
compared to the. prior fiscal year by primary industry end market(":

Fiscal .
2008 2007 )
Change in Net Sales versus Prior Fiscal Year Change in Net Sales versus Prior Fiscal Year
Organic!? Translation™ Total Organic® Translation®®  Acquisitions Total
($ in millions) . i

Automotive . . ........ L. S0 2.8% $354 $464 11.8% $192 5.4% $176 $17 $385  10.8%
Computer . ... ........... (66) (6.2) 3 (28) (26) (43) (39 16 — (27) (24)
Communications .. ... ...... 98 121 58 156 19.2 45 6.1 22 — 67 4l
Industrial . .............. g7 150 35 142 243 33113 17 — 0152
Aerospace and Defense . .. .. .. 51 8.7 30 81 139 54 106 15 — 69 1335
Appliance . . ............. " (1.8} 3 447 17 315 16 - 3 67
Consumer Electronies . . .. .. .. {h @an 12 5 23 2 17 3 — 25 134
Other ................. 21) (0.9) 9 8 37 35 L5 68 — 03 44
Total . ..... ... ... L §243 24% $689 $932  9.2% 3375 40% $333 $17 LYPATR L

'

(1) Industry end market information about net sales is presented consistently with cur internal management reporting and may be periodically
revised as managemen! deems necessary.

(2}  Represents the change in net sales resulting from volume and price changes, before consideration of acquisitions, divestitures, and the impact
of changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

(3) Represemts the change in net sales resulting from changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

Fiscal 2008 Compared to Fiscal 2007

.In'fiscal 2008, Electronic Components’ net sales increased $932 million, or 9.2%, to $11,043 million
from $10,111 million in fiscal 2007. The strengthening of certain foreign currencies favorably affected
nct sales by $689 million, or 6.8%, in fiscal 2008. Organic net sales growth of 2.4% in fiscal 2008
resulted from increases in volume partially offset by price erosion.

Electronic Components’ organic net sales growth by industry end market was strongest in the
industrial, communications, and aerospace and defense markets in fiscal 2008. Our organic net sales
growth of 15.0% in the industrial market in fiscal 2008 over fiscat 2007 was due to global demand for
products in the solar and oil and gas markets and investment in industrial equipment for emerging
markets. In the communications market, our organic net sales growth of 12.1% in fiscal 2008 as
compared to fiscal 2007 was primarily due to 28.8% growth in our sales of interconnect components to
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mobile phone manufacturers resulting from our strategic efforts to increase our market share as well as
end market unit growth. Qur organic net sales growth of 8.7% in the acrospace and defense market in
fiscal 2008 as compared to fiscal 2007 was attributable to continued strong demand in this end market.
In the automotive market, our organic net sales growth of 2.8% in fiscal 2008 over fiscal 2007 resulted
from growth in the Asia-Pacific region of 12.2% and the EMEA region of 3.8% partially offset by a
17.0% decline in the North- America region that was driven. by continued reductions in production by
automotive manufacturers. In the computer market, our organic net sales decline of 6.2% in fiscal 2008
as compared to fiscal 2007 resulted from a strategic decision to exit certain low-margin products, which
negatively impacted net sales by approximately $57 million, and to be more selective in the new
projects in which we participate.

Electronic Components’ operating income decreased $52 million, or 3.9%, to $1,287 million in
fiscal 2008 from $1,339 million in fiscal 2007. In fiscal 2008, segment results included goodwill and
long-lived asset impairment charges of $137 million and a gain on the sale of real estate of $36 million.
In addition, Electronic Components incurred $33 million of costs in fiscal 2007 that related to our
Separation from Tyco International. Excluding these items, higher sales were partially offset by higher
raw malerial costs as well as increased restructuring costs of $112 million in fiscal 2008 over fiscal 2007.

Fiscal 2007 Compared to Fiscal 2006

Electronic Components’ net sales increased $725 million, or 7.7%, to $10,111 million in fiscal 2007
from $9,386 million in fiscal 2006. Approximately $333 million, or 3.5%, of the increase was due to the
strengthening of certain foreign currencies in fiscal 2007 as compared to fiscal 2006. Organic net sales
growth of 4.0% in fiscal 2007 over fiscal 2006 was attributable to increases in volume partially offset by
price erosion.

In fiscal 2007, Electronic Components’ organic net sales growth by industry end market was
strongest in the consumer electronics, industrial, and aerospace and defense end markets. Qur organic
growth of 11.7% in the consumer electronics market in fiscal 2007 as compared to fiscal 2006 resulted
from continued strong consumer demand as well as our continued focus on this market. In the
industrial market, our organic net sales growth of 11.5% in fiscal 2007 over fiscal 2006 resulted from
strong demand globally as companies continued to invest in factory automation. In the aerospace and
defense market, our organic net sales growth of 10.6% in fiscal 2007 over fiscal 2006 was driven
primarily by strength in North America and Europe in the commercial aerospace market. Qur organic
net sales growth of 5.4% in the automotive market in fiscal 2007 over fiscal 2006 was attributable to
growth in the Asia-Pacific region of 13.0% and the EMEA region of 5.4% partially offset by a decline
in the North America region that was driven by reduced production by automotive manufacturers.
Finally, in the computer market, our organic net sales declined 3.9% in fiscal 2007 as compared to
fiscal 2006 due to a strategic decision to exit certain low-margin products which negatively impacted net
sales by $83 million.

Electronic Components’ operating income decreased $65 million, or 4.6%, to $1,339 million in
fiscal 2007 from $1,404 million in fiscal 2006. Benefits from higher sales and favorable foreign currency
increases were reduced by lower productivity resulting from sales declines in North America primarily
in automotive, housing related, and communications markets. Also, restructuring costs in fiscal 2007
increased $45 million as compared to fiscal 2006, and segment results included $33 million of costs in
fiscal 2007 that related to our Separation from Tyco International that did not exist in fiscal 2006.
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Network Solutions

Fiscal
2008 2007 2006
($ in millions}
Net sales ..t e e $2,163  $1,897 $1,740
Income from operations . ... ... $ 254 § 231 § 263
Operating margin .........cc i, 11.7% 122% 15.4%

The following table sets forth Network Solutions’ perceﬁtage of total net sales by primary industry
end market!):

Fiscal
2008 2007 2006
Energy. . ... 45%  45%  44%
Communication Service Provider . . .. .......... ... .. 27 28 K1
Building Networks . ......... ... ... ... . i na... 25 24 22
Other ... e e 3 3 3
Total L e e e 100% 100% 100%

(1) Indusiry end market information about net sales is presented consistently with our internal management reporling
and may be periodically revised as management deems necessary.

The following table provides an analysis of the change in Network Solutions’ net sales compared to
the prior fiscal year by primary industry end market("):

Fiscal
2008 2007
Change in Net Sales versus Prior Fiscal Year Change in Net Sales versus Prior Fiscal Year
Organic? Translation'? Total Organic'? Translation™ Total
($ in millions)
Energy ............ $ 49 5.7% %78 $127 150% $ 43 5.7% $47 $ 90 11.9%
Communication Scrvice :

Provider . ... ...... ’ 17 3.2 31 48 9.0 (41) (7.4) 25 (16} (2.9)
Building Networks . . . . . + 51 113 37 88 19.3 61 16.2 19 80, 214
Other . ............ (1) (2.5) 4 3 4.9 2) (2.7} _3 __g ﬁ
Total. .. ... ... ... $i1e 6.1% 3150 $266 14.0% § 61 3.5% - $u6 $157 9.0% '

(1) Industry end market information about nct sales is presented consistently with our internal management reporting and may
be periodically revised as management deems necessary. ’

(2) Represents the change in net sales resulting from volume and price changes, before consideration of acquisitions,
divestitures, and the impact of changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

(3} Represents the percentage change in net sales resulting from changes in forcign currency exchange rates.

Fiscal 2008 Compared to Fiscal 2007

Network Solutions’ net sales increased $266 million, or 14.0%, to $2,163 million in fiscal 2008 from
$1,897 million in fiscal 2007. The strengthening of certain foreign currencies favorably affected net sales
by $150 million, or 7.9%, in fiscal 2008 over fiscal 2007. Organic net sales growth was $116 million, or
6.1%, in fiscal 2008 over fiscal 2007,

On an organic basis, Network Solutions’ organic net sales growth was strongest in the building
networks industry end market in fiscal 2008 over fiscal 2007 with growth of 11.3% attributable to strong
global demand for faster, higher capacity, and more secure networks. In the energy market, our organic
net sales growth of 5.7% in fiscal 2008 as compared to fiscal 2007 was attributable to solid growth in
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EMEA, Asia, and North America. In EMEA and North America, growth resulted from the upgrade of
aging grids and the demand for alternate energy sources. In both Asia and EMEA, growth was due to
the build-out of energy infrastructure in emerging markets. In the communication service provider
market, our organic net sales growth of 3.2% in fiscal 2008 over fiscal 2007 reflects increased spending
levels at certain U.S. carriers that more than offset declines in EMEA.

Network Solutions’ operating income increased $23 million, or 10.0%, to $254 million in fiscal
2008 from $231 million in fiscal 2007. The operating income increase resulted from increases in volume
and decreased restructuring costs of $12 million partially offset by a lower margin product mix and
lower productivity levels in fiscal 2008 as compared to fiscal 2007. In addition, Network Solutions
incurred $5 million of costs in fiscal 2007 that related to our Separation from Tyco International.

Fiscal 2007 Compared to Fiscal 2006

Network Sojutions’ net sales increased $157 million, or 9.0%, to $1,897 million in fiscal 2007 from
$1,740 million in fiscal 2006. The strengthening of certain foreign currencies, primarily the Euro,
favorably affected net sales by $96 million, or 5.5%, in fiscal 2007 over fiscal 2006. Organic net sales
growth was $61 million, or 3.5%, in fiscal 2007 over fiscal 2006.

In fiscal 2007, Network Solutions’ organic net sales growth was strong in the building networks and
energy end markets; however, organic net sales declined in the communication service provider market.
In the building networks market, our organic net sales growth of 16.2% in fiscal 2007 over fiscal 2006
resulted from higher pricing on copper cabling products as well as increases in non-residential
construction spending and network upgrades in existing buildings. Our organic net sales growth of 5.7%
in the energy market in fiscal 2007 as compared to fiscal 2006 resulted from solid growth in EMEA
due to continued strong demand for high voltage products used to replace/upgrade aging grids in
developed countries. On an organic basis, net sales decreased 7.4% in the communication service
provider market in fiscal 2007, reflecting a pause in spending on fiber network deployments by certain
operators compared to strong sales in fiscal 2006 due to hurricane-related spending in the Americas
and the accelerated build-out of fiber networks by certain operators in Europe.

Network Solutions’ operating income decreased $37 million, or 13.8%, to $231 million in fiscal
2007 from $268 million in fiscal 2006. Price increases offset increased raw material costs. The operating
income decrease resulted from a $26 million increase in restructuring cost and a lower margin sales mix
due to the sales decline in the communication service provider market in fiscal 2007 as compared to
fiscal 2006. Also, in fiscal 2007, we incurred $5 million of costs related to our Separation from Tyco
International that did not exist in fiscal 2006.

Undersea Telecommunications

Fiscal
2008 2007 2006
(% in millions)

Netsales. . ... e e $1,165 $565 $300
[ncome from operations . ... ......... ... .. $ 160 $38 $15
Operating margin. . ... ..., 13.7% 67% 5.0%

Fiscal 2008 Compared to Fiscal 2007

In fiscal 2008, Undersca Telecommunications’ net sales increased $600 million, or 106.2%, to
$1,165 million from $565 million in fiscal 2007. This growth was attributable to our execution of the
construction of a transoceanic system that connects the U.S. and China, as well as several other
projects, including large projects in Asia, Africa, North America, and Europe. Foreign currency
exchange rates had a minimal impact on net sales.
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With the completion of the transoceanic system linking the U.S, and China, we currently expect a
decline in fiscal 2009 net sales as compared to fiscal 2008; however, activity in this market remairis
strong, especially in Asia and emerging markets where broadband requirements continue to increase.
We expect that new projects will partially offset the reduction caused by the completion of the
transoceanic system.

In fiscal 2008, Undersea Telecommunications’ operating income increased $122 million to
$160 million from $38 million in fiscal 2007 as a result of increased volumes and improved operating
leverage. Segment results included $1 million of costs in fiscal 2007 that related to our Separation from
Tyco International.

Fiscal 2007 Compared to Fiscal 2006

Net sales in the Undersea Telecommunications segment increased $265 million, or 88.3%, to
$565 million in fiscal 2007 from $300 million in fiscal 2006. On an organic basis, net sales increased by
88.9% in fiscal 2007 as compared to fiscal 2006 from our execution of the construction of a
transoceanic system that connects the U.S. and China as well as a project in the oil and gas market.

Undersea Telecommunications had operating income of $38 million in fiscal 2007 as compared to
$15 million in fiscal 2006 primarily as a result of increases in sales. Restructuring costs in fiscal 2007
increased $9 million as compared to fiscal 2006, and segment results included $1 million of costs in
fiscal 2007 that related to our Separation from Tyco International that did not exist in fiscal 2006.

Wireless Systems

Fiscal
2008 2007 2006
($ in millions)

Nt SAlES . o ottt et et e $463 $386 $385
Income from Operations. . .. ... ...t vuireennnnnnn. $ 67 8§ 3% § 55
Operating margin. . . ....... ...t nanin 14.5% 101% 143%

Fiscal 2008 Compared to Fiscal 2007

Wireless Systems’ net sales increased $77 million, or 19.9%, to $463 million in fiscal 2008 from
$386 million in fiscal 2007. Approximately $8 million, or 1.9%, of the increase was due to the
strengthening of certain foreign currencies in fiscal 2008 as compared to fiscal 2007. Organic net sales
growth of 18.0% in fiscal 2008 resulted primarily from higher radio sales related to federally mandated
re-banding efforts, as well as the continued migration from analog to digital systems.

* Wireless Systems’ operating income increased $28 million, or 71.8%, to $67 million in fiscal 2008
from $39 million in fiscal 2007. The increase was the result of higher sales volumes and favorable sales
mix in fiscal 2008 as compared to fiscal 2007. Also, segment results included $3 million of restructuring
costs and $2 million of costs that related to our Separation from Tyco International in fiscal 2007.

Fiscal 2007 Compared to Fiscal 2006

In fiscal 2007, Wireless Systems’ net sales increased $1 million to $386 million from $385 million in
fiscal 2006. Organic net sales were flat in fiscal 2007 as compared to fiscal 2006 as increases in
government spending in the public safety market offset reduced demand for equipment related to
public safety channel re-banding programs. The impact of foreign currency exchange rates was minimal.

In fiscal 2007, Wireless Systems’ operating income decreased $16 million, or 29.1%, to $39 million
from $55 million in fiscal 2006. Increased engineering and selling investment in fiscal 2007 as compared
to fiscal 2006 negatively impacted operating income. In addition, operating income was negatively
impacted by increased restructuring costs of $4 million in fiscal 2007 as compared to fiscal 2006 and
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$2 miltion of costs related to our Separation from Tyco International in fiscal 2007 that did not exist in
fiscal 2006.

Non-Operating Iems
Interest Expense, Net

Net interest expense was $156 million in fiscal 2008, as compared to $178 million in fiscal 2007
and $208 million in fiscal 2006. The decrease of $22 million, or 12.4%, in fiscal 2008 from fiscal 2007
was driven by lower average debt levels. The decrease of $30 million, or 14.4%; in fiscal 2007 from
fiscal 2006 was also driven by lower average debt levels. In fiscal 2007, decreases in net interest expense
allocated by Tyco International were partially offset by interest incurred on our unsecured senior bridge
loan and unsecured senior revolving credit facilities. '

A portion of Tyco International’s net interest expense was allocated to us through June 1, 2007.
During fiscal 2007 and 2006, we were allocated net interest expense of $130 million and $201 million,
respectively, which included the impact of Tyco International’s interest rate swaps. Management
believes the net intercst expense allocation basis was rcasonable; however, these amounts may not be
indicative of the actual amounts that we would have incurred had we becn operating as an
independent, publicly-traded company for these periods.

Other Income (Expense), Net

In fiscal 2008, we recorded other income of $567 million pursuant to the Tax Sharing Agreement
with Tyco International and Covidien, of which $545 million related to certain incremental tax liabilities
recorded in connection with the adoption of Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”)
Interpretation No. (“FIN") 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an interpretation of FASB
Statement No. 109.” See Notes 2 and 19 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for
additional information regarding the adoption of FIN 48. For further information regarding the Tax
Sharing Agrecment, see Notes 17 and 18 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements,

Net other expense of $219 million in fiscal 2007 includes an allocation from Tyco International of
$232 million for loss on retirement of debt. See Note 13 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial
Statements for additional information. Additionally, in fiscal 2007, we recorded other income of
$13 million associated with Tyco International’s and Covidien’s share of certain contmgem tax llablllt:es
relating to unresolved tax matters of legacy Tyco International.

Income Taxes

Our effective iricome tax rate was 25.9% for fiscal 2008 and includes a benefit of $198 million
primarily related to the pre-tax income of $545 million recognized in connection with our adoption of
FIN 48, for which no tax was provided. The effective tax rate was also impacted by increased accruals
in fiscal 2008 of interest related to uncertain tax positions partially offset by a $42 million benefit
associated with a favorable settlement with a taxing authority for certain legacy tax issues. In addition,
the effective tax rate for fiscal 2008 reflects the benefits of increased profitability in operations in lower
tax rate jurisdictions, a $33 million benefit related to adjustments to tax account balances, a $25 million
increase in the valuation allowance related to restructuring charges, and a $22 million tax detriment
recorded in connection with the goodwill impairment charge for which a tax benefit was not fully
realized.

Our effective tax rate for fiscal 2007 includes the cffects of the pre-tax charged recorded in
connection with the allocated class action settlement and loss on retirement of debt for which no tax
benefits were recorded. These impacts on the effective tax rate in fiscal 2007 were $312 million and
$81 million, respectively. In addition, the fiscal 2007 effective tax rate reflects tax detriments related to
increased borrowings in order to fund the class action settlement escrow and our Separation from Tyco
International.
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Our effective income tax rate was 5.3% for fiscal 2006. The effective tax rate in fiscal 2006
includes a net release of $268 million of deferred tax asset valuation allowances recorded in connection
with improved profitability in certain jurisdictions, principally the U.S. Our U.S. results of operations in
fiscal 2006 combined with other available evidence, including projections of future.taxable income,
indicated that it is more likely than not we will realize additional deferred tax assets in the future, and
accordingly, the refated valuation allowances were reduced: In addition to the valuation. allowance
release, effective tax rate was impacted by a $39 million state tax benefit recognized in fiscal 2006,
primarily related to the Tyco Global Network divestiture, as well as $87 million of tax benefits, -
associated with the receipt of a favorable non-U.S. tax rulmg permlttmg the deduction of h1st0r1cai debt
retirement costs.

1

The valuation allowance for deferred tax assets of $873 million and $703 million at Tiscal year end
2008 and 2007, respectively, relates principally to the uncertamty of the utilization of certain deferred
tax assets, prlmanly tax loss, capital loss, and credit carryforwards in various jurisdictions. We believe
that we will generate sufficient future taxable income to realize the tax benefits related to the
remaining net deferred tax assets on our Consolidated Balance Sheet. The valuation allowance was
calculated in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”)
No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes;” which requires that a valuation allowance be established or
maintained when it is more likely than not that ali or a portion of deferred tax assets will not be
realized. .

The calculation of our tax liabilities includes estimates for uncertainties in the application of
complex tax regulations across multiple global jurisdictions where we conduct our operations. Under
the provisions of FIN 48, we recognize liabilities for tax as well as related interest for issues in the U.S.
and other tax jurisdictions based on our estimate of whether, and the extent to which, additional taxes
and related interest will be due. These tax liabilities and related interest arc reflected net of the impact
of related tax loss carryforwards as such tax loss carryforwards will be applied against these tax
liabilities and will reduce the.amount of cash tax payments due upon the eventual settlement with the
tax authorities. These estimates may change due to changing facts and circumstances; however, due to
the complexity of these uncertainties, the ultimate resolution may result in a scttlement that differs
from our current estimate of the tax liabilitics and related interest. Further, management has reviewed
with tax counsel the issues raised by certain taxing authorities and the adequacy of these recorded

‘amounts. If our current estimate of tax and interest liabilities is less than the ultimate settlement, an

additional charge to expense may result. If our current estimate of tax and interest liabilities is more
than the ultimate settlement, income tax benefits may be recognized. Substantially all of these tax
liabilities and related interest are recorded in income taxes on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as
payment is not expected within one year.

We have provided income taxes for earnings that are currently distributed as well as the taxes.
associated with several subsidiaries’ earnings that are expected to be distributed in fiscal year 2009. No
additional provision has been made for U.S. or non-U.S. income taxes on the undistributed earnings of
subsidiaries or for unrecognized deferred tax liabilities for temporary differcnces related to basis
differences in investments in subsidiaries, as such earnings are expected to be permanently reinvested,
the investments are essentially permanent in duration, or we have concluded that no additional tax
liability will arise as a result of the distribution of such earnings. As of September 26, 2008, certain
subsidiaries had approximately $10 billion of undistributed earnings that we intend to permanently
reinvest. A liability could arise if our intentions to permanently reinvest such earnings were to change
and amounts are distributed by such subsidiaries or if such subsidiaries are ultimately disposed. It is not
practicable to estimate the additional income taxes related to permanently reinvested earnings or the
basis differences related to investments in subsidiaries.

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations, Net of Income Taxes

Income from discontinued operations was $188 million in fiscal 2008, and loss from discontinued
operations was $376 million and $246 million in fiscal 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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During fiscal 2008, our board of directors authorized us to pursue the divestiture of our Radio
Frequency Components and Subsystem and Automotive Radar Sensors businesses. In September 2008,
we completed the sale of the Radio Frequency Components and Subsystem business for net cash
proceeds of $427 miltion and recorded a $184 million pre-tax gain on the sale. In September 2008, we
also completed the sale of the Automotive Radar Sensors business for net cash proceeds of $42 million-
and recorded a $31 million pre-tax gain on the sale. The proceeds received in both transactions are
subject to final working capital adjustments.

Duri'ng fiscal 2008, we completed the sale of our Power Systems business for $102 million in net
cash proceeds and recorded a $51 million pre-tax gain on the sale.

During fiscal 2007, the divestiture of our Power Systems business was authorized, and in
connection with the approval, we ‘recorded a $585 million pre-tax impairment charge. Also, in fiscal
2007, we completed the sale of the Printed Circuit Group business for $227 million in net cash
proceeds and recorded a $45 million pre-tax gain on the sale.

During fiscal 2006, we recorded a goodwill 1mpa1rment.0f-$316 million related to the Radio
Frequency Components and Subsystem and Automotive Radar Sensors reporting units, which were
reporting units in the Wireless Systems segment prior to reclassification to discontinued operations.

See Note 6 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for additional information" *
regarding discontinued operations. )

Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change . .

During fiscal 2006, we adopted FIN 47, “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations—*
an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143.” Accordingly, we have recognized asset retirement
obligations of $16 million and net property, plant, and equipment of $4 million in our Combined
Balance Sheet at fiscal year end 2006. In addition, we recorded a cumulative effect of accounting’ ’
change which resulted in an $8 million after-tax, $12 million' pre-tax, loss. See Note 2 to the
Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for more information on FIN 47.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

The following table summarizes the sources and uses of our cash flow from continuing operating
activities for fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006:

Fiscal
2008 2007 . 2006
. (in millions)

Income from operations ... .............. ... ... oo, $1746 $ 716 $1,742
Class action settlement . . . ... ... .0t n i in i e ininna {936) 887 —
Non-cash restructuring and other charges, net ...................... 47 23 4
Depreciation and amortization . ... ........ ... . . . . 0. 559 514 459
Deferred income taxes ... .. ........ e . 174 163 (14)
Provisions for losses on accounts receivable and inventory ............. 41 82 62
Impairment of goodwill and long-lived assets . .. .................... 137 — —
Other,net . ..... ... .. .. .. e e 38 (15 + 6
Income tax advance payment ... ........ .. . . . . . . i i T — (163) —
Changes in assets and liabilities, net . ... ... ... .. ... . ..... ... ... (78) (30) - (346)
Interest inCOME . . . ... ... i e e " 32 53 48
INtErest EXPense . . oot e e e e . (188)  (231) (256)
Income tax expense . ....... ... i e e (558) (491) (81)
Net cash provided by continuing operating activities. . . ... ............ $ 1,014 $1,508 $1,624
Other cash flow items;

Capital expenditures . . .. ..... e e e § (619) § (875) $ (519)

Proceeds from divestiture of businesses .. ........ e e 57 227 —

Payment of common dividends . ... .................. e (271) — —

Repurchase of common shares ............... . (1,242) — —

Net cash provided by continuing operating activities in fiscal 2008 was $1,014 million as compared
to $1,508 million in fiscal 2007. The decline in fiscal 2008 was driven by the class action settlement of
$936 million. As discussed above, the finalization of the class action settlement in the second quarter of
fiscal 2008 resulted in a decrease to cash flows from operating activities and an increase to cash flows
from investing activities. It did not affect the cash balance on the Consolidated Balance Sheet because
we had previously fully funded our portion of the class action settlement into an escrow account
intended to be used to settle the liability. Also, in fiscal 2007, cash from continuing operating activities
was negatively impacted by a $163 million advance tax payment to the Internal Revenue Service
(“IRS”) for legacy tax liabilities. :

We continue to fund capital expenditures to support new programs and to invest in machinery and
our manufacturing facilities to further enhance productivity and manufacturing capabilities. Capital
spending decreased $256 million in fiscal 2008 to $619 million. as compared to $875 million in fiscal
2007. During fiscal 2007, we exercised our option to buy five cable-laying sea vessels that were
previously leased to us and used by the Undersea Telecommunications segment at a cost of
$280 million, which was reflected as a capital expenditure. We expect long-term capital investment
levels of approximately 4% to 5% of net sales each year. .

In fiscal 2008, we received net cash proceeds of $102 million, $427 million, and $42 million related
to the sale of the Power Systems, Radio Frequency Components and Subsystem, and Automotive Radar
Sensors businesses, respectively. In fiscal 2007, we received $227 million in net cash proceéds related to
the sale of the Printed Circuit Group business. Also, during fiscal 2007, we funded our portion of the
class action settlement escrow for $928 million. Related net class action settlement costs of $887 million
were recognized in fiscal 2007.
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The amount of pension and postretirement benefit contributions reflected in fiscal 2008, 2007, and
2006 were $77 million, $71 million, and $69 million, respectively. We anticipate pension contributions to
be $70 million to $80 million pet year on an ongoing basis before consideration of voluntary
contributions.

The amount of income taxes paid, net of refunds, during fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006 was
$369 million, $450 million, and $274 million, respectively. The amount of income taxes paid, net of
refunds, during fiscal 2007 included the $163 million related to the advance payment to the IRS for
legacy tax liabilities.

Capitalization

Total debt at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007 was $3,181 million and $3,378 million, respectively. See
Note 13 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for additional information regarding
debt.

During September 2007, Tyco Electronics Group S.A. (“TEGSA”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, issued $800 million principal amount of 6.00% senior notes due 2012, $750 million
principal amount of 6.55% senior notes due 2017, and $500 million principal amount of 7.125% senior
notes due 2037. In connection with the issuance of the senior notes, we and TEGSA entered into a
registration rights agreement with the initial purchasers under which we and TEGSA agreed, for the
benefit of the holders of the senior notes, to file with the SEC an exchange offer registration statement
within 210 days after the date of the original issue of the notes. The registration statement became
effective April 15, 2008, and the exchange offer was completed on May 20, 2008, meeting the
registration requirements.

During July 2008, TEGSA issued $300 million principal amount of 5.95% senior notes due 2014.
The notes were offered and sold pursuant to an effective registration statement on Form S-3 filed on
July 1, 2008. Interest on the notes accrues from their date of issuance at a rate of 5.95% per year and
is payable semi-annually on January 15 and July 15 of each year, beginning on January 15, 2009. The
notes are TEGSA’s unsecured senior obligations and rank equally in right of payment with all of the
existing and future senior debt and senior to any subordinated indebtedness that TEGSA may incur.
Net proceeds from the issuance were approximately $298 million. '

In July 2008, a wholly-owned subsidiary of TEGSA issued $100 miilion principal amount of profit
sharing notes with an initial maturity date of 2010. Remuneration on the notes is paid quarterly,
commencing on October 15, 2008, based on the after tax profits of the TEGSA subsidiary, with
quarterly remuneration not to exceed 0.9615% of the outstanding principal.

As of September 28, 2007, TEGSA had $550 million of indebtedness outstanding under its
unsecured senior bridge loan facility, which bore interest at the rate of 5.47%. During fiscal 2008, we
paid off all balances and cancelled all commitments under the unsecured senior bridge loan facility.

In April 2007, TEGSA entered into a five-year unsecured senior revolving credit facility. The
commitments under the revolving credit facility total $1,500 million; however, $75 million of these
commitments are from a subsidiary of Lchman Brothers Holdings Inc. Due to the Chapter 11
bankruptcy filing by Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. in September 2008, we believe it is unlikely that
this $75 million commitment will be honored. Accordingly, our useable commitments under the
five-year unsecured senior revolving credit facility are likely $1,425 million. Borrowings under the
five-year unsecured senior revolving credit facility bear interest, at TEGSA’s option, at a base rate or
the London interbank offered rate plus a margin dependent on TEGSA's credit ratings and the amount
drawn under the facility. TEGSA is required to pay an annual facility fee ranging from 4.5 to 12.5 basis
peints depending on its credit ratings.

As of September 28, 2007, TEGSA had $700 million of indebtedness outstanding under the
five-year unsecured senior revolving credit facility, which bore interest at the rate of 5.38%. In July
2008, all amounts outstanding under the five-year unsecured senior revolving credit facility were paid
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off with proceeds from the issuance of the $300 million principal amount of 5.95% senior notes and
$100 million principal amount of profit sharing notes, as well as cash from operations.

In November 2007, TEGSA commenced issuing commercial paper to U.S. institutional accredited
investors and quaiified institutional buyers in accordance with available exemptions from the
registration requirements of the Securities Act, as part of our ongoing effort to enhance financial
flexibility and to potentially decrease the cost of borrowings. As of fiscal year end 2008, TEGSA had
$647 million of commercial paper outstanding at an average interest rate of 4.01%. Borrowings under
the commercial paper program are backed by the five-year unsecured senior revolving credit facility.

TEGSA's payment obligations under its senior notes, five-year unsecured senior revolving credit
facility, commercial paper, and profit sharing notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Tyco
Electronics Ltd.

Qur debt agreements contain financial and other customary covenants. None of these covenants
are pre‘;ently considered restrictive to our operations. As of September 26, 2008, we were in compliance
with all of our debt.covenants.

In September 2008, our board of directors declared a regular quarterly cash dividend of $0.16 per
common share. The dividend was paid on November 4, 2008. Future dividends to holders of our
common shares, if any,‘ will be at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend on, among
other things, our results of operations, cash requirements and surplus, financial condition, statutory
requirements of Bermuda law, contractual restrictions, and other factors that the board of directors
may deem relevant.

In September 2007, our board of directors authorized a share repurchase program of $750 million
to purchase a portion of our outstanding common shares. Our board of directors authorized an
increase in the share repurchase program from $750 million to $1,250 million in March 2008 and an
additional increase in the program from $1,250 million to $2,000 million in July 2008. In fiscal 2008, we
repurchased approximately.37 million common shares for $1,269 million under this program, of which
$1,242 million was paid as of September 26, 2008.. No common shares were repurchased under this
program in fiscal 2007. - . 3

On September 19, 2005, we were awarded a contract to build and operate the statewide private
radio system for the State of New York. Under the contractual terms, this is a twenty-year contract that
requires us to build the network and lease jt to the State. As we build the network over the next five
years, we will need to invest approximately $500 to $550 million. As of September 26, 2008, we have
invested $56 million, which is included primarily in inventory on our Consolidated Balance Sheet.

© On August 29, 2008, we were served by the State of New York with a default notice related to the
first regional network, pursuant to the contract. Under the contract, we had 45 days to rectify the -
deficiencies noted by the State. We believe that these deficiencies have been remediated and the system
is operating in accordance with the contract specifications. On October 16, 2008, we certified the '
system ready for testing and presented our conclusions to the State’of New York. The State’s testing is
scheduled to occur in November and December 2008, The level of investment in fiscal 2009 will be
dependent upon the conclusion of the State’s testing. We estimate that our investment in fiscal 2009
will not exceed $100 million.

Our ability to fund our future capital needs will be affected by our ability to continue to generate
cash from operations and our ability to access the capital markets, money markets, or other sources of
financing, as well as the capacity and terms of our financing arrangements which are discussed above.
We believe that cash from operations and, to the extent necessary, these other sources of potentlal
funding are sufficient to meet' our anticipated capital needs. Although we have been able to issue
commercial paper, to the extent that market instability causes interruptions to the commercial paper
market, we may elect to borrow under our five-year unsecured senior revolving credit facility. Our
liquidity has not been materially impacted by the current credit environment, and we do not expect that
it will be materially impacted in the near future. There can be no assurance, however, that the cost or
availability of future borrowings will not be impacted by the ongoing credit market instability. We wnl]
continue to monitor the market in order to respond to changing conditions. '
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Commitments and Contingencies -

The following table provides a summary of our contractual obligations and commitments for debt,
minimum lease payments obligations under non-cancelable leases, and other obligations at fiscal year

end 2008.
Payments due by fiscal year
There-
Total 2009 2010 E]Ll_ EPE 2013 after
{in millions)

Debt® ... .. e $3.181 $667 $101 $ 1 $— 8858 $1,554
Operating leases . ... ....... ... . ... 483 118 88 67 46 37 127
Purchase obligations® . ... ... ... ... .. ... oL i28 1288 — — — — —
Total contractual cash obligations™ . " . ........ ... .... $3,792 $913 $189 $68 $46 $895 $1,681

(1) Excludes interest.

.. ] [ . .
(2) Our outstanding commercial paper of $647 million at September 26, 2008 is classified as long-term as borrowings under the
commercial paper program are backed by the five-year unsecured senior revolving credit facility. On the maturity schedule
ahove, the $64’?‘ million is presented as maturing in fiscal 2009,

(3) Purchase obligations consist of commitments for purchases of goods and services.

(4) Total contractual cash obligations in the table above exclude pension and postretirement benefit obligations, income taxes,
and other long-term liabilities.

We have pension and postretirement benefit obligations to certain employces and former employees. We are obligated to
make contributions to our pension plans and postretirement benefit plans; however, we are unable to determine the amount
of plan contributions due to the inherent uncertainties of obligations of this type, including timing, interest rate charges,
investment performance, and amounts of benefit payments. We expect to contribute $83 million to pension and
postretirement benefit plans in fiscal 2009 and $70 million to $80 million per year on an ongoing basis, before consideration
of voluntary contributions. These plans and our estimates of future contributions and benefit payments arc more fully
described in Note 16 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements.

Income taxes and other long-term liabilities are excluded from the table above as we are unable to estimate the timing of
payment for these items.

At September 26, 2008, we-had outstanding letters of credit and letters of guarantee in the amount
of $338 million.

At September 26, 2008, we had a contingent purchase price commitment of $80 million related to
the fiscal 2001 acquisition of Com-Net by the Wireless Systems segment. This represents the maximum
amount payable to the former shareholders of Com-Net only after the construction and installation of a
communications system for the State of Florida is finished and the State has approved the system based
on the guidelines set forth in the contract. A liability for this contingency has not been recorded in our
Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements as the amount of this contingency is not currently
estimable.

Income Tax Matters

In connection with the Separation, we entered into a Tax Sharing Agreement that generally
governs Covidien’s, Tyco Electronics’, and Tyco International’s respective rights, responsibilities, and
obligations after the distribution with respect to taxes, including ordinary course of business taxes and
taxes, if any, incurred as a result. of any failure of the distribution of all of the shares of Covidien or
Tyco Electronics to qualify as a tax-free distribution for U.S. federal income tax purposes within the
meaning of Section 355 of the Code or certain internal transactions undertaken in anticipation of the
spin-offs to qualify for tax-favored treatment under the Code.

Pursuant to the Separation and Distribution Agreement and Tax Sharing Agreement, upon
Separation, we entered into certain guarantee commitments and indemnifications with Tyco
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International and Covidien. Under these agreements, principally the Tax Sharing Agreement, Tyco
International, Covidien, and Tyco Electronics share 27%, 42%, and 31%, respectively, of certain '
contingent liabilities relating to unresolved tax matters of legacy Tyco International. The cffect of the
Tax Sharing Agreement is to indemnify us for 69% of certain liabilitics settled by Tyco Electronics with
respect to unresolved legacy tax matters. Pursuant to that indemnification, we have made simitar
indemnifications to Tyco International and Covidien with respect to 31% of certain liabilities settled by
the companies with respect to unresolved legacy tax matters. If any of the companies responsible for all
or a portion of such liabilities were to default in its payment of costs or expenses related to any such
liability, we would be responsible for a portion of the defaulting party or parties’ obligation.

Prior to Separation, ccrtam of our subsidiaries filed combined tax returns with Tyco International.
Those and other of our income tax returns are periodically examined by various tax authorities. In
connection with these examinations, tax authorities, including the IRS, have raised issucs and proposed
tax adjustments. Tyco International, as the U.S. income tax audit controlling party under the Tax
Sharing Agreement, is reviewing and contesting certain of the proposed tax adjustments. Amounts
related to these tax adjustments and other tax contingencies and related interest that management has
assessed under the provisions of FIN 48, which relate specifically to Tyco Electronics entities, have been
recorded in our Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements. In addition, we may be required to
fund portions of Covidien and Tyco International’s tax obligations. Estimates about these guarantees
have also been recognized in the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements. See Note 14 to the
Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for additional information.

In prior years, in connection with the IRS audit of various fiscal years, Tyco International
submitted to the IRS proposed adjustments to these prior period U.S. federal income tax returns
resulting in a reduction in the taxable income previously filed. The IRS accepted substantialiy all of the
proposed adjustments for fiscal years 1497 through 2000 for which the IRS had completed its field
work. On the basis of previously accepted amendments, we have determined that acceptance of
adjustments presented for additional periods through fiscal 2005 is probable and, accordingly, have
recorded them, as well as the impacts of the adjustments acccptcd by the IRS, in the Consolidated and
Combined Financial Statements.

During fiscal 2007, the IRS concluded its field examination of certain of Tyco International’s U.S.
federal income tax returns for the years 1997 through 2000 and issued anticipated Revenue Agent
Reports which reflect the IRS’ determination of proposed tax adjustments for the periods under audit.
Tyco International has agreed with the TRS on adjustments totaling $498 million, with an estimated
cash impact of $458 million which was paid by Tyco International during fiscal 2007. Our portion of this
payment reduced income taxes on the Consolidated Balance Sheet by $163 million. It is our
understandmg that Tyco International has appealed other proposed ad]u%tments totaling approximately
$1 billion and is vigorously defending its prior filed tax return positions.

Additionally, the IRS proposed civil fraud penalties against Tyco International arising from alleged
actions of former executives in connection with certain intercompany transfers of stock in 1998 and
1999. Any penalty imposed would be subject to sharing with Tyco International and Covidien under the
Tax Sharing Agreement. It is our understanding that Tyco International is vigorously opposing the
assertion of any such penaities. We continue to believe that the amounts recorded in our Consolidated
and Combined Financial Statements relating to these matters are -appropriate; however, the ultimate
resolution is uncertain and, should Tyco International lose its appeal, it could result in a material
impact 10 our results of operations, financial position, or cash flows.

Tyco International continues to complete proposed adjustments to the remainder of its U.S. federal
income tax returns. In fiscal 2008, certain proposed adjustments to U.S. federal income tax returns
were completed by Tyco International and presented to the IRS. As a result, in fiscal 2008, we recorded
a $225 million decrease in income tax liabilities, a $42 million decrease in deferred tax assets, a
$140 million decrease in the receivable from Tyco International and Covidien recorded in connection
with the Tax Sharing Agreement, a $57 million increase in the indemnification liability to Tyco
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International and Covidien, and a $14 million charge to contributed surplus. See Note 14 to the
Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for additional information regarding the
indemnification liability to Tyco International and Covidien. In addition, in fiscal 2008, Tyco
International, Covidien, and we completed and filed certain fiscal 2007 U.S. consolidated federal and
state income tax returns which included a combination of Tyco International, Covidien, and our
subsidiaries. As a result, we recorded a $66 millicn decrease in income tax liabilities with a
corresponding offset to the income tax receivabie, a $44 million decrease in the receivable- from Tyco
International and Covidien and a $42 million decrease in the payable to Tyco International and
Covidien pursuant to the Tax Sharing Agreement, a $30 million increase in contributed surplus, and a
$32 million net adjustment to other related tax accounts. As our tax return positions continue to be
updated, additional adjustments may be identified and recorded in the Consolidated and Combined
Financial Statements. While the final adjustments cannot be determined until the income tax return
amendment process is completed, we believe that any resulting adjustments will not have a material
impact on our results of operations, financial condition, or cash flows. Additionally, adjustments may be
recorded to shareholders’ equity in the future for the impact of fllmg final or amended income tax
returns in certain jurisdictions where those returns include a ‘combination of Tyco International,
Covidien, and/or our subsidiaries for the periods prior to the Separation.

v
1

Legal Matters

In the ordinary course of business, we are subject to various legal proceedings and claims,
including patent infringement claims, antitrust claims, product liability matters, environmental matters,
employment disputes, disputes on agreements, and other commercial disputes. Management believes
that these legal proceedings and claims likely will be resolved over an extended period of time.
Although it is not feasible to predict the outcome of these proceedmgs based upon our experience,
current information and applicable law, we do not .expect that these proceedings will have a material
adverse effect on our financial position. However, one or more of the proceedings could have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations for a future period. See “Part I. Item 3. Legal
Proceedings” and Note 17 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Stalemcnts for further
information regarding legal proceedings.

Prior to the announcement of the planned separation in January 2006, Tyco International and
certain former directors and officers were named as defendants in several lawsuits refating to securities
class action, shareholder lawsuits, and ERISA related litigation. As a part of the Separation and
Distribution Agreement, any existing or potential liabilities related to this outstanding litigation have
heen allocated a'mong Tyco International, Covidien, and us. We are responsible for 31% of potential
liabilities that may arise upon the settlement of any remaining pending litigation. If Tyco International
or Covidien were to default on their obligation to pay their allocated Share of these liabilities, however,
we would be required to pay additional amounts. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Separation
and Distribution Agreement, Tyco International manages and controls all the legal matters related to
the shared contingent liabilities, including the defense or settlement thereof, subject to certain
limitations. The liability sharing provisions regarding these class actions are set forth in the Separation
and Distribution Agreement among Tyco International, Tyco Electronics, and Covidien.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements .

Certain of our segments have guaranteed the performance of third parties and provided financial
guarantees for uncompleted work and financial commitments. The terms of these guarantees vary with
end dates ranging from fiscal 2009 through the completion of such transactions.- The guarantees would
be triggered in the event of nonperformance. We believe the potential exposure -for nonperformance
under the guarantees would not have a material effect on our results of operations, financial position,
or cash flows.
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In disposing of assets or businesses, we often provide representations, warranties, andfor
indemnities to cover various risks including unknown damage to the assets, environmental risks
involved in the sale of real estate, liability for investigation and remediation of environmental
contamination at waste disposal sites and manufacturing facilities, and unidentificd tax liabilities and
legal fees related to-periods prior to disposition. We do not have the ability to estimate the potential
liability from such indemnities because they relate to unknown conditions; however, we have no reason
to believe that these uncertainties would have a material adverse effect on our results of operations,
financial position, or cash flows.

We have recorded liabilities for'known indemnifications included as part of environmental
liabilities. See Note 17 to the Consolldated and Combined Financial Statements for a discussion of
these liabilities.

In the normal course of business, we are liable for contract completion and product performance.
In the opinion of ‘management, such obligations will not significantly affect our results of operations,
financial position, or cash flows.

Pursuant to the Separation and Distribution Agreement and Tax Sharing Agreement, upon
Separation, we entered into certain guarantee commitments and indemnifications with Tyco
International ‘and Covidien. Under these agreements, principally the Tax Sharing Agreement, Tyco
International, Covidien, and Tyco Electronics share 27%, 42%, and 31%, respectively, of certain
contingent liabilities relating to unresolved tax matters of legacy Tyco International. The effect of the
Tax Sharing Agreement is to indemnify us for 699 of certain liabilities settled by us with respect to
unresolved legacy tax matters. Pursuant to that indemnification, we have made similar indemntfications
to Tyco International and Covidien with respect to 31% of certain liabilities settled by the companies
with respect to unresolved legacy tax matters. If any of the companies responsible for all or a portion
of such liabilities were to default in its payment of costs or expenses related to any such liability, we
would be responsible for a portion of the defaulting party or parties’ obligation. These arrangements
have been valued upon our Separation from Tyco International in accordance with FIN 45,
“Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of
Indebtedness of Others,” and accordingly, liabilities amounting to $339 million were recorded on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet at September 26, 2008, See Notes 14 and 17 to the Consolidated and - '
Combined Financial Statements for additional information. .

We record estlmdted product warranty costs at the time of sale. ‘See Note 14 to the Consolidated

and Combmed Fmancnal Statements for furthcr information regarding estimated product warranty
' Crltlcal Accountmg Pohc:es and Estlmates

The preparation of the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements in conformity with
GAAP requires management to use judgment in making estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the
reported amounts of revenue and expenses. Qur significant accounting policies are summarized in -
Note 2 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements. The following noted accounting
policies are based on, among other thmgs judgments and assumptlons madec by management that
include inhergnt risks and uncertaintics. Management’s estimates are based on the relevant information
available at the end of each penod ' :

.Revenue Recognition

4

Our revenue recognition policies are in accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB™)
No. 101, “Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements,” and SAB No. 104, “Revenue Recognition,” as
issued by the SEC and other applicable guidance. :

Our revenues are genérated',principally from the sale of our producté. Revenue from the sales of
products is recognized at the time title and the risks and rewards of ownership pass. This generally
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occurs when the products reach the free-on-board shipping point, the sales price is fixed and
determinable, and collection is reasonably assured. For those items where title has not yet transferred, .
we have deferred the recognition of revenue. A reserve for estimated returns is-established at the time
of sale based on historical return experience and is recorded as a reduction of sales. Other allowances
include customer quantity and price discrepancies. A reserve for other allowances is established at the
time of sale based on historical experience and is recorded as a reduction of sales.

" Contract sales for construction related projects are recorded primarily on the
percentage-of-completion method. Profits recognized on contracts in process are based upon estimated
contract revenue and related cost to complete. Percentage of completion is measured based on the
ratio of actual cost incurred to total estimated cost. Revisions in cost estimates as contracts progress
have the effect of increasing or decreasing profits in the current period. Provisions for anticipated
losses are made in the period in which they first become determinable. Contract sales for construction
related projects are penerated primarily within our Undersea Telecommunications and Wireless Systems
segments.

Inventories - : .

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market value. Provisions for slow moving and
obsolete inventory are made based upon product demand and historical experience. Should future
product demand change, existing inventory could become slow moving or obsolete and provisions would
be increased accordingly. ' .

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired include both those that have a determinable life and residual goodwill.
Intangible assets with a determinable life include primarily intellectual property consisting of patents,
trademarks, and unpatented technology with estimates of recoverability ranging from 1 to 50 years that
are amortized on a straight-line basis. An evaluation of the remaining usetul.life of intangible assets
with a determinable life is performed on a periodic basis and when events and circumstances warrant
an evaluation. We assess intangible assets with a determinable life for impairment consistent with our
policy for assessing other long-lived assets. Goodwill is assessed for impairment separately from other
intangible assets with a determinable life by comparing the carrying value of each reporting unit to its
fair value on the first day of the fourth quarter of each year or whenever we believe a triggering event
requiring a more frequent assessment has occurred. In making this assessment, management relies on a
number of factors including operating results, business plans, economic projections, anticipated future
cash flows, transactions, and market place data. There are inherent uncertainties related to these
factors, and management’s judgment in applying them to the analysis of goodwill impairment. Since
management’s judgment is involved-in performing goodwill valuation analyses, there is risk that the
carrying value of our goodwill may be overstated or understated. -

When testmg for goodwill impairment, we follow the guidance prescribed in SFAS No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” First, we perform a step I goodwill impairment test to identify a
potential impairment. In doing so, we compare the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying
amount, If the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, goodwill may be impaired and
a step II goodwill impairment test is performed to measure the amount of any 1mpa1rment loss. In the
step 1I goodwill impairment test, we compare the implied fair value of reporting unit goodwill with the
carrying amount of that goodwill. If the carrying amount of reporting unit goodwill exceeds the implied
fair value of that goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess. "The
implied fair value of goodwill is determined in the same manner that the amount of goodwill
recognized in a business combination is determined. We allocate the fair value of a reporting unit to all
of the assets and liabilities of that unit, including intangible assets, as if the reporting unit had been
acquired in a business combination. Any excess of the value of a reporting unit over the amounts
assigned to its assets and Ilablhtles is the implied fair value of goodwill.
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Estimates about fair value used in the step I goodwill impairment tests have been calculated using
an income approach based on the present value of future cash flows of each reporting unit. The
income approach has been supported by additional transactlon and guideline analyses. These
approaches mcorporate many assumptions mcludmg future growth rates, discount factors, and income
tax rates in assessing fair value. Changes in economic and operating conditions impacting these
assumptions could result in goodwill impairments in future periods.

Income Taxes

In determining income for financial statement purposes, we must make certain estimates and
judgments. These estimates and judgments affect the calculation of certain tax liabilities and the
determination of the recoverability of certain of the deferred tax assets, which arise from temporary
differences between the tax and financial statement recognition of revenue and expense.

In evaluating our ability to recover our deferred tax assets, we consider all available positive and
negative evidence including our past operating results, the existence of cumulative losses in the most
recent years, and our forecast of future taxable income. In estimating future taxable income, we
develop assumptions including, the amount of future state, federal, and international pre-tax operating
income, the reversal of temporary differences, and the implementation of feasible and prudent tax
planning strategies. These assumptions require significant judgment about the forecasts of future
taxable income and are consistent with the plans and estimates we are using to manage the underlying
businesses.

We currently have recorded significant valuation allowances that we intend to maintain until it is
more likely than not the deferred tax assets will be realized. Our income tax expense recorded in the
future will be reduced to the extent of decreases in our valuation allowances. The realization of our
remaining deferred tax assets is primarily dependent on future taxable income in the appropriate -
jurisdiction. Any reduction in future taxable income including any future restructuring activities may
require that we record an additional valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets. An increase in
the valuation allowance would result in additional income tax expense in such period and could have a
significant impact on our future earnings. If a change in a valuation allowance occurs, which was
established in connection with an acquisition, the adjustment of such allowance may affect goodwill

rather than the income tax provision. .

Changes in' tax laws and rates also could affect recorded deferred-tax assets and liabilities in'the
future. Management is not aware of any such changes that would have a material effect on our results
of operations, cash flows, or financial position. ‘

In addition, the calculation of our tax liabilities includes estimates for uncertainties in the
application of complex tax regulations across multiple global Jurisdictions where we conduct our
operations. Under the provisions of FIN 48, we recognize liabilities for 'tax as well as related‘interest
for issues in the U.S. and other tax jurisdictions based on our estimate of whether, and the extent to
which, additional taxes and related interest will be due. These tax liabilities and related interest are
reflected net of the impact of related tax loss carryforwards as such tax loss carryforwards will be
applied against these tax liabilities and will reduce the amount of cash tax payments due upon the
eventual settlement with the tax authorities. These estimates may change due to changing facts and
circumstances; however, due to the complexity of these uncertainties, the ultimate resolution may result
in a settlement that differs from our current estimate of the tax liabilities and related interest. Further,
management has reviewed with tax counsel the issues raised by certain taxing authorities and the
adequacy of these recorded amounts. If our current estimate of tax and interest labilities is less than
the ultimate settlement, an additional charge to expense may result. If our current estimate of tax and
interest liabilities is more than the ultimate settlement, income tax benefits may be recognized.
Substantially all of these tax liabilities and related interest are recorded in income taxes on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets as payment is not expected within one year.
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Pension and Postretirement Benefit

Our pension expense and obligations are developed from actuarial assumptions. Two critical
assumptions in determining pension expense and obligations are the discount rate and expected
long-term return on plan assets. We evaluate these assumptions at least annually. Other assumptions
reflect demographic factors such as retirement, mortality, and turnover and are evaluated periodically
and updated to reflect our actual experience. Actual results may differ from actuarial assumptions. The
discount ratc represents the market rate for high-quality fixed income investments and is used to
calculate the present value of the expected future cash flows for benefit obligations to be paid under
our pension plans. A decrease in the discount rate increases the present value of pension benefit
obligations. A 25 basis point decrease in the discount rate would increase our present value of pension
obligations by $101 million, while a 25 basis point increase in the discount rate would decrease our
present value of pension obligations by 397 million. We consider the current and expected asset
allocations of our pension plans, as well as historical and expected long-term rates of return on those
types of plan assets, in determining the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets. During the
year, our Investment Committee made the decision to change the target asset allocation of the U.S.
Plans’ Master Trust from 60% equity and 40% fixed income to 30% equity and 70% fixed income in an
effort to better align‘assct risk with the anticipated payment of benefit obligations. The target asset
allocation transition began in fiscal 2008 and is expected to be completed in fiscal 2010..As a result of
this change, we are lowering the fiscal 2009 expected return on plan assets for our U.S. pension plans
by 0.44 percentage points to 7.55%. A 50 basis point decrease in the expected long-term return on plan
assets would increase our pension expense by $11 million, while a 50 basis point increase in the
expected long-term return on plan assets would decrease our pension expense by $11 million. Concerns
about deterioration in the global economy, together with the current credit crisis, have caused
significant volatility in interest rates and equity prices,.which could decrease the value of our pension
plans’ investment portfolios. A decrease in the value of our pension plans’ investment portfolios could
have an adverse affect on our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows.

Share-Based Compensation s

We adopted SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment,” on October 1, 2005 using the modified
prospective transition method. Under SFAS No. 123R, we determine the fair value of share awards on
the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton valuation model. The Black-Scholes-Merton mode!
requires certain assumptions that involve judgment. Such assumptions are the expected share price
volatility, expected annual dividend yield, expected life of options, and risk-free interest rate. (See
Note 24 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for additional information related to
share-based compensation.) An increase in the volatility of the Company’s stock wili increase the
amount of compensation expense on new awards. An increase in the holding period of options will also
cause an increase in compensation expense. Dividend yields and risk-free interest rates are less difficult
to estimate, but an increase in the dividend yield will cause a decrease in expense and an increase in
the risk-free interest rate will increase compensation expense.

Accounting Pronouncements
Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 162, “The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles.” SFAS No. 162 codifies the hierarchy of generally accepted accounting principles to be used
by the preparers of financial statements. The hierarchy is identical to that contained in the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants Statements on Auditing Standards No. 69, “The Meaning of
Present Fairly in Conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.” Adoption of the standard
did not have any impact on our Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48. This interpretation prescribes a comprehensive model for
the financial statement recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of uncertain tax
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positions taken or expected to be taken in income tax returns. FIN 48 requires that an enterprise must
determine whether it is more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination by
taxing authorities, inctuding resolution of any appeals or litigation processes, based upon the technical
merits of the position. A tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not threshold is then measured to
determine the amount of tax benefit to recognize in the financial statements. As a result of ddoptmg
FIN 48, we recorded a net increase in contingent tax liabilities of $1,197 million, an increase in
deferred tax assets of $648 million, and a corresponding decrease in the opening balance of
accumulated earnings of $549 million.' See Note 19 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial
Statements for additional 1nf0rmat10n regarding income taxes and the adoption of FIN 48.

In September 2006, the FASB :ssued SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benef t
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans-an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R).”
SFAS No. 158 requires that employers recognize the funded status of defined benefit pension and other
postretirement benefit plans as a net asset or liability on the balance sheet and recognize as a
component of other comprehensive income, net of tax, the gains or losses and prior service costs or
credits that arise during the period but are not recognized as a component of net periodic benefit cost.
Under SFAS No. 158, companies are required to measure plan assets and benefit obligations as of their
fiscal year end. We currently use a measurement date of August 31%, SFAS No. 158 also requ1res
additional disclosure in the notes to the financial statements. The measurement date provisions will
become effective for us in fiscal 2009. We are currcmly assessing the impact of the measurement date -
change provisions on our results of operations, financial position, or cash flows, We adopted the funded
status recognition provisions at September 28, 2007. The incremental effects of adopting the standard
on the Consolidated Balance Sheet were increases of $386 million in long-term pension and
postretirement benefit liabilities, $16 million in accrued and other current liabilities, and $55 million in
other assets. The impact of adoption also resulted in additional net deferred tax assets of $122 million.
The impact of adoption to accumulated other comprehensive income, a component of equity, was a
reduction of $225 million. There was no impact on pension or other postretirement benefit expense,
cash flows, or benefits plans in fiscal 2007. On-going compliance with the standard will not impact
pension or other postretirement benefit expense, cash flows, or benefit plans. See Note 16 to the
Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for further dlscussmn of the implementation of the
recognition provisions of SFAS No. 158, - - :

In September 2006, the SEC issued SAB No. 108, “Considering the Effect of Prior Year
Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements.” SAB No. 108
provides guidance on evaluating the materiality of prior periods’ misstatements, quantifying the effects
of correcting misstatements in the current period, and criteria for restatement of prior periods. SAB
No. 108 is effective for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006. We adopted this guidance effective
for fiscal 2007. The adoption did not have a material impact on our results of operations, financial
position, or cash flows. | -

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In Octeober 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) No. FAS 157-3, “Determining the
Fair Value of a Financial Asset when the Market for That Asset Is Not Active.” FSP No. FAS 157-3
clarifies the methods employed in determining the fair value for financial assets when a market for
such assets is not active. FSP-No. FAS 157-3 is effective for us in the first quarter of fiscal 2009. The
adoption of FSP No. FAS 157-3 will not have a significant impact on our results of operations, financial
position, or cash flows.

In June 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) 03-6-1,
“Determining Whether Instruments Granted in Share-Based Payment Transactions Are Participating
Securities.” FSP No. EITF 03-6-1 conciudes that unvested restricted share awards that pay
nonforfeitable cash dividends are participating securities and are sub]ect to the two-class method of
computing earnings per share. FSP No. EITF 03-6-1 is effective for us in the first quarter of fiscal
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2010. We do not expect that adoption of FSP No. EfTF 03-6-1 will have a material 1mpact on our
Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements.

In Apnl 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. FAS 142-3, “Determination of the Useful Life of Intangzb[e
Assets.” FSP No. FAS 142-3 amends the factors that should be considered in devetoping renewal or
extension assumptions used to determine the useful life of a recognized intangible asset under SFAS
No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” FSP No. FAS 142-3 is effective for us in the first
quarter of fiscal 2010. We are currently assessing the impact that FSP No FAS 142-3 will have on our
results of operations, financial position, or cash flows,

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, “Disclosures About Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities—an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133.” SFAS No. 161 amends and expands the
disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,”
to provide improved transparency into the uses and financial statement impact of derivative instrunients
and hedging activities. We plan to adopt SEAS No. 161 in the second quarter of fiscal 2009. We are
currently assessing the impact that SFAS No. 161 will have on our Consolidated and Combmed
Fmanc1al Statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141R, “Business Combinations.” SFAS No. 141R
replaces SFAS No. 141 and addresses the recognition and accounting for identifiable assets acquired,
liabilities assumed, and noncontrolling interests in business combinations. SFAS No. 141R is effective
for us in the first quarter of fiscal 2010. We are currently assessing the impact that SFAS No. 141R will
have on our results of operations, financial position, or cash flows. . ‘ .

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncomroﬂmg Interests in Consolidated
Financial Statements.”” SFAS No. 160 addresses the accounting and reporting framework for minority
interests by a parent company. SFAS No. 160 is effective for us in the first quarter of fiscal 2010. We
are currently assessing the impact thdt SFAS No. 160 will have on our results of operatlons financial
position, or cash flows.

In June 2007, the FASB EITF issued EITF Issue No. 06-11, “Accounting for Income Tax Benefits of,
Dividends on Share-Based Payment Awards.” EITF 06-11 requires that a realized income tax benefit
from dividends or dividend equivalent units paid on unvested restricted shares and restricted share
units be reflected as an increase in contributed surplus and reflected as an addition to our excess tax
benefit pool, as defined under SFAS No. 123R. EITF 06-11 is effective for us in the first quarter of
fiscal 2009. The adoption of EITF (36-11 will not have a significant impact on our results of operattons
financial position, or cash flows.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities”” SFAS No. 159 permits an entity, on a contract-by-contract basis, to make an
irrevacable election to account for certain types of financial instruments and warranty and insurance
contracts at fair value, rather than historical cost, with changes in the fair value, whether realized or
unrealized, recognized in earnings. SFAS No. 159 is effective. for us in the first quarter of fiscal 2009.
We do not expect to use the fair value election for any existing assets or liabilities as of the date of
adoption. The adoption’ of SFAS No. 159 will not have a significant lmpact on our results of operatlons,
financial position, or cash flows.

In September 20(}6, the FASB issued SFAS No, 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” SFAS No. 157
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosure about fair
value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for us in the first quarter of fiscal 2009. The adoption -
of SFAS No. 157 will not have a significant impact on our results of operations, financial position, or
cash flows.
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Forward-Looking Information

Certain statements in this report are “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the U.S.
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, These statements are based on our management’s
beliefs and assumptions and on information currently available to our management. Forward-looking
statements include, among others, the information concerning our possible or assumed future results of
operations, business strategics, financing plans, competitive position, potential growth opportunities,
potential operating performance improvements, the effects of competition, and the effects of future
legislation or regulations. Forward-looking statements include all statements that are not historical facts
and can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as the words “believe,” “expect,”
“plan,” “intend,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “predict,” “potential,” “continue,” “may,” “should,” or the
negative of these terms or similar expressions.

Forward-looking statements involve risks, uncertainties, and assumptions. Actual results may differ
materially from those expressed in these forward-looking statements. You should not put undue
reliance on any forward-looking statements. We do not have any intention or obligation to update
forward-looking statements after we file this report except as required by law,

Among the risks that could cause our results to differ materially from those expressed in forward-
looking statements are the risks described in “Part 1. Item 1A. Risk Factors.” There may be other risks
and uncertainties that we are unable to predict at this time or that we currently do not expect to have
a material adverse effect on our business.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

In the normal coursc of business, our financial position is routinely subject to a variety of risks,
including market risks associated with interest rate and currency movements on outstanding debt and
non-U.S. dollar denominated assets and liabilities and commodity price movements. We utilize
established risk management policies and procedures in executing derivative financial instrument
transactions to manage a portion of these risks. '

We do not execute transactions or hold derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative
purposes. Counterparties to derivative financial instruments are limited to major financiat institutions
with at least an A/A2 long-term debt rating. There is no significant concentration of exposures with any
one counterparty. '

Foreign Currency Exposures

As part of managing the exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates, we use foreign
exchange forwards and swaps. The objective is to manage our foreign currency exposures on
intercompany transactions, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and forecasted transactions
denominated in certain foreign currencies. A 109 appreciation of the U.S. dollar from the
September 26, 2008 market rates would increase the unrealized value of our forward contracts by
$95 million, while a 10% depreciation of the U.S. dollar would decrease the unrealized value of our
forward contracts by $116 million. A 10% appreciation of the U.S. dollar from the September 28, 2007
market rates would increase the unrealized value of our forward contracts by $39 million, while a 10%
depreciation of the U.S. dollar would decrease the unrealized value of our forward contracts by
$72 million. However, such gains or losses on these contracts would be generally offset by the gams or
losses on the revaluation or settlement of the underlying transactions.
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Interest Rate Exposures

We issue debt, from time to time, in capital markets to fund our operations. Such borrowings can
result in interest rate and/or currency exposure. To manage these exposures and to minimize overall
interest cost, we have used and may use in the future interest rate swaps to convert a portion of the
fixed-rate debt into variable rate debt (fair value hedges) and/or convert a portion of the variabie rate
debt into fixed-rate debt {cash flow hedges). At September 26, 2008, we had outstanding interest rate
swaps designated as fair value hedges on $300 million principal amount of our 6.55% senior notes and
$200 million principal amount of our 6.00% senior notes. At September 28, 2007, we had no
outstanding interest rate swaps. Based on our floating rate debt balances of $1,147 million and
$1,250 million at September 26, 2008 and September 28, 2007, respectively, an increase in the levels of
the U.S. dollar interest rates by (.5%, with ail other variables held constant, would result in an increase
of annual interest expense of approximately $6 million,

Commodity Exposures

Our worldwide operations and product lines may expose us to risks from fluctuations in commodity
prices, To limit the effects of fluctuations in the future market price paid and related volatility in cash
flows, we have used and may use in the future forward or option contracts. We continually evaluate the
commodity market with respect to our forecasted usage requirements over the next twelve to
twenty-four months and periodically enter into commodity forward or option contracts in order to
hedge a portion of usage requirements over that period. At September 26, 2008, we had entered into
commodity forward contracts, specifically related to gold, designated as cash flow hedges for a notional
value of $21 million. A 10% appreciation of the price of a troy ounce of gold from the September 26,
2008 prices would increase the unrealized value of our forward contracts by $2 million, while a 10%
depreciation of prices would decréase the unrealized value of our forward contracts by $2 million:

~ See Note iS to the Consolidated a‘hd Combined Financial Statements for additional information
on financial instruments.
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The following Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements and schedule specified by this
[tem, together with the reports thereon of Deloitte & Touche LLP, are presented following Item 15 and
the signature pages of this report:

Financial Statements:
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated and Combined Statements of Operations for the Fiscal Years Ended
September 26, 2008, September 28, 2007, and September 29, 2006

Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 26, 2008 and September 28, 2007

Consolidated and Combined Statements of Equity for the Fiscal Years Ended September 26,
2008, September 28, 2007, and September 29, 2006

Consolidated and Combined Statements of Cash Flows for the Fiscal Years Ended
"September 26, 2008, September 28, 2(_}07, and September 29, 2006

Notes to Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements
Financial Statement Schedule:

Schedule 1I—Valuation and Qualifving Accounts
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All other financial statements and schedules have been omitted since the information required to
be submitted has been included in the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements and related
notes or because they are either not applicable or not required under the rules of Regulation S-X.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND ’
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Precedures

Our management, with the participation of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer,
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e)
under the Exchange Act) as of September 26, 2008. Based on that evaluation, our chief executive
officer and chief financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not
effective as of September 26, 2008, because of the material weakness in our internal control over
financial reporting related to accounting for income taxes described in our information statement filed
as Exhibit 99.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K on June 8, 2007 and in Management’s Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting below. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without
limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a
company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and
communicated to the company’s management, including its principal executive officer and principal
financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act). Management, with the
participation of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committec of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We previously disclosed a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting
relating to accounting for income taxes. Subsequent to the filing of our combined financial statements
for fiscal 2006, 2005, and 2004 in the initial filing of our registration statement with the SEC, we
determined that our combined financial statements contained certain errors. The errors primarily
resulted from the process of carving out certain income tax accounts from Tyco International’s
consolidated financtal statements and related information. We substantially relied upon the processes at
Tyco International to prepare our carve-out accounts for income taxes. We determined that certain of
those tax processes utilized by Tyco International in determining certain carve out amounts for income
taxes did not operate at a sufficient leve!l of precision relative to our materiality for us to ensure that
the carve-out accounts were materially correct. We also determined that we did not have sufficient
control processes in place to ensure that the information provided by Tyco International was complete
and accurate and concluded that the absence of these control processes was a material weakness in our
internal control over financial reporting relating to income taxes.

As of September 26, 2008, management has concluded that recently enhanced resources and
processes related to this previously identified material weakness have not been operating for a
sufficient period of time and, accordingly, has further concluded that our internal control over financial
reporting was not effective as of September 26, 2008.
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A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
Company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject
to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with policies and procedures may deteriorate.

Deloitte & Touche LLPF, an independent registered public accounting firm, has issued an attestation
report on our internal control over financial reporting as of September 26, 2008, which is included in
this Annual Report. .

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We have enhanced our tax accounting resources and capabilities to remediate the material
weakness indicated above, and have implemented new control processes and procedures over the past
several months. Improvements to our control processes included the following:

* We implemented appropriately designed processes and controls and instituted multi-level
management reviews.

* We completed analysis and reconciliation of our tax accounts and recorded necessary
adjustments while implementing sustainable reconciliation processes to ensure continued
accuracy of these accounts. : -

» We enhanced policies and procedures relating to tax account reconciliation and analysis.

* We expanded tax accounting resources at both the corporate and regional levels with personnel
experienced in accounting for income taxes in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

* We conducted training for both existing and newly hired tax accountants along with other
accounting and finance personnel who are responsible for analyzing, documenting and
accounting for taxes in their jurisdiction.

* We increased accountability for accounting for income taxes by recording tax accounting at the
legal entity, developed and communicated clear rcsponSIbllmes and expectations, and
implemented a multi-level review process.

* We invested in additional information systems to improve control around newly implemented
processes and enable more effective review,

Although we believe that.the improvements in our control processes as designed are adequate to
remediate the material weakness, we will not consider the material weakness to be remediated until the
new processes operate for a sufficient period of time, and we are confident that they are operating
effectively.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PARTIN®  :., . . -
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ~

Directors and Executive Officers

The following table presents mformatlon wrth respect to our dlrectors and executlve offrcers as of
January 1, 20009, i ‘ e — :

L . ' +
. A

Name . Age . ' Position(s)

Thomas J. Lynch ... .. .. P . 54 Chief Executive 0ff1cer and Dtrector

Pierre R. Brondeau. . ............ 51 Director

Ram Charan ............ .. . 69 " Director

Juergen W, Gromer . ............ ' 63 Diréctor, '

Robert M. Hernandez . ... ... ... .. 64 D:rector ,
Daniel J. Phelan . .. ............. 59 Dlrector «'., ’
Frederic M. Poses . . ............ . 66 " Director . "
Lawrence S. Smith . ............ .~ 61" Director C ' )
Paula A. Sneed................. 61 Director o

David P. Steiner . ......... e . 48 Director = '

John C. Van Scoter. .. ........... 47 Director " t

Sandra S. Wijnberg . .. ........... 52 Director A
Mario Calastri .........:....... . 51 Senior Vice President and Treasurer

Alan C. Clarke ... ... ... P . 55 President,Network, Solutions

Terrence R. Curtin ........:..... 40 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Joseph B. Donahue.............. . 50 President, Automotive Division . « . .
Charles P. Dougherty ............ 46 President, Wircless Systems . §
Jane A. Leipold .. ...... ... ... .. 48. -.Senior Vice-President, Global Human Resources
Minoru Okamoto . .. ............. 59. President, Communications & Industrial Solutions’
Robert J.Ott ..............:... 47 Senior Vice President and Corporate Controller
Jeffrey G.Rea ... ... ... ... .. ... 43  President, Specialty Products

EricJ. Resch .............. ««+. 31 Senior V1ce President and Tax Officer, ‘
Robert A. Scott ............. L. 58 Executlve V1ce President and General Counsel _
Joan E. Wainwright. .. ... AP 48 ' Senior Vice President, ‘Marketmg and Communicatjons

Thomas J. Lynch serves on our. Board of Directors and has been Chief Executive’ Officer of Tyco
Electronics since January 2006 and was previously President of Tyco Engineered Products and Services
since joining Tyco International in September 2004. Prior to joining Tyco International, Mr. Lynch was
at Motorola where he was Executive Vice President and President and Chief Executive Officer,
Personal Communications Sector from August 2002 to September 2004; Executive Vice President and
President, Integrated Electronic Systems Sector from January 2001 to August 2002; Senior Vice
President and General Manager, Satellite & Broadcast Network System% Broadband Communications
Sector from February 2000 to January 2001; and Senior Vice Presrdent and General Manager, |
Satellite & Broadcast Network Systems ‘General Instrument Corporanon from May 1998 to February
2000. Mr. Lynch holds a bachelor’s degree in ‘commerce from erer Umversnty

Pierre R. Brondeau joined our Board.of D‘.rectors in June 2007, 1mmed1ately following our : *
separation from Tyco International. Dr. Brondeau was named President and Chief Operating Officer of
Rohm & Haas Company, a U.S. based manufacturer of specialty materials, in May 2008 and previously
was Executive Vice President of clectronics materials and specialty materlals of Rohm & Haas
Company from 2006. He also has served as Vice-President, Business Group Executlve Electronic’ .
Materials, President and Chief Executive Officer, Rohm & Haas Electronic Matenals LLC, and
Regional Director, Europe, from 2003 to 2006, and previously as Vice-President, Business Group
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Director, Electronic Materials, President and Chief Executive Officer, Shipley Company, LLC, from
1999 to 2003. Dr. Brondeau recewed a masters,degree from Universite de Montpellier and a Doctorate
from Institut National des Scrences apphquees de Toulouse.

Ram Charan joined our Board of Directors in June 2007, immediately following our separation
from Tyco International. Since 1978, Dr. Charan. has served -as an advisor to executives and corporate
boards and provides expertise in corporate governance, global strategy and succession. Dr. Charan
received a bachelor’s degree from Banaras Hlndu University and an MBA and a DBA from Harvard
Business School.

Juergen W, Gromer joined our Board of Directors in June 2007, immediately following our
separation from Tyco International. Dr. Gromer was President of Tyco Electronics from April 1999
until he retired from that position on December 31, 2007. From September 2006 until our separation
from Tyco International, he also-held the position of President of the Electronic Components Business
segment of Tyco International. Dr. Gromer held a number of senior executive positions over the
previous 10 years with AMP Incorporated. Dr. Gromer received his undergraduate degree and
doctorate in physics from the University of Stuttgart. Dr. Gromer is a Director of WABCO
Holdings Inc., Marvell Technology Group Ltd. and RWE Rhein-Ruhr AG. He is also Chairman of the
Board of the Society for Economic Development of the District Bergstrasse/Hessen, a member of the
Advisory Board of Commerzbank, and a Director of the Board and Vice Presndent of the American
Chamber of Commerce Germany

Robert M. Hernandez joined our Board of Directors in June 2007, immediately following our
separation from Tyco International. Mr. Hernandez has served as Chairman of the Board of RTI
International Metals, Inc., a producer of titanium mill products and fabricated metal components, from
1990 to the present. From 1994 to 2001, he served as-Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer of
USX Corporation and prior to that served in a variety of positions during his career at USX, beginning
in 1968, Mr. Hernandez received a bachelor’s degree from the University of Pittsburgh and an MBA
from the Wharton Graduate School of the University of Pennsylvania. Mr. Hernandez is Lead Director
of ACE Ltd., a Director of Eastman Chemical Company and Chairman of the Board of Trustees of the
Equity-Bond Complex of the BlackRock Mutual Funds. -

Daniel J. Phelan joined our ‘Board of Direétors in June 2007, immediately following our separation
from Tyco International. Mr. Phélan has served as Chief of Staff of GlaxoSmithKline, a manufacturer
of pharmaceuticals and consumer health-related products from May 2008 to the present and previously
was Senior Vice President, Human Resources from 1994, Mr. Phelan is responsible for information
technology, human resources, corporate strategy and development, world wide real estate and facilities,
environmental health and safety, and global security. Mr. Phelan received bachelor’s and law degrees .
from Rutgers University and a master’s degree from Ohio State University.

Frederic M, Poses joined our Board of Drrectors in June 2007, immediately following our
separation from 'Tyco Intérnational, and serves as our Chairman. Mr. Poses was Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of Trane Inc. (formerly American Standard Companigs Inc.), 2 manufacturer and
provider of air conditioning systems and services and vehicle control systems from 1999 until its
acquisition by Ingersoll Rand in 2008. From 1998 to 1999, Mr. Poses was President and Chief
Operating Officer of AlliedSignal, Inc., where he served in various capacities over his career, beginning
in 1969. Mr. Poses holds a bachelor’s degree in business administration from New York University.

Mr. Poses is a Director of Centex Corporation and Raytheon:Company.

Lawrence S. Smith joined our Board of Directors in June 2007, 1mmed1ately following our
separation from Tyco International. Mr. Smith was Executive Vice President and Co-Chief Financial
Officer of Comcast Corporatron a broadband cable provider, from 2002 until he retired in March 2007.
He presently consults for Comcast Corporatlon He served in finance, administration and executive
positions at Comcast from 1988 to 2002. Prior to joining Comcast, Mr. Smith was the Chief Financial
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Officer of Advanta Corporation. He also worked for Arthur Andersen LLP for 18 years, where he was
a tax partner. Mr. Smith has a bachelor’s degree from Ithaca College. Mr. Smith is a Director of Air
Products and Chemicals, Inc. and GSI Commerce Inc. . '

Paula A. Sneed joined our Board of Directors in June 2007, immediately followmg ouf separatlon
from Tyco International. Ms. Sneed is Chair and Chief Executive Officer of Phelps Prescott
Group, LLC, a strategy and management consulting firm, since 2008, Previously she was Executive Vice
President of Global Marketing Resources and Initiatives for Kraft Foods, Inc., a worldwide producer of
branded food and beverage products, until her retirement in December 2006. She served as Group Vice
President and President of Electronic-Commerce and Marketing Services for Kraft Foods North
America, part of Kraft Foods, Inc., from 2000 until 2004, and Senior Vice President, Global Marketing
Resources and Initiatives from Dccember 2004 to July 2005. She joined General Foods Corporation
(which later merged with Kraft Foods) in 1977 and has held a variety of management positions.
Ms. Sneed received a bachelor’s degree from Simmons Cotlege and an MBA from Harvard Graduate
School of Business. Ms. Sneed is a Director of Airgas Inc. and Charles Schwab Corporation. -

David P. Steiner joined our Board of Directors in June 2007, immediately following our separation,
from Tyco International. Since March 2004, Mr. Steiner has served as Chief Executive Officer and a
director of Waste Management, Inc., a provider of integrated waste management,services. His previous
positions at Waste Management included Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer from
2003 to 2004, Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary from 2001 to 2003 and
Vice President and Deputy General Counsel from 2000 to 2001. Mr. Steiner received a bachelor’s
degree from Louisiana State University and a law degree from the University of California, Los
Angeles.

John C. Van Scoter joined our Board of Directors on December 1, 2008. Mr. Van Scoter has
served as Senior Vice President of Texas Instruments Incorporated, a global semiconductor company,
since 2005. During his 25 year career at Texas Instruments, he also served as General Manager of the
Digital Light Processing (DLP®) Products and Digital Signal Processor Applications divisions, manager
of application specific mtegrated circuit (ASIC) product development and engineering, product
engineer and technical sales engineer. Mr. Van Scoter holds a bachelor of sc:ence dcgree in engmeermg
from the University of Vermont.

Sandra S. Wijnberg joined our Board of Directors in June 2007 Ms. Wt]nberg has served as Chief
Administrative Officer of Aquiline Holdings LLC, a New York based investment firm specializing in
financial services, since March 2007. Until April 2006, Ms. Wijnberg was the Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer at Marsh & McLennan Companies, Inc., a professional services firm with
insurance and reinsurance brokerage, consultmg and investment management businesses. Before joining
Marsh & McLennan Companies, Inc. in January 2000, Ms. Wijnberg served as Senior Vice President
and Treasurer of Tricon Global Restaurants, Inc. and held various positions at PepsiCo, Inc., Morgan
Stanley Group, Inc. and American Express Company. Ms. Wijnberg is a graduate of the University of
California, Los Angeles and received an MBA from the University of Southern California.

Ms. Wijnberg is a Director of Tyco International Lid.

Marie Calastri has been Senior Vice President arid Treasurer of Tyco Electronics since our
separation from Tyco International in June 2007 and he served on the Tyco Electronics Board prior to
the separation. He was Vice President and Assistant Treasurer of Tyco International between 2005 and
June 2007, Prior to joining Tyco International, Mr. Calastri was Vice President, Finance and Planning
for IBM Global Fmancmg EMEA in 2004 and Assistant Treasurer of IBM Corporation from 1999 to
2003.

Alan C. Clarke has been President of Network Solutions of Tyco Electronics since September 2006,
and served as a Vice President of Tyco Electronics since 1999. Prior to that, Mr. Clarke worked for
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Raychem Corporation, which was acquired by Tyco International in 1999, for 17 years in various senior
management positions.

Terrence R. Curtin has been Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Tyco
Electronics since October 2006 and he served on the Tyco Electronics Board prior to-the separation.
Mr. Curtin previously served as Vice President and Corporate Controller since 2001. Prior to joining
Tyco Electronics, Mr Curtin worked foi Arthur Andersen LLP. , ' \

Joseph B. Donahue has been President, Automotive Division, for Tyco Electronics since July 2008
and was Senior Vice President from August 2007 until then. From 2006 to August 2007, he was Group
Vice President, Woodcoatings Division for Valspar Corporation, 2 manufacturer of commercial and
industrial coating. Over the prior 16 years, Mr. Donahue held a variety of senior management roles at
Tyco Electronics and AMP Incorporated, leading the North America automotive business from 2001 to
2006.

Charles P. Doungherty has been President of Wireless Systems of Tyco Electronics since October
2006. Prior to joining Tyco Electronics, Mr. Dougherty was at Motorola where he served as Corporate
Vice President and General Manager, Voice and Data Solutions from July 2004, Vice President and
General Manager IP Solutions from June 2001 to July 2004, and Vice President and General Manager
North American VolP Solutions from July 2000 to June 2001.

Jane'A. Lelpold ‘has been Senior Vice President, Global Human Resources for Tyco Electronics
since 2006. She has a total of 27 years of Tyco Electronics and AMP Incorporated experience and has
held various human resources, purchasing and engineering positions.

Minoru Okamoto has been President, Communications & Industrial Solutions of Tyco Electronics
since November 2G08. Previously, he was President, Communications, Computer and Consumer .
Electronics (“CC&CE”)} from July 2008 and was Vice President of CC&CE since March 2001. He has
a total of 33 years of Tyco Electronics and AMP Incorporated experience and has held a varicty of
positions covering sales, marketing, operations and general management.

Robert J. Ott has been Senior Vice President and Corporate Controller of Tyco Electronics since
our separation from Tyco International in June 2007. Prior to that, he was Vice President, Corporate
Audit of Tyco International from March 2003 to June 2007 and Vice President of Finance-Corporate
Governance of Tyco International from August 2002 until March 2003. Prior to joining Tyco
International, Mr. Oit was Chief Financial Officer of Multiplex, Inc. from 2001 to 2002 and Chief
Financial Officer of SourceAlliance, Inc. from 2000 to 2001,

Jeffrey G. Rea joined Tyco Electronics in December 2008 and has been President of the Specialty
Products bi151nesses since January 1, 2009. Prior to joining Tyco Electronics, Mr. Rea was Senior Vice
President, JM Building Products group for Johns Mansville, a Berkshire Hathaway company, from 2002.
Prior to 2002, Mr. Rea held various leadershlp positions, with General Electnc Company where he
began his career in 1987.

Eric J. Resch has been Senior Vice President and Tax Officer of Tyco Electronics since our
separation from Tyco International in June 2007 and he served on the Tyco Electronics Board prior to
the separation. He was Vice Président, Tax Reporting of Tyco International from 2003 until June 2007.
Prior to joining Tyco International, Mr. Resch was Director, Tax Reporting for United Technologies
Corporation from 2001 to 2003.

Robert A. Scott has been Executive Vice President and General Counsel of Tyco Electronics since
2006 and prior to that was Senior Vice President, Corporate Planning for Tyco International from
January 2006 and Vice President of Strategy and Business Planning for Engineered Products and
Services from May 2004 to.January 2006. He also served on the Tyco Electronics Board prior to our
separation from Tyco International in June 2007. Prior to joining Tyco International, Mr. Scott was
Senior Vice President and Chief of Staff of Motorola’s Integrated Electronics sector during 2002 and
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2003 and Motorola’s Senior Vice President of Business Integration in 2001. Prior to joining Motorola,
Mr. Scott was Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary of General Instrument
Corporation.

Joan E. Wainwright has been Senior Vice President, Marketing and Communications at Tyco

Electronics since February 2008, and she previously was Senior Vice President, Communications and
Public Affairs since joining us in June 2006. Previously, she served as Vice President, Public Affairs and
Vice President, Corporate Communications for Merck & Co., Inc. from June 2000 to June 2006.
Ms. Wainwright also served as Deputy Commissioner of Communications for the U.S. Social Security
Administration and in the communications and public relations departments of the University Health
System of New Jersey, the Children’s Hospital of Philadelphia, the University of Delaware and '
Villanova University.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires Tyco Electronics’ executive officers and directors and
persons who beneficially own more than ten percent of Tyco Electronics’ common shares to file
electronically reports of ownership and changes in ownership of such common shares with the SEC and
NYSE. These persons are required by SEC regulations to furnish Tyco Electronics with copies of all
Section 16(a) forms they file. As a matter of practice, Tyco Electronics’ administrative staff assists Tyco
Electronics’ executive officers and directors in preparing initial reports of ownership and reports of
changes in ownership and files those: reports on their behalf. Based on Tyco Electronics’ review of such
forms, as well as information provided and representations made by the reporting persons, Tyco
Electronics believes that all of its executive officers, directors and beneficial owners of more than ten
percent of its common shares complied with the reporting requirements of Section 16(a) during Tyco
Electronics’ fiscal year ended September 26, 2008, other than three late Form 4 filings made by each of
directors Lawrence S. Smith and Paula A. Sneed, reporting one transaction on each form.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted the Tyco Electronics Guide to Ethical Conduct, which applies to all employees,
officers, and directors of Tyco Electronics. Our Guide to Ethical Conduct meets the requirements of a
“code of ethics” as defined by Item 406 of Regulation S-K and applies to our chief executive officer,
chief financial officer, and chief accounting officer, as well as all other employees and directors, as
indicated above. Our Guide to Ethical Conduct also meets the requirements of a code of business
conduct and ethics under the listing standards of the NYSE. Our Guide to Ethical Conduct is posted
on our website at www.tycoelectronics.com under the heading “Who We Are—Quick Links—Guide to
Ethicat Conduct.” We also will provide a copy of our Guide to Ethical Conduct to sharcholders upon
request. We intend to disclose any amendments to our Guide to Ethical Conduct as well as any
waivers for executive officers or directors, on our website,

Audit Committée of the Board of Directors

Tyco Electronics’ Audit Committee is comprised of Lawrence Smith, who chairs the committee
since January 14, 2009, Pierre Brondeau, Paula Sneed and Sandra Wijnberg. During fiscal year 2008,
Sandra Wijnberg was chair of the committee and continued in that role through January 13, 2009. The
Board of Directors has determined that each of Mr. Smith and Ms. Wijnberg is an “audit committee
financial expert,” as defined under SEC rules. The Audit Committee primarily is concerned with the
quality and integrity of the company’s annual and quarterly financial statements, including its financial
and accounting principles, policies and practices, and its internal control over financial reporting; the
qualifications, independence and performance of the company’s independent auditor and lead audit
partner; review and over51ght of the company’s internal audit function; compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements; review of financial and accounting risk exposure; and procedures for handling
complaints regarding accounting or auditing matters. The committee also oversees the company
Ombudsman and the company’s Guide to Ethical Conduct.
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Compensation Discussion and Analy}sis

Our fiscal year ended September 26, 2008 (“Fiscal Year 2008”) was the first full fiscal year of
operation for Tyco Electronics Ltd. (“Tyco Electronics” or the “Company™), as the Company’s
separation from Tyco International was completed on June 29, 2007. As discussed in our Compensation
Discussion and Analysis (“CD&A) for the fiscal year ended September 28, 2007 (“Fiscal Year 2007),
the Management Development and Compensation Committee (“MDCC” or “Committee”) adopted an
executive compensation philosophy shortly after separation to serve as the Company’s guiding principles
in the development of executive compensation levels and programs. In addition, the Committee put
into place a disciplined process for the adoption of executive compensation actions, which includes
Board approval of executive compensation actions for the Chief Executive Officer and Committee
approval of compensation actions for all other executive officers. All compensation actions are to be
reviewed for alignment with the Company’s executive compensation policy and in light of competitive
market data (the Committee reviews competitive data from two separate peer groups), and with
reliance on a compcnsatlon consultant (who i is independent from management) for advice, information
and an objective point of view.

- In light of the limited period in which the Company operated as a public company in Fiscal Year
2007, neither Company management nor the Committee had the opportunity to complete a
comprehensive review of the Company’s executive pay levels and programs. In Fiscal Year 2008,
however, we had the opportunity to conduct a comprehensive analysis of the competitive position of
our executive pay levels and compensation programs. Overall, we believe that our executive pay levels
and compensation programs are competitive relative to our peer companies and that the executive pay
actions taken in Fiscal Year 2008 better align our executive pay levels and compensation programs with
our executive compensation philosophy. In Fiscal Year 2008, we:

* confirmed the structure of our overall compensation program for our executive officers as one
that relies heavily on performance through the use of annual and long-term incentive programs

« awarded base salary increases and set annual and long-term incentive targets for executive
officers at levels that are aligned with the competitive market

* emphasized equity (in the form of long-term incentive awards granted primarily in the form of
stock options) as the primary component of long-term compensation for our executive officers,
ensuring that pay opportunities are linked to sharcholder return and maximize share ownership
by our executive officers

We are still in the early stages of the implementation of our executive compensation philosophy,
but we believe that with the actions taken in Fiscal Year 2008, we have made significant progress in
aligning our executive pay levels and compensation programs with our executive compensation
philosophy.

Executive Compensation Philoéophy

Our executive compensation philosophy is designed to deliver competitive total compensation,
upon the achievement of individual and/or corporate performance objectives, which will attract,
motivate and retain leaders who will drive the creation of shareholder value. The executive
compensation philosophy has also been designed to align with the Company’s organization-wide total
rewards strategy. The Committee reviews and administers the Company’s compensation and benefit
programs for ‘executive officers, including the named executive officers. (For purposes of this CD&A,
“executive officer” means the Chief Executive Officer, his direct reports and any other executive
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officers of the Company subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act.) In determining total
compensation, the Committee considers the following key objectives and attributes:

Shareholder alignment—FExecutive compensation programs will be designed to create sharcholder
value. Long-term incentive awards, which make up a significant percentage of our executives’ total
compensation, will closely align the interests of executives with the long-term interest of our
sharcholders. ‘

Performance based—Many components of our executive compensation package are linked to
performance. Annual cash incentive awards are tied to overall corporate, segment or business unit
measures that allow for differentiation among our highest and lowest performing business units.
Long-term incentive awards, granted primarily in the form of stock options, are designed to reward our
executive officers for the creation of long-term shareholder value.

Competitive with external talent markets—Our executive compensation programs are designed to be
competitive within the various talent markets in which the Company competes for executive talent.
Compensation programs are designed with reference to both a general peer group of companies that
compete with us for executive talent and an electronics industry peer group.

Focus on executive stock ownership—The Company has adopted the Tyco Electronics Share
Ownership and Retention Requirement Plan which, together with long-term equity awards, drives
executive stock ownership.

Simple and transparent—OQur executive compensation programs are designed to be readily
understood by our executives and transparent to our investors.

Role of the Management Development & Compensation Committee

The MDCC administers the Company’s compensation policies and programs for executive officers,
including the named executive officers. The Committee reviews, analyzes and approves the design of
the Company’s executive compensation policies and programs, administers the Company’s stock
incentive plans (including reviewing and approving equity incentive awards for executive officers) and
reviews and approves all compensation decisions relating to the named executive officers and other
executive officers of the Company. .

The Committee is comprised exclusively of members who meet the independence requirements of
the NYSE. Each MDCC member is also a “non-employee director” for purposes of Rule 16b-3 of the
Exchange Act and an “outside director” for purposes of Section 162(m} of the Internal Revenue Code.

Role of Management

The MDCC has established a process with management to support the development and review of
executive officer compensation, as described below.

Chief Executive Officer Compensation

The MDCC will make recommendations to the independent members of the Board regarding
Chief Executive Officer compensation actions. The recommendations will be based on factors deemed
appropriate by the Committee, including Chief Executive Officer performance and competitive market
data provided by the Committee’s independent compensation consultant. The MDCC will discuss and
evaluate Chief Executive Officer compensation recommendations in an executive session attended only
by the Committee members, its independent compensation consultant, and the Senior Vice President
Global Human Resources, who attends primarily to provide contextual information. The Chief
Executive Officer will not attend the executive session when Chief Executive Officer compensation
actions are discussed. The MDCC does not anticipate that management will have any role in the
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development of Chief Executive Officer compensation except for providing to the MDCC or the
Committee’s independent compensation consultant relevant data relating to the Chief Executive
Officer’s performance and compensation history.

Other Named Executive Officer Compensation

The Chief Executive Officer will make recommendations to the MDCC relating to compensation
actions for the other executive officers. The recommendations will be made based on each executive
officer’s performance, as assessed by the Chief Executive Officer, competitive market data provided by
the Committee’s independent compensation consuitant and other factors deemed relevant by the Chief
Executive Officer, including but not limited to internal pay equity, relative importance of the role of
each executive, experience level and prior compensation actions. The Senior Vice President, Global
Human Resources also will be present for the discussion of compensation actions for the other named
executive officers.

Role of Compensation Consultant

Under its charter, the MDCC has the sole authority 10 retain consultants, counsel, accountants and
others to assist it in the performance of its duties, including the evaluation of executive compensation
levels and programs. The MDCC has engaged Towers Perrin to serve as the Committee’s compensation
consultant. Towers Perrin reports directly to the MDCC and provides assistance to the Committee in
developing the Company’s executive compensation programs and executive pay levels and generally
provides advice to the Committee on executive compensation issues. The MDCC independently
retained Towers Perrin and has the ability to terminate Towers Perrin’s services at the Committee’s
discretion. Outside of the services performed for the MDCC, Towers Perrin provides no services to the
Company except with prior notification to the MDCC chair. The specific Towers Perrin consultants to
the Committee are precluded from any involvement in any work for management not expressly
authorized by the MDCC.

Towers Perrin performed the following services for the MDCC in Fiscal Year 2008:

+ Evaluated the competitive position of the Company’s executive officers’ total compensation
packages relative to the Company’s peer groups for purposes of assisting the MDCC in
determining compensation actions for Fiscal Year 2008 and beyond

* Provided advice to the Committee in the establishment of annual and long-term incentive
guidelines for executive officers

* Provided ongoing advice as needed on the design of Tvco Electronics’ annual and long-term cash
and equity incentive programs, including the Fiscal Year 2008 annual grant and performance
plan

* Assisted with the development of competitive global long-term incentive grant guidelines for the
Company’s global participant population, including both executives and non-executives

*+ Briefed the MDCC on executive compensation trends among the Company’s peer groups

* Provided advice to the MDCC and Nommatmg, Governance and Comphdnce Committee on
director compensation levels

« Provided advice to the MDCC on the Chief Executive Officer’s compensation

Executive Compensation Benchmarks

For purposes of benchmarking market practices on compensation levels for senior executives, the
Company has adopted a peer group framework that mcludes the use of a primary talent market peer
group and a secondary reference group. '
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The primary talent market peer group is comprised of companies across a range of industries in
which Tyco Electronics competes for executive talent—as opposed to being limited to companies only
in the electronics industry. Since Tyco Electronics typicaily competes for executive talent with
companies in industries other than the electronics industry, the Company and Committce believe that it
is appropriate to establish a benchmark peer group that sufficiently covers companies in those
industries. The industries included in the primary talent market peer group are acrospacé and defense,
electronics and scientific equipment and industrial manufacturing. The primary talent market peer
group consists of approximately 90 companies, listed in this CD&A under “—Primary Talent Market
Peer Group,” with revenues rangmg from $350 million to $170 billion. Data obtained from this group is
adjusted to reflect the relative size of Tyco Electronics within the group.

The secondary reference group is comprised of companies within the electronics industry. We use
the secondary reference group as a benchmark to identify any differences in compensatlon practices
between our industry peers and the broader primary talent market peer companies. As shown below,
there are currently 16 companies in the secondary industry reference group with reveriues ranging from
$2.8 billion to $36.6 billion, with a median of $10 billion.

3M Company C General Dynamics Corporation

Agilent Technologies, Inc. Harris Corporation

Amphenol Corporation Honeywell International Inc.

Cooper Industries, Ltd. ITT Corporation

Corning Incorporated . Johnson Controls, Inc.

Danaher Corporation Molex Incorporated

EMC Corporation ' Motorola, Inc.

Emerson Electric. Co. QUALCOMM Incorporated - S

The benchmark data is compiled by the Committee’s consultant and is used by the MDCCasa
reference to ensure that our compensation levels and programs are competitive with- the compensation
paid by the companies that may compete with Tyco Electronics for -executive talent.. As explained
below, the benchmark data is just one of the factors that are used in setting executive compensation
levels.

"Tax Deductibility of Executive Compensation’

In evaluating compensation programs covering our executive officers, the Committce considers the
potential impact on the Company of Internal Revenue Code Section 162(m). The Committee generally-
intends to maximize deductibitity of compensation under Section 162(m) to the extent consistent with
our overall compensation program objectives, while also maintaining maximum {flexibility in the design
of our compensation programs and in making appropriate payments to executive officers. However, the
Committee reserves the right to use its independent judgment to approve nondeductible compensation,
while taking into account the financial effects such action may have on the Company. Section 162(m)
limits the tax deduction available to public companies for annual compensation that is paid to certain
of the Company’s executive officers in excess of $1 million, unless the compensation qualifies as
performance-based or is otherwise exempt from Section 162(m). Annual incentive bonuses, stock
options and other performance ‘based awards made to executive officers under the Company’s 2007
Stock and Incentive Plan are intended to qualify as performance- -based compensation exemption undcr
Sectlon 162(m).

Compensation Overview—Process

The Company’s total compensation package for executive officers, including named executive
officers, is currently comprised of the following elements:

» ' 1

+ Base salary
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* Annual cash incentives

» Long-term equity incentives

+ Executive. benefits and perquisites

* Broad-based retirement and health and welfare benefits

As a general rule,.the MDCC has set the 50th percentile of our primary talent market peer group
as the benchmark for an executive’s total compensation. The components of an executive’s total
compensation, base pay and annual and long-term incentive awards, also are benchmarked at the
50th percentiic of our primary talent market peer group. After the benchmark is determined for each
executive position, the MDCC takes other factors into consideration in establishing the executive’s
compensation level. Those factors can include: differences in the executive’s responsibilities versus the
benchmark role; internal pay equity and relative importance of the executive’s role with the Company;
ipdi\gidua] performance and contributions to strategic initiatives; level of experience; and compensation
history. Thus, the actual pay positioning for each executive officer may be below or above the
50th percentile benchmark for total compensation and/or for one or more of the component elements
of total compensation. In addition, in order to altract and retain highly qualified external candidates to
fill critical managemenit roles, the MDCC may approve total compensation packages and/or individual
compensation components that are above the 50th percentile benchmark levels for that candidate’s
position.

Annual and long-term incentive awards also are structured with the potential to deliver "
significantly higher payouts (above the established target level for each executive officer) as an
incentive to drive the short and long-term strategies of the Company and increase shareholder value.
Similarly, the awards are structured to deliver substantially lower payouts (below thetarget level for
each executive officer) for performance that falls below expectations.

* Executive officers in the United States receive limited perquisites (as described below) and
perquisites outside the U.S. are based on local market practice. Broad-based employee benefit
programs are provided to executive officers on the same basis as all other employees. -

In order to assist it in setting executive compensation levels, the MDCC conducts a comprehensive
assessment of total compensation at least annually, with the assistance of its compensation consultant.
The assessment is completed for each executive officer and analyzes current base salary, target annual
incentive opportunity, target long-term incentive opportunity, target total cash compensation (base
salary and target incentive), and total direct compensation (base salary, target annual incentive
opportunity and target long-term incentive opportunity) in light of current market practice, which
includes comparative data,from the Company’s primary talent market.peer group. In addition to the .
total compensation assessment, the Committee utilizes tally sheets that are assembled for each
executive officer, showing the officer’s compensation history, work history and educational credentials, .
job responsibilities and tenure with the Company. The tally sheets enable the MDCC to understand
how changes in one element of an executive officer’s compensation could impact the value of other
elements of the executive officer’s compensation.

With the information provided in the total compensation assessment and tally sheéts as a
reference, and with the input of its compensatlon consultant and the Chief Executive Officer (with
respect to actions taken for the other executive officers), the Committee will make executive
compensation determinations for our executive officers based on the competitive market position and
other factors discussed above. The Commitiee and Board will follow a similar process. in making
determinations regarding the Chief Executwe Officer’s compensation.

Differences in compensatlon levels between our executive officers are largely driven by our
objective to align each executive’s compensation with 50th-percentile market compensation practices
specific to the executive’s role. As 56th-percentile market compensation practices vary for the roles held
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by our executive officers, there are differences in their compensation levels. Additionally, the factors
described above (such as differences in the executive’s responsibilities versus the benchmark role,
internal pay equity and relative importance of the executive’s role with the Company, individual
performance and contributions to strategic initiatives, level of experience and compensation history} will
also drive differences in compensation levels of our executive officers. An executive officer’s
compensation can change materially from year to year based on Company performance, individual
performance, or a role change, including promotion.

In March 2008, the Committee, with the assistance of its compensation consultant, conducted a '
preliminary compensation assessment to determine the competitive position of each executive officer’s
base salary, annual incentive target, total cash compensation, tong-term incentive value (based on the.
annualized value of the July 2, 2007 Founders’ Grant awards) and total direct compensation relative to’
the Company’s primary and secondary peer groups. The purpose of the March compensation
assessment was to provide relevant information to the Committee for determining base salary
adjustments: for a group of executive officers, including named executive officers. The Committee was
also provided tally sheets for the executive officers. Based on the data provided in the competitive
assessment, and in consideration of other factors deemed relevant by the Committee, base salary
increases were approved for a number of executive officers, including named executive officers (as
described below), effective in April 2008. With the base salary increases that were approved, the base
salary levels for our named exccutive officers range from 25% below to 6% above the 50th percentile
peer group base salary benchmarks. '

In July 2008, the Committec, with the assistance of its compensation consultant, updated and
reviewed the March 2008 competitive compensation assessment. The updated competitive assessment
covered each executive officer’s current base salary, target annual incentive for Fiscal Year 2008, total
cash compensation, long-term incentive value (based on the annualized value of the July 2, 2007
Founders’ Grant awards) and total compensation, and indicated the competitive position of cach
compensation element and total compensation level relative to the primary talent market peer group
benchmarks. The competitive asscssment indicated that the compensation levels for our executive
officers, including our named executive officers, fell both below and above the 50th percentile of the
primary talent market peer group benchmarks. The Committee reviewed the compensation levels for
each_executive officer in light of the relevant factors discussed above—such as the executive’s level of
experience, the additional responsibilities of a particular executive’s role versus the benchmark,
individual performance considerations and the executive’s compensation history—and determined that
the compensation levels were reasonable and consistent with our executive compensation philosophy.
The results of the July 2008 competitive compensation assessment assisted the Committee in ’
determining whether to make base salary pay adjustments effective in January 2009 (none were made)
and in setting annual and long-term incentive targets for the cxecutive officer group for Fiscal Year
2009.
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Elements of Compensation
Base salary

Base salary provides a fixed compensation for the performance of the executive’s core duties and
responsibilities. The base salary levels for Tyco Electronics’ executive officers, including the named
executive officers, were initially established by Tyco International prior to separation and were not
changed during the remainder of Fiscal Year 2007. Based on the competitive data in the March 2008
compensation assessment and in consideration of the date of the most recent base salary increase and
other factors, as described below, the Committee approved base salary increases for a number of
named executive officers, including Mr. Scott, Mr. Curtin, Mr. Clarke, Mr. Okamoto and Ms. Leipold,
effectlvc April 1, 2008.

The Committee approved a base salary increase for Mr. Scott from $500,000 to $525,000,
representing an annualized increase of approximately 5.0% since his last base salary adjustment, which
was effective January.1, 2007. The Committee approved the increase after considering the peer group
market data and the base salary levels of our Chief Financial Officer and other executive officers.

The Committee approved a base salary increase for Mr. Curtin from $475,000 to $505,875,
representing an annualized increase of approximately 6.5% since his last base salary adjustment, which
was effective January 1, 2007. The Committee approved the increase after considering the peer group
market data and the base salary levels of our General Counse! and other executive officers.

The Committee approved a base salary increase for Mr. Clarke from £241,500 to £253,500,
rcprescntmg an annualized increase of approximately 5.0% since his last base salary adjustment, which
was effective October 1, 2006. The Committee approved the increase after considering the peer group
market data and the base salary levels of our other business unit presidents.

The Committee approved a base salary increase for Mr. Okamoto from ¥52,595,920 to
354,700,000, representing an annualized increase of 4.0% since his last base salary adjustment, which
was effective October 1, 2006. The Committee approved the increase after considering the peer group
market data and the base salary levels of our other business unit presidents.

The Committec approved a base salary increase for Ms. Lelpold from $385,000 to $404,250,
representing an annualized increase of approximately 5.0% since her last base salary adjustment, which
was effective January 1, 2007. The Committee approved the increase after considering the peer group
market data and the base salary levels of our other executive officers.

Mr. Lynch did not receive a base salary increase in Fiscal Year 2008 or in Fiscal Year 2009 through
the date of filing of this Annual Report,

Annual Incentive Awards

Annual incentive awards provide executive officers with a bonus opportunity if certain financial
performance goals are achieved. The annual incentive program is intended to reward executive officers
upon the achievement of financial performance goals (at the corporate, segment and/or business unit
level), with some limited discretion applied for individual performance. The MDCC intends the
Company’s annual incentive award program to provide market competitive awards targeted at the
50th percentile relative to peer companics for performance achieved at the predetermined target levels,
Award opportunities above the 50th percentile will be available to the extent that performance exceeds
the predetermined target levels. Payments at levels below the 50th percentile will be awarded to the
extent that performance is below the performance target levels. No annual incentive payments will be
made if threshold performance levels are not achieved, absent the occurrence of extenuating
circumstances that, in the discretion of the Committee, merit an exception to the threshold
performance requirement.
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The annual incentive awards wilt typically be structured as cash payments. Within 90 days of the
start of each fiscal year, the Committee will establish the applicable performance criteria, which will
include minimum performance thresholds required to.earn an award, target performance goals required
to earn a payment of 100%, and a maximum performance level required to earn the maximum bonus
permitted. If the Company attains the established financial goals, executive officers will receive an
award based on a target bonus percentage which will be set at the beginning of each fiscal year and
expressed as a percentage of the executive’s base salary. [ncentive target bonus percentages for ‘ '
executive officers generally range from 50% to 100% of base salary. The target bonus percentages for
our named officers for Fiscal Year 2008 were as follows: Mr. Lynch-—100%; Mr. Scott—75%;

Mr. Curtin—75%; Mr. Clarke—75%; Mr. Okamoto—75%; and Ms. Le1pold—-65% The target bonus
percentages fell within a range of 20% below to 7% above the 50th percentile primary market group
benchmarks.

For Fiscal Year 2008, the Company established the followmg fmanc1al measures for the annual
incentive award program: o

Corporate Level:

Measure ' Weighting
Earnings per Share (“EPS™) ... ... ... ... . .. ... . .. ... 60%
Return On Invested Capital (“"ROIC”) .. ............ ... ... 30%
Key Performance Indicator (“KPI”) ................... ... 10%

Business Unit Level—overall award based 80% on busirless unit pcrforménce (deecribed below)
and 20% on corporate level results (described above)

Measure . T v : Weighting
Business Unit Operating Income (“OI") . ............ ... ... 60%
Business Unit ROIC . ... .. . . e 30%
Business Unit KPIL. . . ... .. it i i i i 10%

For purposes of the 'annual incentive award program, EPS, Ol and ROIC are adjusted financial
méasures that exclude the effects of events deemed not reflective of the actual performance of the 7
eligible participants. For Fiscal Year 2008, the categories of adjustments included the elimination of the
'effects of (i) business disposals, (ii) pre-separation tax matters, (iii) charges and income related to
former management or shareholder litigation, (iv) land sales, and (v) restructuring and asset
1mpa|rment charges. B ' ’ '

The KPI is an additional measure spemfrcally designed for the Company and each business unit to
emphasize an important initiative. The corporate level KP1 for Fiscal Year 2008 was operating income
percentage and the KPI for the business units was either opera[mg income percentage or organic sales
growth. Organic sales growth is our reported net sales growth as adjusted for the impact from foreign
exchange rates, acquisitions and divestitures. As noted above, business unit awards were based 80% on
the attainment of the bissiniess unit performance measures and 20% on the corporate level results in
order to drive cross-business coltaboration. «* 7" v '’

The minimum threshold performance required to earn an annual incentive award for each
established performance mieasure was set at 90%, with maximum payout for each performance measure
set at attainment of 110% of such measure. Actual awards could have ranged from 0% (for
performance below the threshold level) to 200% (for performance at or over the maximum
performance level) of an incentive bonus target. EME !

* l n‘ i

For the Fiscal Year 2008 annual incentive award program, the Committee reserved the discretion
to adjust individual or business unit award amounts upward or downward by up to 25% based on its
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discussed-above. ‘For purposes'of establishing the long-term incentive ranges, the Committee grouped
executives together (except for Mr. Lynch) based on an evaluation of the importance of each
executive’s role to the organization and a review of competitive market data. Roles were grouped
accordmgly and ranges established based on the market data. For example, Messrs. Scott and Curtin
were grouped togéther reflecting their large functlonal roles. Messrs. Okamoto and Clarke were
grouped together with other executives leading large Business units. Ms. "Leipold was grouped together
with other similarly-situated corporate level executives. All grants made to the executive officers, except
for Mr. Lynch, were within.the ranges established for each executive group. Mr. Lynch’s Fiscal Year
2009 annual long-term equity’incentive grant was based on competltwc market data and was set at the
50th percentile of his primary market group benchmark. :

Pay Mix

- We do not have a specific policy with respect to the allocation between fixed versus performance-
based compensation or annual, versus long-term compensation. Our mix is largely driven by our practice
of basing each element of compensation on market 50th-percentile practices. However, management
and the MDCC periodically review our mix in relation to market and in relation to our desired ‘
objective of providing the majority of our named executive officers’ compensation through
performance-based components. The following table shows our mix of fixed compensation versus
performance-based compensation and annual versus long-term compensation, based on the'data shown
in the Summary Compensation Table. As indicated by the table below, our actual mix is consistent with
our objective to deliver the majorlty of executive compensation through long-term equlty incentives.

v
SRR . Lt I . it v i "

i Base  Long- Term Non-Equity , Other \ ;
<! i ‘ Salary  Incentives Incentive” Compensatmn
Lynch ..ot 125% 664%  187% = 2.4%
Curtin .. ... .o 0000 oL L4 23.4% " 44.6% 27.1% 4.8%
Scott . .~ ..t oet ool 232% 435% 26.7% ©6.6%
Okamoto . . !, ... .. 0., woodoe. . 243%  59.2% 8.3% 8.2%
Clarke . .. ... Pl ERN e 292% 57.9% 11.3% 1.6%
Lelpold P e i 2219 494% - 22.1% 6.3%
. i * A Y L o
Retirement and Defe:red Compensanon Benef' s ' . i ' o,

The Company maintains various retirement plans to assist our execuuve officers with renrement
income p]anmng and mcrease the’ attractiveness of employment wnth the Company. *

'

The Cornpany provndes a defined contrlbutlon plan, the Tyco Electromcs Retirement Savmgs and
Investment Plan (“RSIP”), that is available to all eligible United. States employees, and a nonqualified
supplemental retirement plan, the Tyco Electromcs Supplemental Savmgs and Retlrement Plan .
(“SSRP”), in whlch executlve officers may par’uupate

Under the RSIP; the Company match level is based on years of service, as follows: o

" f. B . * ) ' . B ! -. P ' : + - -

. Co Lo : . Employee Company
Years of Service e Contribution*  Contribution*

09 e 1% 5%

C10-19 Lo S 2% - 6%
20-24 ., FTo oL J T P 3% - 7%.
25-29.'...: ........ TR R R el 4% 8%
ormore’ ... .. ... D ORI 5% ° 9%

* Represents the percentage of the cmployee’s conipensation, which for purposes of the RSIP, generally. includes.© -
_base salary and annual incentive awards paid to the employee. : Co
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The annual incentive awards will typically be structured as cash payments. Within 90 days of the
start of each fiscal year, the Committee will establish the applicable performance criteria, which will
include minimum performance thresholds required to earn an award, target performance goals required
to earn a payment of 100%, and a maximum performance level required to earn the maximum bonus
permitted. If the Company attains the established financial goals, executive officers will receive an
award based on a target bonus percentage which will be sct at the beginning of each fiscal year and
expressed as a percentage of the executive’s base salary. Incentive target bonus percentages for
executive officers generally range from 50% to 100% of base salary. The target bonus percentages for
our named officers for Fiscal Year 2008 were as follows: Mr. Lynch—100%; Mr. Scott—75%;

Mr. Curtin—75%; Mr. Clarke—75%; Mr. Okamoto—75%; and Ms. Leipold—65%. The target bonus
percentages fell within a range of 20% below to 7% above the 50th percentile primary market group
benchmarks.

For Fiscal Year 2008, the Company established the following financial measures for the annual
incentive award program:

Corporate Level:

Measure o Weighting
Earnings per Share (“EPS™) ... ... .. oo 60%
Return On Invested Capital (“ROIC™) ... ...... ... ... 30%
Key Performance Indicator (“KPI”) ............. ... ..0h. 10%

Business Unit Level—overall award based 80% on business unit performance (described below)
and 20% on corporate level results (described above)

Measure . Weighting
Business Unit Operating Income (“OI") .. . ...... ... ... 60%
Business Unit ROIC . . . ... . .0 i et 30%
Business Unit KPL. . .. ... .ttt 10%

For purposes of the annual incentive award program, EPS, OI and ROIC are adjusted financial
measures that exclude the effects of events deemed not reflective of the actual performance of the
cligible participants. For Fiscal Year 2008, the categories of adjustments included the elimination of the
effects of (i) business disposals, (ii) pre-separation tax matters, (iii) charges and income related to
former management or shareholder litigation, (iv) land sales, and (v) restructuring and asset
impairment charges.

The KP1 is an additional measure specifically designed for thc Company and each business unit to
emphasize an important initiative. The corporate level KPI for Fiscal Year 2008 was operating income
percentage and the KPI for the business units was either operating income percentage or organic sales
growth. Organic sales growth is our reported net sales growth as adjusted for the impact from foreign
exchange rates, acquisitions and divestitures. As noted above, business unit awards were based 80% on
the attainment of the bisiness unit performance measures and 20% on the corporate level results in
order to drive cross-business collaboration. :

The minimum threshold performance required to earn an annual incentive award for each
established performance measure was set at 90%, with maximum payout for each performance measure
set at attainment of 1109 of such measure. Actual awards could have ranged from 0% (for
performance below the threshold level) to 200% (for performance at or over the maximum
performance level) of an incentive bonus target. )

For the Fiscal Year 2008 annual incentive award program, the Committee reserved the discretion
to adjust individual or business unit award amounts upward or downward by up to 25% based on its

2008 Form 10-K 81




subjective evaluation-of the individual or business unit performance during the fiscal year. However,
any discretionary adjustments were required to net out to zero. in addition, the Committee granted the
Chief Executive Officer a discretionary award pool of $6.5 million (10% of the target AIP pool
amount) to make additional annual incentive awards as deemed appropriate in his discretion.

Fiscal Year 2008 performance targets, actual attainment and corresponding annual incentive award
results at the corporate level and for the Communications, Computer & Consumer Electronics and
Network Solutions business units (for Mr. Okamoto and Mr. Clarke, respectively) were as follows:

Corporate Level: Messrs. Lynch, Scott, Curtin and Ms, Leipold

' ' . Performance  Bonus
Performance Measure Target Range Results % to Target Score

EPS (60%6) « . oo oee e $221-$228 $ 243 1082% 178.95%
100) (o 11 WA 10.4% 115% 1106%  210%
KPI—O1% (10%) . ..ot oeeeee e 14.1% 137% 972%  85.7%

Corporate Level Earned Award: 178.9%

CC&CE: Mr. Okamoto

v . Performance Bonus
Performance Measure Target Range Results % to Target Score

OL (48%) « oo oot $531.3-$547.7M  $472.95M 87.7% 0.0%
1:00) (o ¢ L) SN 11.2% 9.5%  84.8% 0.0%
KPI—O1% (8%) . . . .\ o eee oo, 16.7% 150%  89.8% 0.0%

CC&CE Earned_Award, including 20% attributabte to Corporate Level Results {178.9%): 35.8%

Network Solutions: Mr. Clarke

Performance Bonus

Performance Measure Target Range Results % to Target Score
OI(48%) ............. P $339.5-$350.0M  $306.4M 88.9% 0.0%
ROIC (24%). . . oo e e . 12.8% 10.7%  83.6% 0.0%

KPI—Organic Sales (8%) ................... 7.2% 63% 87.5%. 55.0%
' Network Solutions Weighted Score; 5.5% '
Network Solutions Earned Award, including 20% attributed to Corporate Level Results (178.9%): 40.2%

Once the bonus scores were calculated, adjustments were made to arrive at the final bonus payout
for each named executive officer, as follows:

* The corporate level bonus score was adjusted downward to a rating of 150% (from 178.9%) to
more appropriately reflect the overall business performance in Fiscal Year 2008. As a result,
Messrs. Lynch, Scott and Curtin and Ms. Leipold were awarded annual incentive payments equal
to 150% of their respective annual incentive program targets.

* The CC&CE bonus score was adjusted upward to a rating of 44.7% (from 35.8%) to recognize
the business unit’s solid performance in a weak economy, its leadership in the Company’s talent
sharing process and productivity/ TEOA (Tyco Electronics Operational Advantage) programs, its
cfficiency in operational portfolio cleanup, and its market share gains with key customers. As a

rl
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result, Mr. Okamoto was awarded an annual incentive payment equal to 44, 7% of his annual
incentive plan target.

» Mr. Clarke’s bonus score was adjusted vpward to a rating of 50.2% (from 40.2%) to recognize’
Mr. Clarke’s contribution to corporate-wide initiatives including the development of the Eastern
Europe and India markets and his executlve sponsorship of the Tyco Electronics Operations
Council.

The adjustments were made based on the Committee’s.authority to adjust annual incentive awards
upward or downward by 25% (as described above). The Chief Executive Officer did not award any
amounts from the $6.5 million discretionary pool (as described above). .

Long-Term Incentive Awards

The MDCC intends to use long-term incentive awards in the form of stock options, restricted stock
units and other forms of equity and/or cash to deliver competitive compensation that recognizes
employees for their contributions to the Company and aligns executive officers with sharcholders in
focusing on long-term growth and stock performance. As part of the Company’s compensation
philosophy, the MDCC concluded that annual grants of long-term incentive awards to executive officers
typically should be targeted at the 50th percentile relative to our primary talent market peer group, but
should have the ability to deliver compensation at the high end of the market for superior performance
and at the low end of the market for weak performance. The Company does not have a rigid policy for
the allocation of long-term equity incentive awards among the different forms of equity. However,
consistent with its policy that a majority of an executive officer’s compensation be performance-based,
long-term cquity incentive awards for executive officers will be weighted primarily in the form of stock
options or some other form of performance-based award.

The Committee intends that long-term equity incentive awards will be granted on an annual basis,
typically in the first fiscal quarter of each year. In general, the factors used to determine the number of
shares subject to long-term incentive equity awards in any year will include (i) target grant ranges based
on competitive data from our benchmark companies, (ii) the Company’s stock price, (iii) the mix of
stock options and full value shares to be granted, (iv) total share utilization and dilution, (v) the
incentive and retentive value deemed appropriate for the grant, (vi) prior grant history, and
(vii) anticipated equity-related expense. (As discussed above, the Committee set Fiscal Year 2009
long-term incentive target ranges based on the July 2008 competitive compensation assessment.)

As discussed in our Fiscal Year 2007 CD&A, the Company issued a Founders’ Grant to executive
officers and other employees on July 2, 2007 that consisted of a mix of stock options and restricted
stock units. (Executive officers received an award mix of 75% stock options and 25% restricted stock
units.) The Founders’ Grant award values were designed to cover eighteen months (as the Committee
did not intend to issue another broad-based long-term equity grant until the Company’s 2009 fiscal
year), plus an additional one-time award to executive officers and other employees to recognize their
contributions during the separation process. Thus, the values of the Founders’ Grant awards were set
between the 50th and 75th percentiles of primary market group benchmarks. Consistent with the
Committee’s intent when granting the Founders’ Grant awards, no long-term equity incentive awards
were granted to executive officers in Fiscal Year 2008. :

In November 2008, Fiscal Year 2009 annual long-term equity incentive awards were granted to
executive officers and other employees. (These equity awards are not reflected in the Summary
Compensation Table becausc they were granted in Fiscal Year 2009.) To support our philosophy that
long-term incentive awards be performance based and be designed to reward the creation of
shareholder value, the Fiscal Year 2009 long-term equity incentive awards for executive officers were
made in the form of stock options (70%) and restricted stock unit awards (30%). The grant values
were based on the long-term equity incentive ranges adopted by the Committee in July 2008, as
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discussed above. For purposes of establishing the long-term incentive ranges, the Commitiee grouped
executives together (except for Mr. Lynch) based on an evaluation of the importance of each
executive’s role to the organization and a review of competitive market data. Roles were grouped
accordingly and ranges established based on the market data. For example, Messrs. Scott and Curtin
were grouped together reflecting their large functional roles. Messrs. Okamote and Clarke were
grouped together with other executives leading large business units. Ms, Leipold was grouped together
with other similarly-situated corporate level executives. All grants made to the executive officers, except
for Mr. Lynch, were within the ranges established for each executive group. Mr. Lynch’s Fiscal Year
2009 annual long-term equity incentive grant was based on competitive market data and was set at the
50th percentile of his primary market group benchmark.

Pay Mix

- We do not have a specific policy with respect to the allocation between fixed versus performance-
based compensation or annual versus long-term compensation. Our mix is largely driven by our practice
of basing each element of compensation on market 50th-percentile practices. However, management
and the MDCC periodically review our mix in relation to market and in relation to our desired
objective of providing the majority of our named executive officers’ compensation through
performance-based components. The following table shows our mix of fixed compensation versus
performance-based compensation and annual versus long-term compensation, based on the data shown
in the Summary Compensation Table. As indicated by the table below, our actual mix is consistent with
our objective to deliver the majority of executive compensation through long-term equity incentives.

Base  Long-Term Non-Equity Other

Salary  Incentives Incentive Compensation
Lynch ........ ... ... ..., 125% 66.4% 18.7% 24%
Cartin............. R 234% 44.6% 27.1% 4.8%
Scott .......... ... ... . 232%  43.5% 26.7% 6.6%
Okamoto . ................... io. 243% 59.2% 3.3% 8.2%
Clarke .. ........ . oo oo, 292% 579% 11.3% 1.6%
Leipold ............. [P 221%  49.4% 22.1% 6.3%

Retirement and Deferred Compensation Benefits

The Company maintains various retirement plans to assist our executive officers with retirement
income planning and increase the attractiveness of employment with the Company. -

The Company provides a defined contribution plan, the Tyco Electronics Retirement Savings and
Investment Plan (“RSIP”), that is available to all eligible United States employees, and a nonqualified
supplemental retirement plan, the Tyco Electronics Supplemental Savings and Retirement Plan
(“SSRP”), in which executive officers may participate.

Under the RSIP, the Company match level is based on years of service, as follows:

Employee Company
Years of Service Contribution*  Contribution®
-0 e e 1% 5%
10-19 e 2% 6%
024 .. e 3% %
2529 L. e e 4% 8%
30 0r MOTE .o v vttt et et 5% 9%

* Represents the percentage of the employee’s compensation, which for purposés of the RSIP, generally includes
base salary and annual incentive awards paid to the employee.
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Company contributions for the named executive officers are shown: in the “All Other
Compensation” column of the Summary Compensation Table and the related table of All Other
Compensation that follow this CD&A. Executive officers are fully vested in Company matching
contributions upon completion of three years of vesting scrvice under the RSIP and S55RP.

Under the SSRP, executive officers may defer up to 50% of their base salary and 100% of their
annual incentive awards. The Company provides matching contributions to the SSRP based on the.
executive officer’s deferred base salary and annual incentive awards at the same.rate such officer.is
eligible to receive matching contributions under the RSIP and on any cash compensation (i.c., base
salary and annual incentive awards) the executive officer carns that year in excess of Internal Revenue
Service limits. This plan was filed as an exhibit to Tyco Elcctronics’ Current Report on Form 8-K filed
with the Securities and.Exchange Commission on November 9, 2007.

All of the Company’s U.S. retirement, deferred compensation, incentive and other executive and
broad-based plans are intended to comply with Section 409A of the Internal Revenuc Code.

‘Mr. Okamoto is eligible to receive retirement benefits under the Directors’ Retirement Allowance
Regulation, a defined benefit pension plan maintained by the Company in Japan. Mr. Okamoto is
entitled to receive either a single lump sum payment or a monthly life annuity commencing at normal
retirement age 60, or upon earlier retirement after age 50 with 15 years of service. Annuities for
retirement after age 60 are payable for Mr. Okamoto’s lifetime, with ten years guaranteed. Annuities
for earlicr retirement are payable for ten years only. The lump sum is based upon the product of
specificd plan factors that vary by service, multiplied by the average annual pensionable salary during
the ten-year period prior to termination. This amount is offset by the employce retirement lump sum
previously received and increased at a specified interest rate. Death benefits will be paid to the survivor
for a ten-year period upon the death of the individual who attained age 50 and 15 years of service.
Projected pension benefits for Mr. Okamoto are disclosed in the Pcnsion Benefits table that follov\is
this CD&A. ' '

Dr. Gromer participated in a defined benefit pension plan established by the Company for the
benefit of its German employees: Dr. Gromer retired from active employment on December 31, 2007 -
and elected to commence his pension benefit on April 1, 2008. Dr. Gromer is receiving a monthly
benefit of 46,183 €, which will be payable for the remainder of his life.

Welfare Benefits

We provide welfare benefits to executive officers on the same basis as all other employees. These
arrangements include medical, dental, life insurance and disability coverage and are offered to all our
eligible U.S.-based employees. The various benefit plans are part of our overall total compensation
offering and are intended to be competitive with peer companies. '

Outside of the United States, the Company provides welfare benefits based on local country
practices.

Perquisites .

The Company’s perquisite program provides for the payment to U.S. executive officers of a cash
allowance equal to an additional ten percent (10%) of base salary, in lieu of perquisites typically
provided by other companies. The executive is permitted 10 apply the allowance as he or she deems
appropriate. Other than the allowance, there are no perquisites provided to U.S. executive officers.

Outside of the United States, perquisite benefits are paid to exccutive officers based on local
country practice. (See the Summary Compensation Table that follows this CD&A for more information
on the perquisite benefits paid to our non-U.S. named executive officers.) '
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Change in Control and Termination Payments

The Company maintains the Tyco Electronics Severance Plan for U.S. Officers and Executives
(“Severance Plan”) and the Tyco Electronics Change in Control Severance Plan for Certain US.
Officers and Executives (“CIC Plan”). These plans were filed as exhibits to Tyco Electronics’ Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 9, 2007. The
Company believes that the maintenance of severance and change in control benefits is appropriate in
order to attract and retain executive talent (given the fact that such benefits are standard benefits
provided by peer companies), to avoid costly and potentially protracted separation negotiations, to
ensure continuity of management in the event of an actual or threatened change in control-and to
protect our executive officers’ investment in the Company. The Committee performed a competitive
analysis of both plans when they were adopted in Fiscai Year 2007 and determined that the benefits -
provided under both plans were standard in the marketplace.

Under the Company’s Severance Plan, benefits are payable to an executive officer only upon an
inveluntary termination of employment for any reason other than cause, permanent disability or death,
and are conditioned upon the executive officer executing a release (including confidentiality, one year
non-competition, two, year non-solicitation and non-disparagement covenants) in favor of the Company.
Under the Severance Plan, an eligible executive will be paid cash severance upon terminaticn of
employment equal to: two times base salary plus two times target bonus for the Chief Executive
Officer, one and one-half times base salary plus one and one-half times target bonus for Section 16
officers who are direct reports to the Chief Executive Officer, and one times base salary plus one times
target bonus for other Section 16 officers and executives classified as Band 1 or Band 2 employees.
Cash severance payments are made in monthly installments. In addition, the terminated executive will
be eligible to receive a pro rata annual incentive payment for the year in which the termination occurs
and continued heaith and welfare benefits for the length of the severance period. The Severance Plan
does not provide any special {reatment for outstanding e¢quity awards. The severance benefits provided
under the Severance Plan, including the cash severance multiples, were set by the Committee at levels
deemed consistent with market practice. “Cause” is defined as substantial failure or refusal to perform
duties and responsibilities of the executive’s job, violation of fiduciary duty, conviction of a felony or
misdemeanor, dishonesty, theft, violation of our rules or policies, or other egregious conduct that has
or could have a serious and detrimental impact on Tyco Electronics and its employees.

Severance benefits for non-U.S. executives will generally be based on local statutory requirements.

The Company’s CIC Plan incorporates a “double trigger” concept before benefits become payable.
In other words, benefits are payable to an executive officer under the CIC Plan only upon an
involuntary termination of employment by the Company or “good reason resignation” that occurs
during a period shortly before and continuing after a change in contro! (a “qualifying termination™)
and are conditioned upon the executive officer executing a release (including confidentiality,
non-competition, non-solicitation and non-disparagement covenants) in favor of the Company. For
purposes of the CIC Plan, “good reason resignation” generally means assignment of duties materially
inconsistent with the executive’s position, a material adverse change in the executive’s position,
Company actions that would cause the executive to violate his or her ethical or professional obligations,
relocation to a place of employment greater than 60 miles from the executive’s current place of
employment, a reduction in the executive’s base salary or annual bonus, a reduction in the aggregate of
the executive’s benefits or failure by the Company to have its obligations under the CIC Plan assumed
by a successor. ' '

No benefits are payable under the CIC Plan if the executive officer is terminated for “cause.”
“Cause” is defined as a violation of fiduciary duty, conviction of a felony or misdemeanor, dishonesty,
theft or other egregious conduct likely to have a materially detrimental impact on Tyco Electronics and
its employees. '
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Under the CIC Plan, an eligible executive will be paid cash severance in the event of a qualifying
termination equal to: three times base salary plus three times target bonus for the Chief Executive
Officer, two times base salary plus two times target bonus for Section 16 officers who are direct reports
to the Chief Executive Officer, and one and one-half times base salary plus one and one-half times
target bonus for other Section 16 officers and Band 1 employees. Cash severance payments will be
made in the form of a lump sum payment. In addition, the terminated executive will be eligible to
receive a pro rata annual incentive payment for the year in which the termination occurs and continued
health and welfare benefits for the length of the severance period (i.e., 36, 24 or 18 months).
Outstanding equity awards will become fully vested in the event of a qualifying termination. Cash
severance and other benefits payable as a result of a qualifying termination will be limited to the .
greater after-tax amount resulting from (i) payment of the full benefits provided under the CIC Plan
and imposition of all taxes, including any applicable excise taxes under Internal Revenue Code
Section 280G, or (ii) payment of the benefits capped at the Section 280G limit with no excise tax
imposed. Benefits payable under the CIC Plan will not be grossed up for the imposition of - .

Section 280G or any other taxes. The severance benefits provided under the CIC Plan, including the
cash severance multiples, were set by the Committee at levels deemed consistent with market practice.

Retention Agreement and Consulting Agreement with Dr. Gromer

On March 22, 2006, Dr. Gromer and Tyco International entered into a retention agreement
providing Dr. Gromer with a monetary benefit equal to two times his annual base salary and target
bonus in exchange for Dr. Gromer’s continued service under his services agreement with Tyco ‘
Electronics Logistics AG for a period of no less than two years following the separation. If .

Dr. Gromer’s employment was terminated before the end of the two-year period for reasons other than
cause or as a result of death or disability, he would still be eligible to receive the retention payment,
However, the actual retention award Dr. Gromer was to receive was to be reduced by any severance,
notice pay, termination indemnity or other similar amount paid by Tyco International or Tyco
Electronics as a result of any termination. :

On April 11, 2007, Tyco International announced that Dr. Gromer would retire from Tyco
Electronics on December 31, 2007. In accordance with the terms of a release and separation agreement
among Tyco Electronics Logistics AG, Tyco Electronics AMP GmbH, Tyco International and
Dr. Gromer dated as of April 10, 2007, Dr. Gromer received a lump sum payment of 3,359,232 €
{(USD 4,939,863 using a January 28, 2008 conversion ratio of 1.46860 USD to 1 € for the amount of the
payment paid out of Germany, and January 29, 2008 conversion ratio of 1.47150 USD to 1 € for the
amount of the payment paid out of Switzerland), representing 24 months’ base salary and target bonus,
in satisfaction of the obligations to Dr. Gromer under the’ March 22, 2006 retention agreement. The
agreement restricts Dr. Gromer from soliciting Tyco Electronics’ customers and employees and from
competing with Tyco Electronics for a period of 24 months after his retirement on December 31, 2007.

On January 15, 2008, the Company entered into a consulting agreement with Dr. Gromer. The
term of the consulting agreement began on January 15, 2008 and ended on December 31, 2008. During
the term of the consulting agreement, Dr. Gromer made himself available to the Chief Executive
Officer on a reasonable basis to provide assistance at client meetings, industry trade shows and other
customer relationship activities. As remuneration for his services, the Company paid Dr. Gromer a
monthly consulting fee equal to 11,340 EUR (USD $17,061). ;

2008 Form 10-K 87




Executive Stock Ownership Requirements

The Company maintains a Share Ownership and Retention Requirement Plan applicable to the
Company’s executive officers, including the named executive officers. Under the plan, the Chief
Executive Officer i§ required to own Tyco Electronics common shares in an amount €qual to five times
base salary, while the direct reports to the Chief Executive Officer are required to own shares in an
amount equal 10 two times base salary. All covered executive officers are required 10 meet the share
ownership requirements within five years of the effective date of the plan, or within five years: of the
officer’s date of employment, if later. The following shares count towards the ownership requirements:
wholly owned shares, shares in stock units or deferred compensation plans, shares in 401(k) plans and
employee stock ownership plans, unvested restricted stock and shares held by immediate family
members that are considered beneficially owned by the executive officer. As of fiscal year end 2008,
five of the six named executive officers met their stock ownership requirements.

Primary Talent Market Peer Group - .
Aerospace & Defense, Electronics & Scientific Equipment, Industrial Manufacturing

3M Co. ' General Dynamics Corp. Parker Hannifin Corp.
Advanced Medical Optics Inc. General Electric Company PerkinElmer Inc.

Advanced Micro Devices Inc. Goodrich Corp. Piexus Corp.

Agilent Technologies Inc. Goodyear Tire & Rubber Co. Plum Creek Timber Company, Inc.
Alliant Techsystemns, Inc. Greif, Inc. Polymer Group, Inc.
AMETEK Inc. Harman International Indusmes Powerwave Technologies, Inc.
A, O. Smith Corporation Harsco Corp. Raytheon Co. :
Applied Materials Inc. Herman Miller . Rockwell Automation Inc.
Ball ' , ) Hexcel Corp. _ Rockwell Collins Inc.
Beckman Coulter Inc. HNI Corp. - ' SAIC, Inc.

Boeing Honeywell International Inc. Schweitzer-Mauduit

Brady Corp. IDEX Corp. Smurfit-Stone Container, Inc.
Calgon Carbon Corporation Ingersoll-Rand . Sonoco Products Co.
Cameron International Corp. International Paper Co. Steelcase Inc.

Carlisle Companies Incorporated ITT—Corporate Tektronix, Inc.

Caterpillar Inc. . KLA-Tencor Corporation Temple-Inland Inc.

Celestica Inc. L-3 Communications Tennant Company
Chesapeake . L. B. Foster Company Terex Corp.

Clarcor Inc. Leggett & Platt, Incorporated Texas Instruments Inc.
CONSTAR International Inc. Lockheed Martin Corp. Textron Inc.

Corning Incorporated "~ Louisiana-Pacific Corp. Thomas & Betts Corp.

Cubic Corp. - Manitowoe Co. Inc, The Timken Company
Curtiss-Wright Corporation MeadWestvaco Corp. Toro Co.

Donaldson Co. Inc. Milacron Inc. Trinity Industries Inc.
Dresser-Rand Group Inc. Millipore Corp. United Rentals, Inc.

Eaton Corp. Mine Safety Appliances Co. United Technolog:es Corp. .
EDO : MSC Industrial Direct Co. Inc. USG Corp.

Emerson Electric Co. Northrop Grumman Corp. Valmont Industries, Inc.
Flowserve Corporation Omnova Solutions Inc. W. W. Grainger, Inc.

Fortune Brands Inc. Owens-Illinois Healthcare Weyerhaeuser Co.

Gehl Company * - : Packaging, Inc. : . ' '

Management Development and Compensation Committee Report

The Management Development and Compensation Committee hag reviewed the Compensation
Discussion and Analysis and discussed that Analysis with management. Based on its review and
discussions with management, the Committee recommended to our Board of Directors that the
Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in the company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended Seprember 26, 2008 and the company's proxy statement for the 2009 Annual
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General Meeting of Shareholders. This report is provided by the following independent directors, who
comprise the committee:

The Maﬁagement Devélupment and Compensation Committee:

Frederic M. Poses, Chair
Robert M. Hernandez
Daniel 1. Phelan

November 18, 2008

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

None of our executive officers serves as a member of the board of directors or compensation-,
committee of any entity that has one or more of its executive officers serving as a member of our *
Management Development and Compensation Committee. In addition, none of our executive officers
serves as a member of the compensation committee of any entity that has one or more of its executive
officers serving as 4 member of our Board of Directors.

Executive Officer Compensation ' S
Summary Compensation Table

The following table summarizes the compensation of the named executive officers for the fiscal
year ended September 26, 2008 (“fiscal 2008”). The named executive officers ar¢ the company’s
principal executive officer, principal financial officer and the five other most highly compensated
executives, including an executive officer who retired on December 31, 2007.

Change in
Pension !
Value and
Non-Equity Nonqualified
Incentive Deferred )
Plan Compen-  All Other
. . Stock Option Compen- sation Compen-

Name and Principal . Salary®  Bonus®. Awards® Awards®  sation'® Earnings  sation® Total

Position Year % ® %) 3% %) $ ($ 5}

(a) B () (d) (e} (N (2 (h) L) )

Thomas J. Lynch, . . . . . 2008 § 950,000 — $1,865,280 $3,191,118 $1,425,000 — 3185097 $7,616,504
Chief Executive 2007 $§ 891,375 — $3.262,895 $4,051,446 § 836,000 —  $258,437 $9,300,153
Officer (PEO) . . . ‘

Terrence R. Curtin, ... 2008 3 490319 — $ 344,197 § 591,837 § 569,109 —  $101,530 32,096,992
EVP & Chief 2007 $ 437,500 $ 325,000 § 358,236 § 451,556 3§ 360,525 —  $103,697 $2,036,514
Financial Officer - . .
{PFO)

Robert A. Scott, ... .. 2008 § 512,404 — § 369487 $ 590,444 § 590,625 —  $146,050 $2,209,010
EVP & General 2007 $ 468750 $ 281,250 $ 553,181 § 577,688 §, 448,521 —  8100,235 $2,429,625
Counsel ) ’

Minoru Okamoto, . ... 2008 § 498926 — § 412,693 $ 801,944 $ 170,621 $ 3702547 §167,421 $2,051,605
President 2007 § 442432 ¢ —-$ 440,006 $ 690,958 §

221478  § 308,607 $153,961 $1,948,835
Communications & " .
Industrial Solutionst!

Alan C. Clatke, . . .. - - 2008 § 488,963 ' — § 511,454 $ 458,500 $ 188651 § 200,8‘116") $ 28,556 $1,676,124
President Network :
Solutions™

Juergen Gromer, . . . .. 2008 $§ 343,260 $4,939,863 — — § 454,116 $1,280,3230 $226,057 $5,963,296
Retired President™ 2007 $1,116,458 — $2,741,436 $5078,816 $ 982483 § 548,060 $ 54,024 $9,973,217
Jane A. Leipold, ... .. 2008 § 394,551 — § 336426 $ 543,383 § 394,144 — $113,082 $1,781,586
SYP Global Human
Resources

(1) Salary and bonus for Messrs. Lynch, Curtin and Scott and Ms. Leipold are paid in U.S. dollars (USD). Mr. Okamoto’s
salary and bonus are paid in Japanese yen (JPY). Mr. Clarke’s salary and bonus are paid in Great Britain pounds (GBP).
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(6)
(M

(8)
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Dr. Gromer’s salary and bonus were paid in euros (EUR), with one-third attributable to his employment status with Tyco
Electronics AMP GmbH in Germany, and two-thirds attributable to his employment status with Tyco Electronics Logistics
AG in Switzerland. Dr. Gromer's salary and bonus are pro-rated reflecting his retirement from Tyco Electronics on
December 31, 2007, To convert compensation values 10 USD, the monthly conversion rates, as determined by the average
monthly income statement foreign currency translation rates used by Tyco Electronics finance, were averaged. For

Dr. Gromer, a threc-month average was used to reflect his period of employment at Tyco Electronics during fiscal 2008.
The following are the conversion rates for the above table.

1 JPY = 0.00930 USD
1 GBP = 1.97561 USD
1 EUR = 1.44593 USD

Amounts shown are not reduced to reflect the named executive officers’ elections, if any, to defer receipt of salary into the
SSRP.

In satisfaction of the obligations to Dr. Gromer under his March 22, 2006 retention agreement, he received a lump sum
payment representing 24 months’ base salary and target bonus. The payment was paid out in accordance with his
employment agreement with Tyco Electronics AMP GmbH in Germany and Tyco Electronics Logistics AG in Switzerland
totaling 3,359,232 EUR (USD $4,939,863 using a January 28, 2008 conversion ratio of 1.46860 for the German portion and
January 29, 2008 conversion ratio of 1.47150 for the Swiss portion on respective dates of payment).

Amounts paid 10 Messrs. Curtin and Scot in 2007 represent dollar amounts outside of Tyco Electronics’ Anmual Incentive
Plan (“AlP”}. Mr. Curtin’s bonus represents a retention payment paid pursuant to the terms of an agreement with Tyco
International entered into in order to retain Mr. Curtin’s services during the transition period and prior to the time at
which he was appointed Chief Financial Officer to recognize the critical role he played in the successful operation of the
Tyeo Electronics business during separation from Tyco International. Mr. Scott’s bonus refiected the work he did on behalf
of Tyco International on the separation. Both bonuses were paid shortly after July 2, 2007, after the completion of the
separation. Amounts paid under the company’s AIP are reported in column (g) as “Non-Equity Incentive Plan
Compensation.”

Represents the compensation costs of restricted stock units {(“RSUs™} for financial reporting purposes for fiscal 2008 under
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123R"), rather than an amount
paid to or realized by the named executive officer. See Note 24 (Share Plans) to the notes to conselidated and combined
financial statements {“Note 247} set forth in Tyco Electronics’ Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the fiscal year ended
September 26, 2008 (the “10-K”) for the assumptions made in determining SFAS 123R values. For grants that vest through
the passage of time, the fair market value of the award at the time of the grant is allocated as an expense over the period
of vesting. The fair value of restricted share awards has been determined based on the market value on the grant date.
There can be no assurance that the SFAS 123R amounts will ever be realized.

Dr. Gromer had no SFAS 123R expense in fiscal 2008 because all awards had previously been expensed as a result of the
accelerated vesting of his outstanding equity awards. However, there was an accounting reversal ($201,090) representing the
performance awards that were forfeited upon his retirement. These awards were already fully vested and expensed in a
prior period, but because the terms and conditions for the above target portion were not met and the awards forfeited, the
expense was reversed. No expense on these performance awards was taken in fiscal 2007 and, therefore, no negative
amount is reflected in the Summary Compensation Table.

Represents the compensation costs of stock options for financial reporting purposes for fiscal 2008 under SFAS 123R,
rather than an amount paid to or realized by the named executive officer, See Note 24 in the 10-K for the assumptions
made in determining SFAS 123R values. There can be no assurance that the SFAS 123R amounts will ever be realized.

Represents amounts earned for fiscal 2008 under the AIP. Amounts shown are not reduced to reflect the named executive
officers’ elections, if any, to defer receipt of awards into the SSRP.

Represents the aggregate change in actuarial present value of the accumulated benefits for Mr. Okamoto, Mr. Clarke,

Dr. Gromer and Ms. Leipold under their pension plans as desciibed in “CD&A—FElements of Compensation—Retirement
and Deferred Compensation Benefits.” Within the change in pension value for Dr. Gromer, a minimal amount, $3,826 in
2008 and $1,105 in 2007, is related to an annuity contract set up with an insurance company. Ms, Leipold had a decrease in
pension value {$7,366) as a result of the increase in the discount rate and the pension plan being frozen, which resulted in
no additional benefit accrual for the year. Messrs. Lynch, Curtin and Scott do not participate in a pension plan.

See the All Other Compensation table below for amounts which include perquisites and company match on employee
contributions to the employee stock purchase plan, the company’s 401(k) plan and nonqualified defined contribution plan,
and other amounts. The amounts reflected in the table for perquisites are the company’s incremental cost. The company
also provides group life, health, hospitalization and medical reimbursement plans which do not discriminate in scope, terms
or operation in favor of officers and are available to all full-time employees.
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All Other Compensation

ESPP Company Total
Insurance Company Contributions All Other
Perquisites Other  Premiums'™® Match™ to DC Plans® Compensation

Name ] "\_’tﬂ % $) $) $) % (3
Thomas J.Lynch ........... 2008 $ 95,000@  $23036 — $3,975 $E:3,8|9 $185,097
Terrence R. Curtin . . ........ 2008 $ 49,044® — - — $52,486 $101,530
Robert A. Scott . ... ........ 2008 $ 51,2509 T — — $4,215 $90,583 $146,050
Minoru Okamoto . ... ....... 2008 £160,2720 - $7,149 — — $167421
AlanC.Clarke ............ 2008 $ 28,5561 —_ — —_ — $ 28,556
Juergen W. Gromer . . ... .... 2008 $226,057 — — — — $226,057
Janc A Leipold . . .. ..... ... 2008 $ 39463®  $1,0600 — — $72,559 $113,082

(a) Amounts reflect a cash perquisite allowance under the executive flexible perquisites allowznce program which provides
cxecutives a cash allowance of 10%.

(b) Qutside of the United States, Tyco Electronics provides a company car (o certain senior executives. Mr. Okamoto's
perquisites included $36,173, which reflects the incremental cost to the company of the Icase value of a company car
along with any associated taxes or maintenance costs. The amounts alse included a housing allowance of $123,904 and
the cost of a club membership totaling $195, all consistent with Japanese practice.

(c) Mr. Clarke’s perquisites included $22,024, which reflects the incremental cost to the company of the lease value of a
company car along with associated taxes or maintenance costs. In addition, Mr. Clarke was provided with a car
altowance of §1,395 for any additional miscellaneous costs and $5,137 in tax planning assistance.

(d) For 2008, Dr. Gromer’s perquisites included $205,973 which reflects the accrued vacation payment he received for
unused vacation days at the time of his retirement. The payment was made in accordance with his employment
agreement, using a January 28, 2008 conversion ratio of 1.46860 for the German portion and January 29, 2008
conversion ratio of 1.47150 for the Swiss portion on respective dates of payment. For 2008, this amount also included
$8,846 relating to the incremental cost to the company of the tease value of a company car along with associated taxes
or maintenance costs. Dr. Gromer was occasionally provided with a driver and the cost of the driver, $2,163, is
included in the amount shown along with some misceltaneous service charges. The fuel costs attributable to
Dr. Gromer's personal use of the company car are estimated to be §945. Dr. Gromer also received $8,130 in tax
planning assistance.

(¢) Represents husiness expense income related to spousal travel for airfure and meal costs. Mr. Lynch was traveling for
business and his wifc accompanied him on the trip; these are the costs associated with her travel. There was no
additional incremental cost to the company regarding usage of the corporate aircraft, as costs reflect the commercial
flight ticket Mrs. Lynch took back home. The company aircraft was only used by Mr. Lynch for company business
during fiscal 2008.

(f) Majority represcnts relocation costs paid out in 2008 10 Ms. Leipold. She was previously located in Harrisburg, PA but
moved to the new Tyco Electronics’ U.S. corporate headquarters in Berwyn, PA as a result of the company’s separation
from Tyco International.

(g) The amount for Mr. Okamote reflects the combination of premiums paid for ordinary accident and income indemnity
insurance. '

(h) Represents the company matching contribution made under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

(i) Reflects contributions made on behalf of the named executive officers under Tyco Electronics’ qualified defined

contribution plan and accruals on behalf of the named executive officers under the SSRP (also a defined contribution
ptan), as follows:

Company
Matching Company
Contribution Contribution

Name Year  (Qualified Plan)  (Non-Qualified Plan)
M LYICh oo oot 2008 $11,500 §72,319
ML CUTIR . v v v e e e et e e e e e 2008 $ 7,750 $44,736
M SCOtl . . . e e 2008 $11,500 $79,085
Ms. Leipold ... ... i 2008 $17,714 $54,845
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Grants of Plan-Based Awards in Fiscal 2008

The following table discloses potential payouts under the company’s non-equity and equity
incentive plans. There were no equity awards granted during fiscal 2008. The founder’s grant awarded
in fiscal 2007 at separation was granted at a level above the standard long-term annual incentive award
to establish a meaningful ownership stake in the newly separated company and create strong
management alignment with our shareholders’ interests. On an annual basis beginning in fiscal 2009,
our long-term annual incentive award will be granted in the first quarter of each fiscal year.

The information in the table below shows estimated possible payouts under the company’s AIP for
fiscal 2008 at different performance levels. The actual payouts under the AIP for fiscal 2008 are shown
in the Summary Compensation Table.

Estimated Possible Payouts Under
Non-Equity Incentive Plan Awards'"

Threshold Target Maximum

Name ' ’ %) $) (%)

@ - | S b) (© @

Thomas J. Lynch ............... ........... s 475,000 950,000 1,900,000
Terrence R. Curtin . ... . o e e 189,703 379406 758,813
Robert A, Scott .. ... ... e 196,875 393,750 787.500
Minoru Okamoto® . ... ... . . . e 190,766 381,533 763,005
Alan C. Clarke®® .. .......... e e e 187,806 375,613 751,226
Juergen W, Gromer®@@, ... .. L. e 151,788 303,576 607,152
Jane AL Leipold . ... .. 131,381 262,763 525,525

(1) The “Threshold” column represents the minimum amount payable when threshold performance is met. The “Target” |
column represents the amount payable if the specified performance targets are reached. The “Maximum” column
represents the maximum amount payable under the plan. |

(2) In calculating estimated possible payouts under non-cquity incentive plan award numbers, the foreign currency translation |
rates were used as described in footnote (1) to the Summary Compensation Table.

(3) Dr. Gromer's numbers are pro-rated reflecting his retirement from Tyeo ‘Electronics on December 31, 2007,

Outstanding Equity Awards at 2008 Fiscal Year-End

The following table shows the number of Tyco Electronics shares covered by exercisable and
unexercisable options and unvested RSUs held by the company’s named executive officers on
September 26, 2008. Each equity grant is shown separately for each named executive officer. The
vesting scheduie for each grant is shown.following the table, based on the option or stock award grant
date.

Option Awards Stock Awards

Market
Number Value
of Shares of Shares
or Units  or Units

Number of
Securities Underlyin - .or Stock of Stock
Unexercised 0|:|ti)(,msg gsle):lc?ge Option 1 hnl:r:'lave Thagu;lnve
Exercisable Unexercisable®”  Price Expiration Vested  Vested®
Name Grant (#) #) ($) Date Grant (#) (6:3]
(a) Date (b) (c) (e) (f Date (g) (h}
Thomas J. Lynch . . .. ...... 09727/04 359,007 0 $34.48 0926014
03/10/05 173,015 0 $41.38 03109115
11/22/05 80,741 40,370 83352 1122115 11/22/05 41,430 §1,134,768
11/21/06 54,067 162,202 $35.03 11720016 11/21/06 70,962  $1,943,649
07/02/07 131,937 395,813 $39.97 070117 07/02/07 57,194  $1,566,544
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Name
(a)

Terrence R. Curtin

Robert A. Scott . .

Minoru Okamoto .

Alan C. Clarke . . .

Juergen W, Gromer .

Option Awards

Stock Awards

Market
Number Value
of Shng‘es ol'SlIJmFles
or
Number of of Stock  of Stock
Securities Underlying Option That Have That Have
Unexercised Options Exercise  Option Not Not
. Exercisable Unexercisable!”  Price  Expiration Vested?  Vested?
Grant #y #) %) Date Grant (#) %)
Date (b) (c) (e) o Date (g) (h)
03/26/01 17,301 0 $51.75 0325111
07/12/01 17,301 0 $58.38 07/11/11
10/01/01 17,301 0 $51.67 09/30/11
03/26/04 14,360 0 $32.13 03725714
(3/10/05 21,626 0 $41.38  03/09/15
11/22/05 11,534 5,767 $33.52 121115 11/22/05 5917 $ 162,067
1121406 11,894 35,685 $35.03 11/20/16  11/21/06 15,610  § 427,558
07/02/07 26,387 79,163 $39.97 070117 07/02/07 11,440 3 313,342
05/03/04 22,387 0 $3225  05/0214
03/10/05 7,462 0 $41.38  03/09/15
11/22/05 3,863 1,932 $33.52 112115 1122005 3100 3 84,936
- 01/30/06 1,000 3§ 27,390
11721406 10,813 32,440 33503 1172016 1/21/06 14,191 § 388,691
07/02/07 26,387 79,163 $39.97  07/01/17 07/02/07 11,440 § 313,342
04/05/99 25,952 ¢ $41.80  04/04/09 -
10/18/99 25,952 0 $47.62  10/17/09
01/10/00 6,488 0 $42.08 01/G9/10
10/03/00 31,142 0 $58.57  10/02/10
07112101 31,142 0 $58.38 07711411
10/01/01 34,603 0 $51.67  09/30/11
02/05/02 34,603 ° 0 $27.55  02/04/12
03/26/04 35,814 0 $32.13 03725114
03/10/05 35,814 0 $41.38  03/09/15 .
11/22/05 12,111 6,055 $33.52 1121415 11/22/05 6,278 § 171,954
11/21/06 7,439 22,319 $35.03  11720/16 1172106 9,755 § 267,189
07/02407 21,987 65,963 $39.97  0701/17 0T0207 9,530 § 261,027
08/12/99 17,301 0 $56.18  08/11/09
01/10/00 8,650 0 $42.08  01/09/10
04/18/00 17,301 0 $50.43  04/17/10
10/03/00 750 0 $58.57 10/03/10
10/03/00 16,550 0 $58.57  10/02/10
11/22/05 12,695  § 347,716
11/21/06 10,380 31,142 $3503 11720116 1172106 13,659 3 374,120
07/02/07 26,387 79,163 $39.97 0701717 07/0207 11440 § 313,342
03/10/05 216,269 0 $41.38  12/31/10
11/22/05 139,277 0 $33.52 12/31/10
11/21/06 151,388 0 $35.03 12/31/10
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Option Awards Stock Awards

Market
Number Value
of Shares of Shares

Number of . or Units  or Units
iy A of Stock  of Stock
. Sije;:;xisseltli“gﬁ{(::sg Optiqn ) That Have That Have
- Exercise  Option Not Not
Exercisable Unexercisable!® Price Expiration Vested"  Vested®
Name Grant #) (#) (£)] Date Grant (#) (%)
(a) Date (b} {¢) (e} 15 Date (g} (h)
Jane A. Leipold . ...... ... 10/03/00 3,460 0 $58.57  10/02/10
03/26/01 4,325 0 $51.75 03025711
07/12/01 6,920 0 §58.38  07/mim
10/01/01 17,301 0 $51.67  09730/11
03/26/04 8,650 0 33213  03/25/14
03/10/05 30,277 0 $4138  03/09/15
11/22/05 7,785 7,786 $33.52 112115 1172205 8,028 § 219,887
11/21/06 9,732 29,196 $35.03 1120/16 11221006 12,772 § 349,825
07/02/07 21,987 65,963 $39.97  07/01/17 07/02/07 9,530 $ 261,027
(1} Option and stock vesting schedule:
Grant Date Option Vesting Schedule Restricted Stock Awards Vesting Schedule
1122005 . ... Vi vesting each year sta'rting on 1* anniversary 100% after three years from grant date
01/30/06 .... nfa ‘ 1009 after three years from grant date
11/21/06 . ... Vi vesting each year starting on 1* anniversary ¥4 vesting each year starting on
. 2™ anniversary
07/02/07 . ... Y vesting each year starting on 1¥ anniversary Y4 vesting each year starting on

39 anniversary

(2) Value represents the market value of Tyco Electronics common shares (based on the closing price of $27.39 per share on
September 26, 2008).

Option Exércises and Stock Vested in Fiscal 2008

The following table sets forth certain information regarding Tyco Electronics options and stock
awards exercised and vested, respectively, during fiscal 2008 for the named executive officers.

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number Number
' of Shares Value of Shares Value
Acquired Realized Acguired Realized
on Exercise on Exercise  on Vesting  on Vesting®"

Name : #) (%) (#) %
() : ' (b) () (d) (e}
Thomas J.Lynch .........coovviieeennnnnnnn. — — 8,750 § 282,494
Terrence R.Curtin . ... ... .... [ — —_ 1,145 § 36,966
Robert A, Scott . . ........... e - — 1,375 § 44392
Minoru OQkamoto .................... e — — 1,895 § 61,180
AlanC. Clarke ... ... .. ... ... ... ... ... .... — — 6,035 § 194840
Juergen W. Gromer ... ... ... i — — 102,219  $3,811,235
Jane AL Leipold . ... .. ool —_ — 1602 § sS1721

(1) We computed the aggregate dollar amount realized upon vesting by multiplying the number of units vested by the market
value of the underlying shares on the vesting date.
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Pension Benefits for Fiscal 2008

The following table provides details regarding the present value of accumulated benefits under the
plans described in “CD&A—Elements of Compensation—Retirement and Deferred Compensation
Benefits” for the named executive officers in fiscal 2008.

Numbe;- Present Payments
of Years Value of During
Credited Accumulated  Last Fiscal
. Service® Benefit™ Year
Name™" Plan Name (#) ($) (%)
(a) : (b) (¢) (d) (e
Minoru Okamoto . .. ... .... AMP Japan Plan for Directors . 1975 § 2,027,868 —
Alan C Clarke............ Tyco Electronics UK Pension
Scheme 271 $ 2,030,704 —
Juergen W. Gromer ........ Tyco Electronics—AMP Germany
) (Pension Plan) ' 300 $15,765,948% $430,527C)
Jane A. Leipold . .......... Tyco Electronics Pension Plan—
Part 11 AMP ' 170 § 65,605 —

{1) Messrs. Lynch, Curtin and Scott do not participate in any pension plan sponsored by Tyco Electronics.

{2) In calculating Mr. Okamoto’s pension bencfit, all years of service were taken into account since his latest date of
re-cmployment in 1988 with 11.4 years serving as a director. However, Mr. Okamoto was paid 4 lump sum settlement (JPY -
14,809,520} of the pension accrued prior to becoming a director of the Japanese subsidiary in 1997. The value of that lump
sum settlement is offset against the pension accrued during his service as a director, and the amount shown in the table
reflects the pension benefit with the offset. Credited service for Dr. Gromer takes into sccount all years of service with
Tyco Electronics and its predecessors and an additionat five years of service credited with a prior employer, as agreed when
he joined Tyco Electronics in 1983. o ,

{(3) The present value of accumulated benefit amounts have been measured as of August 31, 2008 with the exception of
Df. Gromer, whose measurement date of December 31, 2007 reflects his retirement date from Tyco Electronics; and are
based on a number of assumptions, including: ' ’

« A discount rate of 2.5% was used for Mr. Okamoto; 6.0% was used fof Mr. Clarke and Dr. Gromer; and 7.|05%
was used for Ms. Leipold; :

+ Mortality rates based on standard actuarial tables; and
« No retirements prior to normal retirement age or withdrawals for disability or otherwise prior to retirement.

With respect 1o; Mr. Okamoto, the dollar amount shown has been converted from JPY using a conversion rate of |

0.009 USD to 1 JPY; Mr. Clarke, the dellar amount shown has been converted from GBP using a cofiversion rate of

1.847 USD to } GBP; and Dr. Gromer, the dollar amount shown has been converted from EUR using a conversion ratio of

1.467 USD to 1 EUR. ' ' .

{(4) The prescnt value of accumulated henefit for Dr. Gromer assumes that he will receive his retirement benefits in the form,
of a straight life annuity. He is required to pay medical and long-term ¢are insurance, as well as taxes from the benefit
provided under the pension benefits plan. Additionally, $71,950 of Lhe present value of accumulated venefit for.Dr. Gromer
is payable by an insurance company. - ' '

(5) Dr. Gromer began to receive monthly payments from his accumulated pension benefit in April 2008. All payments were in
euros. A majority of the payments were paid through Tyeo Electronics AMP GmbH in Germany, with §1,957 being paid out
through the insurance company related to the annuity contract. In converting the amounts to USD, a six-month average of
the monthly income statement forcign currency translation rates was used to reflect the period in which payments were
received. ' ‘ ’ :
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Nonqualified Deferred Compensation for Fiscal 2008

The following table discloses contributions, earnings and balances to each of the named executive
officers in the table under the SSRP (Supplemental Savings and Retirement Plan) that provides for
compensation deferral on a non-tax-qualified basis. See “CD&A—Elements of Compensation—
Retirement and Deferred Compensation Benefits” for information regarding the plan. Pursuant to the
SSRP, executive officers may defer up to 50% of their base salary and 100% of their annual bonus. We
provide matching contributions based on the executive’s deferred base salary and bonus the executive
earns in excess of the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a)(17) timit ($230,000 in 2008) as follows: $5
for every $1 the executive officer contributes up to the first 1% of the executive officer’s eligible pay
or, if the executive officer is credited with more than ten years of service, $6 for every $1 the executive
officer contributes up to the first 2% of the executive officer’s eligible pay. The SSRP is offered only in
the U.S., so that Mr. Okamoto, Mr. Clarke and Dr. Gromer did not participate in the SSRP, nor did
they have any deferred compensation for fiscal 2008.

Executive Registrant Aggregate Aggregate Aggregate
Contributions  Contributions Earnings Withdrawals/ Balance
in Last FY!"  in Last FY®”  in Last FY®"  Distributions™ at Last FYE
Name # ) (%) 3) %
(a) (b) (¢} (d) (e} (f
Thomas J. Lynch ... ........ $237,500  $72319  $(234,828) — $1,265,104
Terrence R. Curtin . .. ... ... $280,470 $44.736 $(121,739) $32,460 $ 4847259.
Robert A. Scott. ... .. ...... $127,695 $79,085 $ (83,502) — $ 361,159
Jane A. Leipold ........... $ 91,612 $54,845 $ (62,846) — $ 258,707

(¢}, The amounts shown in column (b) represent deferrals of cash and bonuses by the named exccutive officers under the SSRP,
the amounts of which are included in the Summary Compensation Table in the Salary 6r Non-Equity Incentive Plan
Compensation column, as applicable.

(2) The amounts shown in column '(c) represcnt matching contributions by the company, the amounts of which are incleded in
the Summary Compensation Table in the All Other Compensation column.

(3) No portion of these earnings shown in column (d) were included in the Summary Compensation Table because the SSRP
does not provide for “above-market” or preferential earnings as defined in applicable Securities and Exchange Commission
rules,

(4) The. distribution shown for Mr. Curtin is from a legacy non-qualified deferred compensation plan and was made pursuant
to a distribution clection filed by Mr. Curtin at the time that the compensation was deferred.

Termination and Change in Control Payments

' The table below outtines thie potential payments to our Chief Executive Officer and other named
executive officers upon the occurrence of certain termination triggering events. For the purpose of the
table, below are definitions generally applicable for the various types of terminations under the Tyco
Electronics Severance Plan for U.S. Officers and Executives (referred to herein as the “Severance
Plan”) and/or'the Tyco Eléctronics Change in Control Severance Plan for Certain U.S. Officers and
Executives (referred to herein as the “CIC Plan”). See “CD&A—Elements of Compensation—Change
in Control and Termination Payments” for information regarding the terms of the plans.

* “Voluntary Resignation” means any retirement or termination of employment that is not initiated
“by the company or any subsidiary other than a Good Reason Resignation (defined beiow).

* “Good Reason Resignation” means any retirement or termination of employment by a participant
that is not initiated by the company or any subsidiary and that is caused by any one or more of
the following events which occurs during the period beginning 60 days prior to the date of a
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Change in Control (defined below) and ending two years after the date of such Change in
Control:

(1) without the participant’s written consent, the company (a) assigns or causes to be assigned
to the participant any duties inconsistent in any material respect with his or her position
as in effect immediately prior to the Change in Control, (b) makes or causes to be made
any material adverse change in the participant’s position (including titles and reporting
relationships and level), authority, duties or responsibilities, or (c) takes or causes to be
taken any other action which, in the reasonable judgment of the participant, would cause
him or her to violate his or her ethical or professional obligations (after written notice of
such judgment has been provided by the participant to the Management Development
and Compensation Committee and the company has been given a 15-day period within
which to cure such action), or which results in a significant diminution in such position,
authority, duties or responsibilities;

2) without the participant’s written consent, the participant’s being required 10 relocate 1o a
! P P parucip § requurec 1o
principal place of employment more than 60 miles from his or her existing principal place
of employment;

(3) without the participant’s written consent, the company (a) reduces the participant’s base
salary or annual bonus, or (b) reduces the participant’s retirement, welfare, stock
incentive, perquisite and other benefits, taken as a whole; or

(4) the company fails to obtain a satisfactory agreement from any successor to assume and
agree to perform the company’s obligations to the participant under the CIC Plan.

* “Involuntary Termination” means a termination of the participant initiated by the company or a
subsidiary for any reason other than Cause (defined below), Permanent Disability (defined
‘below) or death, subject to the conditions specified in the applicable plan.

* “Cause” means any misconduct identified as a ground for termination in company policy or
other written policies or procedures, including among other things, misconduct, dishonesty,
criminal activity, or egregious conduct that has or could have a serious and detrimental impact
on the company and its employees.

» “Permanent Disability” means that a participant has a permanent and total incapacity from
engaging in any employment for the employer for physical or mental reasons. A “Permanent
Disability” will be deemed to exist if the participant meets the requirements for disability’
benefits under the employer’s long-term disability plan or under the requirements for disability
benefits under the U.S. social security laws {or similar laws outside the United States, if the
participant is employed in that jurisdiction) then in effect, or if the participant is designated with
an inactive employment status at the end of a disability or medical leave.

+ “Change in Control” means any of the following events:

(1) any “person” (as defined in Section 13(d) and 14(d) of the Exchange Act), excluding for
this purpose, (i) the company or any subsidiary company (wherever incorporated) of the
company as defined by Section 86 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, or (ii) any
employee benefit plan of the company or any such subsidiary company (or any person or
entity organized, appointed or established by the company for or pursuant to the terms of
any such plan that acquires beneficial ownership of voting securities of the company), is
or becomes the “beneficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act)
directly or indirectly of securities of the company representing more than 30 percent of
the combined voting power of the company’s then outstanding securities; provided,
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)

4)

- however, that no Change in Control will be deemed to have occurred as a result of a

change in ownership percentage resulting solely from an acquisition of securities by the
company;

persons who, as of July 1, 2007 (the “effective date™), constitute the Board (the
“Incumbent Directors™) cease for any reason (including without limitation, as a result of
a tender offer, proxy contest, merger or similar transaction) to constitute at least a
majority thereof, provided that any person becoming a director of the company
subsequent to the effective date shall be considered an Incumbent Director if such
person’s election or nomination for election was approved by a vote of at least 50 percent
of the Incumbent Directors; but provided further, that any such person whose initial
assumption of office is in connection with an actual or threatened proxy contest relating
to the election of members of the Board or other actual or threatened solicitation of
proxies or consents by or on behalf of a “person” (as defired in Section 13(d) and 14(d)
of the Exchange Act) other than the Board, including by reason of agreement intended to

avoid or settle any such actual or threatened contest or solicitation, shall not be -

considered an Incumbent Director;

consummation of a reorganization, merger or consolidation or sale or other disposition of
at least 80 percent of the assets of the company (a “Business Combination™), in each
case, unless, following such Business Combination, all or substantially alf of the
individuals and entities who were the beneficial owners of outstanding voting securities of
the company immediately prior to such Business Combination beneficially own directly or
indirectly more than 50 percent of the combined voting power of the then outstanding
voting securitics entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, as the case may be,
of the company resulting from such Business Combination (including, without limitation,

. a company which, as a result of such transaction, owns the company or all or substantially

all of the company’s assets either directly or through one or more subsidiary companies

(wherever incorporated) of the company as defined by Section 86 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda) in substantially the same proportions as their ownership, immediately
prior to such Business Combination, of the outstanding voting securities of the company;
or - '

approval by the stockholders of the company of a complete liquidation ;:)r dissolution of
the Company. '

* “Change in Control Termination” means 2 participant’s Involuntary Termination or Good Reason
Resignation that occurs during the period beginning 60 days prior to the date of a Change in
Control and ending two years after the date of such Change in Control.

No named executive officer is entitled to a payment in connection with an Involuntary
Termination for Cause. Only Mr. Okamoto is entitled to a payment in connection with a
voluntary termination for retirement.
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Executive Benefits and Payments Upon Termination

Thomas J. Lynch
Compensation

Severance!D ... e
Short-Term Incentive® . ... ... .. ... ... ... .....

Long-Term Incentives
Stock Options (Unvested and Accelerated or

Continued Vesting)® . ....................

Restricted Stock Units {(Unvested and Accelerated

or Continued Vesting)® .. ... ... ... .......

Benefits and Perquisites®™®

Health and Welfare Benefits Continuation®™ . .. ... ..
Qutplacement® .. ... ... ... il

Terrence R. Curtin
Compensation

SeveranceY) . ... ...
Short-Term Incentive® . .. .. ... ... ... .. . . ...

Long-Term Incentives
Stock Options (Unvested and Accelerated or

Continued Vesting)® . ........ ... ... ... ..

Restricted Stock Units (Unvested and Accelerated

or Continued Vesting)® . ............. ... ..

Benefits and Perquisites'® -

Health and Welfare Benefits Continuation® . . ... ...
Outplacement® . ... ... .. ... ... ... . ..

Robert A. Scott
Compensation

Severancetl . ...
Short-Term Incentive® . . ....... ... ... ... .....

Long-Term Incentives
Stock Options (Unvested and Accelerated or

Continued Vesting)® . ..... ... ... .........

Restricted Stock Units (Unvested and Accelerated

or Continued Vesting)® .. .................

Benefits and Perquisites®

Health and Welfare Benefits Continuation® . ... .. ..
Outplacement® .. .. ... ... ... ... ... e

Total and

Permanent Involuntary Iavoluntary

Disability, Termination—  Termination—
Death or Not For Change
Retirement'® Cause in Control

$3,800,060  $5,700,000

$ 950,000 $ 950,000

$ 0 $ 0

$4,644,961 $4.644 961

$ 22000 . § 33,000

: +$ 30,000

$1,327,922  $1,770,563

$ 379406 § 379,406

$ 0 $ 0

$ 902,966 $ 902,966

$ 16,500 $ 22,000

$ 12,000

$1,378,125 $l‘,837,500

$ 393,750 - § 393,750

$ 0 3 0

$ 814,359 $ 814,359

§ 16500 $- 22,000

$ 12,000
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Executive Benefits and Payments Upon Termination

Minoru Okamoto
Compensation

Severance™ . ... ...

Long-Term Incentives
Stock Options (Unvested and Accelerated or

Continued Vesting)® . ....................

Restricted Stock Units (Unvested and Accelerated

or Continued Vesting)® ... .. ........ .. ... .

Benefits and Perquisitest®

Health and Welfare Benefits Continuation®}. . . .. ...
Outplacement® , ... ... ... ... ... ... .. .....
Pension Value!™ . .. ... ... .. ...

Alan C. Clarke
Compensation

Severance!™ . ... .. ... e

Long-Term Incentives
Stock Options (Unvested and Accelerated or

Continued Vesting)®™® .. ... .............

Restricted Stock Units (Unvested and Accelerated

or Continued Vesting)® . . .........0.......

Benefits and Perquisitest®

Health and Welfare Benefits Continuation®™ . .. .. ...
Outplacement® ... ... .. ... ... oL

Jane A. Leipeold
Compensation

Severance'D . . L

Long-Term Incentives
Stock Options (Unvested and Accelerated or

Continued Vesting)® .. ... ... ... .... '

Restricted Stock Units (Unvested and Accelerated

or Continued Vesting)® . .. ... ... ... ......

Benefits and Perquisites®

Health and Welfare Benefits Continuation® . , . ... ..
Outplacement®™ .. ... .. ... ... ... ... .........

Total and

Permanent Involuatary Involuntary

Disability, Termination—  Termination—
Death or Not For Change
Retirement® Cavse in Control

§ 845,164 § 845,164

$ 0 $ 0
§ 700,171 $ 700,171

$ 123,886 § 123,386

" $ 308195 $ 308,195

$ 0 $ 0

$1,035,178 $1,035,178

$1,000,519  $1,334,025

$ 262,763  § 262,763

$ 0 $ 0

$ 830,739 $ 830,739

§ 16,500 $ 22,000

$ 12,000

(1) Severance is calculated as follows under Lnvoluntary Termination—Not for Cause for U.S.-based executives:
Mr. Lynch—two times base salary plus two times bonus, Messrs. Curtin and Scott and Ms. Leipold—one and one-half
times base salary plus one and one-half times bonus; and as follows under Involuntary Termination—Change in Control
for U.S.-based executives: Mr. Lynch—three times base salary plus three times bonus, Messrs. Curtin and Scott and
Ms. Leipold—two times base salary plus two times bonus. If the “parachute payment” (severance plus value of
accelerated equity) is greater than three times the average W-2 reported compensation for the preceding five years,
then an “excise tax” is imposed on the portion of the parachute payment that exceeds the average W-2 reported
compensation for the preceding years. In this case, the participant will receive the greater of (i) payment of the full
benefits provided under the CIC Plan and imposition of all taxes, mchading any applicable excise taxes under Internal
Revenue Code Section 280G, or (ii) payment of the benefits capped at the Section 280G limit with no excise tax
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imposed. Under the CIC Plan, benefits payable thereander will not be grossed up for the imposition of Internal
Revenue Code Section 280G or any other taxes. Mr. Okamoto and Mr. Clarke are not covered by the Scverance Plan
or CIC Plan; the termination benefits payable are based on local requirements. Based on our understanding of
Japancsc law, Mr. Okamoto would be entitled to receive his normal compensation (base salary and allowance) for the
remaining term of his service contract. On September 26, 2008, Mr. Okamoto had fifteen months remaining in his
then-current directorship. Mr.Clarke is entitled to a redundancy payment based on local statutory requirements, three
weeks of base salary. per every year of service as well as a notice pay amount. The total maximum redundancy payment
cannot exceed 104 weeks’ salary and the notice pay amount cannot excecd twelve weeks' salary. Mr. Clarke currently .

" has 27 years of service with the company; however, only eight years of service are included in the calculation because
of the lump sum settlement Mr. Clarke received in 2000 related to the acquisition of Raychem by Tyco International in
1999. Dr. Gromer retired on December 31, 2007, and is no longer eligible for termination payments.

(2) Assumes the effective date of termination is September 26, 2008 and that the pro rata payment under the 2008 AIP is
equal to 12/12ths of the target award. .

(3) Assumes the effective date of termination is September 26, 2008 and the price per Tyco Electronics common shire on
the date of terminalion equals $27.39. Under Involuntary Termination—Change in Control, all outstanding stock.
options that are vested and exercisable as of the termination date, as well as the options that vest 4s a result of the
acceleration, will be cxercisable for the greater of the period specified in the option agrecment or twelve months from
the termination date. In no event, however, will an option be exercisable beyond its original expiration date. Amounts
disclosed for stock options only reflect options that are in-the-money as of September 26, 2008. Restricted stock units
and options granted on July 2, 2007 will be forfeited if the retirement date is prior to July 2, 2009. '

{4) Payments associated with benefits and perquisites are limited to the items listed. No other benefits or perquisite.
continuation occurs under the termination scenarios listed.

{5) Health and welfare benefits continuation is calculated as follows under Involuntary Termination—Not for Cause:
Mr. Lynch—24 months, Messrs. Curtin and Scott and Ms. Leipold—18 months; and as follows under Involuntary
Termination—Change in Control: Mr, Lynch—36 months, Messrs. Curtin and Scott and Ms. Leipold—24 months.
Annual amount is an approximation. In the event that provision of any of the benefits would adversely affect the tax
status of the applicable plan or benefits, the company, in its sole discretion, may elect to pay to the participant cash in
lieu of such coverage in an amount equal to the company’s premium or average cost of providing such coverage.

(6) Outplacement is calculated as the cost of services for the participant for a period of twelve months from the
participant’s termination date under Involuntary Termination—Change in Control. The company offers twelve month
coverage totaling $30,000 for the Chief Executive Officer and provides $12,000 for senior exccutives. The company has
the right and sole diseretion to pay outplacement services under Involuntary Termination—Not for Cause, but is not
required to provide such benefits.

(7) Mr. Okamoto has termination provisions within his pension plan. In the event of an involuntary termination or change
in control (lermination before attainment of age 60), he will receive an enhanced pension benefit. The amount shown .
in the table is the value of the enhancement. Each year the value of this enhancement is decreasing because he is
closer to his attainment of age 6().

8) Assumes that all performance based units that were converted to time based awards at separation will have fully vested
) P p ly
prior to any officer's retirement and that as a result no awards will be forfeited.

Compensation of Non-Employee Direétors

Compensation of each director who is not a salaried employee of Tyco Electronics is set at
$200,000 per annum, payable $80,000 in cash and $120,000 in Tyco Electronics deferred stock units
(“DSUs"). The chair of the Audit Committee receives an additional $25,000 cash retainer and the
chairs of the Management Development and Compensation Committee and Nominating, Governance
and Compliance Committee receive an additional $15,000 cash retainer. The chairman of the Board
receives an additional $100,000 cash retainer. Directors who are employees of Tyco Electronics or its
subsidiaries do not receive any compensation for their services as directors. In fiscal 2009, Audit
Committee members each will receive an additional $10,000 in cash compensation.

Each DSU will vest immediately upon grant, and wilt be paid in common shares within 30 days
following a non-employee director’s termination (subject to the option of deferring the payout as
described below). Dividend equivalents or additional DSUs are credited to a non-employee director’s
DSU account when dividends are paid on our common shares.
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Upon his retirement from the company on December 31, 2007, Dr. Gromer became a
non-employee director. As a result, on January 15, 2008, the Board awarded to Dr. Gromer a
Founders’ Grant of 4,800 DSUs. Additionally, as described in the “CD&A—Elements of
Compensation—Retention Agreement and Consulting Agreement with Dr. Gromer,” on January 15,
2008, the company and Dr. Gromer entered into a consulting agreement whereby the company. paid
Dr. Gromer a monthly consulting fee equal to 11,340 EUR (USD $17,061, using an annual average of
the monthly income statement foreign currency translation rates of 1.50454). The consulting agreement
ended on December 31, 2008,

~ Under the Tyco Electronics Director Deferred Compensation Plan, each non-employee director
may make an election to defer some or all of his or her cash remuneration for that year.
Non-employee directors also may elect to defer payout of their DSUs to a date later than termination.
Each non-employee director may elect to receive a distribution of the amounts credited to his or her
deferred compensation account either in a lump sum cash payment or in installments not to exceed ten
years with payment made (or commencing) at termination of service or at a fixed date selected by the
non-employee director. Two non-employee directors elected to defer their compensation for calendar
year 2008. As a result of recent tax legislation changes, no deferral elections will be made in calendar
year 2009.

Tyco Electronics reimburses its board members for expenses incurred in attending board and
committee meetings or performing other services for the company in their capacities as directors. Such
expenses include food, lodging and transportation.

The following table discloses the cash and equity awards paid to each of the company’s
non-management directors during the fiscal year ended September 26, 2008.

Fees Earned or Stock Option

' Paid in Cash" Awards®  Awards Total
Name (43)] (5) ) t.3)
(a) . . (b} (c) @ (h)
Pierre R Brondeau . .~ . ..., . ... e o $ 80,000 — — § 80,000
Ram Charan ............. e $ 80,000 — —  $ 80,000
Robert M. Hernandez . . ... .......... .. ... ...... $ 80,000 — — % 80,000
Juergen Gromer . . ... L e $ 60,000 $159,216 — $219,216
Daniel J.Phelan . .. ... ... ... . .. ... . $ 80,000 — — $ 80,000
Frederic M. POSES . v v v oo e e et e e e e e e e $195,000 — — $195,000
Lawrence S. Smith .. ......... ... .. ... ... ...... $ 80,000 — — §$ 80,000
Paula A. Sneed. . ... ... R, $ 80,000 . — .— % 80,000
David BSteiner ... ... . i $ 95,000 ; — —  § 95000
Sandra S. Wijnberg . . ... ... .. oo $105,000 — —  $105,000

(1) The amounts shown in column (b} represent the amount of cash compensation carned in fiscal 2008 for board and
committee services, Mr. Poses received additional fees for his work as the board chair and as the chair of the Management.
Developmem and Cumpensation Committee. Mr. Siciner and Ms. Wijnberg each received additional fees for their roles as
chair of the Nominating, Governance and Compliance Committee and the Audit Committee, respectively. Dr. Gromer’s
cash compensation was pro-rated for the 3/4ths of fiscal 2008 he scrved as a non-cmployee director, The amount in the”
‘table feflects the USD equivalent for fees earned as Dr. Gromer is paid in euros. :

{2) Upon appointment 1o the Board of Directors, Dr. Gromer received a grant of 4,800 DSUs, The grant date fair value of
these DSUs was $33.17 per share, calculated by wsing the closing price of the common shares on the date of grant, The -
DSUs vested immediately and non-employee directors receive dividend equivalents in connection with these awards. The
amounts shown in column (¢) represent the compensation costs of DSUs for financial reporting purposes for the 2008 fiscal
year under SFAS 123R, rather than an amount paid to or realized by the non-employee director. See Note 24 in the 10-K
for the assumptions made in determining SFAS 123R vatues. The fair value of DSUs has been determined based on the ¢
market value on the grant date. There can be no assurance that the SFAS 123R amount will ever be realized.
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Charitable Contrlbutmns ' : . '

Our board governance prmcnples require that the rBoard approve all charltable donations by. Tyco
Electronics to organizations associated with a director. The amount of any such donation is limited to
an amount that is less than one percent of that organization’s annual charltable recelpts and is less
than one percent of Tyco Electronics’ annual charitable contributions.

Any matching donatlon by Tyco Electronics, to organizations assoc1ated with : a director is limited to
an amount that is no greater than the amount contributed by the director and is requlred to he made
in a manner consistent with Tyco Electronics’ employee matching gift program.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Security Ownershlp of Management and Certam Benef' cial Owners SR

The table below sets forth information regarding benef1c1al ownershlp of Tyco Electromcs common
shares as of January 15, 2009 by thé following groups: C

+ each executive. officer named in the Summary Compensation Table appearmg in “Part 1IL.
Item 11. Executive Compensatlon—-Executlve Officer Compensatlon '

e

+ each of our directors; and
= all of our directors and executive officers as a group,: ... -, - . v

The address of our-executive officérs and directors is /o Tyco Electronics, 1050 Westlakes Dlr.ive,
Berwyn, Pennsylvania 19312, s

ot

. . Number of
’ I . Common Shares

Beneficial Owner - RPN Beneficially Owned'"
Directors and Executive Officers: . e
Thomas J. Lynch@®®) e 986,390
Terrence R. Curtin®® . ... ...... P 171,536
Robert A. Séott@®&) | e e e e e 104,064
Minoru Okamoto@® . . ... ... L. ' 328,899
Alan C. Clarke®® | .. .. ... ..... e e e 121,455
Jane A. Leipold®® .. ... P e P . 139,719
Pierre R. Brondeau™®® _ . e S TR 10,585
Ram Charan®® ., . . . ....... S DTV B A e 10,585
Juergen W. Gromer®™®®) o L Lo e 594,957
Robert M. Hernandez®®M | | e S e . 45,585
Daniel 3. Phelan®® .. ... .. S [ S AP P 10,585
Frederic M. Poses®® . ;' 1. ... ... ... e PR P ' 206,667
Lawrence S. Smith®®® ... L P 17,100
Paula A. Sneed®® .. .. .. [P T D . 14,193
David P Steiner 0 e e e e 10,585
John €. Van Scoter® 0 e e e e 5,670
Sandra S. Wijnberg® ™) | e 9,889 .
Ali current directors and, executive officers as a group (24 persons)(“)ﬁ)(“) e 3,021,414

(1) The number shown reflects the number of common shares owned beneficially as of January 15, 2009, based onviiformation
furnished by the persons named, public filings. and Tyco Electronics records. Beneficial ownership is determined in
accordance with the rules of the SEC and generally includes voting or investment power with respect to securities. Except
as otherwise indicated in the notes below and subject to applicable community property laws, each owner has sole voting
and sole investment power with respect to all shares beneficially owned by such person, To the extent indicated in the notes

2008 Form 10-K 103




below, common shares beneficially owned by a person include common shares of which the person' has the right to acquire
beneficial ownership within 60 days after January 15, 2009. All current directors and executive officers as a group
bcncﬁcnally own less than 1% of outstandmg common shares as of January 15, 2009. "

' 4 . i . . ¥

(2) The named person is an executive officer.’

(3) The named person is a director. . -

{(4) Includes common shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options presently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days after
January 15, 2009 as follows: Mr.- Lynch—893 204; Mr. Curtin--155,366; Mr. Scott--83,637; Mr. Okam0t0—316 542;
Mr. Clarke—107,700; Ms. Leipold—127,955; Dr. Gromer—506,934; Ms. Wijnberg—-4,974; all current directors and
exccutive officers as a group—2,403;152. .- , o . :

(5), Includes restricted common shares as follows: Mr Scott—l ,000; all current directors and executive officers as a group—
1,000. S

(6) Includes vested deferred stock units (DSUs) as follows: Dr. Brondeau;10,585; Dr. Charan—10,585; Dr. (.}ri)merﬁ-lﬂ,546;
Mr. Hernandez—10,585; Mr. Phelan—10,585; Mr. Poses—11,865; Mr. Smith—14,165; Ms. Sneed—12,993; Mr. Steiner—
10,585; Mr. Van Scoter—5,670; Ms. Wijnberg—4,915. Distribution of DSUs will occur upon the termination of the

. individual’s service on the board'of directors. Upon such termination, Tyco Electronics will issue the number of common
shares equal to the aggregate number of DSUs credited to the individual, including DSUs received through the accrual of
dividend cquivalents

+

(7) Includes 35,000 shares held in a trust over which Mr Hernandez has dlsposnwe power

(8) Includes 1,860 shares held in a trust over whlch Mr Smith has dispositive powcr Mr. Sm1th disclaims benef1c1al ownership
of such shares. . :

The table below sets forth the information indicated for persons or groups known to us'to be
beneficial owners of more than 5% of our outstanding common shares beneficially owned as of
January 15, 2009.

. Number of Percentage
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner Common Shares of Class

T Rowe Price Associates, Inc.® ... ....... ... ...... 32,267,133 7.0%
106G East Pratt Street T
' Baltimore, MD 21202

FMRLLC® ... ............. e B 27225360  5.9%
82 Devonshire Street : o
Boston, MA 02109

3

(1) - The amount shown for the number of common shares over which T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc, exercised
investment discretion was obtained by the company from a Form 13F filed by T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. for
the quarter ended September 30, 2008. We have applied Regulation 8-K Item 403, Instruction 3, in determining
the number of common shares beneficially owned.

(2) The amount shown for the number of common shares over which FMR LLC exercised investment discretion was
obtained by the company from a Form 13F filed by FMR LLC for the quarter ended September 30, 2008. We:
have applied Regulation S-K Item 403, Instruction 3, in determining the number of common shares beneficially
owned. A Schedule 13G filed by FMR LLC and affiliated entities with the SEC on February 14, 2008 reported
beneficial ownership of Tyco Electronics’ common’shares' as of December 31, 2007 as follows: FMR LLC, sole
vating power—1,794,845 and sole dispositive power—29,733,961; Edward C. Johnson 3d, sole dlsposmve power—
29,733,961.

Equity Compensation Plan Information .

Sce “Part IL. Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockhql_(':ler'Mal_tte:rs and
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities—Equity Compensation-Plan Information” for information about
securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans. . - S

" C . -

PR . . . o N N
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

All relationships and transactions in which the company and our directors and executive officers or
their immediate family members are participants were reviewed to determine whether such persons
have a direct or indirect material interest. As required under SEC rules, transactions that are
determined to be directly or indirectly material to the company or a related person are disclosed. In
addition, the Nominating, Governance and Compliance Committee of the Board of Directors reviews
and approves or ratifies any related person transaction that is required to be disclosed. In the course of
its review and approval or ratification of a disclosable related person transaction, the committee
considers whether the transaction is fair and reasonable to the company and will take into account,
among other factors it deems appropriate: '

+ whether the transaction is on terms no less favorab!e than terms generally available to an
unaffiliated third-party under the same or similar circumstances; ‘

+ the extent of the related person’s interest in the transaction and the materiality of the
transaction to the company;

* the related person’s relationship to the company;
* the material facts of the transaction, including the proposed aggregate value of the transaction;

* the business purpose for and reasonableness of the transaction, taken in the context of the
alternatives available to the company for attaining the purposes of the transaction;

» whether the transaction is in the ordinary course of the company’s business and was proposed
and considered in the ordinary course of business; and -

» the effect of the transaction on the company’s business and operations, including on the
company’s internal control over financial reporting and system of disclosure controls or
procedures, and any additional conditions or controls (including reporting and review
requirements) that should be applied to such transaction.

- Any member of the committee who is a related person with respect to a transaction under review
may not participate in the deliberations or vote respecting approval or ratification of the transaction,
provided, however, that such director may be counted in determining the presence of a quorum ata
meeting at which the committee considers the transaction.

Pierre Brondcau, a director, is the President and Chief Operating Officer of Rohm & Haas
Company, a manufacturer of specialty materials, from which Tyco Electronics made $3.5 million in
purchases during fiscal 2008. Robert Hernandez, a director, is the Chairman of the Board of RTI
International Metals, Inc., a producer of titanium mill products and fabricated metal components, from
which Tyco Electronics made $0.3 million in purchases during fiscal 2008. Mr. Hernandez’ brother,
William Hernandez, is the Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of PPG Industries, a
supplier of paints, coatings, chemicals, optical products, specialty materials, glass and fiber glass, to
which Tyco Electronics made $2.9 million in sales during fiscal 2008. Frederic Poses, a director, is the
former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Trane Inc. (formerly American Standard
Companies Inc.), a manufacturer and provider of air conditioning systems and services and vehicle
control systems, with which Tyco Electronics made $0.4 million in purchases and $3.9 million in sales
during the first and second quarters of fiscal 2008 (prior to Mr. Poses’ departure from Trane Inc. and
Trane’s acquisition by Ingersoll-Rand in 2008).

The foregoing directors could be deemed to have indirect interests in the transactions based on
their current or former execulive positions with the companies with which Tvco Electronics transacted
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business in fiscal 2008, but such transactions were arms-length commercial dealings between the
companies, none of which are material individually or in the aggregate. The Nominating, Governance
and Compliance Committee has reviewed and approved or ratified these transactions.

Director Independence

The Board of Diréctors’ Governance Principles, which can be found on the company’s website at
http:/fwww.tycoelectronics.comfaboutusfboardofdirectors.asp, include guidelines for determining director
independence. Ten of the twelve members of the Board of Directors have been determined by the
Board to be independent directors. For a director to be considered independent, the Board must make
an affirmative determination that a director meets the stringent guidelines for independence set by the
Board. These guidelines either meet or exceed the NYSE listing standards’ independence requirements.
The guidelines include a determination that the director has no current or prior material relationships
with Tyco Electronics (either directly or as a partner, shareholder or officer of an organization that has
a relationship with the company), aside from their directorship, that could affect their judgment. The
independence guidelines also include the determination that certain limits to annual sales to or
purchases from entities for which a director serves as an executive officer, and limits on direct
compensation from the company for directors and certain family members (other than fees paid for
board or committee service}, are not exceeded and other restrictions.

Based on the review and recommendation by the Nominating, Governance and Compliance
Committee, the Board of Directors analyzed the independence of each director and determined that
the following directors meet the standards of independence under our director independence guidelines
and applicable NYSE listing standards, and that each of the following directors is free of any
relationship that would interfere with his or her individual exercise of independent judgment: Pierre R.
Brondeau, Ram Charan, Robert M. Hernandez, Daniel J. Phelan, Frederic M. Poses, Lawrence S.
Smith, Paula A. Sneed, David P. Steiner, John C. Van Scoter and Sandra S. Wijnberg.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES
Policy for the Pre-Approval of Audit and Non-Andit Services

The Audit Committee adopted a pre-approval policy that provides guidelines for the audit, audit-
related, tax and other permissible non-audit services that may be provided by the independent auditor.
The policy identifies the principles that must be considered by the Audit Committee in approving
services to ensure that the auditor’s independence is not impaired. The policy provides that the
controller and senior vice president and tax officer will support the Audit Committee by providing a list
of proposed services to the Committee, monitoring the services and fees pre-approved by the
Committee, providing periodic reports to the Committee with respect to pre-approved services and
ensuring compliance with the policy.

Under the policy, the Audit Committee annually pre-approves the audit fee and terms of the
engagement, as set forth in the audit engagement letter. This approval includes approval of a specified
list of audit, audit-related and tax services. Any service not included in the specified list of services
must be submitted to the Audit Committee for pre-approval. All services may not extend for more than
twelve months, unless the Audit Committee specifically provides for a different period. The
independent auditor may not begin work on any engagement without confirmation of Audit Committee
pre-approval from the controller or his delegate,

In accordance with the policy, the Audit Committee may delegate one or more of its members the
authority to pre-approve the engagement of the independent auditor when the entire Committee is
unable to do so. The chair must report all such pre-approvals to the Audit Committee at the next
committe¢ meeting.
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Fees Paid to Independent Auditor

Aggregate fees for professional services rendered by Deloitte & Touche LLP, the member firms of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, and their respective affiliates as of and for the fiscal years ended
September 26, 2008 and September 28, 2007 are set forth below. The aggregate fees included in the
audit fees category are fees paid or accrued for the fiscal years for the services described below. The
aggregate fees included in each of the other categories are fees billed in the fiscal years or expected to
be billed with respect to the fiscal years for the services described below. (All references to “$” below
are to United States dollars.)

Fiscal Years 2008 and 2007 Fees

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2008 2007
Audit Fees . ... .. i e e $19,680,000 $16,425,000
Audit-Related Fees . ... .. ..o it i 287,000 1,223,000
Tax FEeeS. . o v i ittt it e e ettt 3,470,000 381,600
All Other Fees . . . .. R e 2,000 1,000
Total ... e e e e $23,439,000 $18,030,000

Audit fees for the fiscal years ended September 26, 2008 and September 28, 2007 were for
professional services rendered for the year-end audits of the consolidated and combined financial
statements of the company, review of quarterly financial statements included in the company’s quarierly
reports on Form 10-Q, consents, comfort letters and statutory and regulatory filings in foreign
jurisdictions.

Audit:related fees for the fiscal years ended September 26, 2008 and September 28, 2007 were
primarily related to audits of carve-out financial statements of certain businesses that have been
divested or are being considered for divestiture and other attest services.

Tax fees for the fiscal years ended September 26, 2008 and September 28, 2007 were primarily for
tax compliance services.

Other fees for the fiscal years ended September 26, 2008 and September 28, 2007 were for
subscriptions for research materials.-

None of the services described above were approved by the Audit Committee under the de
minimus exception provided by Rule 2-01(c)(7)(i)(C) under Regulation S-X.
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PART IV C

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) 1.
2
3.

Exhibit
Number

Financial Statements. See Item 8.
Financial Statement Schedule. See Item 8.

Exhibit Index:

Description

2.1

31

32

33

4.1(a)

4.1(b)

4.1(c)

4.1(d)

4.1(e)

10.1

Separation and Distribution Agreement among Tyco International Ltd., Covidien Ltd. and
Tyco Electronics Ltd., dated as of June 29, 2007 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1
to Tyco Electronics’ Current Report on Form 8-K, filed July 5, 2007)

Memorandum of Association of Tyco Electronics Ltd. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to Amendment No. 3 to Tyco Elecironics’ Registration Statement on Form 10,
filed June §, 2007)

Certificate of Incorporation of Tyco Electronics Ltd. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.2 to Tyco Electronics’ Registration Statement on Form 10, filed January 18,
2007)

Amended and Restated Bye-Laws of Tyco Electronics Ltd. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to Tyco Electronics’ Current Report on Form 8-K, filed July 5, 2007)

Indenture among Tyco Electronics Group'S.A., Tyco Electronics Ltd. and Deutsche Bank
Trust Company Americas, as trustee, dated as of September 25, 2007 (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1(a) to Tyco Electronics’ Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended September 28, 2007, filed December 14, 2007)

First Supplemental Indenture among Tyco Electronics Group S.A., Tyco Electronics Ltd.
and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as trustee, dated as of September 25, 2007
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1(b) to Tyco Electronics’ Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 28, 2007, filed December 14, 2007)

Second Supplemental Indenture among Tyco Electronics Group S.A., Tyco
Electronics Ltd. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as trustee, dated as of
September 25, 2007 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1(c) to Tyco Electronics’
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 28, 2007, filed
December 14, 2007)

Third Supplemental Indenture among Tyco Electronics Group S.A., Tyco Electronics Lid.
and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as trustee, dated as of September 23, 2007
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1(d) to Tyco Electronics’ Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 28, 2007, filed December 14, 2007)

Fourth Supplemental Indenture among Tyco Electronics Group S.A., Tyco
Electronics Ltd. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as trustee, dated as of
July 14, 2008 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Tyco Electronics’ Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed July 14, 2008)

Tax Sharing Agreement among Tyco International Ltd., Covidien Ltd. and Tyco
Electronics Ltd., dated as of June 29, 2007 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Tyco Electronics’ Current Report on Form 8-K, filed July 5, 2007)
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10.2

10.3

104

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

Five-Year Senior Credit Agreement among Tyco International Ltd., Tyco Electronics .

Group S.A., Tyco Electronics Ltd., the lenders party thereto and Bank of America, N.A,,
as administrative agent, dated as of April 25, 2007 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to Tyco Electronics’ Current Report on Form 8-K, filed July 5, 2007)

Guarantor Assumption Agreement between Tyco International Ltd. and Tyco

~ Electronics Ltd., dated as of June 29, 2007 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to
Tyco Electronics’ Current Report on Form 8-K, filed July 5, 2007)

Tyco Electronics Ltd. 2007 Stock and Incentive Plan (Incorporated by reference to '
Exhibit 10.1 to Tyco Electronics’ Registration Statement on Form $-8, filed July 5, 2007)f

Tyco Electronics Ltd. Employee Stock Purchase Plan (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to Tyco Electronics’ Registration Statement on Form S-8,.filed July 5, 2007)%

Form of Founders’ Grant Option Award Terms and Conditions (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Tyco Electronics’ Current Report on Form 8-K, filed July 5,
2007y '

Form of Option Award Terms and Conditions (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11
to Tyco Electronics’ Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 28,
2007, filed December 14, 2007)% C

Form of Founders’ Grant Restricted Unit Award Terms and Conditions (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Tyco Electronics’ Current Report on Form 8-K, filed July 5,
2007)% ' ' ' ‘

Form of Restricted Unit Award Terms and Conditions (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.13 to Tyco Electronics’ Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
September 28, 2007, filed December 14, 2007)% ’ '

Tyco Electronics Ltd. Change in Control Severance Plan for Certain U.S, Officers and
Executives (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Tyco Electronics’ Current Report
on Form 8-K, filed November 9, 2007)3

Tyco Electronics Ltd. Severance Plan for U.S. Officers and Executives (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Tyco Electronics’ Current Report on Form 8-K, filed
November 9, 2007)% ' '

Tyco Electronics Ltd. Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors'(lncorporated by ’
reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Tyco Electronics’ Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended September 28, 2007, filed December 14, 2007)f

Tyco Electronics Corporation Supplemental Savings and Retirement Plan (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Tyco Electronics’ Current Report on Form 8-K, filed
November 9, 20073

Tyco Electronics Ltd. UK Savings Related Share Plan (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.23 to Tyco Electronics’ Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
September 28, 2007, filed December 14, 2007)F

Form of Indemnification Agreement (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Tyco
Electronics’ Current Report on Form 8-K, filed July 5, 2007)
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Exhibit

Number Description .
11016 Amendment to Tyco Electronics Lid. Employee Stock Purchase Plan (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Tyco Electronics” Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended December 28, 2007, filed February 7, 2008)%

10.17 Consulting Agreement between Tyco Electronics Ltd. and Juergen Gromer, dated as of
January 15, 2008 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Tyco Electronics’ Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed January 22, 2008)

10.18 Stock and Asset Purchase Agreement among Tyco Electronics Group S.A., Cobham
Defense Electronic Systems Corporation and Cobham plc, dated as of May 12, 2008
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Tyco Electronics’ Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 27, 2008, filed August 1, 2008)

21.1 Subsidiaries of Tyco Electronics Ltd. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 1o Tyco
Electronics’ Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 26, 2008,
filed November 20, 2008) L .

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm*

241 .Power of Attorney (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 24.1 to Tyco Electronics’ Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 26, 2008, filed November 20,
2008) .

24.2 Power of Attorney*

31.1 Certification by the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002*

31.2 Certlﬁcatlon by the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
Adopted Pursiant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002*

321 Certification by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to

18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002* '

*  Filed herewith

{ Management contract or compensatory' plan or arrangement.
(b) See Item 15(a)3. ebove. _

(c) See Item 15(a)2. above.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly

authorized.

Date: January 16, 2009

Tyco ELECTRONICS LTD.

By: /s/ TERRENCE R. CURTIN

Terrence R. Curtin
Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates

indicated,

Signatum

fs/{ THOMAS J. LYNCH

Thomas J. Lynch

/s/ TERRENCE R. CURTIN

Terrence R. Curtin

{s/ ROBERT J. OTT

Robert J. Ott

x

Pierre R, Brondeau

*

Ram Charan

*

Juergen W. Gromer

*

Robert M. Hernandez

Title

Chief Executive Officer and Director
{Principal Executive Officer)

Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Senior Vice President and Corporate
Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Date

January 16, 2009

January 16, 2009

January 16, 2009

January 16, 2009
January 16, 2009
January 16, 2009

January 16, 2009
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Signature . Title Date

Director January 16, 2009

%

Daniel J. Phelan
* .
Director January 16, 2009
Frederic M. Poses 24
) *
; Director January 16, 2009
Lawrence S.-Smith
* ) [l
Director January 16, 2009
Paula A. Sneed E ' o ' o
. ) o ' _ : |
* . '
- - Director January 16, 2009
David P. Steiner
*
Director ' - January 16, 2009
John C. Van Scoter o e ’
*

— — Director =~ - . January 16, 2009
Sandra S. Wijnberg , .

4

*  Robert A. Scott, by signing his name hereto, does sign this document on behalf of the above noted
individuals, pursuant to powers of attorney duly executed by such individuals, which have been
filed as Exhibit 24.1 and Exhibit 24.2 to this Report. ‘

By: /s/ ROBERT A. SCOTT

Robert A, Scott
Attomey-in-fact
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Tyco Electronics Ltd. Board of Directors:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Tyco Electronics Ltd. and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of September 26, 2008 and September 28, 2007 and the related
consolidated and combined statemenis of operations, equity and cash-flows for each of the three fiscal
years in the period ended September 26, 2008. Our audits also included the financial statement
schedule listed in the Index at Item 15. These consolidated and combined financial statements and
financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management, Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these consolidated and combined financial statements and financial statement
schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and combined financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also ‘includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated and combined financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Company as of September 26, 2008 and
September 28, 2007, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three fiscal
years in the period ended September 26, 2008, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schedule,
when considered in relation to the basic consolidated and combined financial statements taken as a
whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated and combined financial statements, prior to its
separation from Tyco International Ltd. (“Tyco International”), the Company was comprised of the
assets and liabilities used in managing and operating the electronics businesses of Tyco International.
The combined financial statements also included allocations of corporate overhead, net class action
settlement costs, other expenses, debt and related interest expense from Tyco International. These
allocations may not be reflective of the actual level of costs or debt which would have been incurred
had the Company operated as a separate entity apart from Tyco International.

As discussed in Notes 2 and 19 to the consolidated and combined financial statements, in fiscal
2008, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 48,
Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109,

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated and combined financial statements, in fiscal 2007, the
Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans—an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88,
106, and 132(R).

As discussed in Note 14 to the consolidated and combined financial statements, in connection with
its separation from Tyco International, the Company entered into certain guarantee commitments with
Tyco International and Covidien Ltd. and has recorded the fair value of these guarantees.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
September 26, 2008, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated
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November 20, 2008 expressed an adverse opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial

reporting because of a material weakness.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
November 20, 2008
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Tyco Electronics Ltd. Board of Directors: -

We have audited Tyco Electronics Ltd. and subsidiaries’ (the “Company’s”) internal control over
financial reporting as of September 26, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
* -reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal controi over financial reporting was maintained
in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on that risk, and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the
supervision of, the company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing
similar functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the
risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.
The following material weakness has been identified and included in management’s assessment:

The Company did not maintain effective internal control over accounting for income taxes.
Subsequent to the filing of its combined financial statements for fiscal 2006, 2005, and 2004 in
the initial filing of its registration statement with the SEC, the Company determined that the
combined financial statements contained errors. The errors primarily resulted from the process
of carving out certain income tax accounts from Tyco International’s consolidated financial
statements and related information. The Company substantially relied upon the processes at
Tyco International to prepare its carve-out accounts for income taxes. The Company
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“determined that certain of the processes utilized by Tyco International in determining certain
carve-out amounts for.income taxes did not operate at a sufficient level of precision relative to
the Company s materiality to ensure that the carve-out accounts were matenally correct. The
Company also determined that it did not have sufficient control processes in place to ensure
that the information provided by Tyco International was complete and accurate, and
concluded that the absence of these control processes was a material weakness in its internal
«control over financial reporting relating to income taxes.

As of September 26 2008, the Company has concluded that recently enhanced resources and
processes related to this prevmusly identified material weakness have not been operating for a
sufficient period of time and, acéordingly, has further concluded that its internal control over
financial reporting was not effective as of September 26, 2008.

Thls material weakness was considered in determmmg the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests
applied in our audit of the consolidated and combined financial statements and financial statement
schedule of the Company as of and for the year ended September 26, 2008, and this report does not
affect our report on such financial statemments and financial statement schedule.

In our opinion, because of the effect of the material weakness identified above on the achievement
of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has not maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of Septcmber 26, 2008, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. ' A

~ -We have also audited, in"accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting -
Oversight Board (United Stites), the consolidated and combined financial statements and financial
statement schedule of the Company as of and for the year ended September 26, 2008, and our report
dated November;20, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated and combined
financial statements and financial statement schedule and includes an explanatory paragraph referring
to the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 48,
Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an Imerpretanon of FASB Statemem No. 109.

+

Js/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania - ) .-
November 20, 2008 e oo
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TYCO ELECTRONICS LTD.

CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Fiscal Years Ended September 26, 2008, September 28, 2007, and September 29, 2006

Fiscal

2008 2000 | 2006
) (in millions, except per share data)

Net sales ...... e el $14834 0812959 $11,811
Costofsales . .......... i innnns Lol Cees 11,064 . 9,620 : 8,617

Gross income .. ....... e P 3,339 3,194
Selling, general, and administrative expenses . . .. ............. 1,680 1,600 1,445
Litigation settlement, net . . .............. S e 22 887 —
Separationcosts . ............. [ S — 44 —
Restructuring and other charges, net .................. S 185 92 7
Impairment of goodwill and long-lived assets . ............. e L 137 — —

Income from operations . . ................ e e 1,746 716 1,742
Interest income . .. ......... e e e e e w32 53 . 48
Interest expense . . ... O S T (188) (231) (256)
Other income (EXPENSE), NEL . .. ..o vttt inan iy 567 (219) T -

Income from continuing operations before income taxes and

minority interest . ................. e , 2,157 319 1,534

Income taxes. .. .............. e e (558) (491) (81)
Minority interest . ... ... . ... e e ; (5) {6) (6)

Income (loss) from continuing operations . ... ............. 1,594 (178) 1,447
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes . . 188 (376) (246)

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting change . L. 1,782 (554) 1,201
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of income taxes . . ... — —_ '(8)

Net income (I058). . ..ottt e ettt et $ 1,782 $ (554) §$ 1,193
Basic earnings (loss) per share:

Income (loss) from continuing operations . ................ $ 330 $(036) §$ 291

Income (loss) from discontinued operations. ... ............ 039 (0.75) {0.49)

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting change . . . 3.69 (1.11) 242

Cumulative effect of accounting change . .. ................ ' — — {0.02)

Net income (I0S8) ... .. ut vttt i i e $ 369 § (111) § 240
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:

Income (loss) from continuing operations . ................ $ 3.28 § (036) § 291

Income (loss) from discontinued operations. . .. ............ 0.39 (0.75) {0.49)

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting change . .. 3.67 (1.11) 242

Cumulative effect of accountingchange. . ................. — — {0.02)

Net income (0SS} ... ..ot i $ 367 § (111) § 240
Weighted-average number of shares outstanding:

BasiC . . . e 483 497 497

Diluted . ... . e 486 497 497

See Notes to Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements.
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TYCO ELECTRONICS LTD.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
As of September 26, 2008 and September 28, 2007

Assets
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents . ... . ... ... ... . . . i i e
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $42 and $57, respectively . . .
L § 1753 110 o (=23
Class action settlement esCrow . .. ... . ...ttt et e
Class action settlement receivable . ... .. ... ... . . .., E
Prepaid expenses and other current assets. ... .. .. . i i i i e
Deferred INCOME TAXES . . . . . . . . oottt ittt e e e et e e e et e e
Assets of discontinued operations . .. ... ... L L e

Total current assels . . . . . .. e e e i e
Property, plant, and equipment, NBE . .. . ...ttt i ittt it e s
Goodwill . . ..o
Intangible assets, met . ......... . . . ...

Deferred INCOmME tAXES . . . .. . . ittt it et e e e ‘

Receivable from Tyco International Ltd. and Covndlcn Led, ... i .

L0 34755 1T £ SR

Total ASSelS . . . . . it e e e e e e e e e e e

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities:

Current maturities of long-term debt . . ... .. ... L L
Accounts payable . ... L e e e
Class action settlement lability . .. ... ... .. . .
Accrued and other current liabilities . . ......... ... o i o
Deferred revenue . ... .. e e e e e s B
Liabilities of discontinued operations . . .. ................. e e

Total current liabilities . ... ... . e e
Long-term debt . . ... . e L
Long-term pension and postretirement liabilities . . .. .. ... . oo o oo oL

Deferred ImCome taXeS . . . .. it ittt s e et ettt e e e
InCOmME LaXES .« . . L i i i e e et e e e e e e e
Other lHabilities . . . . . . . o i i i e ettt st it sttt et i e

Total Liabilities . . . . . . . ... e ‘

Commitments and contingencies (Note 17)
Minority IHETESE © o vttt vt et e et e et et e e e e
Shareholders’ Equity:
Preferred shares, $0.20 par value, 125,000,000 shares authorized; none outstanding . . . ... . .
Common shares, $0.20 par value, 1,000,000,000 authorized; 500,241,706 and 497,467, 930
issued, TespeCtivelY . . L .. e e e e e e e e
Capital in excess:
Share premium ... .. .. e
Contributed surplus . .. .. ... e e .
Accumulated SarmiNES . . . .. ..t
Treasury shares, at cost, 36,904,702 and 44,454 shares, respectively . ... ........... e
Accumulated other comprehensive INCOME . . . . . .. ... it

Total Shareholders’ Equity . . . . ... . .. .. .. .

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equify ............ e e :

See Notes to Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements.

Fiscal

2008

2007

(in millions, except
share data)

$ 1,086
2,726
2,312

767
204

7,095

$ 942
2,594
2,049

928
2,064
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TYCO ELECTRONICS LTD.
CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
Fiscal Years Ended September 26, 2008, September 28, 2007, and September 29, 2006

Awél)muluted
. Parent ther
Common Shares Treasury Shares Share  Contributed Company Accumulated Comprehensive Total
) Shares Amount Shares Amount Premium  Sorples  Investment  Earnings Income Equity
o . (in millions) '
Balance at October 1, 2005 . ... . . .. - §— - % — 55— § — § 9511 § — $ 3 $ 9,842
Comprehensive income:
Netincome .. .. ........... — _- - —_ - — 1,193 — — 1,193
Currency translation ... ...... — - - - - — - — - 242 242
Minimum penston liability, net of .
. oincome taxes . ... ... .. ... — - - — - — - - 97 97
Total comprehensive income . . . . . . e 1,532
Net transfers to former parent . . . .. — - = - - — (219) — — (214)
Balance ot September 29, 2006 . ...  — - - - = — 10490 — 670 11,160
Comprehensive income:
Net income (loss) . .......... —_ — — — (810) 256 — (554)
Currency translation . ........ — - = - - — — — 453 . 453
Minimum pension liability, net of ‘ , . .
income taxes. . . .......... — - - —_—— -— — — 207 <207
' Unrealized loss on cash flow hedge - - - - = — — — (53) - (53)
Total comprchensivc income . . . .. 53
Impact of adoption of SFAS No. 158, o
netoftax .. .............. — — - —_— - — — — {225) (225)
Net transfers from former parent . . . — - - —_— - — 848 — — 848

Transfer of parent company investment

to contributed surplus . . ... .. .. — - - - - 10,528 (10,528) - - -
Guarantees and shared tax liabilities . !

0 Tyco International and Covidien

in accordance with the Tax Sharing

Agreememt . ... ... ........ — —_ - - - (296) - —_— = {296)
Due from Tyco International and

Covidien in accordance with. the '

Tax Sharing Agreement . . . . .. .. — — - —_ - 844 —_ — — 844

Incorne tax liabilities assumed upon
Separation . .............. — —_ - _ = (1,091) — — , — (1,091)
Issuance of common shares. . . . ... 497 9 - - = - — — — 99

Compensation expense, including
charge related to Tyco [nternational

equity award conversion . ... ... — - - - - 44 — — — 44
Dividends declared . . . . . .. . — - - - - — — (70) — (70)
Exercise of share options . .. ... .. — - - — 13 — — — - 13
Repurchase of common shares . . . . . — 2 -— — — — — (2)
Balance at September 28, 2007 . ... 497 99 - 2y 13 10,029 — 18 - 1,052 11,377
Adoptionof FIN48 .. .. ... ... — - - - - - — (549 — . (549
Comprehcensive income:

Netincome . . ............. — - - - - —_ — 1,782 — 1,782

Currency translation . .. ... ... - - - - - — — - (22) (22)

Adjustments to unrecognized

pension and postretirement

benefit costs, net of income taxes — - - - - — - — (107) (107)
Gain on cash flow hedge . . . . . .. — — = - - - — — ' 7 7
Unrealized loss on securities, net of

income taxes . . ... ........ — —_ - —_ - — — — ... D (1)

Total comprehensive income . . . . . ' 1,659
Adjustment for pre-Separation tax '

Matlers . ... oo vn v v v e v vns — - - - = 16 — - — 16
Compensation expense . .. ...... — - = - - 61 - — — 61
Dividends declared . . . . ... ... .. — - = - - — - {276} — (276)
Exercise of share options . . .. . ... -3 1 — 7 48 —_ — (2) — 54
Repurchase of commaon shares . . . . . S — — (3N (1,269 —_ — — — {1,269)
Balance at September 26, 2008 . . . . 500 $100  (37) 3(1,264) $61 $10,106 - § — 51,14 $ 929 $11,073

!I

See Notes to Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements.
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TYCO ELECTRONICS LTD.
CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Fiscal Years Ended September 26, 2008, September 28, 2007, and September 29, 2006

¢

Fiscal
2008 2007 2006
(in milliens)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Net In00me (J088) . 4 v v v vt v s e et e e e e e e e $1,782 § (554) §1,193
{Income} loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes . . . .. ... ... ... .. ... ... (188} 376 246
Cumulative effect of accounting change, netof income taxes . . . .. ....... .. .. ... ... ..... — — 8

Income (loss) from continuing operations . . .. . ... ... ... ... e 1,594 (178) 1,447

Adjustments to reconcile net cash provided by operating activities:

lass action settlement . . . . . .. L. L e e e e (936) 887 —
Non-cash restructuring and other charges, net . . .. ... .. ... ... ... ... ... . .. ... 47 23 4
Depreciation and amortization . . ... ... ... L 0o oL e 559 514 459
Deferred income [aXe5 . . . . .. .. e e e 174 163 (14)
Provision for losses on accounts receivable and Inventory . . . . ... L L oo 41 82 62
Taxsharing income . . . ... ... e e (567) {13) —
Allocated loss onretitementof debt . . . . ... ... L L — 232 e
[mpairment of goodwill and long-lived assets . . . . . . ... ... . ... .. 137 — —
L T N 43 ) 12
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of the effects of acquisitions and divestitures; ) .
Accounts receivable, net . . ... ... e e e e e e ' 106) 96 126
,dnventories . . ... L Lo e e e e e e e 280 89 351
Other current assets . . . ... .. P 57 (138 (33
Accounts payable . . ... L e e e e 49 84 -257
Accrued and other liabilities . . . .. .. ... L. 126 103 95
IRCOmE taXes . . . . . e e e e e 15 {109) (179)
Deferred Tevenue . . . .. . .. ... e 112 33 6
Long-term pension and postretirement liabilities . .. .. .. ... ... N 3 e 25
L8 T 7 N (54) 19 (20)
Net cash provided by continuing operating activities. . . . . . .. .. .o it i e 1,014 1,508 1,624
Net cash (used in) provided by discontinued operating activities . . ... ........... .. ..., (25) 17 39
Net cash provided by operating activities . . .. ... ... ... . ... ... ... o 989 1,525 1,663

Cash Flows From Lnvesting Activities: ‘

Capital expenditures . . .. ............. i et e e e e e e e e e e e (619) (875) (519)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and equipment . . . .. .. .. ... .. . .. . i 42 41 6

Acquisition of businesses, net of cashaequired . . * . ... L L Lo L oo 3 — 23

Purchase accounting and holdback/earn-out liabilities . . ... ... e e e e 2 (4 4

Class action SeTEmENt BSCIOW . . . . o .t it s bt e e s e e e i e e et e 936 (928 —

Proceeds from divestiture of discontinued operation, net of cash retained by businesses sold ., . ... ... 571 227 —

Other .. .. ......... e e (24) 1 27

Net cash provided by (used in} continuing investing activities . . .. ............... .. ... 901 (1,538) 513
Net cash {used in) provided by discontinued investing activities . . . . .. .. e (6) 10 126
Net cash provided by (used in} investing activities . . . . . . . . .. ... 0. in i, - 895 {1,528) (639)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Net increase in commercial paper . . .. ... . L e 630 — —

Proceeds from long-term debt . . . ... ... ... .. ... . .. . ... e e e 500 5,676 —

Repayment of long-term debt . . . ... .. .. L L L (1,751) 2,455 113

Allocated debt activity . . . . . . . . .. e e e e e e e — 3,743 713

Net trapsactions with former parent . . . . . .. .. ... L e e e — 1,112 (74

Repurchase of common shares . . . . .. ... .. .. . L e e e (1,24 - —

Payment of common dividends . . . . . ... .. e e 27 — —

Proceeds from exercise of share options . . . .. ... ... ... .. . . e 54 13 —

Transfers to discontinued Operations . . . . ... .. o o e 80 (134 7

Minority interest distributions paid . . .. ... ... L e e (11 7 (12

L Qa B 4

Net cash (used in) provided by continuing financing activities . . ... ........... ... ..... (1,772) 454 {923)
Net cash provided by (used in{ discontinued financing activities. . . .. ... .. L L S 33 (23) 95
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities . . . .. .. ... .. .. .. .. . - (1,739) 431 (828)

Effect of currency translationoncash ... ... .................. e e e 1 46 (1)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . ... . ... L e e 146 474 195

Less: net increase in cash and cash equivalents related to discontinued operations . . . . .. ... ... ... (2) (4) (8)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of fiscal year. . . . .. ... ... . ..., . ... ... ... . ..., 942 472 285

Cash and cash equivalents atend of fiscal year . . . .. ... ... .. ... ... .. .. ... . .. $1086 $ 942 5 472

Supplementary Cash Flow Information:

Interest paid . . . . . . .. e e e e $ 100 § 231 35 261
Income taxes paid, netof refunds . . . . .. . L L e 369 450 274
See Notes to Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements.
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TYCO ELECTRONICS LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Separation and Basis of Presentation

Tyco Electronics Ltd. (“Tyco Electronics™ or the “Company”), a company organized under the laws
of Bermuda, is a leading global provider of engineered electronic components, network solutions,
undersea telecommunication systems, and wireless systems,

The Separation

Effective June 29, 2007, the Company became the parent company of the former electronics
businesses of Tyco International Ltd. (“Tyco International”). On June 29, 2007, Tyco International
distributed all of its shares of Tyco Electronics, as well as its shares of its former healthcare businesses
(“Covidien”), to its common sharcholders (the “Separation”).

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements reflect the consolidated
operations of Tyco Electronics Ltd. and its subsidiaries as an independent, publicly-traded company
subsequent to the Separation and a combined reporting entity comprising the assets and liabilities used
in managing and operating the clectronics businesses of Tyco International, including Tyco
Electronics Ltd., for periods prior to the Separation.

The Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements have been prepared in United States
dollars, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(“GAAP”). The preparation of the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements in conformity
with GAAP requires management to make use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amount of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses. Significant estimates in these Consolidated and Combined Financial
Statements include restructuring and other charges, acquisition liabilities, allowances for doubtful
accounts receivable, estimates of future cash flows associated with asset impairments, useful lives for
depreciation and amortization, loss contingencies, net realizable value of inventories, estimated contract
revenue and related costs, legal liabilities, tax reserves and deferred tax asset valuation allowances, and
the determination of discount and other rate assumptions for pension and postretirement employee
benefit cxpenses. Actual results could differ materially from these estimates.

The Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for periods prior to the Separation may not
be indicative of the Company’s future performance and do not necessarily reflect what its consolidated
and combined results of operations, financia! position, and cash flows would have been had it operated
as an independent, publicly-traded company during the periods presented. To the extent that an asset,
liability, revenue, or expense is directly associated with the Company, it is reflected.in the
accompanying Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements. Certain general corporate overhead,
net class action settlement costs, and other expenses as well as debt and related net interest expense for
periods prior to the Separation were allocated by Tyco International to the Company. Management
believes such allocations were reasonable; however, they may not be indicative of the actual results of
the Company had the Company been operating as an independent, publicly-traded company for the
periods presented. See Note 18 for further information regarding allocations.
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TYCO ELECTRONICS LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. Separation and Basis of Presentation (Continued)

Description of the Business

The Company consists of four reportable segments:

* Electronic Components. The Electronic Components segment is one of the world’s largest
suppliers of passive electronic components, which includes connectors and interconnect systems,
relays, switches, circuit protection devices, touch screens, sensors, and wire and cable. The
products sold by the Electronic Components segment are sold primarily to original equipment
manufacturers and their contract manufacturers in the automotive, computer, communications,
industrial, aerospace and defense, appliance, consumer electronics, and medical markets.

* Network Solutions. The Network Solutions segment is one of the world’s largest suppliers of
infrastructure componenits and systems for telecommunications and energy markets. These
components include connectors, above- and below-ground enclosures, heat shrink tubing, cable
accessories, surge arrestors, fiber optic cabling, copper cabling, and racks for copper and fiber
networks. This segment also provides electronic systems for test access and intelligent cross-
connect applications as well as integrated cabling solutions for cabling and building management.

* Undersea Telecommunications. The Undersea Telecommunications segment designs, builds,
maintains, and tests undersea fiber optic networks for both the telecommunications and oil and
gas markets.

* Wireless Systems. The Wireless Systems segment is an innovator of wireless technology for
critical communications systems. This segment provides state-of-the-art two-way land mobile
radio technology products and systems, including network and system infrastructure, portable
radios, service, and maintenance. These products and systems are used primarily by public safety
and government organizations. '

Principles of Consolidation

The Company consolidates entities in which it owns or controls more than fifty percent of the
voting shares or otherwise has the ability to control through similar rights. In addition, the Company
consolidates variable interest entities in which the Company bears a majority of the risk to the entities”
expected losses or stands to gain from a majority of the entities’ expected returns. All intercompany
transactions have been eliminated. The results of companies acquired or disposed of are included in
the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements from the effective date of acquisition or up to
the date of disposal.

Fiscal Year

Unless otherwise indicated, references in the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements to
fiscal 2008, fiscal 2007, and fiscal 2006 are to Tyco Electronics’ fiscal years ended September 26, 2008,
September 28, 2007, and September 29, 2006. Tyco Electronics’ fiscal year is a “52-53 week” year
ending on the last Friday of September, such that each quarterly period is 13 weeks in length. For fiscal
years in which there are 53 weeks, the fourth quarter reporting period will include 14 weeks, with the
first such occurrence taking place in fiscal 2011.
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TYCO ELECTRONICS LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. Separation and Basis of Presentation (Continued)
Reclassifications

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current period
classification.

2. Summary of Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies
Revenue Recognition

The Company’s revenues are generated principally from the sale of its products. Revenue from the
sale of products is recognized at the time title and risks and rewards of ownership pass to the
customer. This generally occurs when the products reach the free-on-board shipping point, the sales
price is fixed and determinable, and collection is reasonably assured. For those items where title has
not yet transferred, the Company has deferred the recognition of revenue.

The Company provides certain distributors with an inventory allowance for returns or scrap equal
to a percentage of qualified purchases. A reserve for estimated scrap and returns allowances is
established at the time of the sale based on a fixed percentage of sales to distributors authorized and
agreed to by the Company and is recorded as a reduction of sales.

Other allowances include customer quantity and price discrepancies. A reserve for other
allowances is established at the time of sale based on historical experience and is recorded as a
reduction of sales. The Company believes it can reasonably and reliably estimate the amounts of future
allowances.

Contract $ales for construction related projects are recorded primarily on the
percentage-of-completion method. Profits recognized on contracts in process are based upon estimated
contract revenue and related cost to complete. Percentage-of-completion is measured based on the
ratio of actual cost incurred to total estimated cost. Revisions in cost estimates as contracts progress
have the effect of increasing or decreasing profits in the current period. Provisions for anticipated
losses are made in the period in which they first become determinable. Contract sales for construction
related projects are generated prlmarlly within the Company’s Undersea Telecommunications and
Wireless Systems segments.

The Company typlcally warrants that its products will conform to the Company’s specifications and
that its products will be free from material defects in materials and manufacturing. The Company limits
its liability to the replacement of defective parts or the cash value of replacement parts. The Company
accepts returned goods only when the customer makes a claim and management has authorized the
return. Returns result primarily from defective products or shipping discrepancies. A reserve for
estimated returns is established at the time of sale based on historical return experience and is
recorded as a reduction of sales.

Additionally, certain of the Company’s long-term contracts in its Undersea Telecommunications
and Wireless Systems segments have warranty obligations. Estimated warranty costs for each contract
are determined based on the contract terms and technology-specific considerations. These costs are
included in total estimated contract costs and are accrued over the construction period of the respective
contracts under percentage-of-completion accounting.

On September 19, 2005, the Company’s Wireless Systems segment entered into a twenty-year lease
contract with the State of New York to construct, operate, and maintain a statewide wireless
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TYCO.ELECTRONICS LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cnntmued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued) .

communications network for use by state and municipal first responders, Lease terms and payment
streams begin when each of the regional networks that make up the statewide network are determined
to meet the operanonal requ1rements of the contract and are accepted by the State of New York with
the lease terms running through September 2025.

The Company is accounting for each regional netwoik as a stand alone sales-type lease and w1ll
recognize revenue on acceptance of each region. As of September 26, 2008, the first region has not
been accepted by the State; therefore, the Company has not recognized any revenue on the
construction of the network. Revenue recognition related to the operating and maintenance service
elements begins following regional acceptance. As of fiscal year end 2008, 2007, and 2006, costs totaling
$56 million, $28 million, and $8 million, respectlvely, associated with the development and construction
of the statewide wircless network including interest expense incurred to financé the construction; have
been capltallzed primarily as mvcntones on the Consolldated Balance Sheets

- :On August 29 2008, the Company was served by the State of New York with a default notice
related to the first regional network, pursuant to the contract.. Under the contract, the Company had
45 days to rectify the deficiencies noted by the State. On October 16, 2008, the Company certified the
system ready for testing and presented its conclusions to the State of New York. The Company
informed the State that all deficiencies had been remediated and the system is operating in accordance
with the contract specifications. The State’s testing is scheduled to occur in November and December
2008. . S Y T

Research and Development ' S

- Research and development expenditures are expensed when incurred and are included in cost of
sales. Research and development expenses include salaries, direct costs incurred, and building and
overhead expenses. The amounts expensed, in fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006 were $530 million,
$482 million, and $428 million, respectively. : :

- Cash anri Cash Equivalents

~All hlghly liquid investments purchased with maturities of three months or less from the time of |
purchase are consrdered to be cash equivalents. _ 7
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
sl o ¢
The allowance. for doubtful accounts receivable reflects the best estlmate of probable losses
inherent_ in the Company’s outstanding receivables determined on the basis of historical experience,
specific allowances for known troubled accounts, and other currently available evidence.

Inventanes

Inventorres are recorded.at.the lower of cost (fl['St in, fll‘St -out) or market value
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Property, Plant, and Equipment, Net and Long-Lived Assets Coa

Net property, plant and equlpment is recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation. Maintenance
and repair expendltures are charged to’expense when incurréd. Depreciation is calculated using the
stralght -line method over the estlmated useful l1ves of the related assets as follows:

)
?

Buildings and related improvements . : .. 5 to '40'years

Leasehold improvements ... ... .. “.... Lesser of remaining term of the-lease or
SR ' o o7 ecofiomic useful life ~ g
' Machinery and equipmernit ... .....:.s. 1to15 years' o ‘

The Company perlodlcally evaluates the net reahzable value of long -lived assets mcludmg
property, plant, and eqmpment and amortizable lntanglble assets relying on a number of factors
including operating results, business plans €CONOMIc prOJecnons and antrcrpated future cash flows.
When indicators 'of potential impairment are present, the'carrying values of the assets are evaluated in
relation to the operating-performance and estimated future undiscounted cash flows of the underlying
business: An impairmenit in the carrying value of an asset grodp is recognized whenever ‘anticipated
future undiscounted cash flows from an asset group are estimated to be less than its carrying value.
The amount of impairment recognized is the difference betweeén the carrying value of the asset and its
fair value. Fair value estimates are based on assumptions concerning the amount and' timing of
estimated future cash flows and assumed discount rates, reflecting varying degrees of perceived risk.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets _ i

Intangible assets acquired 'incliide both those'that have a determinable life and residual goodwill.
Intangible assets with a determinable life include primarily intellectual property consisting of patents,
trademarks, and unpaterted-technology with ‘estimates of recoverability ranging from 1 to 50 years that
are amortized on a straight-line basis. See Note 11 for additional information regarding intangible
assets. An evaluation of the remaining useful life of intangible assets with a determinable life is
performed on a periodic basis and when events and circumstances warrant an evaluation. The Company
assesses intangible.assets with a determinable life for impairment.consistent with its policy for assessing
other long-lived assets. Goodwill is assessed for impairment separately from other intangible assets with
a determinable life by comparing the carrying value of each reporting unit to its fair value on the first
day of the fourth quarter of each year or whenever the Company betieves a triggering event requiring a
more frequent assessment has occurred. In making this assessment, management relies on a number of
factors including operating resuits, busifiess plans, econoniic projections, anticipated future cash flows,
transactions; and market place data. There are inherent uncertainties related to these factors and
management’s judgment in ‘applying them to the analysis of goodwill impairment.

The Company has 14 reporting units, of which 13 contained goodwill prior to the annual goodwill
impairment test. See Notes 5 and 10 for information regarding the goodwill impairment recorded as a
result of the annual impairment test. When- changes occur in the composition of one or more operating
segments or reporting units, the goodwill is reassigned to the reporting units affected based on their
relative fair values.

When testing for goodwill impairment, the Company performs a step I goodwill impairment test to
identify a potential impairment. In doing so, the Company compares the fair value of a reporting unit
with its carrying amount. If the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, goodwill may
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

be impaired and a step [1 goodwill impairment test is performed to measure the amount of any
impairment loss. In the step II goodwill impairment test, the Company compares the implied fair value
of reporting unit goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill. If the carrying amount of

reporting unit goodwill exceeds the implicd fair value of that goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized

in an amount equal to that excess. The implied fair value of goodwill is determined in the same
manner that the amount of goodwill recognized in a business combination is determined. The Company
allocates the fair value of a reporting unit to all of the assets and liabilities of that unit, mcludmg
intangible assets, as if the reporting unit had been acquired in a business combination. Any excess of
the value of a reporting unit over lhe amounts aSSIgned to its assets and liabilities is the implied falr
value of goodw1]l

Estimates about fair value used in the step I goodwill impairment tests have been calculated using
an income approach based on the present value of future cash flows of each reporting unit. The
income approach has been supported by other valuation approaches, such as similar transaction and

_guideline analyses. These approaches incorporate many assumptions inctuding future growth rates,
discount factors, and income tax rates in assessing fair.value. Changes in economic and operating .
conditions impacting these assumptions could result.in goodwill impairments in future periods.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are computed in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” In these Consolidated and
Combined Financial Statements, the benefits of a consolidated return have been reflected where such
returns have or could be filed based on the entities and jurisdictions included in the financial
statements. Deferred tax liabilities and assets arc recognized for the expected future tax consequences
of events that have been reflected in the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements. Deferred
tax liabilities and assets are determined based on the differences betweén the book and tax bases of
particular assets and liabilitics and operating loss carryforwards using tax rates in effect for the years in
which the differences are expected to reverse. A valuation allowance ts provided to offset deferred tax
assets if, based upon the available evidence, it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred
tax assets will not be realized.

Effective September 29, 2007, the beginning of fiscal 2008, the Company adopted Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Intcrpretation No. (“FIN”) 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes—an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109.” See additional discussion below under
“Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements.” N

Financial Instruments

In order to address certain financial exposures, the Company adopted a risk management program
that includes the use of derivative and non-derivative financial instruments, The Company has
established policies regarding the types and notional value of derivative financial instruments that can
be entered into. The Company currently enters into foreign exchange forwards and swaps to reduce the
cffects of fluctuating foreign exchange rates, interest rate swaps to manage interest rate exposures, and
forward contracts to reduce the effects of commodity price fluctuations. Also, the Company has
designated certain intercompany non-derivative financial instruments denominated in foreign currencies
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

as a hedge of its net investments in certain foreign operations denominated in the same foreign
currencies.

All derivative financial instruments are reported on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value.

* Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments that are not designated as either cash flow or fair
value hedges are recognized currently in earnings in selling, general, and administrative expenses in the
Consolidated and Combined Statements of Operations. Changes in the fair value of derivative
instruments designated as fair value hedges affect the carrying value of the asset or liability hedged,
with changes in both the derivative instrument and the hedged asset or lability being recognized in
earnings. Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges are
reflected in other comprehensive income, a component of equity, to the extent that they are deemed
effective. Effectiveness of cash flow hedges is measured quarterly using the cumulative-dollar-offset-
method-and any changes in fair value that are determined to be ineffective are recognized currently in
earnings in selling, general, and administrative expenses. The remeasurement of the intercompany
non-derivative financial instruments designated as a hedge of the Company’s net investment in foreign:
operations is recorded in cumulative translation adjustment in accumulated other comprehensive
income on the Consolidated Balance Sheets offsetting the change in cumulative translation adjustment
attributable to the Company’s net investments in certain foreign operations.

The Company determines the fair value of its financial instruments by using methods and
assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each balance sheet date.
Standard market' conventions are used to determine the fair value of financial instruments, including
derivatives. : '

Share-Based Compensation

"The Company adopted SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment,” on Qctober 1, 2005 using the
modified prospective transition method. Under SFAS No. 123R, the Company determines the fair value
of share awards on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton valuation model. That fair value
is expensed ratably over the expected service period, with an allowance made for estimated forfeitures
based on historical employee activity. See Note 24 for additional information related to the Company’s
share-based compensation.

Share Premium and Contributed Surplus

In accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, when the Company issues shares for cash at
a premium to their par value, the resulting premium is credited to a share premium account, a
non-distributable reserve. Contributed surplus, subject to certain conditions, is a distributable reserve.

Currency Translation

For the Company’s non-U.S. dollar functional currency subsidiaries with a functional currency
other’ than U.S. dollars, assets and liabilities are translated into U.S. dollars using year-end exchange
rates. Sales and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates in effect during the year. Foreign
currency translation gains and losses are included as a component of accumulated other comprehensive
income within equity.
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Gains and losses resulting from foreign currency transactions, which are included in net income,
were immaterial in all periods presented.

Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change

During fiscal 2006, the Company adopted FIN 47, “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement
Obligations—an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143.” Accordingly, the Company recognized asset |
retirement obligations of $16 million and net property, plant, and equipment of $4 million in its
Combined Balance Sheet at fiscal year end 2006. In addition, the Company recorded a cumulative
effect of accounting change which resulted in an $8 million after-tax, $12 million pre-tax, loss.

, Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 162, “The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles.” SFAS No. 162 codifies the hierarchy of generally accepted accounting principles to be used
by the preparers of financial statements. The hierarchy is identical to that contained in the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants Statements on Auditing Standards No. 69, “The Meaning of
Present Fairly in Conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.” Adoption of the standard
did not have any impact on the Company’s Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48. This interpretation prescribes a comprehensive model for
the financial statement recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of uncertain tax
positions taken or expected to be taken in income tax returns. FIN 48 requires that an enterprise must
determine whether it is more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination by
taxing authorities, including resolution of any appeals or litigation processes, based upon the technical
merits of the position. A tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not threshold is then measured to
determine the amount of tax benefit to recognize in the financial statements. As a result of adopting
FIN 48, the Company recorded a net increase in contingent tax liabilities of $1,197 million, an increase
in deferred tax assets of $648 million, and a corresponding decrease in the opening balance of
accumulated earnings of $549 million. See Note 19 for additional information regarding income taxes
and the adoption of FIN 48.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans—an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and
132(R).” SFAS No. 158 requires that employers recognize the funded status of defined benefit pension
and other postretirement benefit plans .as a net asset or liability on the balance sheet and recognize as
a component of other comprehensive income, net of tax, the gains or losses and prior service costs or
credits that arise during the period but are not recognized as a component of net periodic benefit cost.
Under SFAS No. 158, companies are required to measure plan assets and benefit obligations as of their
fiscal year end. The Company currently uses a measurement date of August 31st. SFAS No. 158 also
requires additional disclosure in the notes to the financial statements. The measurement date provisions
will become effective for the Company in fiscal 2009. The Company is currently asséssing the impact of
the measurement date change provisions on its results of ‘operations, financial position, or cash flows.
The Company adopted the funded status recognition provisions at September 28, 2007, The
incremental effects of adopting the standard on the Consolidated Balance Sheet were increases of
$386 million in long-term pension and postretirement benefit liabilities, $16 million in accrued and
other current liabilities, and $55 million in other assets. The impact of adoption also resulted in
additional net deferred tax assets of $122 million. The impact of adoption to accumulated other
comprehensive income, a component of equity, was a reduction of $225 million. There was no impact
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on pension or other postretirement benefit expense, cash flows, or benefits plans in fiscal 2007.
On-going compliance with the standard will not impact pension or other postretirement benefit
expense, cash flows, or benefit plans. See Note 16 for further discussion of the implementation of the
recognition provisions of SFAS No. 158.

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) issued Staff Accounting
Bulietin (“SAB™) No. 108, “Considering the Effect of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying
Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements.” SAB No. 108 provides guidance on evaluating the
materiality of prior periods’ misstatements, quantifying the effects of correcting misstatements in the
current period, and criteria for restatement of prior periods. SAB No. 108 is effective for fiscal years
ending after November 15, 2006. The Company adopted this guidance effective for fiscal 2007. The
adoption did not have a material impact on the Company’s results of operations financial position, or
cash flows.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”} No. FAS '157-3, “Determining the
Fair Value of a Financial Asset when the Market for That Asset Is Not Active.” FSP No. FAS 157-3
clarifies the methods employed in determining the fair value for financial assets when a market for
such assets is not active. FSP No. FAS 157-3 is effective for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal
2009, The adoption of FSP No. FAS 157-3 will not have a significant impact on the Company’s results
of operations, financial position, or cash flows.

“In June 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) 03-6-1,
“Determining Whether Instruments Granted in Share-Based Payment Transactions Are Participating
Securities.” FSP No. EITF 03-6-1 concludes that unvested restricted share awards that pay
nonforfeitable cash dividends are participating securities and are subject to the two-class method of
computing earnings per share. FSP No. EITF 03-6-1 is effective for the Company in the first quarter of
fiscal 2010. The Company does not expect that adoption of FSP No. EITF 03-6-1 wifl have a material
impact on its Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements. ’

In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. FAS 142-3, “Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible
Assets.”” FSP No. FAS 142-3 amends the factors that should be considered in developing renewal or
extension assumptions used to determine the useful life of a recognized intangible asset under SFAS
No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” FSP No. FAS 142-3 is effective for the Company in the
first quarter of fiscal 2010. The Company is currently assessing the impact that FSP No. FAS 1423 will
have on its results of operations, financial position, or cash flows.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, “Disclosures About Derivative Instruments and
Hedgmg Activities—an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133.” SFAS No. 161 amends and expands the
disclosure requnrements of SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,”
to provide improved transparency into the uses and financial statement impact of derivative instruments
and hedging activities. The Company plans to adopt SFAS No. 161 in the second quarter of fiscal 2009,
The Company is currently assessing the impact that SFAS No 161 will have on its Consolidated and
Combined Financial Statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141R, “Busmess Combinations.” SFAS No. 141R
replaces SFAS No. 141 and addresses the recognition and accounting for identifiable assets acquired,
liabilities assumed, and noncontrolling interests in business combinations. SFAS No. 141R is effective
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for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal 2010. The Company is currently assessing the impact that
SFAS No. 141R will have on its results of operations, financial position, or cash flows.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated
Financial Statements.” SFAS No. 160 addresses the accounting and reporting framework for minority
interests by a parent company. SFAS No. 160 is effective for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal
2010. The Company is currently assessing the impact that SFAS No. 160 will have on its results of
operations, financial position, or cash flows.

In June 2007, the FASB EITF issued EITF Issue No. 06-11, “Accounting for Income Tax Benefits of
Dividends on Share-Based Payment Awards.” EITF 06-11 tequires that a realized income tax benefit
from dividends or dividend equivalent units paid on unvested restricted shares and restricted share
units be reflected as an increase in contributed surplus and reflected as an addition to the Company’s
excess tax benefit pool, as defined under SFAS No. 123R. EITF 06-11 is effective for the Company in
the first quarter of fiscal 2009. The adoption of EITF 06-11 will not have a significant impact on the
Company's results of operations, financial position, or cash flows.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities.” SFAS No. 159 permits an entity, on a contract-by-contract basis, to make an
irrevocable election to account for certain types of financial instruments and warranty and. insurance
contracts at fair value, rather than historical cost, with changes in the fair value, whether realized or
unrealized, recognized in earnings. SFAS No. 159 is effective for the Company in the first quarter of
fiscal 2009. The Company does not expect to use the fair value election for any existing assets or
liabilities as of the date of adoption. The adoption of SFAS No. 159 will not have a significant impact
on the Company’s results of operations, financial position, or cash flows.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” SFAS No. 157
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosure about fair
value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal 2009. The
adoption of SFAS No. 157 will not have a significant 1mpact on the Company’s results of operations,
financial posmon or cash flows.

3. Separatlon Costs

In connection with the Separation, the Company incurred costs of $44 million in fiscal 2007,
primarily related to employee costs, including non- -cash compensation expense of $11 million related to
the modification of share option awards at Separation and $12 million related to the dcceleratlon of
restricted share award vesting as a result of Separation. See Note 24 for further information on the
conversion of Tyco International share option awards into Tyco Electronics share option awards.
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4. Restructuring and Other Charges, Net
Charges (credits) to operations by segment during fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006 were as follows:

Fiscal
2008 2007 2006
(in millions)

Electronic Components . .. .......ooiuitintinnannnan.. $166 $54 $ 9

Network Solutions ................. e 23 35 9
Undersea Telecommunications . ... ...................... 5 5 (4) -
Wireless SYStems. . . .. .o tit it i e — 3 ()

$194 $9'f $13

Amounts recognized in. thé Consolidated and Combined Statements of Operations during fiscal
2008, 2007, and 2006 were as follows:

Fiscal
2008 2007 2006
. _—('in rﬁm—i;ns)—
Restructuring and other charges {credits}), net:
‘Cash charges ... ... ...t e e $147 $74 $ 9
Non-cash charges (credits) . . . ........................ 38 18 (2}
Total restructuring and other charges, net. .. ............ ... 185 92

Costofsales. ......... e e . 9 5
| $194 $97 . $13

Cash Charges . '

Activity in the Company ] restructurmg reserves during fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006 is summarized
as follows: :

* ) Transfers
Balance at Changes  from Balance at
Beginning in Held for ' Currency  End of
of Year  Charges Utilization Estimate Sale™  Translation Year

(in millions)
Fiscal 2008 Activity:
Fiscal 2008 Actions

Employee severance . . . o $— 815 - $— $— $118
Facilities exit costs. . .......... — ) — — —_ —
Total . ... .o — 130 ﬂ) i = _— 120
Fiscal 2007 Actions
Employee severance .......... 62 — 39 (1) — 9 31
Facilities exit costs. ... ........ 1 6 (6) 1 — — 2
Other....... ... ... ... ...... __}; 6 (5) i = T 2
Total . ... ... .. ﬁ 12 (50) i e _9 35
Pre-Fiscal 2006 Actions
Facilities exit costs. ... ........ 64 (6 1 = 3 56
Total fiscal 2008 activity ......... 128 146 (76y 1 - 12 21

|
|
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4. Restructuring and Other Charges, Net (Continued)

Transfers :

Balance at Changes  from Balance at

Beginning . " in Held for Currency End of
of Year  Charges Utilization Estimate Sale® Translation Year

(in millions)

Fiscal 2007 Activity:
Fiscal 2007 Actions

ﬂ

Employee severance .......... — 66 3) — — n 62
Facilities exit costs. . ... ....... — 1 (03] — 1 - 1
Other....... ... = 2 i) o R i 1
Total .. ... L = 69 (5 = 1 (D - 64
Fiscal 2006 Actions ‘ v
Employee severance .......... 2 — (2) — — — —
Facilities exit costs. . . .. ....... - e — = — =
Total .. .................. _% —_ ___(2) .= = - —_
Pre-Fiscal 2006 Actions : :
Facilities exit costs. . . ......... 66 5 (6) . — 7 2 64
Total fiscal 2007 activity ......... 68 ‘4 (23)  — _ 8 1 128
Fiscal 2006 Activity:
Fiscal 2006 Actions
Employee severance ....... R — 10 t:] — — — 2
Facilities exit costs. . .. ........ — — — — —_ — —
Other........ ... .......... _— o _— _ — T -_—
Total . ... ... .. . .. — 10 (8) i : — 2
Pre-Fiscal 2006 Actions
Employee severance .......... 7 — (5) (2) — — —
Facilities exit costs. ... ... ..... 7 — (13) 3 — 5 66
cher ..................... ___1 —_— 1 , _(g) i T _
Total . ................... 7 - = 3 66
Total fiscal 2006 activity . ........ $79  $10  §(25) () $— $5 $ 68

(1)  During fiscal 2006, the Printed Circuit Group business was accounted for as a discontinued operation and related
restructuring liabilities were reclassified accordingly. During fiscal 2007, the Printed Circuit Group business was sold and
$8 million of restructuring liabilities were retained by the Company. See Note 6 for additional information.

Fiscal 2008 Actions

The Company initiated restructuring programs during fiscal 2008 primarily relating to the
migration of product lines to low-cost countries and the exit of certain manufacturing operations in the
Electronic Components and Network Solutions segments. In connection with these actions, during fiscal
2008, the Company recorded restructuring charges of $130 million primarily related to employee
severance and benefits. The Company expects to complete all restructuring activities commenced in
fiscal 2008 by the end of fiscal 2010 and to incur additional charges, primarily in the Electronic
Components segment, of approximately $48 million relating to these initiated actions by completion.
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4. Restructuring and Other Charges, Net (Continued)
Fiscal 2007 Actions

Fiscal 2007 actions included the migration of product lines to low-cost countries and the exit of
manufacturing operations in the Electronic Components and Network Solutions segments and the
rationalization of a product line in the Wireless Systems segment. In connection with these actions,
during fiscal 2008 and 2007, the Company recorded restructuring charges of $12 million and
$69 million, respectively, primarily related to employee severance and benefits. The Company expects
to complete all restructuring activities commenced in fiscal 2007 by the end of fiscal 2009 and to incur
additional charges of approximately $5 million relating to these initiated actions by completion.

Pre-Fiscal 2006 Actions

During fiscal 2002, the Company recorded restructuring charges of $779 million primarily related
to a significant downturn in the telecommunications industry and certain other end markets. These
actions have been completed. As of fiscal year end 2008, the remaining restructuring reserves related to
the fiscal 2002 actions are $56 million, relating to exited lease facilities. During fiscal 2008, the
Company recorded restructuring charges of $4 million for interest accretion on these reserves. The
Company expects that its remaining reserves will continue to be paid out over the expected terms of
the obligations which range from one to fifteen years.

Non-Cash Charges and Credits

During fiscal 2008, the Company recorded non-cash charges of $38 million primarily related to
fixed assets and intangibles in connection with exited manufacturing facilities and product lines. Also,
the Company recorded non-cash charges of $9 million in cost of goods sold for write-downs in carrying
value of inventory related to exited product lines in fiscal 2008.

i 1

During fiscal 2007, the Company recorded non-cash charges of $18 million primarily related to
fixed assets in connection with exited manufacturing operations and $5 million in cost of goods sold for
write-downs in carrying value of inventory related to exited product lines. '

During fiscal 2006, the Company recorded non-cash charges of $8 million, including $6 million in
cost of goods sold for write-downs in carrying value of inventory related to exited product lines. Also,
during fiscal 2006, the Company completed exit activities related to previously acquired operations for
which goodwill-had been fully impaired in prior years. As these activities were completed for amounts
less than originally established as acquisition liabilities, the Company recorded the reversal of the
acquisition liabilities as a restructuring and other credit of $4 million. .

Total Restructuring Reserves

The Company’s restructuring reserves by segment at flscal ycar end 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

. Flscal
‘ ' o 2008 2007 :

‘ o ~ "(in millions)
Electronic Components . . ', . ... e [, e $123 § 29
Network Solutions . . ... P P 33 34
Undersea Telecommunications . T e 54 63
Wireless Systems. . . .......... e AN 1 2
ReSIrUCUING TESEIVES . o o v vt e ittt e ettt e $211  $128
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At fiscal year end 2008 and 2007, restructuring reserves were included in the Company’s
Consolidated Balance Sheets as follows:

! Fiscal
2008 2007
: “(in millions) '
Accrued and other current labilities .. ... ... ... ... vr..n. $131 § 66
Other liabilities . ... .. vt i i e e e e . 80 62
ReStIUCTULINg TESEIVES . . o o o v o et e i e e e e aiee s $211 $128

5. Impairment of Goodwill and Long-Lived Assets

During fiscal 2008, the Company recorded impairment charges of $137 million, consisting of a
goodwill impairment of $103 million and long-lived asset impairment of $34 million. The goodwill
impairment, which related to the Global Appllcatlon and Tooling Division reporting unit of the
Electronic Components segment, was incurred when the reporting unit experienced slower growth and
profitability than management’s previous expectations and lower future expectations in certain end
markets. See Note 10 for additional information regarding the impairment of goodwﬂl The long-lived
asset impairment was comprised of $22 million related to"the ‘pending divestiture of the Company 5
Battery Systems business and $12 million related to certain dedicated manufacturing lines serving the
North American automotive market. These charges are presented in.impairment of goodwill and
fong-lived assets in the Consolidated and Combined Statements of Operations.

In September 2008, the Company’s board of directors authorized management to proceed with
strategic alternatives with respect to the Company’s Battery Systems business, a business of the
Electronic Components segment. This event qualifies as a triggering event, requiring the Company to
assess the recoverability of the asset group. Based on a negotiated sales price of $30 million, the
Company has determined that the carrying value of the Battery Systems business” assets and liabilities
exceeds its fair value, Consequently, a pre-tax impairment charge of $22 million has been recorded in
fiscal 2008 to write the carrying value of the assets and liabilities.down to the fair value.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, the Company determined that the certain North
American automotive customer-specific product lines in the Electronic Components segment were
impaired due to declining future production expectations. The Company determined that an
impairment test was necessary due to changes in the North American automotive industry. These asset
groups were assessed for recoverability under SFAS No. 144 and impaired based on estimates of the
asset group fair values. Using a discounted cash flow analysis, the Company determined that a pre-tax
impairment charge of $12 million was required to write the carrying value down to the fair value.

6. Discontinued Operations

During fiscal 2008, the Company was authorized by its board of directors to pursue the divestiture
of its Radio Frequency Components and Subsystem and Automotive Radar Sensors businesses. In
September 2008, the Company completed the sale of the Radio Frequency Components and Subsystem
business for net cash proceeds of $427 million and recorded a $184 million pre-tax gain on the sale. In
September 2008, the Company also completed the sale of the Automotive Radar Sensors business for
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6. Discontinued Operations (Coentinued)

net cash proceeds of $42 million and recorded a $31 million pre-tax gain on the sale. The proceeds
received in both transactions are subject to final working capital adjustments.

The divestiture of the Company’s Power Systems business was authorized during fiscal 2007. As a
result, the Company assessed Power Systems’ assets for impairment and determined that the book value
of the Power Systems business exceeded its estimated fair value. The Company recorded a $585 million
pre-tax impairment charge in fiscal 2007 in income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income
taxes on the Consolidated and Combined Statement of Operations. In fiscal 2008, the Company
completed the sale of its Power Systems business for $102 million in net cash proceeds and recorded a
$51 million pre-tax gain on the sale.

During fiscal 2006, the Company entered into a definitive agreement to divest the Printed Circuit
Group bustness. In fiscal 2007, the Company completed the sale of the Printed Circuit Group business
for $227 miltion i in net cash proceeds and recorded a $45 million pre-tax gain on the sale.

During fiscal 2006, the Company recorded a goodwnll_lmpanrment of $316 million in income (loss)
from discontinued operations related to the Radio Frequency Components and Subsystem and
Automotive Radar Sensors reporting units, which were reporting units in the Wireless Systems segment
prior to being reclassified to held for sale. The impairment charge was incurred when the reporting
units experienced slower growth and profitability than management’s previous expectations and lower
future expectations due to sales declines in certain end markets,

The Radio Frequency Components and Subsystem, Automotive Radar Sensors, Power Systems, and
Printed Circuit Group businesses met the held for sale and discontinued operations criteria and have
been included in discontinued operations in all periods presented. Prior to reclassification to
discontinued operations, the Radio Frequency Components and Subsystem and Automotive Radar
Sensors businesses were components of the Wireless Systems segment. Both the Power Systems and
Printed Circuit Group businesses were components of the Other segment, which has been renamed the
Undersea Telecommunications segment.

The following table reflects net sales, pre-tax income (loss) from discontinued operations, pre-tax
gain on sale of discontinued operations including impairments and costs to sell, and income taxes for
tiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006:

Fiscal
2008 2007 2006
(in millions)

Netsales ............. e $603 $ 991 $1,429
Pre-tax income (loss) from discontinued operations .. ... .. $ 14 - $(598) $ (328)
Pre-tax gain on sale of discontinued operations .......... 266 45 —
Income tax (expense) benefit .............. .. ... ... 92) 177 82
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income

BAXES & ottt i e e $188 $(376) $ (246)
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The following table presents balance sheet information for discontinued operations at fiscal year
end 2007; there were no such amounts at fiscal year end 2008:

Fiscal

2007

ACCOUNTS receivable, MEL . o v v oot e e e e e $188
IOVEILOTIES v ot it s it e e e e e e 193
Intangible assets, Net .. ... ..o i 29
Property, plant, and equipment, net . .. .. e e e C o4
(000 17 VoY= b TSP 1
TOtAl @SSEES © - o oo et et e e e - §505
Accounts payable ... ... ... .. $ 78
Accrued and other current liabilities . . . . .. ... ... ... . i ot 67
Other liabi]i‘t_ies .......................................... 121

Total Habilities . . . . o et e e et e $266

7. Acquisitions
Acquisitions

The Company acquired one business for an aggregate cost of $3 million in fiscal 2008. During
fiscal 2006, the, Company acquired one business for an aggregate cost of $18 million and the remaining
interest in a joint venture for $5 million. These acquisitions were funded utilizing cash generated from
operations. These acquisitions did not have a material effect on the Company’s results of operations,
financial position, or cash flows.

Holdback and Earn-Out Liabilities

" The Company paid cash related to holdback and earn-out liabilities of approxlmately $1 million
and $82 million durlng fiscal 2007 and 2006, respectively, relating to certain prior period acquisitions.
The total cash paid in fiscal 2006 was reported in discontinued operations as it related to the Printed
Circuit Group business. Holdback liabilities represent a portion of the purchase price withheld from the !
seller pending finalization of the acquisition balance sheet and other pre-acquisition contingencies. '
Additionally, certain acquisitions have provisions that would require the Company to make additional
contingent purchase price payments to the sellers if the acquired company achieves certain milestones
subsequent to its acquisition by the Company. These payments are tied to certain performance
measures, such as sales, gross margin, or earnings growth and generally are treated as additional
purchase price. : |

At fiscal year end 2008 and 2007, holdback and earn-out liabilities of $61 million and $59 million,
respectively, were included in other liabilities on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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8. Inventories

‘At fiscal year end 2008 and 2007, inventories consisted of the fotlowing:

Fiscal

2008 2007
(in millions)
Rawmaterials . . . ......... ... .. i § 402 § 324
Work in progress. . .. ... i e e e 926 856
Finished goods ....... .. ... 0 i, 984 869
INVEOIOTIES . . . . o et e e e e $2312 $2,049

9. Property, Plant, and Equipment, Net
At fiscal year end 2008 and 2007, net property, plant, and equipment consisted of the following:

Fiseal
2008 2007
(in milions)
Land and improvements .. .............reereenunnnnin- $ 252 § 248
Buildings and leasehold improvements .. .................. 1,375 1,303
Machinery and equipment . ... ....... .. ... ... .. .. ... 6,691 6,173
Construction im ProCess . . . . vttt o it it it et 492 467
Gross property, plant, and equipment . . . .. ... e e - 8810 . 8,191
Accumulated depreciation . ... ... ... ... ..., e (5,293) (4, 779)
Property, plant, and equipment, net . ..................... $3517 §$ 3412

Depreciation expense was $523 million, $480 million, and $426 million in fiscal 2008, 2007, and
2006, respectively.

During fiscal 2007, the Company exercised its option to buy five cable-laying sea vessels that were
previously leased to the Company and used by the Undersea Telecommumcatlons segment at a cost of
$280 million, which was reflected as a capital expenditure.
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10. Goodwill

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by segment for fiscal 2008 and 2007 were as
follows: : .

Electronic Network  Wireless
Components  Solutions  Systems Total

. (in millions})
Balance at September 29,2006 .. .......... ... ... $5,973 $843 $319  $7.135
Purchase accounting adjustments . . .. .................. (1) 1 — —
Currency translation . . ... ... ... .. i 36 6 — 42
Balance at September 28, 2007 . ......... ... . oo 6,008 850 39 7177
Purchase accounting adjustments . . . ... ... oo 3 — — 3
Currency translation . . .. ...t (8) (1) _ %)
Impairment . ... ... ...t (103) — — (103)
Balance at September 26,2008 ....... ... ... .. ... ... $5,900 $849 $319  $7,068

During fiscal 2008, the Company recorded a goodwill impairment of $103 million in its Electronic
Components segment related to the Global Application and Tooling Division reporting unit. The
impairment charge was incurred when the reporting unit experienced slower growth and profitability
than management’s previous expectations and lower future expectations in certain end markets.

In performing the annual step 1 goodwill impairment test, the Company determined the fair value
of the Global Application and Tooling Division reporting unit based on a discounted cash flows analysis
incorporating the Company’s estimate of future operating performance, The results of the step I
goodwill impairment test indicated that the book value of the reporting unit exceeded the fair value of
the reporting unit. The failure of the step I goodwill impairment test triggered a step 11 goodwill
impairment test in which the Company determined the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s
goodwill by comparing the reporting unit fair value determined in step I to the fair value of the
reporting unit’s net assets, including unrecognized intangible assets. The step 11 goodwill impairment
test indicated that there is no implied value related to the goodwill, resulting in an impairment of the
reporting unit’s entire goodwill balance of $103 million. The goodwill impairment is presented in
impairment of goodwill and long-lived assets in the Consolidated and Combined Statements of
Operations.

11. Intangible Assets, Net

The Company’s intangible assets at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

Fiscal
2008 2007
Weighted Weighted
Gross Net Average Gross Net Average

Carrying Accomulated Carrying Amertization Carrying Accumulated Carrying Amortization
Amount Amortization Amount Period Amount Amortization Amount Period

($ in millions)

Intellectual property ... 3$815 $(342) $473 24 years $809  $(294) 8515 24 years
Other . ............. 16 (3) 13 49 years 14 (3) 11 50 years
Total . .............. $831 $(345) $486 24 years  $823 $(297) $526 24 years

2008 Form 10-K 139




TYCO ELECTRONICS LTD,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS' (Continued)

11. Intangible Assets, Net (Continued)

Intangible asset amortization expense, which is recorded in selling, general, and administrative
expenses, was $36 million, $34 million, and $33 million for fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively. The
estimated aggregate amortization expense on intangible assets currently owned by the Company is
expected to be as follows:

{in millions)

Fiscal 2009 . . .. ... ... [ $ 35
Fiscal 2010 . . . o e e 34
Fiscal 2001 . . . e e e 34
Fiscal 20012 .. ... . e e C32
Fiscal 2013 ... . e 32
Thereafter ....... e e e e e e e e " 319

486

12. Accrued and Other Current Liabilities

At fiscal year end 2008 and 2007, accrued and other current liabilities consisted of the following:

Fiscal
2008 2007
’ (in millions)
Accrued payfqll and employee benefits . . ................... $ 416 § 349
Income taxes payable . . ... ........... P 215 245
ReSITUCLUTING TESETVES . . . . o v vttt et e ettt e e aa e 131 66
Dividends payable .......... e e e e 74 70
Deferred inCome taxes . . ..o vve i enie e 28 49
Other ... 732 638
Accrued and other current liabilities . .. ... ... .. ... ..., . $1,596  $1,417

140 2008 Form 10-K




TYCO ELECTRONICS LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND- COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

13. Deht
Debt at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007 was as follows:

Fiscal

2008 2007
(in millions)
6.00% senior notes due 2012 . .1 ... .. i $ 800 '$ 800
5.95% senior notes due 2014 ... ... .. e L. 300 —
6.55% senior notes due 2017 ... ...... ... ... PP 753 - 747
7.125% senior notes due 2037 ... 1....... e . 498 498
Unsecured senior bridge loan facility ....... e e e — 550
Unsecured senior revolving credit facility ................... — 700
‘Commercial paper . .. ............. P " 647 —
Other ... ... ... ... ... e 183 83
Total debt .. ..o [P ‘3,181 3378
Less current portion™ .. ............ e 20 5
Long-termdebt .. ........... e LrLL.. $3,161 $3373

(1} The current portién of long—len'ﬁ debt at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007 was comprised of amounts shown as other.
! ) oo - ‘ ;

During September 2007, Tyco Electronics Group S.A. (“TEGSA”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of *
the Company, issued $800 million principal amount of 6.00% senior notes due 2012, $750 million
principal amount of 6.55% senior notes due 2017, and $500 million principal amount of 7.125% senior
notes due 2037. Tn connection with the issuance of the senior notes, TEGSA and the Company entered’
into 'a registration rights agreement with the initial purchasers under which TEGSA and the Company
agreed, for the benefit of thé holders of the senior notes, to file with the SEC an 'exchange offer '
rcgistration‘ statement within 210 days after the date of the original issue of the notes. The registration
stalement became effective April 15, 2008, and the exchange offer was completed on May 20, 2008, -
meeting the registration requirements. ' '

During July 2008, TEGSA issued $300 million principal amount of 5.95% senjor notes due 2014.
The notes were offered and sold pursuant to an effective registration statement on Form S-3 filed on
July 1, 2008. Interest on the notes accrues from their date of issuance at a rate of 5.95% per year and
is payable semi-annually on January 15 and July 15 of each year, beginning on January 15, 2009. The
notes are TEGSAs unsecured senior obligations and rank equally in right of payment with all of the
existing and future senior debt and senior to any subordinated indebtedness that TEGSA may incur.
Net proceeds from the issuance were approximately $298 million. ' :

In July 2008, a wholly-owned subsidiary of TEGSA issued $100 million principal amount of profit. .
sharing notes with an initial maturity date of 2010. Remuneration on the notes is paid quarterly, '
commencing on October 15, 2008, based on the after. tax profits of the TEGSA subsidiary, with
quarterly remuneration not to exceed 0.9615% of the outstanding principal.
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As of September 28, 2007, TEGSA had $550 million of indebtedness outstanding under its
unsecured senior bridge loan facility, which bore interest at the rate of 5.47%. During fiscal 2008, the
Company paid off all balanccs and cancelled all commitments under the unsecured senior bridge loan
facility.

In April 2007, TEGSA entered into a five-year unsecured senior revolving credit facility. The
commitments under the revolving credit facility total $1,500 million; however, $75 million of these
commitments are from a subsidiary of Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. Due to the Chapter.11
bankruptcy filing by-Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. in September 2008, the Company believes it is
unlikely that this $75 million commitment will be honored. Accordingly, the Company’s uscable
commitments under the five-year unsecured senjor revolving credit facility are likely $1,425 million.
Borrowings under the five-year unsecured senior revolving credit facility bear interest, at TEGSA’s
option, at a base rate or the London interbank offered rate (“LIBOR”) plus a margin dependent on
TEGSA's credit ratings and the amount drawn under the facility. TEGSA is required 1o pay an annual
facility fee ranging from 4.5 1o ]2 5 ba51s points depending on its credit ratings.

As of September 28, 2007, TEGSA had $700 million of indebtedness outstanding under the
five-year unsecured senior revolving credit facility, which bore interest at the rate of 5.38%. In July
2008, the Company paid off all amounts cutstanding under the five-year unsecured senior revolving
credit facility with proceeds from the issuance of the $300 million principal amount of 5.95% senior
notes and $100 mllhon principal amount of profit sharing notes, as well as cash from operations.

In November 2007, TEGSA commenced issuing commercial paper to U.S. institutiona accredlted
investors and qualified mstltutlona] buyers in accordance with available exemptions from the '
registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities Act”), as part of the Company’s
ongoing effort to enhance financial flexibility and to potentially decrease the cost of borrowings. As of
fiscal year end 2008, TEGSA had $647 million of commerc1al paper ‘outstanding at an average interest
rate of 4.01%. Borrowmgs under the commercial paper program are backed by the flve-year unsecured
senior revolving credit facility.

/ .
TEGSA's payment obligations under its senior notes, five-year unsecured senior revolving credit
facd;ty, commercial paper, and profit sharmg notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Tyco
Electronics Ltd.

The Company’s debt agreements contain financial and other customary covenants. As of -
September 26, 2008, the Company was in compliance with al] of‘its debt covenants.

During 2008, the Company entered into interest rate swaps to effectively convert fixed-rate debt
into variable-rate debt. As of September 26, 2008, the Compaﬂy had outstanding interest rate swaps
designated as fair value hedges on.$300 million principal amount of the 6.55% serior notes and
$200 million. principal amount of the 6:00% senior notes. The maturity date of the interest rate swaps
coincides with the maturity date of the underlying debt. Under these agreements, the Company receives
fixed rates of interest applicable to-the underlying debt and pays floating rates of interest based on six
month LIBOR. These agreements do not include an exchange of the underlying debt principal
amounts. The fair value of the interest rate swaps was $6 million at September 26, 2008 and was
recorded in other assets with a corresponding increase in the debt obligation. The changes in fair value
of both the interest rate swap agreements and the underlying debt obligation were classified as interest
expense and were directly offsetting. See Note 15 for additional information on interest rate swaps.
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In periods prior to Separation, Tyco International’s consolidated debt, exclusive of amounts
incurred directly by the Company, was proportionately allocated to the Company based on the
historical funding requirements of the Company using historical data. Net interest expense was
allocated in the same proportions as debt through June 1, 2007 and includes the impact of interest rate
swap agreements designated as fair value hedges. For fiscal 2007 and 2006, Tyco International allocated
to Tyco Electronics interest expense of $150 million and $234 million, respectively, and interest income
of $20 million and $33 million, respectively.

In addition, Tyco International allocated to the Company loss on retirement of debt in the amount
of $232 million for fiscal 2007, which is included in other income (expense), net in the Consolidated
and Combined Statements of Operations. The method utilized to allocate loss on retirement of debt
was consistent with the allocation of debt and net interest expense as described above.

Managemeﬂt belleves the allocatlon basis for debt net interest expense, and loss on retirement of
debt was reasonable based on the hlstorlcal financing needs of the Company; however, these amounts
may not be mdlcatlve of the actual amounts that the Company would have incurred had it been
operating as an independent, publicly- trqqed company for the periods presented.

The fair.value of the Company’s debt was approximately $3,115 million and $3,413 million at fiscal
year end 2008 and 2007, respectively. For further detail of methods-and assumptions used in
determining fair value, see: Note 2.

The aggregate amounts of total debt maturing durmg the next five years and thereafter are as
follows: . S . .
- . ' . . ' 7 ' ) oo (in millions)
Fiscal 2009 . ... ... ... .. ... .. ... RN e $ 667
Fiscal 2010 . ... oo v e e - 101+
Fiscal 2011 ....... e e e e et e
Fiscal 2012 ... ..l e e e e el —

Fiscal 2013, . . .. e e e 858 .
Thereafter ........ LeseesaauaiiLLLLL L e 1,554
Total .. ... . PR PN $3,181

The gutstaliding commercial paper of $647 million at Séptember 26, 2008 is classified as iong-tcrm
as borrowings under the commercial paper program are backed by the five-year unsecured senior
revolving credit facility. On the maturity schedule above, the $647 million is presented as maturing in
fiscal 2009. ' ‘

Certain of the Company’s operating subsidiaries have overdraft or similar types of facilities, which
totaled $42 million, of which $41 million was not drawn and available at fiscal year end 2008. These
facilities, most of which are renewable, expire at various dates through the year 2010 and were
established primarily within the Company’s international operations.-

1

14. Guaran‘tees_l

Pursuant to the Separation and Distribution Agreement and Tax Sharing Agreement, upon
Separation, the Company entered into certain guarantee commitments and indemnifications with Tyco
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International and Covidien. Under these agreements, principally the Tax Sharing Agreement, Tyco
International, Covidien, and Tyco Electronics share 27%, 42%, and 31%, respectively, of certain
contingent liabilities relating to unresolved tax matters of legacy Tyco International. The effect of the
Tax Sharing Agreement is to indemnify the Company for 69% of certain liabilities settled by the
Company with respect to unresolved legacy tax matters. Pursuant to that indemnification, the. Company
has made similar indemnifications to Fyco International and Covidien with respect to 31% of certain
liabilities settled by the companies with respect to unresolved legacy tax matters. If any of the
companies responsible for all or a portion of such liabilities were to default in its payment of costs or
expenses related to any such liability, the Company would be responsible for a poruon of the defaulting
party or parties’ obligation.

The Company’s indemnification created under the Tax Sharing Agreement qualifies as a guarantee
of a third party entity’s debt under FIN 45, “Guarantor’s Accountmg and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of ]ndebtedness of Others.” FIN 45 addresses the measurement
and disclosure of a guarantor’s obligation to pay a debt incurred by a third party. To value the initial
obligation under FIN 45, the Company considered a range of probablhty -weighted future cash flows
that represent the hkellhood of payment of each class of hablhty by each of the three post-Separation’
companies. The future cash flows incorporate interest and penalties that the companies believe will be
incurred on each class of liabilities and are discounted to the present value to reflect the value
associated with each at Separation. The FIN 45 calculation includes a premium that reflects the cost
for an insurance carrier to stand in and assume the payment obligation.

Based on the probability-weighted future cash flows related to the unresolved tax matters, the -
Company, under the Tax Sharing Agreement, faces a maximum potential liability of $3 billion, based on
undiscounted estimates and interest and penalties used to determine the fair value of the FIN 45
guarantee and an assumption of 100% default on the parts of Tyco International and Covidien, a
likelihood that management believes to be remote. In the event that the Company is required, due to
bankruptcy or other business interruption on the part of Tyco International or Covidien, to pay more
than the contractually determined 31%, the Company retains the right to seek payment from the
effected entity.

At September 28, 2007, the probability-weighted cash flows and risk premium of certain unresolved
legacy tax matters for which the Company has made indemnifications to Tyco International and
Covidien resulted in a fair value of the FIN 45 liability of $296 million, which was reflected as an
adjustment to contributed surplus on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. During fiscal 2008, the ,
Company, while assessing-its income tax positions under FIN 48, decreased this liability by $14 million
and recorded the adjustment to other income on the Consolidated and Combined Statement of
Operations. Also, in fiscal 2008, this liability was increased by $57 million as a result of the completion
by Tyco International of certain proposed tax adjustments to U.S. federal income tax returns. (See
Note 17 for additional information regarding the proposed tax adjusiments.) As of September 26, 2008,
the total liability of $339 million was recorded in income taxes on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

In disposing of assets or businesses, the Company often provides representations, warranties,
and/or indemnities to cover various risks including unknown damage to the assets, environmental risks
involved in the sale of real estate, liability for investigation and remediation of environmental
contamination at waste dl%poqal sites and manufacturing facilities, and unidentified tax liabilities and
legal fees related to _periods prior to disposition. The Company does not have the ability to estimate
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the potential liability from such indemnities because they relate to unknown conditions;; however, the
Company has no reason to believe that these uncertainties would have a matenal adverse effect on the
Company s results of operatxons f1nanc1al position, or cash flows.

In the normal course of busmess the Company is liable for contract completion and product
performance. In the opinion of management, such obligations will not significantly affect the .
Company’s results of operations, financial position, or cash flows.

The Company generally records estimated product warranty costs at the time of sale. For further .
information on estimated product warranty see Note 2. The changes in the Company s warranty l1ab111ty

for fiscal 2008 and 2007 are as follows: . oo i

Fiscal

2008 2007

(in mllllons)
Balance at beginning of fiscal year .......... e ... 3230 825
Warranties issued during the fiscal year ... ...... ... ... ... ... 7 6 .
Warranty expirations and changes in estlmate .............. S 4 (3
Settlements .+ .. ..., ... i P I € ) I )

Balance at end of fiscal YEAT ot e et ' $30  §23°

15. Financial Instruments . . ) "

The Company’s financial instruments consist primarily of cash and cash:equivalents, accounts
receivable, accounts payable, debt, and derivative financial instruments. The fair value of cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and derivative financial instruments approximated
book value at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007. See Note-13 for the fair value estimates of debt.

To the extent that Tyco International entered into hedges on behalf of the Company pnor to
Separation, the statement of operations effects of those hedges have been allocated to the Company as
part of the Tyco International general corporate overheacl expense allocation or interest expense
allocation as appropriate. See Note 18.

' .
. f . L3

The cash flows related to derwatlve financial instruments are reported in the operating activities
section of the Consolidated and Combined Statements of Cash. Flow.

The Company’s derivative financial instruments present certain market and counterparty | risks;
however, concentration of counterparty risk is mitigated as the Company deals with a variety of major
financial institutions worldwide with long-term Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s credit ratings of A/A2
or higher. In addition, only conventional derivative financial instruments are utilized. The Company is
exposed to potential losses: if a counterparty fails to-perform.according to the terms of its agreement.
With respect to counterparty net asset positions.recognized at September. 26, 2008, the-Company has
assessed the likelihood of counterparty default as remote. At this time, the Company is not required,
nor. does it require, collateral or other security to be furnished by the counterparties to its derivative
financial instruments. v :

o . i f
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Foreign Exchange Risks : .

As permitted under the Company’s'risk management program and policies, the Company uses
derivative and non- derlvatlve financial instruments to manage certain exposures to forelgn currency
risks.

As part of managing the exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates, the Company .
utilizes foreign exchange forwards and swaps. The objective of these contracts is to minimize impacts to
cash flows and profitability due to changes in foreign currency ¢xchange rates on intercompany
transactions,. accounts receivable, accounts payable, and forecasted cash transactions. These contracts
are recorded at fair value with changes in the derivatives’ fair value recognized currently in earnings in
selling, general, and administrative expenses in the Consolidated and Combined Statements of
Operations. At fiscal year end 2008 and 2007, the Company had net liabilities of $5 million and
$8 mitlion, respectwely, on the Consolidated Balance Sheet related to these transactions.

The Company centrally manages the cash of most of its subsidiaries. To convert foreign.currency
cash flows in a cost effective manner, the Company enters into currency swaps and foreign exchange
forwards. The terms of these instruments are generally less than one year. The changes in the fair
values of these contracts and of the underlying hedged exposures are largely offsetting and are
recorded’ in. selling, general and admlmstratwe expenses in the Consolidated and Combined Statements
of Operations.

Interest Rate Risk Management

The Company issues debt, from time to time, in capital markets to fund its operations. Such
borrowings can result in interest rate and/or currency. exposure, To manage these exposures and to
minimize overall interest cost, the Company has used, and may use in the future, interest rate swaps to
convert a portion of its fixed-rate debt into variable-rate debt (fair value hedges) and/or convert a
portion of its variable-rate debt into fixed-rate debt (cash flow hedges). As of fiscal year end 2008, the
Company had outstandmg interest rate swaps designatéd as fair value hedges on $300 million prmmpal
amount of the 6.55% senior notes and $200 million principal amount of the 6.00% senior notes. The
maturity date of the interest rate swaps coincides with the maturity date of the underlying debt. Under
these agreements, the Company receives fixed rates of interest applicable to the underlying debt and
pays floating rates of interest based on six month LIBOR. As of September 26, 2008, the Company’s
interest rate swaps were in an asset position of $6 million. The changes in fair value-of both the
interest rate swap agreements and the underlying debt obligation were classified as interest expense and
were dlrectly offsetting, As of September 28, 2007, the Company had no outstanding interest rate
swaps.

During fiscal 2007, in-anticipation of i lssumg fixed rate dcbt the Company entered into and,
concurrent with the Company’s fixed-rate debt issuance, terminated forward starting intercst rate swaps
to hedge the variability in interest expense that would result from changes in interest rates between the
date of the swap and the Company's anticipated date of issuing fixed-rate debt. These forward starting
interest rate swaps were designated as effective- hedges of the probable interest payments under SFAS
No. 133, Upon the issuance of the Company’s senior notes in September 2007, these swaps were
terminated for a cash payment of $54 million. The effective portion of these swaps of $53 million was
recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income and is recognized in earnings as interest expense
over the remaining term of the related debt instruments. The ineffective portion of $1 million was
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recorded as interest expense in the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements in fiscal* 2007. In
fiscal 2008, the Company recognized $6 million of interest expense relating to the swaps in the
Consolidated and Combined Statement of Operations. '

Hedge of Net Investmeni

The Company hedges its net investments in certain foreign operations using intercompany
non-derivative financial instruments denominated in the same currencies. The aggregate notional value
of these hedges was $1,161 million and $3,675 million at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007, respectively. As
a result of the hedges of net investment, the Company reclassified a foreign exchange loss of
$168 million and $118 million, respectively, in fiscal 2008 and 2007. These amounts were recorded as
currency translation, a component of other comprehensive income, offsetting foreign exchange gains or
Josses attributable to the translation of the net investments. (Sec additional information in Note 23.) -
The Company did not hedge net investments in foreign operations during fiscal 2006.

Commodity Hedges

As part of managing the exposure to certain commodity price fluctuations, the Company utilizes
forward contracts. The objective of these contracts is to minimize impacts to cash flows and profitability
due to changes in prices of commodities used in production. The Company accounts for the contracts
on its Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair valuc. The effective portion of changes in the fair value of a
derivative that is designated as, and meets the required criteria for, a cash flow hedge is recorded in
other comprehensive income and reclassified into earnings in the same period or periods during which
the underlying hedged item affects earnings. Ineffective portions of a cash flow hedge are recognized
currently in selling, general, and administrative expenses in the Consolidated and Combined Statements
of Operations. o ' '

At September 26, 2008, the Company’s commodity hedges, all of which related.to gold and had
maturities of less than one year, had a notional value of $21 million and were in a gain position of -
$2 million. The hedges were effective as of September 26, 2008, resulting in.a reclassification of the
$2 million gain to other comprehensive income. No amounts were reclassified into earnings during -
fiscal 2008. The Company expects that significantly all of the balance in accumulated other
comprehensive income associated with the commodities hedges will be reclassified into the .
Consolidated and Combined Statements of Operations during fiscal 2009 as adjustments to cost of .
sales. The Company did not engage in commodities hedges during fiscal 2007 or 2006.
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16. Retirement Plans
Adoption of SFAS No. 158

The Company adopted the funded status recognition provisions of SFAS No. 158 effective
September 28, 2007. The impact of the adoption of SFAS No. 158 on the Consolidated Balance Sheet
at September 28, 2007 was as follows:

Prior to SFAS  Impact of SFAS  After SFAS

. ' T No, 158 No. 158 No. 158
- . Adoption Adoption Adoption
. ’ (in millions)
Assets:

Current deferred income tax assets. .. ........ . ... .. $ 320 - % 5 $ 325

Otherassets .......... .. ..., 281 55 336

Non-current deferred income tax assets ...... S 1,274 123 1,397

Total Assets . ........ [P - $23,505 $ 183 $23,688
Liabilities and Sharcholders’ Equity:

Accrued and other current liabilities . . . ......... . ... .. $ 1,401 $ 16 $ 1,417

Non-current deferred tax liabilities . .. ... ... [ 265 6 271

Long-term pension and postretirement liabilities . . ... .. .. 221 386 607

Accumulated other comprehensive income ... .......... 1,277 (225 - 1,052

- Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity ............ $23,505 $ 183 $23,688

'

Defined Benefit Pension Plans

Prior to Separation, the Company participated through its former parent, Tyco International, in a
number of contributory and noncontributory defined benefit retirement plans. Subsequent to
Separation, the Company assumed sponsorship of those plans, covering certain of its U.S. and non-U.S.
employees, - designed in accordance with local custom and practice. Net periodic pension benefit cost is
based on the utilization of the projected unit credit method of calculation and is charged to the
Consolidated and Combined Statements of Operations on a systematic basis over the expected average
remaining service lives of current participants. Contribution amounts are actuarially determined. The
benefits under. the defined benefit plans are based on various factors, such as years of service and
compensation. ‘ '

Prior to Scparation, the Company participated through its former parent in one co-mingled plan
that included plan participants of other Tyco International subsidiaries. The Company recorded its
portion of the co-mingled plan’s expense and the related obligation, which has been actuarially
determined based on the Company’s specific benefit formulas by participants and allocated plan assets.
The contribution amounts were determined in total for the co-mingled plan and allocated to the
Company based on headcount. Management believes such allocations were reasonable. In fiscal 2007,
this plan was legally separated, resulting in a reallocation of assets based on the Employee Retirement
Income Security Act (“ERISA”) prescribed calculation.

The Company’s measurement date is August 31 for each year presented.
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The net periodic benefit cost (credit) for all U.S. and non-U.S. defined benefit pension plans in
fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006 was as follows:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
Fiscal Fiscal
2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
(% in millions) -
Service cost . ... .. ... e $ 5 $ 5 $ 4 $73 §$60 5 62
IREETESE COSE © v v v v e e e e e a e 56 55 50 83 70 60
Expected return on plan assets ... . .......... " (75) (74) (72) (73) (60)  (51)
Amortization of prior service credit .......... — — — (2) 2) (2)
Amortization of net actuarial loss . ........... 7 13 15 8 20 24
Curtailment/settlement gain and special
termination benefits .. ... ... oo 1 (10) — (3) (1) —
Net periodic benefit cost (credit) ............ $ (6) $(11) $ (3) $8 § & $ 93
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine
net pension cost (credit) during the period: .
Discount Tale . . ... ovvvrininnennnnenns 6.35% 6.00% 525% 4.70% 4.15% 3.85%
Expected return on plan assets . . .. .......... 7.99% 799% 799% 598% 573% 5.76%
Rate of compensation increase .. ............ 400% 4.00% 400% 345% 319% . 3.06%

The following table represents the changes in benefit obligations, plan assets, and the net amount
recognized on the Consolidated Balance Sheets for all U.S. and non-U.S. defined benefit plans at fiscal
year end 2008 and 2007:

.S, Plans Non-U.S. Plans
Fiscal : Fiscal
2008 2007 2008 2007

_($ in millions)
Change in benefit obligations:

Benefit obligation at end of prior period. . ......... ... a0 $918 $947 $1,758 381,602
S EIVICE COSE. v v vt e et 5 5 73 60
TIEETESE COSL & o v v v v e e e e e e et 56 55 83 70
Employee contributions . ... ... — — 7 6
Plan amendments . .. .o vv it vttt in e e e — — 2 3
Actuarial BAIN . . ... (38) (34 (51)  (126)
Benefits and administrative expensespaid . . .......... ... o L © (63 (3D (68) (60)
(Divestitures) new plans. .. ... ..o — @) 4 31
Curtailment/settlement gain and special termination benefits .. ... .. — — &N (6)
Currency translation ............... .o i, e — 0 = (14) 118

Benefit obligation at end of period . . .. ... ... i $858 $918 $1,785 §1,758
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U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
Fiscal - Fiscal
2008 2007 2008 2007
($ in millions)

Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at end of prior period . . . ... . ........... §964 $951 51,194 $1,002
Actual returnon planassets ... ...... ... ... . . . . (59) 114 (80) 94
Employer contributions . .......... e 1 1 76 68
Employee contributions . . . .. ... ... L L — — 7 0
(Divestitures) new plans .. ........ ... ... .. i . — (5D — 16
Benefits and administrative expenses paid. . .. .................. (63) (51)  (68) (60)
Settlement gain and special termination benefits . . .. ............. — — 7 (6)
Currency translation . ........ ... . . i — — (23) 74
Fair value of plan assets atend of period . . .................... $843 $964 $1099 $1,194
Funded status . ............ e $(15) $ 46 S (686) $ (564)
Contributions after the measurement date . ... ................. —  — 8 11
Net amount recognized . . ... ... v vttt it e $(15) $ 46 $(678) § (553)
Amounts recognized on the Consclidated Balance Sheets:

Other assets ... ..ottt e e $ 2 $§63 5§ 8 $ 14
Accrued and other current liabilities. . . .......... ... ... ...... 4 €))] (10) &
Long-term pension and postretirement liabilities . . .. .. ........... (13) (14) (676) (559)

Net amount recognized . . .................... e $(15) $ 46 §(678) $(553)

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine pension benefit
obligations at period end:

DisCOUNt TALE . . . it ittt et i e s 705% 635% 511% 4.70%

Rate of compensation increase. . ......... ..ot 4.00% 4.00% 3.63% 345%

The pre-tax amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income for all U.S. and
non-U.S. defined benefit pension plans in fiscal 2008 and 2007 was as follows:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans

Fiscal Fiscal
2008 2007 2008 20607

(in millions)
Change in net loss:

Unrecognized net foss at end of prior period . .................. $170 $200 $ 240 $-400
Current year changes recorded to accumulated other comprehensive

mcome (Joss) . . ... e 75 (27 98 (142)
Amortization reclassified toearnings . ................ ... .. ... (N (13) . (8) (20)
Curtailment/settlement reclassified to earnings .. ................ — 10 3 2
Other.......... I — — ) —
Unrecognized net loss at end of period ... .................... $238 $170 § 326 § 240
Change in prior service credits:
Unrecognized prior service credit at end of prior period .. ....... .. $— §— § (18) 8 (21)
Amortization reclassified toearnings . ... ... ... . .. o L. — — 2 2
Other . . .. e — — . 3 1
Unrecognized prior service credit at end of period ............... $— $— 3§ (13) § (18)
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The estimated amortization from accumulated other comprehensive income into net periodic
benefit cost in fiscal 2009 is as follows:

US. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
(in millions)
Amortization of net actuarial loss . . .......... ... ... $(15) $(14)
. Amortization of prior service credit. ... ... e — 1

09 803

In determining the expected return on plan assets, the Company considers the relative weighting of
plan assets by class and individual asset class performance expectations as provided by their external
advisors.

The investment strategy for the U.S. pension plans has been governed by the Company’s
Investment Committee; investment strategies for non-U.S. pension plans are governed locally. The
Company’s investment strategy for its pension plans is to manage the plans on a going concern basis.
Current investment policy is to achieve a reasonable return on assets, subject to a prudent level of
portfolio risk, for the purpose of enhancing the sccurity of benefits for participants. Projected returns
are based primarily on pro forma asset allocation and expected long-term returns and forward-looking
estimates of active portfolio and investment management.

" During the year, the Company’s Investment Committee made the decision to change the target
asset allocation of the U.S. Plans’ Master Trust from 60% equity and 40% fixed income to 30% equity
and 70% fixed income in an effort to better align asset risk with the anticipated payment of benefit
obligations. The target asset allocation transition began in fiscal 2008 and is expected to be completed
in fiscal 2010. Subsequent to fiscal year end 2008, conditions in the worldwide debt and equity markets
have deteriorated significantly. These conditions have had a negative effect on the fair value of the
Plan’s investments since September 26, 2008. ' '

Target weighted-average asset allocations and weighted-average asset allocations for U.S. and
non-U.S. pension plans at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal  Fiscal
Target 2008 2007  Target 2008 2007

Asset Category: .
Equity securities . . . ... ..o 0% 54% 59% 47% 45% 52%

Debt securities . ... ... ... e e e - 70 44 39 41 45 39
Realestate.............. N — — — 3 -3 3
Cash and cash equivatents . . . ..................... — 2 2 9 7 6
Total . .t e e 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Tyco Electronics’ common shares are not a direct investment of the Company’s pension funds;
however, the pension funds may indirectly include Tyco Electronics shares. The aggregate amount of
the Tyco Electronics common shares would not be considered material relative to the total pension
fund assets. -
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The Company’s funding policy is to make contributions in accordance with the laws and customs of
the various countries in which it operates as well as to make discretionary voluntary contributions from
time-to-time. The Company anticipates that, at a minimum, it will make the minimum required
contributions to its pension plans in fiscai 2009 of $4 million for U.S. plans and $77 million for
non-U.S. plans.

Benefit payments, which reflect future expected service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid as
follows:

U.S. Plans  Non-U.S, Plans

(in millions)
Fiscal 2009 . ... ... ... . . $ 58 $ 61
Fiscal 2010 ... ... 57 62
Fiscal 2011 . .. ... . e ., 58 69
Fiscal 2012 ... . e e 60 73
Fiscal 2013 ... . i i i i i e e e 61 83
Fiscal 2014-2018. . .. ... ... ... . o 338 453

The accumulated benefit obligation for all U.S. and non-U.S. plans as of fiscal year end 2008 and
2007 was as follows: :

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
Fiscal Fiscal
2008 2007 2008 2007
(in _millions)
Accumulated benefit obligation .. ........ ... ... . . 0 ... $855 $915 $1,518 1,503

The accumulated benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets for U.S. and non-U.S. pension
plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007
were as follows:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
Fiscal Fiscal
2008 2007 2008 2007
. (in millions)
Accumulated benefit obligation .. ....... ... ... ... .. .. ... $808 $ 19 $1314 § 754
Fairvalue of planassets . ......... ... ... . ... .. ... ... ..., 793 4 862 ° 386

The projected benefit obligation and fair value of pian assets for U.S. and non-U.S. pension plans
with projected benefit obligations in excess of plan assets at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007 were as
follows: , '

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
Fiscal Fiscal
2008 2007 2008 2007
. T 7 in millions)
Projected benefit obligation. ... ......... ... ... ......... e $810 $22 $1,726 $1,667
Fair value of plan assets . . .... ... ... .. ey 793 4 1,032 1,088
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Defined Contribution Retirement Plans

The Company maintains several defined contribution retirement plans, which include 401(k)
matching programs, as well as qualified and nonqualified profit sharing and share bonus retirement
plans. Expense for the defined contribution plans is computed as a percentage of participants’
compensation and was $77 million, $72 million, and $69 million for fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006,
respectively.

Deferred Compensation Plans

The Company maintains nonqualified deferred compensation plans, which permit eligible
employees to defer a portion of their compensation. A record keeping account is set up for each
participant and the participant chooses from a variety of measurement funds for the deemed.
investment of their accounts. The measurement funds correspond to a number of funds in Tyco
Electronics’ 401(k) plans and the account balance fluctuates with the investment returns on those
funds. Total deferred compensation liabilities were $38 million and $37 million at fiscal year end 2008
and 2007, respectively. ‘ ' e

Rabbi Trusts

The Company has established rabbi trusts, related to certain acquired companies, through which
the assets may be used to pay non-qualified plan benefits. The trusts primarily hold bonds. The rabbi
trust assets are subject to the claims of the Company’s creditors in the event of the Company’s
insolvency. The value of the assets held by these trusts, included in other assets on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets, was $84 million and $89 million at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007, respectively. Total
liabilities related to the assets held by the rabbi trust and reflected on the Consolidated Balance Sheet
were $17 million and $25 million at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007, respectively. Plan participants are
general creditors of the Company with respect to these benefits. . .

Postretirement Benefit Plans } e )

In addition to providing pension and 401(k) benéfits, the Company also provides certain health
care coverage continuation for qualifying retirees from date of retirement to age 65.
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Net periodic postretirement benefit cost in fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006 was as follows:

Fiscal
2008 2007 2006
{$ in millions)

Servicecost ........... P $

1 $§1 §$1
Interestcost . . ...... ... .. ... 2 3 2
Curtailment/settlement gain and special termination benefils.. —  (3) -—
Net periodic postretirement benefit cost. . . ... ... e $3 $1 §3
Weighted-average assumptions used 1o determine net

postretirement benefit cost during the period:

Discountrate .. .......... .o iiieinnnnnn e - 6.35% 5.75% 4.75%
‘Rate of compensation MCTEASE . .. i 4.00% - 4.00% 4.00%

The components of the accrued postretirement benefit obligations, substantially all of which are
unfunded, at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007, were as follows:

Fiscal
2008 2007
‘ (§ in millions)
.. Change in benefit obligations:

Benefit obligation at begmmng ofperiod ............... e $ 41 $.49
CSEIVICE COSE v vttt ittt : 1 1
Interest oSt ..., ..o e e e 2 3
Actuarial gain . ... ... ... ... e e . (3) (7N,
Benefits paid . ... ... . i e e )] (5)
Benefit obligation at end of period. ... .. e e $ 38 § 41
Change in plan assets: ) )
Fair value of assets at beginning of perlod ................... $ 4 §$ 4
Employer contributions . ... ........ . ... e 3 5
Benefits paid ... . ... e 3) 5
Fair value of plan assets at end of period . .. ................. $ 4 § 4
Funded status / net amount recognized. . . .. ................. $(34) $(37
Amounts recognized on the Consolidated Balance Sheets:

Accrued and other postretirement liabilities .. ............. ... £ (2 % 3
Long-term pension and postretirement liabilities . . ... ......... (32) (34)
Net amount recognized . ... .. ...ttt nrnrne - $(34) $37
Weighted-average assumptibns used to determine postretirement benefit

obligations at period end:

Discount rate . ... . ...ttt e e e e 7.05% 6.35%
Rate of compensation increase. . .............. .. e 4.00% 4.00%

Unrecognized prior service costs of $2 million at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007 were recorded in
accumulated other comprehensive income. There were no changes in the balances during either period.
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There is expected to be no significant amortization of the current balance into net periodic benefit cost
in fiscal 2009. !

The Company expects to make contributions to its postretirement benefit plans of $2 million in
fiscal 2009.

Benefit payments, including those amounts to be paid out of corporate assets and reflecting future
expected service as appropriate, are expected to be paid as follows: :

(in millions)

Fiscal 2000 .. .0 ittt i ettt s iai e e $3
Fiscal 2010 . .. .ttt i e 3
Fiscal 2011 ... .ottt ittt sttt e 3
Fiscal 2002 ..ttt it et e . 3
Fiscal 2013 .. ..ottt 3
Fiscal 2014-2018 . ... ittt e 15
Health care cost trend assumptions, are as follows:
Fiscal

2008 2007
Health care cost trend rate assumed for next fiscal year . ......... 921% 10.18%
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to decline .......... 500% 5.00%
Fiscal year the ultimate trend rate is achieved . ................ 2014 2013

A one-percentage point change in assumed healthcare cost trend rates would have the following
effects: '

. . . One Percentage One Percentage
, Point Increase Point Decrease

4

S R . {in millions)
Effect on total of service and interest cost. ..., ..... $— 3
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation .. ...... - o3 (2)
17. Commitments and Contingencies
General Matters - . )

The Company has facility, land, vehicle, and equipment leases that expire at various dates through
the year 2056. Rental expense under these leases was $182 million, $165 million, and $158 million for
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fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively. At fiscal year end 2008, the minimum.lease payment
obligations under non-cancelable lease obligations were as follows:

(in millions)

Fiscal 2000 . . ..o\ e $118
' Fiscal 2010 . ... ....... ... . ... .. e T, 88
Fiscal 2011 ... ..... ... . ... oo, e e e e ! 67
Fiscal 2002 . . ... e e 46
Fiscal 2013 .. . oo e e e e 37
Therealter . ... e e e e 127
Total...... SR e $483

The Company also has purchase obligations related to commitments to purchase certain goods and
services, At fiscal year end 2008, the Company had commitments to spend $128 million in fiscal 2009.

At fiscal year end 2008, the Company had a contingent purchase price commitment of $80 million
related to the fiscal 2001 acquisition of Com-Net by the Wircless Systems segment. This represents the
maximum amount payable to the former shareholders of Com-Net only after the construction and
installation of a communications system for the State of Florida is finished and the State has approved
the system based on the guidelines set forth in the contract. A liability for this contingency has not
been recorded in the Company’s Consolidated and Combined. Financial Statements as the amount of
this contingency is not currently estimable. ' i

Environmental Matters _ Y

The Company is invelved in various stages of investigation and cleanup related to environmental
remediation matters at a number of sites. The ultimate cost of site cleanup is difficult to predict given
the uncertainties regarding the extent of the required cleanup, the interpretation of applicable laws and
regulations, and alternative cleanup methods. As of fiscal year end 2008, the Company concluded that
it was probable that it would incur remedial costs in the range of approximately $13 ‘million to
$25 million. As of fiscal year end 2008, the Company concluded that the best estimate within this range
is approximately $16 million, of which $4 million is included in accrued and other current habilities and
$12 million is included in other liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. In view of the Company’s
financial position and reserves for environmental matters of $16 million, the Company believes that any
potential payment of such estimated amounts will not have a material adverse effect on its results of
operations, fmancxal posmon or cash flows.

Tyco Electronics Legat Proceedings

Intellectual Property and Antitrust Litigation

The Company is a party to a number of patent infringement and antitrust actions that may require
the Company to pay damage awards. The Company has assessed the status of these matters and has
recorded liabilities related to certain of these matters where appropriate.

Other Matters

The Company is a defendant in a number of other pending legal proceedings incidental to present
and former operations, acquisitions, and dispositions. The Company does not expect the outcome of
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these proceedings, either individually or in the aggregate, to have a material adverse effect on its
results of operations, financial position, or cash flows. : '

4 1 . . . '

Legal Matters under Separation and Distribution Agreemen : - o

The Separation and Distribution Agreement provided for the allocation among the Company, Tyco
International, and Covidien of Tyco International’s assets, liabilities, and obligations attributable to
periods prior to the Company’s and Covidien’s separations from Tyco International on June 29, 2007.
Under the Separation and Distribution Agreement, the Company assumed the liability for, and control
of, all pending and threatened legal matters at Separation related to the Company’s business or
assumed or retained liabilities, and will indemnify the other parties for any liability arising out of or:
resulting from such assumed legal matters. Tyco Electronics will be responsible for 31% of certain
potential liabilities that may arise from litigation pending or threatened at Separation that was not
allocated to one of the three parties, and Tyco International and Covidien are responsible for 27% and
42%, respectively, of such liabilities. If any party defaults in payment of its allocated share of any such
liability, each non-defaulting party will be responsible for an equal portion of the amount in default
together with any other non-defaulting party, although any such payments will not release the .
obligation of the defaulting party. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Separation and
Distribution Agreement, Tyco International manages and controls all the legal matters related to the
shared contingent liabilities, including the defense or settlement thereof, subject to certain limitations.
All costs and expenses that Tyco International incurs in connection with the defense of such litigation,
other than the amount of any judgment or settlement, which will be allocated in the manner described
above, will be borne equally by Tyco International, Covidien, and the Company. '

Tyco International Legal Proceedings . P o '

Securities Cfass Actions and Settlement

. .

As previously reported in the Company’s periodic filings, prior to the announcement by Tyco
International of the planned separation of Tyco Electronics and Covidien in January 2006, Tyco
International and certain of its former directors and officers were named as defendants in over 40
purported securities class action lawsuits. As a part of the Separation and Distribution Agreement, any
existing or potential liabilities related to the securities class actions were allocated among Tyco
International, Covidien, and the Company. The Company is responsible for 31% of potential labilities
that may arise upon the resolution of the remaining pending litigation. S

Most of the securities class actions.were transferred to the United States District Court for the
District of New. Hampshire for coordinated or consolidated pre-trial proceedings. A consolidated
securities-class action complaint was filed in these proceedings and onJune 12, 2006, the court entered
an order certifying a class: “consisting of all persons and entities who purchased or otherwise acquired
Tyco securities between December 13, 1999 and June 7, 2002, and who were damaged thereby, '
excluding defendants, all of the officers, directors and partners thereof, members of their immediate
families and their legal representatives, heirs, successors or assigns, and any entity in which any of the
foregoing have or had a controlling interest.” As previously reported, Tyco International settled 32 of
the purported securities class action lawsuits arising from the actions alleged to have been taken by its
prior management, for which the Company was responsible for 31%. All legal contingencies that could
have affected the final order entered in the United States District Court for the District of New
Hampshire approving the settlement expired on February 21, 2008. As of the opt-out deadline for the
settlement, Fyco International received opt-out notices from individuals and entities totaling
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approximately 4% of the shares owned by class members. A number of these individuals and entities
have filed actions separately against Tyco International and/or Tyco International, Covidien, and the
Company. It is not possible at this time to predict the final outcome or to estimate the amount of loss
or range of possible loss, if any, that might result from an adversé resolution of the asserted or
unasserted claims from individuals that have opted out.

Several securities cases remain outstanding, including several cases asserting claims arising under -
ERISA. If the unresolved securities proceedings were to be determined adversely to Tyco International,
the Company’s share of any additional potential losses under the terms of the Separation and
Distribution Agreemeént, which are not presently estimable, may have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s results of operations, financial position, or cash flows. :

In fiscal 2007, the Company was allocated a charge from Tyco International of $922 million for the
class action settlement, for which no tax benefit was available. In addition, in fiscal 2007, the 'Company
was allocated $35 million of income relatmg to Tyco International’s expected recovery of certain costs
from insurers. The net charge of $887 million was recorded on the Consolidated and Combined
Statement of Operations as litigation settlement, net. The portion allocated to the Company was
consistent with the sharing percentage ‘included in the Separation and Distribution Agreement. Tyco
International placed funds in escrow for the benefit of the class. The escrow account earned interest
that was payable to the class. In addition, interest was accrued on the class action settlement llablhty
At fiscal yéar end 2007, the Company reflected $928 million on the Consolidated Balance Sheet for its
portion of the escrow. In addition, the Company reflected a $2, 992 million llablhty and a $2,064 million
receivable from Tyco International and Covidien for their portion of the liability on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet at fiscal year end 2007.

The finalization of the settlement in February 2008 resulted in the extinguishment of the
Company’s class action settlement liability of $3,020 million, interest in the escrow of $936 million, and
class action settlement receivable of $2,084 million from the Consolidated Balance Sheet in the second
quarter of fiscal 2008. The finalization of the class action settlement resulted in a decrease to cash
flows from operating activities and an increase to cash flows from investing activities during fiscal 2008,
It did not affect the cash balance on the Consolidated Balance Sheet because the Company had
previously fully funded its portion of the class action settlement into an escrow account intended to be
used to settle the hablhty, as mentloned above. ' : :

Settlement of Securities Proceedings Not Covered by the Class Action Settlement

As previously reported, on April 29, 2008, Tyco International signed a definitive agreement with
the State of New Jersey, on behalf of séveral of the State’s pension funds, to settle the action captioned
New Jersey v. Tyco International Lid.; et al, brought by the State in 2002 in the United States District
Court for the District of New Jersey against Tyco International, its former auditors, and certain of its
former officers and directors, alleging that the defendants had, among other things, violated federal and
state securities and other laws through the unauthorized and improper actions of Tyco International’s
former management. The agreement with the State of New Jersey provided for Tyco International to
make a payment of $73 million to the plaintiffs in exchange for the plaintiffs’ agreement to dismiss the.
case and release all claims asserted or which might have been asserted therein, which payment was
made on June 2, 2008. In fiscal 2008, the Company recorded a charge of $23 million, for which no tax
benefit was available. The charge represented the Company’s share of the settlement costs in . -
accordance with the sharing percentages included in the Separation and Distribution Agreement.
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On June 2, 2008, Tyco International entered into an agreement in principle with the trustee of
various trusts that brought claims against Tyco International in the previously disclosed action captioned
Ballard v. Tyco Intemational Ltd., et al., in the United States District Court for the District of New
Hampshire, alleging, among other things, securities fraud in connection with Tyco International’s
acquisition in 1999 of AMP Incorporated. A definitive settlement agreement and release was executed
on June 10, 2008. The, settlement.agreement and release set forth the terms pursuant to which the
parties settled all claims between them that were raised or could have been raised in the litigation. The
settlement agreement and release prdizideld that Tyco International make a payment of $36 million to
the plaintiffs, which payment was subject to the sharing formula contained in the Separation and
Distribution Agreement. Pursuant to the sharing formula, the Company’s net liability was approximately,
$11 million, with Tyco International and CQvidien responsible for approximately $10 million and
$15 million, respectively. '

Investigations

As previously reported in the Company’s periodic filings, Tyco International and others have
received various subpoenas and requests from the SEC’s Division of Enforcement, the Us.
Department of Labor, the General Services Administration, and others seeking the production of
voluminous documents in connection with various investigatibn:s,ih’to Tyco International’s governance,
management, operations, accounting, and related controls prior to the Separation. The Department of
Labor is jnvestigating Tyco International ‘and the administrators of certain of its bencfit plans. Tyco
International has advised the Company that it cannot predict when these investigations will be
completed, nor can it predict what the results of these investiga;ion's may be. It is possible that Tyco
International will be required to pay material fines or suffer, other penalties, and pursuant to the
liability sharing provisions of the Separation and Distribution Agreement, a portion of such payments
may be allocated to the Company. It is not possible to estimate the amount of loss, or range of possible
loss, if any, that might result from an adverse resolution of: these matters. As a result, the Company’s
share of such potential losses also is not estimable and may have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s results of operations, financial position, or cash flows. ' ‘

Compliance Matters .

As previously reported in the Company’s periodic filings, Tyco International received and has
responded to, various atlegations that certain improper. payments were made by Tyco International
subsidiaries, including Tyco E!ectrbnics subsidiaries, in recent yea'rsfprior o, the Separation. Tyco
International reported to thé U.S. Department of Justice (“DOJ”) and the SEC the investigative steps
and remedial measures that it had taken in response to .thé allegations, including that it retained t
outside counsel to perform a company-wide'baseliné review of its policie's, controls, and practices with .
respect to compliance with the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (“FCPA”), that it would continue 10 make
periodic progress reports to these agencies, and that it would present its factual findings upon
conclusion of the baseline review. To date, the Company’s baseline review has revealed that some of
the Company’s former business practices' may not comply with FCPA requirements. At this time, the
Company cannot predict the outcome of these matters and ‘other allegations reported to regulatory and
law enforcement authorities and therefore cannot estimate the range of potential loss or extent of risk,
if any, that may result from an adversc resolution of these matters. However, it is possible that the
Company -may be required to pay judgments, suffer penalties, or incur settlements in amounts that may
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations, financial position, or cash flows.
Any judgment, settlement, or other cost incurred by Tyco International in connection with these

2008 Form 10-K 159




TYCO ELECTRONICS LID.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

17. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

matters not specifically allocated to Tyco International, Covidien, or the Company would be subject to
the |lablllty sharing provisions of the Separation and Distribution Agreement.

1 i . . '

Income Taxes

In connection with the Separation, the Company entered into a Tax Sharing Agreement that
generally governs, Covidien’s, Tyco Electronics’, and Tyco International’s respective rights, ©
responsibilities, and obligations after the distribution with respect to taxes, including ordinary course of
business taxes and taxes, if any, incurred as a result of any failure of the distribution of all of the shares
of Covidien or Tyco Electronics to qualify as a tax-free distribution for U.S. federal income tax
purposes within the meaning of Section 355 of the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”) or certain
internal transactions undertaken in anticipation of the $pin-offs to qualify for tax-favored treatment
under the Code.

Pursuant to the Separation and Distribution Agreement and Tax Sharing Agreement, upon
Separation, the Company entered into certain guarantee commitments and indemnifications with Tyco
International and Covidien. Under these agreeménts, principally the Tax Sharing Agreement, Tyco
International, Covidien, and Tyco Electronics share 27%; 42%, and 31%, respectively, of certain
contingent liabilities relating to unresolved tax matters of legacy Tyco International. The effect of the
Tax Sharing Agreement 'is to indemnify the Company for 69% of certain liabilities settled by the
Company with respect to unresolved legacy tax matters. Pursuant to that indemnification, the Company
has made similar indemnifications to Tyco International and Covidien with respect to 31% of certain
liabilities settled by the companies with respect to unresolved legacy tax matters. If any of the
companies responsible for all or a portion of such liabilitics were to default in its payment of costs or
expenses related to any such liability, the Company would be responsible for a portion of the defaulting
party or parties’ obligation.

Prior to Separation, certain of the Company’s subsidiaries filed combined tax returns with Tyco
International. Those and other of the Company and its subsidiaries’ income tax returns are periodically
examined by various tax authorities. In connection with these examinations, tax authorities, including
the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”), have raised issues and proposed tax adjustments. Tyco
International, as the U.S. income tax audit controlling party under the Tax Sharing Agreement, is
reviewing and contesting certain of the proposed tax adjustments. Amounts related to these tax
adjustments and other tax contingencies and related interest that management has assessed under the
provisions of FIN 48, which relate specifically to Tyco Electronics entities have been recorded in the
Company’s Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements. In addition, the Company may be
required to fund portions of Covidien and Tyco International’s tax obligations. Estimates about these
guarantees have also been recogmzed in the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements. See
Notc 14 for additional information.

ln prior years, in connection with the 1IRS audit of various fiscal years, Tyco International
submitted to the IRS proposed adjustments to these prior period U.S. federal income tax returns
resulting in a reduction in the taxable income previously filed. The IRS accepted substantially all of the
proposed adjustments for fiscal years 1997 through 2000 for which the IRS had completed its field
work. On the basis of previously accepted amendments,.the Company has determined that acceptance
of adjustments presented for additional periods. through fiscal 2005 is probable and, accordingly, has
recorded them, as well as the impacts of the adjustments accepted by the IRS, in the Consolidated and
Combined Financial Statements.
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During fiscal 2007, the IRS concluded its field examination of certain of Tyco International’s U.S.
federal income tax returns for the years 1997 through 2000 and issued anticipated Revenue Agent
Reports which reflect the IRS’ determination of proposed tax adjustments for the periods under audit,
Tyco International has agreed with the IRS on adjustments totaling $498 million, with an estimated
cash impact of $458 million which was paid by Tyco International during fiscal 2007. The Company’s
portion of this payment reduced income taxes on the Consolidated Balance Sheet by $163 million. It is
the Company’s understanding that Tyco International has appealed other proposed adjustments totaling
approximately $1 billion and is vigorously defending its prior filed tax return positions.

Additionally, the TRS proposed civil fraud penalties against Tyco International arising from alleged
actions of former executives in connection with certain intercompany transfers of stock in 1998 and
1999. Any penalty imposed would be subject to sharing with Tyco International and Covidien under the
Tax Sharing Agreement. It is the Company’s understanding that Tyco International is vigorously
opposing the assertion of any such penalties. The Company continues to believe that the amounts
recorded in its Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements relating to these matters are’
appropriate. However, the ultimate resolution is uncertain and, should Tyco International lose its
appeal, it could result in a material impact to the Company’s results of operations, financial position, or
cash flows.

Tyco International continues to complete proposed adjustments to the remainder of its U.S. federal
income tax returns. In fiscal 2008, certain proposed adjustments to U.S. federal income tax returns
were completed by Tyco International and presented to the IRS. As a result, in fiscal 2008, the
Company recorded a $225 million decrease in income tax liabilities, a $42 million decrease in deferred
tax assets, a $140 million decrease in the receivable from Tyco International and Covidien recorded in
connection with the Tax Sharing Agreement, a $57 million increase in the indemnification liability to
Tyco International and Covidien, and a $14 million charge to contributed surplus. See Note 14 for
additional information regarding the indemnification liability to Tyco International and Covidien. In
addition, in fiscal 2008, Tyco International, Covidien, and the Company completed and filed certain
fiscal 2007 US. consolidated federal and state income tax returns which included a combination of
Tyco International, Covidien, and the Company’s subsidiaries. As a result, the Company recorded a
$66 million decrease in income tax liabilities with a corresponding offset to the income tax receivable, a
$44 million decrease in the receivable from Tyco International and Covidien and a $42 million decrease:
in the payable to Tyco International and Covidien pursuant to the Tax Sharing Agreement, a
$30 million increase in contributed surplus, and a $32 million net adjustment to other related tax
accounts. As the Company’s tax return positions continue to be updated, additional adjustments may be
identified and recorded in the Consolidated and Combined Financia] Statements. While the final
adjustments cannot be determined until the income tax return amendment process is completed, the
Company believes that any resulting adjustments will not have a material impact on its results of
operations, financial condition, or cash flows. Additionally, adjustments may be recorded to
sharcholders’ equity in the future for the impact of filing final or amended income tax returns in
certain jurisdictions where those returns include a combination of Tyco International, Covidien, and/or
the Company’s subsidiarics for the periods prior to the Separation. .
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' Trade Activity

- Prior to Séparation, the Company sold certain of its manufactured products consisting primarily of
connectors and cable assemblies to Tyco International and its affiliates, at prices which approximated
fair value. Sales to Tyco International and its affiliates, which are included in net sales on the
Consolidated and Combined Statements of Operations, were $60 million during the first nine months
of fiscal 2007 and $76 million in fiscal 2006.

Debt and Related Items

The Company was aliocated a portion of Tyco lnternatlonal’s consolidated debt, net mterest
expensc and loss on retirement of debt. See Note 13 for further mformatlon regarding these
allocations.

Allocated E.rpenses‘

In fiscal 2007, the Company was allocated a net charge from Tyco International of $887 million
related to the class action settlement. See Note 17 for further information regarding the class action
settlement.

Prior to Separation, the Company was allocated general corporate overhead expenses from Tyco
International for corporate-related functions based on a pro-rata percentage of Tyco International’s
consolidated net revenue. General corporate overhead expenses primarily related to centralized
corporate functions, including treasury; tax, legal, internal audit, human resources, and risk
management functions. During fiscal 2007 and 2006, the Company was allocated $152 million and
$177 million, respectively, of general corporate overhead cxpenses incurred by Tyco International, which
are included within selling, general, and admmlstratwe expenses in the Consolidated and Combined
Statements of Operdtlons

As dlscussed in N_ote 1, the Company believes the assumptions and methodo]ogies underlying the
allocation of general corporate overhead expenses and net class action settlement costs from Tyco
International were reasonable. However, such expenses may not be indicative of the actual level of
expenses that would have been mcurred by the Company had it been operating as an independent,
pubhcly -traded company durlng the periods presented.

- Transactwus with- 7}(:0 Electramcs and Tyco International’s Directors

During fiscal 2008 and 2007, the Company e¢ngaged in commercial transactions in the normal
course of business with companies where Tyco Electronics’ directors were employed and served as
officers. Purchases from such companies aggrepated less than one percent of net sales in fiscal 2008
and 2007. In addition, during periods prior to the Separation in fiscal 2007 and 2006, the Company
engaged in commercial transactions in the normal course of business with companies where Tyco
International’s directors were employed and served as officers. During each of these periods, Tyco
Electronics’ purchases from such companies aggregated less than one percent of net sales.

Separation and Distribution Agreement

Upon Separation, the Company entered into a Separation and Distribution Agreement and other
agreements with Tyco International and Covidien to effect the Separation and provide a framework for
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the Company’s relationships with Tyco International and Covidien after the distribution of the
Company’s and Covidien’s shares to Tyco International’s shareholders. These agreements govern the
relationships among Tyco International, Covidien, and the Company subsequent to the Separation-and -
provide for the allocation to the Company and Covidien of certain of Tyco International’s assets,
liabilities, and obligations attributable to periods prior to the Separation. - -

Under the Separation and Distribution Agreement and other agreements, subject to certain
exceptions contained in the Tax Sharing Agreement, the Company, Covidien, and Tyco International
assumed 31%, 42%, and 27%, respectively, of certain of Tyco International’s contingent and other .
corporate liabilitics. All costs and expenses associated with the management of these contingent and
other corporate liabilities will be shared equally among the parties. These contingent and other
corporate liabilities primarily relate to consolidated securities litigation and any actions with respect to
the Separation or the Distribution brought by any third party. If any party responsible for such
liabilities were to default in its payment, when due, of any of these assumed obligations, each
non-defaulting party would be required to pay equally with any other non-defaulting party ttie amounts
in default. Accordingly, under certain circumstances, Tyco Electronics may be obligated to pay amounts
in excess of its agreed-upon share of the assumed obligations related to such contmgcnt and other
corporate liabilities,. mcludmg associated costs and expenses. .

[ S D T

Tax Sharing Agreement

Upon Scparation, the Company entered into a Tax Sharing Agreement, under which the Company
shares responsibility for certain of its, Tyco International’s, and Covidien’s income tax liabilities based
on a sharing formula for periods prior to and including June 29, 2007. The Company, Covidien, and
Tyco International share 31%, 42%, and 27%, respectively, of U.S. income tax liabilities that arise from
adjustments made by tax authorities to its, Tyco International’s, and Covidien’s U.S. income tax returns.
The effect of the Tax Sharing Agreement is to indemnify the Company for 69% of certain liabilitics
settled by the Company with respect to unresolved legacy tax matters. Pursuant to that indemnification,
the Company has made similar indemnifications to Tyco International and Covidien with respect to
319 of certain liabilities settled by the companies relating to unresolved legacy tax matters. All costs
and expenses associated with the management of these shared tax liabilities will be shared equally’
among the parties. The Company will be responsible for all of its own taxes that are not shared
pursuant to the Tax Sharing Agreement’s sharing formula. In addition, Tyco International and Covidien
will be responsible for their tax habllmes that are not subject to the Tax Sharing Agreement’s sharing
formula.

All of the tax liabilities of Tyco International that were associated with Tyco International
subsidiaries that are included in Tyco. Electronics following the Separation became Tyco Electronics’ tax
liabilities upon Separation. Although Tyco Electronics has agreed to share certain tax liabilities with
Tyco International and Covidien pursuant to the Tax Sharing Agreement, Tyco Electronics remains
primarily liable for all of these liabilities. If Tyco International and Covidien default on their obligations
to Tyco Electronics under the Tax Sharing Agreement, Tyco Electronics would be liable for the entire
amount of these liabilities.

If any party to the Tax Sharing Agreement were to default in its obligation to another party to pay
its share of the distribution taxes that arise as a result of no party’s fault, each non-defaulting party
would be required to pay, equally with any other non-defaulting party, the amounts in default. In
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addition, if another party to the Tax Sharing Agreement that is responsible for all or a portion of an
income tax liability were to default.in its payment of such liability to a taxing authority, the Company
could be legally liable under applicable tax law for such liabilities and required to make additional tax
payments. Accordingly, uader certain circumstances, the Company may-be obligated to pay amounts in
excess of its agreed upon share of its, Tyco International’s, and Covidien’s tax liabilities.

19. Income Taxes

[

Significant components -of the income tax provision for fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006 are as follows:

Fiscal
2008 2007 2006
(in millions)

¥

Current: .
United States: v e ) A
Federal . ... . P $ 132 $45 $(181)
State ... .. e e @21) 2 (25)
Non-US. ... ... ... ....... e e 273 281 301
Current income tax Provision ..................... 384 328 95
Deferred: ' ’ '
United States: . . g . . _ :
Federal ....... e e e e i e 126 168 75
State ... ... ... S S T see oo 33 M - (3D
Non-US. ............. e 15 2 (58)
+. Deferred income tax provision . .. ......... 1oL 174 163 (14)

$ 558 $491 § 81

The U.S. and non-U.S. components of income from contifuing operations before income taxes and
minority interest for 2008, 2007, and 2006 are as fol]ows

Fiscal
2008 2007 2006
o ! . ' " (in millions)
75 $ 334 $326 § 302
Non-US. ... ... o et e e 1,823 (7 1,232
Income from contmumg operanons before income taxes and .
minority interest. . .. ...... e e L e $2,157. Eﬁ_ilg $1,534
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The reconciliation between U.S. federal income taxes at the statutory rate and the Company’s
provision for income taxes on continuing operations for fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006 are as follows:

Fiscal
2008 2007 2006
: : g (in" millions)} '
Not:onal U.8. federal income tax expense at the statutory -
1 7:1 (- e .. $755 8112 $ 537
Adjustments to reconcile to the income tax provision:
U.S. state income tax provision (benefit); net........ ... 1 3) (36)
Other income—Tax Sharing Agreement . ... ........... (198) . (5) —
Class action settlement . . ... ... e e e 8 312 o
Divestitures and impairments ... ................... ' 21 — —
Proposed adjustments to prior year tax TOWrns . ... ... ... . (13) 9 —
Tax law changes . .. ............. I f 5 @1y -
Taxcredits . .. .. oot in e e 7 B (12
Non-U.S. net earnings™™ . ... .... e oL ieate (135) 0 (96)  (122)
Nondeductible charges . .................... e 1 -6 32°
Change in accrued income tax habllmes e S 100 53 21
Allocated loss (gain) on retirement of debt .. .......... — 81 (87)
Valuation allowance . ..... ... ....c.ovoviuiiniennns 23 26 (268)
Adjustment to tax account balances. ... .............. 33 — —
Other ....... ... .ot e 20 15 16
Provision for income taxes ............. ..ot uin. . $558 %491 §$ 8l

(1) Excludes asset impairments, nondeductible charges, and cther items which are broken out sepuratcly in the table.

The provision for fiscal 2008 includes a benefit of $198 million prlmdnly related to the pre-tax
income of $545 million recognized in connection with our adoption of FIN 48, for which no tax was
provided. The provision was also impacted by increased accruals in fiscal 2008 of interest related to
uncertain tax positions partially offset by a $42 million benefit associated with a favorable settlement
with a taxing authority for certain legacy tax issues. In addition, the provision for fiscal 2008 reflects the
benefits of increased profitability in operations in lower tax rate jurisdictions, a $33 million benefit
related to adjustments to tax account balances, a $25 million increase in the valuation allowance related
to restructuring charges, and a $22 million tax detriment recorded in connection with the goodwilt
impairment charge for which a tax benefit was not fully realized.

‘During fiscal 2008, the Company, in connection with the implementation of certain new controt
processes, completed the analysis and reconciliation of its tax accounts. As a result of this analysis, the
Company adjusted its tax account balances and recorded a $34 million reduction in income tax
liabilities, a $1 million increase in deferred tax liabilities, and a $33 ‘million benefit i in the income tax
provision.

In fiscal 2007, no tax benefits were recorded related to the pre-tax charges for the class action
settlement and loss on retirement of debt. The net increase of $26 million of deferred tax asset

[
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valuation allowances in fiscal 2007 reflects the tax impacts of increased borrowings as a result of the
class action settlement and the Company’s Separation from Tyco International,

The net decrease of $268 million of deferred tax asset valuation allowances in fiscal 2006 is
primarily driven by improved profitability in certain jurisdictions, principally the U.S. The Company’s
U.S. results of operations in fiscal 2006 combined with other available evidence, including projections
of future taxable income, indicated that it is more likely. than not the Company will realize additional
deferred tax assets in the future, and accordingly, the related valuation allowances were reduced.
Reflected in the state tax provision line for fiscal 2006-is a $39 million state tax benefit primarily
related to the Tyco Global Network divestiture. '

The allocated loss on retirement of debt in fiscal 2006 is a cumulative one-time benefit of
$87 million associated with the receipt of a favorable non-U.S. tax ruling permitting the deduction of
historical debt retirement costs. This benefit is partially offset by an increased valuation allowance of
$62 million relating to the deferred tax asset associated with net operating losses created by, the debt
retirement deductions. This $62 million is reflected on the valuation allowance line in the table above.

Deferred income taxes result from temporary differences between the amount of assets-and
liabilities recognized for financial reporting and tax purposes. The components of the net deferred
income tax asset at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007 are as follows; ..

Fiscal
2008 2007
. (in millions)
Deferred tax assets: ‘

Accrued labilities and reserves ... ... ... oL $ 273 $ 253
Tax loss and credit carryforwards .. ..................... 2512 2,135
Inventories . . .............. e e ~ 46 60
Pension and postretirement bepefits .. .......... ... 175 E 143
,Deferredrevenuc'.................;:...‘..,.._ ........ 43 ;26
Interest . ............... . ... .... S 227 54
Unrecognized tax benefits ....... .. b e 0392 T —
Other......... e e 23 8
. _ 3691 - 2,760
Deferred tax liabilities: ' :
'Intangible assets .. ............... S e AP - (875) - (388)
Property, plant, and equnpment ..... A oo T {94 (148) -
Other .. ...... e e PO @7 (119) .
‘ ' (1,016) ©  (655)
Net deferred tax asset before valuatlon allowance ..... DR " 2,675 2,105 T
Valuation allowance . . ... .oii e Lo (873)  (703)
Net deferred tax asset . . . .. ... ... 0., $ 1,802 $1,402

At fiscal year end 2008, the Comparly had approximately $1;524 million of U.S. fedéral'and' -
$187 million of U.S state net operating loss carryforwards (tax effected) which will expire in future
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years through 2028. In addition, at fiscal year end 2008, the Company had approximately $114 million
of U.S. federal tax credit carryforwards, of which $15 million have no expiration and $99 million will
expire in future years through 2028, and $42 million of U.S. state tax credits carryforwards which will
expire in future years through 2023. The-Company also had $5 million of U.S. federal contribution -
carryforwards (tax effected) expiring through 2012 and $87 million of U.S. federal capital loss
carryforwards (tax effected) expiring through 2013 at fiscal year end 2008. :

At fiscal year end 2008, the Company had approximately $531 million of net operating loss
carryforwards (tax effected) in certain non-U.S, jurisdictions, of which $140 million have no expiration
and $391 million will expire in future years through 2022. Also, at fiscal year end 2008, there were
$3 million of non-U1.S. tax credit carryforwards which will expire in future years through 2013 and
$19 million of non-U.S. capital loss carryforwards (tax effected) with no expiration.

The valuation allowance for deferred tax assets of $873 million and $703 million at fiscal year end
2008 and 2007, respectively, relates principally to the uncertainty of the utilization of certain deferred
tax assets, primarily tax loss, capital loss, and credit carryforwards in various jurisdictions. The
Company believes that it will generate sufficient future taxable income to realize the tax benefits
related to the remaining net deferred tax assets on its Consolidated Balance Sheet. The valuation
allowance was calculated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 109 which requires that a _
valuation allowance be established or maintained when it is more likely than not that all or a portion o
deferred tax assets will not be realized. At fiscal year end 2008, approximately $41 million of the
valuation allowance relates to share-based compensation and will be recorded to equity if certain net
operating losses and tax credit carryforwards are utilized. -

The Company and its subsidiaries’ income tax returns are periodically examined by various -
regulatory tax authorities. See “Income Taxes” in'Note 17 for further inférmation.

The calculation of the Company’s tax liabilities.includes estimates for uncertainties in the
application of compiex tax regulations across multiple global jurisdictions where the Company conducts
its operations. 'Under the provisions of FIN 48, the Company recognizes liabilities for tax as well as
related interest for issues in the U.S. and other tax jurisdictions based on its estimate of whether, and
the extent to.which, additional taxes and telated interest will be due. These tax liabilities and related
interest are reflected net of the impact of related tax loss carryforwards as such tax loss carryforwards
will be applied against these tax liabilities and will reduce the amount of cash tax payments due upon
the eventual scttlement with the tax authorities. These estimates may change due to changing facts and
circumstances; however, due to the complexity of these uncertainties, the ultimate resolution may result
in a settlement that differs from the Company’s current estimate of the tax liabilities and related
interest. Further, management has reviewed with tax counsel the issues raised by certain taxing
authorities and the adequacy of these recorded amounts. If the Company’s current estimate of tax and
interest liabilities is less than the ultimate settlement, an additional charge to expense may result. If the
Company’s current estimate of tax and interest liabilities is more than the ultimate settlement, income
tax benefits may be recognized. Substantially all of these tax liabilities and related interest are recorded
in income taxes on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as payment is not expected within one year.

The Comf)any has provided income taxes for earnings that are currently distributed as well as the
taxes associated with several subsidiaries’ earnings that are expected to be distributed in fiscal year
2009. No additional provision has been made for U.S. or non-U.S. income taxes on the undistributed
carnings of subsidiaries or for unrecognized deferred tax liabilities for temporary differences related to
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basis differences in investments in subsidiaries, as such earnings are expected to be permanently
reinvested, the investments are essentially permanent in duration, or the Company has concluded that
no additional tax liability will arise as a result of the distribution of such carnings. As of September 26,
2008, certain subsidiaries had approximately $10 billion of undistributed earnings that the Company
intends to permanently reinvest. A liability could arise if the Company’s intention to permanently
reinvest such earnings were to change and amounts are distributed by such subsidiaries or if such
subsidiaries are ultimately disposed. It is not practicable to estimate the additional income taxes related
to permanently reinvested earnings or the basis differences related to investments in subsidiaries.

FIN 48

Effective September 29, 2007, the beginning of fiscal 2008, the Company adopted FIN 48, As
discussed above, during fiscal 2008, the Company, in connection with the implementation of certain
new control processes, completed the analysis and reconciliation of its tax accounts. As a result of this
analysis, during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, the Company adjusted certain amounts recorded in
connection with the initial adoption of FIN 48. These adjustments included an $85 million reduction in
contingent tax liabilities, a $1 million increase in deferred tax assets, and an $86 million increase in the
opening balance of accumulated earnings. Overall, the Company recorded a net increase in contingent
tax liabilities of $1,197 million, an increase in deferred tax assets of $648 million, and a corresponding
decrease in the opening balance of accumulated earnings of $549 million in connection with the initial
adoption of FIN 48 as well as the subsequent adjustment of certain amounts. Furthermore, pursuant to
the Tax Sharing Agreement, certain contingent tax liabilities related to unresolved tax matters are
subject to sharing between Tyco International, Covidien, and the Company. See Note 17 for additional
information regarding responsibilities for unresolved legacy tax matters. Tyco International and
Covidien would be contractually obligated for $531 million of the Company’s net increase in contingent
tax liabilities recorded in connection with its adoption of FIN 48, of which $558 million was recorded in
connection with the initial adoption of FIN 48 during the first quarter of fiscal 2008 and $27 million
was recorded as an adjustment to this amount during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008. Accordingly, the
Company recorded this amount in 2008 as other income and recorded the related increase in the
receivable from Tyco International and Covidien for shared contingent tax liabilities. In addition, in
connection with the adoption of FIN 48, the Company reassessed and decreased its FIN 45 liability to
Tyco International and Covidien and recorded $14 million of other income. See Note 14 for additional
information regarding the Company’s indemnifications under the Tax Sharing Agreement. These
adjustments are summarized in the following table: T ' ‘

Adoption of FIN 48 and Related Tax Shaﬁng Agreelilent Income;

Adjustment to*

Opening .
Balance of
Accumulated  Thax Sharing
Earnings Income
(in millions)
Contingent tax Habilities . ... ... ... ... ... ... .... $(1,197y - 8531
Deferred tax assets .............. 0 ... ... 648 R

FIN4S ............. S S — 14
| $ (549) $545
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| NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

19. Income Taxes (Continued)

As of September 29, 2007, the Company had total unrecognized tax benéfits of $2,029 million. If
recognized in future periods, $1,864 million of these currently unrecognized tax benefits would: impact.. »
the income tax provision and effective tax rate. Of the remaining currently unrecognized tax benefits,
$56 million is associated with discontinued operations. The following table summarizes the activity

related to our unrecognized tax benefits: S . . o
. S ,

Batance as of September 29, 2007 . ............... e e $1,906 .
Adjustments to balance as of September 29, 2007 .. .......... . e 123 .
Additions related to prior periods tax positions.. . ... ... ... .. v 259 .

Reductions related to prior periods tax positions . ... ... ... . ...l (312)
Additions related to current period tax positions . . . ... ... Lo 42

SEttIEMENS . o o v v v o eee e oo e e (1)
Reductjons due to lapse of. apphcable statute of limitations .. ...... - 8y
Balance at September 26 2008. ... e . $2;009 :

As of September 26, 2008, the Company had total unrecogmzed tax benefits of $2,009 million. If
recognized in future perrods $1,775 million of these currently unrecognized tax benefits would impact
the income tax provision and effective tax rate. Of the remaining curremly unrecogmzed tax benefits,

$55 million is associated with discontinued operanons ";

The Company records ‘accrued mterest as well as penalties related to uncertain tax positions as
part of the provision for income taxes. As of September 29, 2007, the Company had recorded
$1,092 million of accrued interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet. During fiscal 2008, the Company recognized $115 million of interest and penaltres on
the Consolidated and Combined Statement of Operatlons As of September 76, 2008; the balance of
accrued interest and penalties is $1,106 million, which'is recorded in income taxes in the- Consolrdated
Balance Sheet. .

In fiscal 2007, the IRS concluded 1ts field examination'of certain of Tyco Internanonal’s U S.
federal mcome tax returns for 'the years 1997 through 2000 “Tyco International is in“the process of
appealmg certain tax adjustments proposéd' by the IRS 'related to this perlod It the' second quarter of'
fiscal 2008, the IRS commenced its field examination of certain Tyco International U. S.'federal income -
tax returns for the years 2001 through 2004. Tyco International’s U.S. federal tax filings for years
subsequent to 2004 also remain open to examination by the IRS. See Note 17 for addmonal
information regarding the status of IRS -examinations. AR ' ;

“The Company ‘files income fax returns’ on 4 combined; unitary, or stand-alone basis in multiple
state and local jurisdictions, which generally have statutes of llmrtauons ranging from 3 to 5 years. |
Various 'state and local income taX returns are currently in the process of exarmnatlon or administrative

appeal T { ' ‘ ) [
r ‘] 1 3 ' -

The Company s non-U.S. subsidiaries file income tax retums in the countries in Wthh they have
operatrons Generally, these countrles have statutes of Irmrtanons rangmg from 3 to 7 years

- P

' M . . ; N . .. . . o
[ o . L L et Y L .t o vl
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

22. Equity . Co . o b en
Parent Company Investment and Separation Related Equity Adjustments. . - . ..~ .,

For all periods prior to June 29, 2007, Tyco International’s investment in the electronicis businesses’
is shown as parent company investment in the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements.
Parent company investment represents the historical investment of capital into the Company, the
Corhpany’s accuniulated net earnings after taxes, and the net effect of transactions with and:aliocations
from Tyco International. Sée Note 18 for additional information regarding the al]ocatlon to thet .
Company of various expenses 1ncurred by Tyco International. SR - Lo ¥

L

On J une, 29 2007 Tyco Internatronal completed a dlstnbunon of one common share of Tyco '
Electronics Ltd. for every four common shares of Tyco International. Followmg the Separauon the
Company had 497 million common shares outstandmg After the Separation adjustments were recorded
on June 29, 2007, the remaining parent company mvestment ba]ance, which ,}ncludes all earnings prior
to the Separation, was transferred to contributed surplus Net mcome subsequent to the Separat:on 18
included in accumulated earnings. Vil :

0wr oot

During fiscal 2007, the Company assumed $1,091 million of contingent tax liabilities from Tyco
International and recorded a related receivable of $844 million from Tyco International and Covidien
to reflect the 69% indemnification granted by each. These items were recorded as adjustments to
contributed surplus on the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements.

e e T

Preferred Shares . . Cb

The Company has authorized 125,000,000 preferred shares; par value of $0.20 | pet share, none of
which were issued and outstanding at September 26, 2008..Rights as to dividends, return of capital,
redemption, conversion, voting, and otherwise with respect to the preferred shares may be determined
by the Company’s board of directors on or before the time of issuance.In the event of'the liquidation
of the Company, the-holders of any preferred shares then outstanding would :be-entitled to payment to
them of the amount for which the preférred'shares were subscnbed and any-unpaid leldends prior'to *
any payment to the common shareholders. ‘ : - :

Dwrdends . . o L Lo o . ) .

“In September 2008, the - Company s board of directors declared a regular quarterly. eash dividend -of
$0.16 per common share. The dividend was paid on November 4, 2008. The declared but unpaid - €.
dividend is recorded in accrued and other current liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet-at frscal'
year end 2008. -

ShareRepurchaseProgram B _,‘, - : '._ 'r"” ',',‘ H

* In September 2007, the Company’s board of directors authorized a share repurchase program of !
$750 million to purchase -a portion of the Company’s outstanding common shares. The Company’s ™
board of directors authorized an increase in the share repurchase program from $750 millionto .~ -
$1,250 million in March 2008 and an additional increase in the program from $1,250 million to
$2,000 million in July 2008. In fiscal 2008, the Company purchased approximatety.37 million common '
shares for $1,269 millien under this program, of which $1,242 million was paid as of September 26,
2008. No common shares were repurchased under this program in fiscal 2007.
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19. Income Taxes (Continued)

As of September 29, 2007, the Company had total unrecognized tax benefits of §2,029 million. If
recognized in future periods, $1,864 million of these currently unrecognized tax benefits would impact
the income tax provision and effective tax rate. Of the remaining currently unrecognized tax benefits,
$56 million is associated with discontinued operations. The following table summarizes the activity
related to our unrecognized tax benefits:

(in millions)

Balance as of September 29,2007 . ... ... ... . ..o o $1,506
Adjustments to balance as of September 29, 2007 .. .......... ... .. 123
Additions related to prior periods tax positions . . ......... ... ... .. 259
Reductions related to prior periods tax positions . . .. .............. (312)
Additions related to current period tax positions . .. ............... 42
Settlements . . .. ..o e (1
Reductions due to lapse of applicable statute of limitations .. ........ 8)
Balance at September 26,2008 . . . ... ... ... ..o $2,009

As of September 26, 2008, the Company had total unrecognized tax benefits of $2,009 million. If
recognized in future periods, $1,775 million of these curremly unrecognized tax benefits would impact
the income tax provision and effective tax rate. Of the remaining currently unrecogmzed tax benefits,
$55 million is associated with discontinued operations.

The Company records accrued interest as well as penalties related to uncertain tax positions as
part of the provision for income taxes. As of September 29, 2007, the Company had recorded
$1,092 million of accrued interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet. During fiscal 2008, the Company recognized $115 million of interest and penalties on
the Consolidated and Combined Statement of Operations. As of September 26, 2008, the balance of
accrued interest and penalties is $1,106 million, which is recorded in income taxes in the Consolldated
Balance Sheet.

In fiscal 2007, the IRS concluded its field examination of certain of Tyco International’s U.S.
federal income tax returns for the years 1997 through 2000. Tyco International is in the process of
appealing certain tax adjustments proposéd by the IRS related to this period. In the second quarter of
fiscal 2008, the IRS commenced its field examination of certain Tyco International U.S. federal income
tax returns for the years 2001 through 2004. Tyco International’s U.S. federal tax filings for years
subsequent to 2004 also remain open to examination by the IRS. See Note 17 for additional
information regarding the status of IRS examinations.

The Company files income tax returns on a combined, unitary, or stand-alone basis in multiple
state and local jurisdictions, which generally have statutes of limitations ranging from 3 to 5 years.
Various state and local mcome tax returns are currently in the process of examination or admlmstranve
appeal.

The Company’s non-U.S. subsidiaries file income tax returns in the countries in which they have
operations. Generally, these countries have statutes of limitations ranging from 3 to 7 years.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

19. Income Taxes (Continued)

As of September 26, 2008, under applicable statutes, the followmg‘ tax years remained sub]ect to
examination in the major tax ]urlSdlCthl’lS indicated: . .

[

Jurisdiction . . : . ‘ , ) Opeh Years

Belgium . ... e e 2006 through 2008
Brazil . . ... e 2003 through 2008
Canada........ ... . i i i i i e e e 2001 through 2008
China........... ..o v, e e 2003 through 2008
CzechRepublic............... e e e 2007 through 2008
France ... ... ... . . . . e . . 2002 through 2008
Germany . ...... .. e 2003 through 2008
HongKong......... ... . o i i, e 2002 through 2008
India . ... . 2001 through 2008
Italy . .. ... oo e T T 2004 through 2008
Japan . ... e 2003 through 2008
Korea. ... .. e 2003 through 2008
Luxembourg . .. ... e e e ceea 2007 through 2008
Netherlands ........... weeees jreeresereeaenae. .. 2007 through 2008
Portugal ........ e P [ .-+ 2004 through 2008
Singapore . . .................. e e '2001 through 2008
] o114 2003 through 2008
“Switzerland . .. ... ... S 2006 through 2008
United Kingdom . ... ..., .... e e " 2006 through 2008
United States, federal and state and local . . ............... 1991 through 2008

In most Jul‘lSdlCthDS taxmg authorltles retain the ablllty to review prlor tax years and tg adjust any
net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards from these years that are utilized in a subsequent
period.

Although it is not possible to predict the timing or results of these pending examinations, the
Company currently does not anticipate there will be significant changes in the next twelve months to
the amount of unrecognized tax benefits inherent in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet as of
September 26, 2008, . '

20, Other Incolile (Exi)ense); Net

In fiscal 2008, the Company recorded other incomé of $567 million pursuant to the Tax Sharing '
Agreement with Tyco International and Covidien, of which $545 million ($1.13 for basic earnings per
share and $1.12 for diluted earnings per share in fiscal 2008) related to certain incremental tax
liabilities recorded by the Company in connection ‘with the adoption of FIN 48. See Notes 2 and 19 for
additional information regarding the adoption of FIN 48. For further information regarding the Tax
Sharing Agreement, sec Notes 17 and 18.

'Net other expenée of $219 miltion in fiscal 2007 includes an allocation from Tj(c'o International of
$232 million for loss on retirement of debt. See Note 13 for additional information. Additionally, in
fiscal 2007, the Company recorded other income of $13 million associated with Tyco International’s and
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

20. Other Income (Expense), Net (Continned)

Covidien’s share of certain contingent tax liabilities relating to unresolved tax matters of legacy Tyco
International.

21. Earnings (Loss) Per Share '

The computation of basic earnings (loss) per share is based on the Company’s net income (loss)
divided by the basic weighted-average number of commeon shares. On June 29, 2007, the-Separation
from Tyco International was completed in a tax-free distribution to the Company’s shareholders of one
common share of Tyco Electronics Ltd. for every four common shares of Tyco International held on
June 18, 2007. As a result, on June 29, 2007, the Company had 497 million common shares
outstandmg The same number of shares is being used for both diluted earnings (loss) per share and
basic earnings (loss) per share for all periods prior to the date of Separatxon as no Tyco Electromcs
equity awards were outstanding prior to the Separatlon

The following table sets forth the denommators of the basic and diluted carnings (loss) per share
computations:

Fiscal
© 2008 2007 2006
. h [ " (in millions)

Weighted-average shares outstanding:

P 483 497 497"
Share options and restricted share awards ................- 3 = =
Diluted ................. D e 486 497 497 -

For fiscal 2008 and 2007, certain share options were not included in the computation of diluted
earnings (loss) per share because the underlying exercise. prices were greater than the average market
prices of Tyco Electronics’ common shares and inclusion would be antidilutive. Such shares not
included in the computation of diluted earnings (loss) per share totaled 21 million and 20 million as of
September 26, 2008 and September 28, 2007, respectively.

For the year ended September 28, 2007, options to purchase Tyco Electronics’ common shares with
the underlying exercise prices less than the average market prices were outstanding, but-were excluded
from the calculations of diluted loss per share. as inclusion of these securities would have been
antidilutive. Such shares not included in the computation of diluted loss per share totaled 3 million as
of September 28, 2007.

*

The Separatlon and Distribution Agrecment entered into pursuant to Separation reqmres that the
Company issue common shares, as needed, to satisfy convertible debentures issued prior to Separation
by Tyco International and retained by Tyco Internaticnal subsequent to Separation. During fiscal 2008,
approximately 230,000 shares were issued to satisfy those convertible debentures. Those shares are
reflected in both weighted-average basic and diluted shares outstanding based on the underlying date of
issuance. As of fiscal-year end 2008, the expected number of contingently-issuable shares to holders of
Tyco International convertible debt is immaterial. - . ' : -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

22. Equity
Parent Company Investment and Separation Related Equity Adjustments

For all periods prior to June 29, 2007, Tyco International’s investment in the electronics businesses
is shown as parent company investment in the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements.
Parent company investment represents the historical investment of capital into the Company, the
Company’s accumulated net earnings after taxes, and the net effect of transactions with and allocations
from Tyco International. See Note 18 for additional information regarding the al]ocatlon to the
Company of various expenses incurred by Tyco International. -

On June 29 2007, Tyco International completed a distribution of one common share of Tyco
Electronics Ltd. for every four common shares of Tyco International. Foliowing the Separation, the
Company had 497 million common shares outstanding. After the Separation adjustments were recorded
on June 29, 2007, the remaining parent company investment balance, which includes all earnings prior
to the Separation, was transferred to contributed surplus Net income subsequent to the Separation is
included in accumulated earnings.

During fiscal 2007, the Company assumed $1,091 million of contingent tax liabilities from Tyco
International and recorded a related receivable of $844 million from Tyco International and Covidien
to reflect the 69% indemnification granted by each. These items were recorded as adjustments to
contributed surplus on the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements.

Preferred Shares - )

The Company has authorized 125,000,000 preferred shares, par vatue of $0.20 per share, none of
which were issued and outstanding at September 26, 2008. Rights as to dividends, return of capital,
redemption, conversion, voting, and otherwise with respect to the preferred shares may be determined
by the Company’s board of directors on or before the time of issnance. In the event of the liquidation
of the Company, the holders of any preferred shares then outstanding would be entitled to payment to
them of the amount for which the preferred shares were subscribed and any unpaid dividends prior to -
any payment to the common shareholders.

thdends

In September 2008, the Company ] board of directors declared a regular quarterly cash dividend-of
$0.16 per common share. The dividend was paid on November 4, 2008. The declared but unpaid .
dividend is recorded in accrued and other current liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at flscal
year end 2008.

. Share Repurchase Program

In September 2007, the Company’s board of directors authorized a share repurchase program of
$750 million to purchase a portion of the Company’s outstanding common shares. The Company’s
board of directors authorized an increase in the share repurchase program from $750 million to
$1,250 million in March 2008 and an additional increase in the program from $1,250 million to
$2,000 million in July 2008. In fiscal 2008, the Company purchased approximately 37 million common
shares for $1,269 million under this program, of which $1,242 million was paid as of September 26,
2008. No common shares were repurchased under this program in fiscal 2007.
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23, Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income are as follows:

1 Unrecognized Accumulated
‘ Unrealized  Pension and  {Loss) Gain Other
| Currency Gain (Loss) Postretirement on Cash  Comprehensive
Translation?®  on Securities Benefit Costs Flow Hedge Income
(in millions) ] .
Balance at October 1, 2005. . ... ... . § 657 $1 $(327) $— $ 33t
Pre-tax current period change . . .. 242 — 150 — 392
Income tax expense ........... — — (33) — (53
Balance at September 29, 2006 . . ... ‘ 899 1 (230) — 670
Pre-tax current period change . . .. . 453 — 319 (53) = 719
Income tax expense ........... = — _(112) = _(1zy
1,352 1 (23) 53) 1,277
Adoption of SFAS No. 158: .
Pre-tax current period change . . — — (347) — (347)
Income tax benefit .......... — — 122 — 122
Total ......... [P o — = (225) — (225)
Balance at September 28, 2007 ... .. 1,352 1 (248) 53y .. 1,052
Pre-tax current period change . . .. (22) — (159) 8 (173)
Income tax benefit . ........... — (1) 52 (1) 50
Balance at September 26, 2008 . . . .. $1,330 $— $(355) $(46) $ 929

(1) During fiscal 2008 and 2006, $6 million and $38 million, respectively, were transferred from currency translation .
adjustments as a result of the sale of non-U.S. subsidiaries. These gains are included in income (loss) from dlecontmued
operations in the Consolidated and Combined Statement of Operations.

(2) Includes hedge of net investment foreign exchange gains or losses, offsetting foreign éxchange gains or losses attributable to
the translation of the net investments, -

[
LA

24. Share Plans

~ Prior to Separation on June 29, 2007, all equity awards (restricted share awards and share options)
held by Company employees were granted under the Tyco International Ltd. 2004 Stock and Incentive
Plan or other Tyco International equity incentive plans. All equity awards granted by the Company.
subsequent to Separation were granted under the Tyco Electronics Ltd. 2007 Stock and Incentive Plan
(the “2007 Plan”). The 2007 Plan is administered by the Management Development and Compensation
Committee of the board of directors of Tyco Electronics, which consists exclusively of independent
directors of Tyco Electronics and provides for the award of share options, stock appreciation rights,
annual performance bonuses, long-term performance awards, restricted units, deferred stock units,
restricted shares, promissory shares, and other share-based awards (collectively, “Awards’). The 2007
Plan provides for a maximum of 25 million common shares to be issued as Awards, subject to
adjustment as provided under the terms of the 2007 Plan. The 2007 Plan allows for the use of
authorized but unissued shares or treasury shares to be used to satisfy such awards.
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24, Share Plans (Continued)

Prior to the Separation, all employee equity awards were granted by Tyco International. At
Separation, significantly all of Tyco International’s outstanding restricted share awards issued to
Company employees prior to September 29, 2006 were converted into restricted share awards of the
Company at a ratio of one share of the Company for every four Tyco International common shares.
The conversion of those pre-September 29, 2006 awards also resulted in the issuance of one restricted
share award in Tyco International and Covidien. The conversion of pre-September 29, 2006 awards to
executives and employees of Tyco International and Covidien resulted in the issuance of a Tyco
Electronics Ltd. restricted share award for every four Tyco International awards that existed. The
remaining restricted share and share option awards issued to Company employees converted into
restricted share and share option awards of the Company based on a ratio of the Company’s final
pre-Separation when-issued share price and Tyco International’s pre-Separation closing share price. All
share option awards granted prior to September 29, 2006 to Company employees who were identified
as “Tyco Corporate Employees” prior to Separation converted to share option awards in each of the
three post-Separation companies based on ratios of the respective company’s final pre-Separation
when-issued share price and Tyco International’s pre-Separation closing share price. All share option
award conversions were done in accordance with Sections 409A and 424 of the Code. Upon Separation,
all performance conditions on outstanding performance share awards to Company employees were
lifted and those awards converted to restricted share awards in the Company’s stock only.

Restricted Share Awards

Restricted share awards are granted subject to certain restrictions. Conditions of vesting are
determined at the time of grant under the 2007 Plan, All restrictions on the award wilt lapse upon
retirement or normal retirement eligibility, death, or disability of the employee. Recipients of restricted
shares have the right to vote such shares and receive dividends, whereas recipients of restricted units
have no voting rights and receive dividend equivalents. For grants that vest based on certain specified
performance criteria, the fair market value of the shares or units is expensed over the period of
performance, once achievement of criteria is deemed probable. For grants that vest through passage of
time, the fair market value of the award at the time of the grant is amortized to expense over the
period of vesting. The fair value of restricted share awards is determined based on the market value of
the Company’s shares on the grant date. Restricted share awards generally vest in one-third increments
over a period of four years beginning in the second year, as determined by the Management
Development and Compensation Committee, or upon attainment of various levels of performance that
equal or exceed targeted levels, if applicable. The compensation expense recognized for restricted share
awards is net of estimated forfeitures,

Restrlcted share award activity for grants as of fiscal year end 2008 and changes during the year
then ended is presented below:

"t .

S ] Weighted-Average
Non-vested Restrictéd Share Awards Shares Grant-Date Fair Value

Non-vested at September 28,2007 .:............ 4,398,545 $36.96
Granted . . . ... ... . e 239,884 o 3394
Vested ........... e e e e (938,048) 36.05
Forfeited . .. ........... e (372,111) - 37.17
Non-vested at September 26,2008 . . ......... ... 3,328,270 $36.97
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24. Share Plans (Continued) '

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of Tyco Electronics restricted share awards granted'
during fiscal 2008 and 2007 were $33.94 and $39.69, respectively. The weighted-average grant-date fair
value of Tyco International restricted share awards granted to Tyco Electronics employees during
pre-Separation fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006 were $30.34 and $28.96, respectively. :

As of fiscal year end 2008, there was $61 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related
to non-vested Tyco Electronics restricted share awards. That cost is expected to be recognized over a
weighted-average' period of 2.1 fiscal years.

Deferred Stock Units '

Deferred Stock Units (“DSUs”) ar¢ notional units that are tied to the value of Tyco Electronics
common shares with distribution deferred until termination of employment. Distribution, when made,
will be in the form of actual shares. Similar to restricted share grants that vest through the passage of
time, the fair value of DSUs is determined based on the market value of the Company’s shares on the
grant date and is amortized to expense over the vesting period. Recipients of DSUs do not have the
right to vote such shares and do not have the right to receive cash dividends. However, they have-the
right to receive dividend equivalents, -which, are delivered at the same time as the underlying DSUs.
Conditions of vesting are determined at the time of grant. As of fiscal year end 2008 and 2007, 50,010
and 44,450 vested but undistributed DSUs were outstanding, respectively. Thé grant-date fair value of
vested but undistributed DSU grants was expensed immediately and was not 51gn1f1cant during fiscal
2008 and post- Separatnon 2007. There were no DSUs issued’ prlor to Separatlon '

Share 0ptwns

v
¥,

Share options are granted to purchase Tyco Electronics common shares at pI’ICCS which are equal
to or greater than the market price of the common shares on the date the option is granted. ,
Conditions of vesting are determined at the time of grant under the 2007 Plan. Options generally vest
and become exercisable in equal annual 1nstallments over a penod of four years and will generally
explre 10 years after the date of grant,
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24. Share Plans (Continued)

Share option activity for grants as of fiscal year end 2008 and changes during the year then ended
is presented below:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average ‘
Average Remaining Aggrepate
! Exercise =~ Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Price - . Term Value
} (in years) (in millions)
OQutstanding at September 28, 2007 .. .. ........... 32,307,571  $42.86
Granted . . ... . e 128,900 33.15
Exercised .................. EEEEE EEERE R (2,576,127) 2170
Expired.......... ... ... ... e .. (4,125258) 5030
Forfeited . . . . .. e e e e e e e e e (268,066)  37.06
Qutstanding at September 26,2008 .. ........... .. 25,465,020  $43.81 4.5 27
Vested and unvested expected to vest at September 26, - ‘
2008 ... e el 24844248 - $43.97 4.5 27
Exercisable at September 26, 2008 . ... ........... 21,185,069 45.13 38 27

The conversion of Tyco International share option awards into Tyco Electronics share option
awards at Separation was considered a modification of an award in accordance with SFAS No. 123R,
As a result, the Company compared the fair value of the award immediately prior to the Separation to
the fair value immediately after the Separation to measure incremental compensation cost. The
conversion resulted in an increase in the fair value of the awards of $13 million. Of that amount, the
Company recorded non-cash compensation expense of $1 million and $11 million in selling, general,
and administrative and separation costs in the Consolidated and Combined Statement of Operations
for fiscal 2008 and 2007, respectively. The remaining $1 million of modification expense will be
recorded through 2011, :

As of fiscal year end 2008, there was $35 million of total unrecognized compensaﬁbn_cost related
to non-vested Tyco Electronics share options granted under Tyco Electronics share option plans. The
cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.0 years.

Share-Based Compensation

Effective October 1, 2005, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123R using the
modified prospective transition method. As a result, the Company’s results from continuing operations
for fiscal 2006 include incremental share-based compensation expense of $40 million. Share-based
compensation cost during fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006 totaled $62 million, $100 million, and $69 million,
respectively, of which $38 million, $93 million, and $64 million, respectively, have been inciuded in the
Consolidated and Combined Statements of Operations within selling, general, and administrative
expenses and separation costs. Share-based compensation expense of $4 million, $7 million, and
$5 million, respectively, has been included in the Consolidated and Combined Statements of Operations
within income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax for fiscat 2008, 2007, and 2006. The
Company has recognized a related tax benefit associated with its share-based compensation
arrangements of $17 million, $27 million, and $19 million in fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively.
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24, Share Plans (Continued)

The grant-date fair vaiue of each option grant is estimated using the Black-Scholes-Merton option
pricing model. The fair value is then amortized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service
periods of the awards, which is generally the vesting period. Use of a valuation model requires
management to make certain assumptions with respect to selected model mpuls Expected share price
volatility was calculated based on the historical volatility of the stock of a composite of peers of Tyco
Electronics and implied volatility derived from exchange traded options on that same composite of
peers. The average expected life was based on the contractual term of the option and expected
employec excrcise and post-vesting employment termination behavior. The 'risk-free interest rate is
based on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues with a remaining term equal to the expected life assumed at
the date of grant. The expected annual dividend per share was based on Tyco Electronics’ expecled
dividend rate. The compensation expense recognized is net of estimated forfeitures. Forfeitures are
estimated based on voluntary termination behavior, as well as an analysis of actual option forfeitures.

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of Tyco Electronics options granted during fiscal 2008
and post-Separation fiscal 2007 and the weighted-average .assumptions Tyco Electronics used in the
Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model for fiscal 2008 and post- Separanon fiscal 2007 were as -
follows: .

Fiscal

. 20082007
Weighted-average grant-date fairvalue . . .................... $8.87 $12.34
Assumptions: .
Expected share pnce volatlllty SN e .. 30% 30%
Risk free interest rate . ........ . e 3.2% 4.9%
Expected annua] dividend per share . .. .. [ $0.59 § 056 °
Expected life of options (years) ... ... e .. 5.0 5.2

The weighted-average grant-date fair values of Tyco International options granted to Tyco
Electronics employees during pre-Separation fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006 and the weighted-average
assumptions Tyco International used in the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model for
pre-Separation fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006 were as follows: .

! : - - Fiscal

2007 2006
Weighted-average grant-date fair value . .. ... S '$9.52 $8.96
Assumptions: S o
Expected share price volatlhty e e 2% 34%
Risk free interest rate . . . .. e il A3% 43%
Expected annual dividend per share . . ... ... P P $0.64 $0.40
Expected life of options (years} .. . .........coo vt 49 40

The total intrinsic value of Tyco Electronics options exercised during fiscal 2008 and
post-Separation fiscal 2007 were $39 million and $7 million, respectively. The total cash received by the
Company related to the exercise of options totaled $54 million and $13 million in fiscal 2008 and
post-Separation fiscal 2007, respectively. The related excess cash tax benefit classified as a financing
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ' (Continued)

24, Share Plans (Continued)

cash inflow for fiscal 2008 and 2007 in the Consclidated and Combined Statement of Cash Flows was
not significant. + - , y

The total intrinsic value of Tyco International options exercised by Tyco Electronics employees
durmg pre-Separation fiscal 2007 and flscal 2006 was $48 million and $22 million, respectlvely

[

Employee Stock Purchase Plans

The Company also maintains employee stock purchase plans for the benefit of employees of
certain qualified U.S. and non-U:S. subsidiaries. The terms of these plans provide. employees ‘the right
to purchase shares of the Company’s stock at a stated price and receive certain tax benefits. The
significant plans are discussed below. C

Substantially ail full-time employees of the 'Company’s U.S. subsidiaries and employees of certain
qualified non-U.S. subsidiaries are eligible to participate in the Tyco Electronics Ltd. Employee Stock
Purchase Plan (the “ESP Plan”). Eligible employecs authorize payroll deductions to be made for the
purchase of shares. The Company matches a portion of the employee contribution by contributing an
additional 15% of the employee’s payroll deduction on the first $40,000 of payroll deductions. All
shares purchased under the ESP Plan are purchased on the open market by a designated broker.
Participation in the ESP Plan began in December 2007. The Company incurred $1 million in matching
contribution expense in fiscal 2008,

Substantially all full-time employees of the Company’s United Kingdom subsidijaries are eligible to
participate in the Tyco Electronics Ltd. Savings Related Share Plan (the “UK SAYE Plan™). Under the
UK SAYE Plan, eligible employees are granted options to purchase shares at the end of three years of
service at 85% of the market price at the time of grant. Options under the UK SAYE Pian are
generally exercisable after a period of three years and expire six months after the date of vesting.
Participation in the UK SAYE Plan began in February 2008. As of fiscal year end 2008, 123,818
unvested options are outstanding under the UK SAYE Plan; there are no.vested options outstanding.
Non-cash compensation expense retated to the UK SAYE Plan was not significant in fiscal 2008.

25. Consolidated and Combined Segment and Geographic Data -

The Company aggregates its operating segments into four reportable segments based upon the
Company’s internal business structure. See Note 1 for a description of the segments in which the
Company operates. Segment performance is evaluated based on net sales and operating income.
Generally, the Company considers all expenses to be of an operating nature, and, accordingly, allocates
them to each reportable segment. Costs specific to a segment are charged to the segment. Corporate
expenses, such as headquarters administrative costs, are allocated to the’ segments based on segment
income from operatlons Net litigation settiement costs and separation costs incurred in fiscal 2008 and
2007 were not allocated to the segments. Imersegment sales are not material and are recorded. at
selling prices that approximate market prlces
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25. Consolidated and Combined Segment and Geographic Data (Continued) .

Net sales and income from operations by business segment are presented in the -following table for
fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006:

Net Sales Income from Operations
Fiscal Fiscal
2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
A (in millions) ]
Electronic Components . . ... ............ $11,043 $10,111 § 9,386 $1,287M $1,339  $1,404
Network Solutions .. .................. 2,163 1,897 1,740 254 - 231 -+ 268
Undersea Telecommunications. . . ......... .1,165 565 300 . 160 .~ .. 38 15
Wireless Systems. . .. ......... ... .. ... . 463 386 385 67 39 55
Litigation settlement costs, net and separation o )
LCOStS . ... ... e — — — (22 (931 —
Total ...... e e e e e e $14,834 $12,959 _$11,811 $1,746- $§ 716 §1,742

(1) lIncludes goodwill and long-lived asset impairments of $137 million in fiscal 2008. See Note 5 for additional information.
No single customer accounted for more than 10% of net sales in fiscal 2008, 2007, or 2006.

As the Company is not’ organlzed by product or serwce it is not practicable 1o disclose net sales by
product or service. ‘

Depreciation and amortization and capital expenditures for fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006 were as
follows: *

Depreciation and Amortization Capital Expenditures
. Fiscal Fiscal
‘ ‘ 2008 2007 2006 . 2008 2007 2006
- ' (in millions) .
Electronic*Components . . . ... .. e $ 466 $§ 436 $ 396 § 529 § 521 $ 462
Network Solations .................... 48 32 32 65 52 ~38
Undersea Telecommunications . . . ... ...... 26 22 15 14 2881 4
Wireless Systems. . .................... 19 24 16 11 14 15
Total .............. e e e, $ 559 § 514 § 459 $ 619 § 875 § 519

(1) Includes $280 million related to the Company’s exercise of its option to buy five cable- Iaymg sea vessels in fiscal 2007. See
Note 9 for additional information.
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25. Consolidated and Combined Segment and .Geographic Data (Continued)

Segment assets and a reconciliation of segment assets to total.assets at fiscal year.end 2008 2007,
and 2006 were as follows:

Segment Assets

Fiscal
2008 2007 2006
. (in millions)

Electronic Components . ... ................ e e $ 3665 $ 3550 §$ 3,320
Network Solutions ... ... . i it i e i e 787 . 704 604
Undersea Telecommunications . .............. e e 304 155 57
Wireless Systems . ... ... . . 282 234 202
Total segment assets ... .. .. L e 5,038 4,643 4,183
Other current assets . . . ..o v v i it it een. e e : 2,057 5,353 2,503
Non-current assets . .4 ........... SR e e e e, 14,505 13,692 12,405
L 121 T - S $21,600 $23,688 $19,091
(1) Segment assets are comprised of accounts receivable and inventory. - '

Net sales by geographic region for fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006 and net property, plant, and
equipment by geographic area at fiscal year end 2008, 2007, and 2006 were as follows:

‘ Property, Plant, and*
Net Sales'? Equipment, Net

Fiscal Fiscal
2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
(in millions)
United States ... ... $ 4619 $3950 §$ 3730 $ 1,093 $ 1,109 $§ 1,105
Other Americas . . ... ............... 642 514 460 © 46 52 42
Europe/Middle Easthfnca ............. 5,515 4,816 4,264 1,405 1,325 1,166
Asia-Pacific . . . .. e e . 4,058 3,679 3,357 973 926 659
Total . ................ [ $14,834 §12,959 $11,811 §$ 3,517 §$ 3412 § 2972

(1} Net sales from external customers is attributed to individual countries based on the legal entity that records the sale.
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26. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Summarized quarterly financial data for the fiscal years ended September 26, 2008 and
September 28, 2007 were as follows:

Fiscal 2008

First Second Third Fourth
QuarterV  Quarter Quarter'” Quarter”

(in millions, except per share data)

Net SAleS . . . ot e e $3,558  $3,662  $3,908  §$3,706
Gross iNCOME . . . . . ittt it e et ia e 892 970 997 911
Income from continuing operations. . ......... e 868 302 317 107
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income .
taxes ........... e e 81 (1) 13 95
NEtInCOmME . .. ..ottt e e 949 301 330 202
Basic earnings per share: , :
Income from continuing operations . . ................. $1.75 $062 $066 §$023
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes . . 0.16 — 0.03 (.20
Nt NGO . o ot e ettt e e e e e e 191 062 0.69 0.43
Diluted earnings per share: :
Income from continuing operations . .................. $174 $062 $066 §023
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes . . 0.16 — 002 | 020
Net iCOME . .. ...t it et i ina e e 190 . 062 « 068 0.43.
Weighted-average number of shares outstanding:
BaSIC & v e e e e e 496 486 478 470
Diluted .. ... ... .. s 499 489 482 . 473

(1) Income from continuing operations for the first quarter of fiscal 2008 includes 321 million of net restructuring and other
charges and $592 million of income pursuant to the Tax Sharing Agreement with Tyco International and Covidien. Net
income for the first quarter of fiscal 2008 includes $81 million of income, net of income taxes, from discontinued
operations.

(2) Income from continuing operations for the second quarter of fiscal 2008 includes $23 million of litigation settlement costs,
$25 million of net restructuring and other charges, and $13 million of income pursuant to the Tax Sharing Agreement with
Tyco International and Covidien,

(3) Income from continuing operations for the third quarter of fiscal 2008 includes $16 miltion of net restructuring and other
charges. Net income for the third quarter of fiscal 2008 includes $13 miflion of income, net of income taxes, from
discontinued operations.

{4) Income from continuing operations for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 includes $123 million of net restructuring aid other
charges, $137 million of goodwill and long-lived asset impairment charges, $39 million of other expense related to the Tax
Sharing Agreement with Tyco International and Covidien, and $33 million of income tax benefit related to the analysis and
reconciliation of tax accounts. Net income includes $95 million of income, net of income taxes, from discontinued
operations.
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26. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) (Continued)

Fiscal 2007

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter™® Quarter Quarter® Quarter

(in millions, except per share data)

Netsales .......... e $2,975 $3,204 $ 3292 $3488

Gross inCOME . . .. ...t vttt et et e e 787 832 837 883

Income (loss) from continuing operations . . . ............... 235 281 (933) 239

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes . . . . 46 4) (435 17

Netincome (oSS} . ... oottt T28 277 (1,368) 256

Basic earnings (loss) per share: o ' '

Income (loss) from continuing operations . ............... $ 047 $057 $ (1.88) $ 048
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income -
S S 010 (0.01) (087)° 0.04
Netincome (Joss) ........ ... ..., 0.57 056 (2.75) 0.52
Diluted earnings (loss) per share: . S ' '
Income (loss) from continuing operations . ............. . $047 $057 $(1.88) § 048
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income e ' ’
BAXES © o v vt et e e e ... 010 (001 (087) 003
Net income (loss) . ...... ... . i - (K57 0.56 (2.75) 0.51
Weighted-average number of shares outstanding:¥ <
Basic. .. ... . e e 497 - 497 497 496
Diluted . ........... ... ... ... . . .., e 497 497 497 500

(1) Net income for the first quarter of fiscal 2007 includes $46 million of income, net of income taxes, from discontinued
operations: .

{2) Loss from continuing operations for the 'th.ird quartér of fiscal 2007 includes $891 million of net litigation settlement costs,
$25 million of separation costs, $25 million of net restructuring and other charges, and $232 million of allocated loss on
retirement of debt. Net loss includes a $435 million loss, net of income taxes, from discontinued operations.

(3) Income from continuin'g operations for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 includes $19 miltion of separation costs, $50 million
of net restructuring and other charges, and $13 million of other income related to the accretion of interest on certain
contingent tax liabilities relating to unresolved tax matters of legacy Tyco International. Net loss includes $17 million of
income, net of income taxes, from discontinued operations.

(4) At Separation, on June 29, 2007, the Company had 497 million common shares outstanding. The same number of shares is

182

being used for both diluted earnings per share and basic earnings per share for all periods prior to the date of Separation
as no Tyco Electronics equity awards were outstanding prior to the Separation. The computation of diluted loss per share
excludes non-vested restricted shares and share options of 4 million for the quarter ending June 29, 2007 as their effect
would have been anti-dilutive. : :
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27. Tyco Electronics Group S.A.

In December 2006, prior to the Separation, TEGSA, a 100% owned subsidiary of Tyco
Electronics Ltd., was formed. TEGSA, a Luxembourg company, is a holding company that owns
directly, or indirectly, all of the operating subsidiaries of Tyco Electronics Ltd. TEGSA is the obligor
under the Company’s senior notes, five-year unsecured senior revolving credit facility, and commercial
paper all of which are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by its parent, Tyco Electronics Ltd. The
following tables present condensed consolidating financial information for Tyco Electronics Ltd.,
TEGSA, and all other subsidiaries that are not providing a guarantee of debt but which represent
assets of TEGSA, using the equity method. T

Consolidating Statement of Operations : ' '
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 26, 2008

Tyco Ele;?r‘:)onics Other Consolidating
Electronics Ltd. Group S.A.  Subsidiaries  Adjustmenis - "Total
(in millions) -, Ve

Netsales.......... e $ - $ — $14,834 § —  $14834
Costofsales .................... — _ 11,064 —_ 11,064

Grossincome . ... .............. — —_ 3,770 — 3,770
Selling, general, and administrative Co ' '

EXPEMSES . .o v vttt 41 10 1,629 —_ 1,680
Litigation settlement, net ... ........ 22 —_ —_ -— - 22
Restructuring and other charges, net . . . — — 185 — ' 185
Impairment of goodwill and long-lived -y

ASSELS . L it — —. 137 — 137

Income (loss) from operations. . .. .. (63) (10) 1,819 L — + 1,746
Interest income ... ... e e —_ — 32 — T 32
Interest expense. . . ..........vuunn — (180y - 8) — (188)
Other income, net . ............... — — 567 — ., 567
Equity in net income of subsidiaries . . . 1,682 1,788 — (3.470) —
Equity in net income of subsidiaries of

discontinued operations .......... 188 188 — (376) . —
Intercompany interest and fees . ... .. S (25) . 84 (59) — —

Income from continuing eperations

before income taxes and minority
interest. . ................... 1,782 1,870 2,351 (3,846) 2,157

Income taxes . . .................. — — (558) — (558)
Minority interest .. ............... — — (5) — (5)

Income from continuing operations . . 1,782 1,870 1,788 (3,846) 1,594
Income from discontinued operations,

net of income taxes ............. - — 188 — 188

Netincome ................... $1,782 $1,870 $ 1,976 $(3,846) § 1,782
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27. Tyco Electronics Group S.A. (Continued)

Consolidating Statement of Operations
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 28, 2007

Tyco Elegrt)nnics Other Consolidating
Electronics Ltd.  Group S.A.  Subsidiaries  Adjustments Total -
. . (in millions)
Netsales....................... § — } — $12,959 $§ — $12,959
Costofsales .................... — — 9,620 — 9,620

Grossincome . ................. — — 3,339 —_ 3,339
Sclling, general, and administrative : .

CXPENSES ..ot v vttt i > 27 (34) 1,607 — 1,600
Litigation settlement, net . ... ....... 887 — — — 887
Separationcosts. .. ............... — — 44 — 44
Restructuring and other charges, net . . . — — 92 — 92

Income (loss) from eperations. . . . .. (914) 34 1,596 — 716
Interest income . ................, — 11 42 — 53
Interest expense. .. ............... — (105) (126) — (231)
Other (expense) income, net ........ — (232) 13 — (219)
Equity in net income of subsidiaries . . . 736 921 — (1,657) —
Equity in net loss of subsidiaries of :

discontinued operations . ......... (376) (376) - 752 —
Intercompany interest and fees . . .. ... = 107 (107) — —

Income (loss) from continuing

operations before income taxes and
_minority interest . . . ......... - (554) 360 1,418 (905) 319
Income taxes . . ... .. .. e — — (491) — {491)
Minority interest .. ............... — — (6) — (6)
Income (loss) from continuing
operations .................. (554) 360 921 {905) (178)
Loss from discontinued operations, net
~ofincome taxes ................ — — (376) — (376)
Net income (loss) . . ... .......... $(554) $ 360 $ 545 $ (905) § (554)
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27. Tyco Electronics Group S.A. (Continued)

Consolidating Statement of Operations
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 29, 2006

Tyco Other
Electronics Ltd.  Subsidiaries

Total

(in millions)

Net SA1ES .. ittt i e e e $ — $11,811  §$11,811
Costofsales. . ... ... .. . . . it = 8,617 8,617
Gross income . . ... .. ... e — 3,194 3,194
Selling, general, and administrative expenses................ — 1,445 1,445
Restructuring and other ¢harges, net . .................... — 7 7
Income from operations . . ...... [ — 1,742 1,742
Interest income . . .. ... . ... ... e — 48 48
Interest eXpense . . ... it — (256) (256)
Income from continuing operations before income taxes and
minority interest .. ......... . ... .. . . i e — 1,534 1,534
INCOmMEe taXES . ...ttt i i e e — (81) (81)
Minority interest . . ... .. ... L e — (6) ()
Income from continuing operations .................... — 1,447 1,447
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes. .. ... .. — (246) (246)
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change .. . .. .. — 1,201 1,201
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of income taxes . . . . — (8) ®
Net InCOME . ... ot e e e e $ — $ 1,193 $ 1,193

|
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27. Tyco Electronics Group S.A. (Coentinued)

Consolidating Balance Sheet
As of September 26, 2008

Assets

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . . . . ... ... ..
Accounts receivable, net . . .. ... ......
Inventories . ...... ... .. L i
Intercompany receivables . ... ........
Prepaid expenses and other current assets .
Deferred income taxes . .............

Total current assets . ............... )

Property, plant, and equipment, net . . .. ...
Goodwill . ... .. .. .. .. . L.
Intangible assets, net . . ... ... .. ... .. ..
Deferred income taxes . .. .. ...........
Investment in subsidiaries. . . ... ........
Intercompany loans receivable ... ... .. ..
Receivable from Tyco International Ltd. and
Covidien Ltd. .. ..................
Otherassets ... ... . i

Total Assets . ............¢ccuuuun.

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

Current Liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt .. ..
Accounts payable . . .. ... ... L L.
Accrucd and other current liabilities . . . . .
Deferred revenue . . . ... ............
Intercompany payables . . ... .........

Total current liabilities . .............
Long-termdebt ....................
Intercompany loans payable ............
Long-term pension and postretirement

liabilities . . . ........ .. ... o ...
Deferred income taxes . . ..............
Income taxes . .....................
Other liabilities. . . ..................

Total Liabilities . . . . ... ............

Minority interest . . .. ... .............
Equity . .. ... ...
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity .
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0 Elec?ronics Other Consolidating
Electronics Ltd. Group S.A.  Subsidiaries  Adjustments Total
{in millions)

$ — $ — $ 1,086 $ — $ 1,086
—_ — 2,726 — 2,726
_— — 2,312 " — 2,312
1 — 23 (24) —
2 86 679 — 767
— — 204 — 204
3 86 7,030 (24) 7,095
—_ — 3,517 — 3,517
— — 7,068 — 7,068
— -— 486 — 486
— — 1,915 — 1,915
11,069 12,957 — {24,026) —
167 6,551 5,500 {12,218) —
— — 1,218 —_ 1,218
— 21 280 — 301
$11,239 $19,615 $27,014 $(36,268)  $21,600
5 — 5§ - $ 20 $ - $ 20
27 — 1,442 — 1,469
83 81 1,432 — 1,596
— - 247 — 247
23 -— 1 (24) —
133 81 3,142 (24) 3,332
— 2,998 163 — 3,161
33 5,467 6,718 (12,218) —
_ —_ 721 — 721
— — 289 — 289
— — 2,291 — 2,291
— —_— 723 — 723
166 8,546 14,047 (12,242) 10,517
— — 10 — 10
11,073 11,069 12,957 (24,026) 11,073
$11,239 $19,615 $27,014 $(36,268)  $21,600
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

27. Tyco Electronics Group S.A. (Continued)

Consolidating Balance Sheet
As of September 28,2007

Assets

Current Assets;
Cash and cash equivalents . . . ... ......
Accounts receivable, net . ............
Inventories . .....................
Class action settlement escrow . . .. ... ..
Class action settlement receivable . . . . .. "
Intercompany receivables . ...........
Prepaid expenses and other current assets .
Deferred income taxes . .............
Assets of discontinued operations. . ... ..

Total current assets . ...............
Property, plant, and equipment, net . . . .. ..
Goodwill ......... .. ..... .. ... ...
Intangible assets, net . . .. .............
Deferred income taxes . . ... ...........
Investment in subsidiaries . . ... .........
Investment in subsidiaries of discontinued

Operations. . .. ... ...
Intercompany loans receivable ... ..... ..

Receivable from Tyco international Ltd. and .

CovidienLtd. ....................
Other assets . . . .0 v i i e e e et e

Total Assets . ... ............. e

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Current Liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt . . ..
Accounts payable . . ........ .. ... ...
Class action settlement lability .. ... ...
Accrued and other current liabilities . . . . .
Deferred revenue . . .. ........... ...
Intercompany payables . ... ...........
Liabilities of discontinued operations . . . .

Total current liabilities . .............
Long-termdebt ..... .. .. ...........
Intercompany loans payable ............
Long-tcrm pension and postretirement

liabilities . . . .. ... ... ...........

Total Liabilities . . . ................

Minority interest . . ..................
Equity . . . ...
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity .

c0
. Tyco Elec'lt-ymnics Other Consolidating
Electronics Ltd. Group S.A.,  Subsidiaries  Adjustments Total
(in millions)
b 2 5 — $ 90 3 — § 942
— — 2,594 — 2,594
— — 2,049 — , 2,049
928 — — — 928
2,064 — — — 2,064
181 29 (B4) (126) —
(2) — 591 — 589
—_ —_ 325 — 325
-— — 505 — 505
3,173 29 6,920 {126) 9,996
— — 3,412 — 3,412
— — 7177 — 7,177
— — 526 — 526
. — 1,397 — 1,397
11,136 13,329 — (24,465) —
239 239 - (478) —
e 6,267 5,024 (11,291) -
— — 844 — 844
— 2 334 — 336
$14,548 $19,866 $25,634 $(36,360) $23,688
5 — $ — $ 5 $ — 3 5
1 e 1,342 . — . 1,343
2,992 — - — 2,992
61 3 1,353 — 1,417
_ —_ 181 _— 181
29 181 -(172) 38 o=
— —_ 266 —_ 266
3,083 184 2,975 (38) 6,204
— 3,283 90 — 3,373
88 5,024 6,267 (11,379) —
— — 607 — 607
— — 271 — 27
— — . 1,242 — 1,242
— — 599 — 599
3171 8,491 12,051 (11,417) , 12,296
— — 15 — .15
11,377 11,375 13,568 (24,943) 11,377
$14,548 $19,866  $25,634 $(36,360)  $23,688
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27. Tyco Electronics Group S.A. (Continued)

Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 26, 2008

Cash Flows From Operating Activities;
Net cash (used in) provided by continuing
operating activities. . ... ... ... .. ...
Net cash used in discontinued operating activities

Net cash (used in) provided by operating
activities . .. ... .. o o e

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures . . ... ... .........,..,
Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and
CQUIPMIEDt .. . . . i e e
Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired . . . ..
Purchase accounting and holdback/earn-out
liabilities ... ............ ... .. ... ...
Class action settlement escrow . ... ..........
Proceeds from divestiture of discontinued .
operations, net of cash retained by business sold .
Decrease in intercompany loans . . . ... .......
Other. .. ... ... e

Net cash provided by (used in) continuing
investing activities . . ... ... ... .. ... ...
Net cash uscd in discontinued investing activities .

Net cash provided by (used in) investing
activities . . . ... ... ... L L L

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Net increase in commercial paper . .. ... ......
Proceeds from long-termdebt .. .. ... .......
Repayment of long-term debt . . . .. ..........
Changes in parent company equity .. .........
Repurchase of common shares . ... ... .......

Proceeds from exercise of share options . . ... ...
Transfer to discontinued operations . . . .. ......
Loan borrowing from parent . ... ...........
Minority interest distributions paid . ... .. ... ..
Other . ... ... .

Net cash used in continuing financing activities . .
Net cash provided by discontinued financing
activities . . ... ... .. . o o

Net cash used in financing activities . . ... .. ..

Effect of currency translationoncash ....... ..
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash
equivalents . .. ......................
Less: net increase in cash and cash equivalents
related to discontinued operations . . . ... . ...
Cash and cash equivalents al beginning of fiscal
1

Cash and cash equivalents at end of fiscal year . . .
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Tyco
co Electronics Other Consolidating
Electronics Ltd. Group S.A.  Subsidiaries  Adjustments Total
(in millions)

3 (649) $ (38) $ 1,7 5 — $ 1,014
— — (25) = .
{649) (38) 1,676 = 989
— — (619) — (619)
— — 42 — 42
— - 3 — 3
— - 2 - 2)
936 — — — 936
— — 571 — 571
(222) 159 — 63 —
8) - (16) = 24)
706 159 27 63 901
— — (6) = )]
706 159 (33) ﬁ 895
— 630 — — 630
— 800 100 — 900
— (1,750) 0)] — (1,751)
1,398 199 (1,597) — —_
(1,242) — — — {1,242)
(271) — — — (271)
54 — - - 54
— — (80) - (80)
— —_ , 63 (63} —
- - (11) - (1)
2 - 3 — (1
(59 (121) (1,529) (63) {1,772)
— — 33 = 33
(59) (121 (1,496) E) {1,739)
— — 1 — 1
2) — 148 — 146
- - @ - @
2 — 940 = 942
5 — $ — $ 1,086 $_— $ 1,086
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" TYCO ELECTRONICS LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

27. Tyco Electronics Group S.A. (Continued)

Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 28, 2007

Tyco
Tyco Electronics Other Consolidating
Electronics Ltd.  CGroup S.A.  Subsidiaries  Adjustments Total

(in millions)}

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net cash (used in) provided by continuing

operating activities. . . . .. ... ... .. ... ., $ (74 $ (264) $ 1,846 § - $ 1,508
. Net cash provided by discontinued operating
activities .\ . ... ... — - - 17 — 17
Net cash (used in) provided by operating . . '
activities . . ... L. e (74) (264) 1,863 — 1,525
Cash Flows From Investing Activities: . . .
,Capital expenditures . . ... ... ... L. ... — ' - (875) — (875)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and ’
EQUIPTIENE .. . . v i e . — — 41 — 41
Purchase accounting and holdback/earn-out
Labilities . . ........... ... ... . .. ... — — 4 — 4)
Class action settlement escrow .. .. .......... (928) . — : — - (928)
Proceeds from divestiture of discontinued operation,
net of cash retained by business sold . . . . ... .. — — 227 — 227
Decrease in intercompany loans . . ... ... ..... — 2,011 — (2,011) —_
Other. . . ... i i e — — 1 — 1
Net cash (used in) provided by continuing ’
investing activities . ... ..... .. ... ... .. (928) 2,011 (610) (2,011) {1,538)
‘Net cash provided by discontinued investing )
CAClVELIES L —_ — 0 — 10
.+ Net cash (used in) provided by investing .
ACLVILIES © vt i e e e e e e (928) 2,011 {600) (2,011) (1,528)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Proceeds from long-termdebt . ... .......... - 5,676 — — 5,676
Repayment of long-termdebt . . ... .......... — (2,393 (62) — (2,455)
Allocated debt activity . . .. ..... ... ... ... — (3,743) -— — (3,743}
Net transactions with former parent. . . ... ... .. 875 {2,956) 3,193 — 1,112
, Changes in parent company equity . . ......... 129 1,669 (1,798) — -—
Proceeds from exercise of share options . . . ... .. 13 - f— — 13
Transfers to discontinued operations . .. ... ... . — —_ (134) — (134)
Loan borrowing from parent . . ......... S — —_— (2,011) 2,011 —
Minority interest distributions paid . ... ....... — — )] —_ ' M
Other, . ... ... i i (13) ' — 5 — (8)
Net cash provided by (used in) continuing ‘
financing activities . . . ... ............. 1,004 (1,747) (814) <2011 454
Net cash used in discontinued financing activities . — — (23) — (23} ‘
Net cash provided by (used in) financing
BCUVIHES . . oottt 1,004 (1,747 (837) 2,011 431 |
Effect of currency translation oncash ... ...... — — 46 — 46 !
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents. . . .. .. 2 — 472 — 474
Less: net increase in cash and cash equivalents
related to discontinued operations . . .. ... ... — — (4} — (4)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of fiscal
FEAT . . e e e e — — 472 - 472
Cash and cash equivalents at end of fiscal year . . . 3 2 § — $ 940 5§ — § 942
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TYCO ELECTRONICS LTD,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

27. Tyco Electronics Group S.A. (Continued)

Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 29, 2006

Tyco Other
Electronics Ltd.  Subsidiaries Total

(in millions)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Net cash provided by continuing operating activities . ........ $ — $1,624.  $1.624
Net cash provided by discontinued operating activities . . — 39 39
Net cash provided by operating activities . ................ — 1,663 1,663
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures . .. ... ... ... — (519) (519)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and equipment ... ....... — ‘ 6 - 6
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired .. ............. — (23) (23)
Purchase accounting and holdback/earn-out liabilities . .. ... .. .. — 4 (€))]
Other. o e e — 27 27
Net cash used in continuing investing activities . ............ — (513) (513)
Net cash used in discontinued investing activities, ... ........ — (126) (126)
Net cash used in investing activities .. ................... — (639) (639)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities: ,
Repayment of long-term debt . ... ... PP — (113) (113)
Allocated debt activity . ... ... ... .. ... . ... . . . — (713) (713)
Net transactions with former parent. .. .................... — (74 (74)
Transfers from discontinued operations . ................... — (N )
Minority interest distributions paid . .................... L — (12) (12)
Other. ... e e — {4) (4
Net cash used in continuing financing activities . . ... ........ — (923) (923)
Net cash provided by discontinued financing activities . . ... ... — 95 95
Net cash used in financing activities . . ... ................ — (828) (828)
Effect of currency translationoncash .. ... .. .. ... ......, — (1) (1))

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents . ... .............. 1% 0 19
Less: net increase in cash and cash equivalents related to

discontinued operations . . . .. ... ...... ... ... ... ... ... — (8} - (8)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of fiscal year. ... ... e — 285 285
Cash and cash equivalents at end of fiscal year . ............. $ — $ 472§ 472
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TYCO ELECTRONICS LTD.
SCHEDULE II—-VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Fiscal Years Ended September 26, 2008, September 28, 2007, and September 29, 2006

Acquisitions,
Balance at Additions Charged to  Divestitures i Balance at
Description Beginning of Year Costs and Expenses and Other Deductions  End of Year
(in millions)

Fiscal 2008
Allowance for Doubtful . :
Accounts Receivable . ... - $57 $5 $§ — $(20) $42
Fiscal 2007 |
Allowance for Doubtful _
Accounts Receivable . . . . 56 9 4 (12) . 57
Fiscal 2006 \
Allowance for Doubtful .
Accounts Receivable . . . . 67 1 1 (13 - 56
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CORPORATE DATA

REGISTERED & PRINCIPAL
EXECUTIVE OFFICE

Tyco Electronics Ltd.
Chesney House, 2nd Floor
96 Pitts Bay Road
Pembroke HM 08, Bermuda
441-294-0600

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
Deloitte & Touche LILP
1700 Market Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103

STOCK EXCHANGES

The company’s commaon shares are traded on the New
York Stock Exchange (NYSE) and the Bermuda Stock
Exchange (BSX) under the ticker symbol TEL.

FORM 10-K/A

A copy of Tyco Electronics' Annual Report on Form
10-K/A filed by the company with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) for fiscal 2008 is included
herein. Additional copies of the Form 10-K/A may be
obtained by shareholders without charge upon written
request to Tyco Electronics, Chesney House, 2nd Floor,
96 Pitts Bay Road, Pembroke HM 08, Bermuda. The
Annual Report on Form 10-K/A is also available on the
company's website at www.tycoelectronics.com

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

Registered shareholders (shares held in your own
name with our transfer agent) with requests such as
change of address and replacement of lost certificates
or dividend checks should contact Tyco Electronics’
transfer agent at:

Mellon Investor Services LLC
480 Washington Boulevard
Jersey City, NJ 07310
866-258-4745
shrrelations@melloninvestor.com
www.melloninvestor.com

Beneficial shareholders (shares held with a bank or
broker) should contact the bank or brokerage holding
their shares with their requests.

Other shareholder inguiries may be directed to Tyco
Electronics Shareholder Services at the company’s
registered office address.

TRADEMARKS

TE logo and Tyco Electronics are trademarks. All
product names appearing in this document are
trademarks owned by, or licensed to, the company
or its subsidiaries.
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2008 Financial Highlights $‘|4 8

i CORPORATE OVERVIEW BILLION OF NET SALES

| | We are a leading global provider of engineered electronic

components, network solutions, undersea telecommu-
nication systems and wireless systems. .

BILLION OF ADJUSTED

I We design, manufacture and market nearly 500,000 OPERATING INCOME

different products for customers in industries ranging

from automotive, appliance, and aerospace and

defense to telecommunications, energy, computers,

and consumer electronics. "

BILLION OF FREE CASH FLOW

I We enjoy global reach and scale, with approximately

96,000 employees operating from locations in almost

50 countries and serving customers in more than 150

countries.

2008 CRGANIC SALES GROWTH

Electronic
Components A 2.4%

I We employ nearly 8,000 engineers and have invested :
$640 million in research, development and engineering Network Solutions Jm

(RD&E) in fiscal 2008 alone. Udorses
Talecommunications -.“’5-7"
Wireless Systems ‘ ]1 X

Tyco Electronics -7.9%

ELECTRONIC COMPONENTS NETWORK SOLUTIONS

One of the world's largest suppliers of passive A leading global supplier of infrastructure
electronic components, including connectors components and systems, including connectors,
and interconnect systems, relays, switches, above- and below-ground enclosures, heat shrink
circuit protection devices, touchscreens, sleeves, cable accessories, surge arrestors, fiber
sensors and wire and cable. Our products are optic cabling, copper cabling and racks for

used primarily in the automotive, computer, copper and fiber networks. Our products serve
communications equipment, industrial machinery, the communication service provider, building
aerospace and defense, household appliance, networks and energy markets.

consumer electronics, commercial equipment,

medical and instrumentation markets.




2008 NET SALES BY SEGMENT NET SALES - In U5$ Bllilons. FREE CASH FLOW - In Us§ Mlltions
In US$ Millions
1165 5 $14.8 1400 $1,373
Underisa $13.0
wirsless Systems Talecommunications $1.8 1200 $1m
$2,63 ==
Network Sclutions 1,000 -
$11,043 wi $037
Elsctronic Components BOO |
600
Total: $14.834 5T 00|
200
[+] Q
FY'O6 FY'O7 FY'08 FY'06 FY'07 FY'08
2008 NET SALES BY REGION
ORGANIC SALES GROWTH ADJUSTED OPERATING INCOME
27% in Us$ Millions
Asla Pacific 2350
o _9.9% [ $2.07
2000
$1.755 SL788
sl 72.9% 1750
1500 -
6l 5.9% 1250 -
1000
al
50
2008 NET SALES BY END MARKET :
2L 500}
5% Agrospace § Defensa Mudical 2% 250+
5% Industrial Machinery. c Electronics 2% o P
Appiiance 4% FY'06 FY'O7 FY'08 FY'06 FY'07 FY'08

Automotive 30%

1';l'communic-tlonsz3%

UNDERSEA TELECOMMUNICATIONS WIRELESS SYSTEMS

A world leader in developing, manufacturing, A leader in the development of large-scale
installing and maintaining the world's most critical communications systems based on
advanced fiber optic undersea networks. A pioneer Internet Protocol (IP) technology. First

in the industry, providing more than five decades of responders and public service users rely
expertise in route surveying, system design, product on our communications systems to provide
development, system deployment, marine services, reliable, secure and interoperable communi-
maintenance and repair. Our business serves the cations during emergencies and to support
telecommunications, scientific research, government day-to-day operations. Our products are

and offshore oil and gas markets. used primarily in the public safety, utility,
transit and public service industries.




MESSAGE FROM THE CEO This offset lower than expected sales growth Adj usted |

In 2007. | outlined three key goals that we expected Tyco n gur Electr.omc Components segmer\t, Operating
which was impacted by the weakening

Electronics to achieve over the next three years: grow H

. ! Y global economy. iIncome for
organically at a rate of five to seven percent per year; _th
increase adjusted operating margins to 15 percent or Adjusted operating income for the year e year
greater by fiscal 2010; and generate free cash flow that was over $2 billion and our adjusted was over

approximates our net income. operating margin improved to 14 percent. $2 bi lion
Since mid-2007, we divested or exited
approximately $1.2 billion of low-margin
businesses and products. Along with improved pricing
and productivity, this more than offset higher commodity
Qur 2008 Performance and energy costs. We also made good progress
In fiscal year 2008, we achieved $14.8 billion in We with our manufacturing footprint restructuring
revenue, which represents organic sales growth - program. During fiscal 2007 and 2008, we

, _ achieved [ _
of eight percent. The growth was driven by strong initiated the closure of approximately 25
performance in our Undersea Telecommunications, $148 manufacturing locations — eliminating more
Wireless Systerns and Network Solutions segments. billion than 1.6 million feet of floor space worldwide.

in revenue

| am pleased to report that we made good progress on
each of these goals in our first year as an independent
company.




To help avert
the shutdown
of a major oil -
refinery anda .
resulting regional

fuel supply crisis, -
Tyco Electronics -

employees o
arrenged eqpedited
delivery of a
critical compound
used to insulate
network cable
- restoring
the refinery to
full production
within hours.

When restructuring is complete, we expect to generate
margin improvement from these actions — and {0 have a
much more balanced manufacturing network in place.
During the year, we also launched a companywide program
called the Tyco Electronics Operating Advantage (TEQA) —
aimed at accelerating productivity improvement in operations
and new product development.

And we generated $1.4 billion of free cash

increase to our guarterly cash dividend — from $0.14 per
share to $0.16 per share. We also repurchased 37 million
shares for $1.2 billion.

The Road Ahead
One of the most exciting aspects of our business is that
we serve markets with strong underlying

We gene rated growth characteristics.

flow in fiscal 2008, due primarily to our $1.4 billion of In the automotive industry, the need for

strong earnings performance. In addition,
we generated nearly $600 million of cash
frem the divestiture of the company’s
Power Systems, Radic Frequency Components and
Subsystem, and autemotive radar sensors businesses.
The majority of this cash was returned to shareholders in
the form of dividends and share repurchases. During the
fiscal year, Tyco Electronics announced a 14 percent

MR aRAleN Al better fuei efficiency and reduced emis-

sions, increased safety and more comfort
requires more electronics.

The increasing global demand for energy and the need
for more efficient provision of energy necessitates smarter
networks, higher-voltage transmissions and alternative
energy sources. Our interconnect and sealing and insulation




products are important parts of these systems.

The explosive growth of broadband requires improved
networks and creates demand for new and more feature-
rich devices, all with more complex electronics.

We are positioned to benefit from the demand in almost
every industry for smaller, lighter, faster, and more durable
connectivity — which is at the core of what we do.

Tyco Electronics is well positioned to take advantage of
these trends with our broad range of highty engineered
products provided through 5,000 sales and marketing
professionals, nearly 8,000 engineers and a global
manufacturing network located close to our customers.

| believe our future is bright, but it is clear that 2009
will be a tough year due to the weak global economic
environment. During these challenging times, we are
focusing on the fellowing:

Maintaining Our Strong Financial Position — We will
continue to focus on generating solid levels of cash flow
and maintaining financial discipline in our use of capital.

Strengthening Our Customer Relations — We will continue
to leverage our broad and deep sales, marketing and
engineering resources to create advantages for our

To help put a customer’s
reputation “up in lights,”
we cut development

time for a customized
industrial lighting connector
system from eight months

to less than eight weeks.

customers. We are approaching the economic slowdown
as an opportunity to gain share in several key markets.

Improving Our Operating Capabilities — During fiscal
2009, we plan to introduce our TEQA program to 20
additional manufacturing sites and 25 percent of our
major engineering centers. Early results of the program
are premising and wiil enable us to further improve our
safety, quality, delivery, profitability and asset utilization.

Resizing Our Cost Structure — We are taking advantage
of the economic slowdown to accelerate efforts to reduce
the company’s fixed cost structure by reducing overhead
costs by approximatety $100 million on an annualized
basis and accelerating our footprint restructuring.

As the economy recovers, | am confident these actions
will enable us to continue our journey to become a better
partner for our customers, a better place to work and an
attractive company in which to invest.

—”'—/
Jom
Tom Lynch
Chief Executive Officer




OUR MISSION: To create an advantage for our customers.

- OUR VALUES: Integrity. Accountability. Teamwork. Innovation.




the amount and timing of any future such
contributions. In addition, the company'’s
forecast excludes the cash impact of unusual
items because the company cannot predict
the amount and timing of such items.

The limitation associated with using FCF is
that it subtracts cash items that are ultimately
within management’s and the Board of
Directors’ discretion to direct and that
therefore may imply that there is less or
more cash that is available for the company's
programs than the most comparable GAAP
measure. This limitation is best addressed
by using FCF in combination with the GAAP
cash flow numbers, FCF as presented herein
may not be comparable to similarly titled
measures reported by other companies.

CAUTION CONCERNING FORWARD-
LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report may contain certain “forward-
looking statements” within the meaning

of the United States Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995, These state-
ments are based on management's current
expectations and are subject to risks,
uncertainty and changes in circumstances,
which may cause actual results, performance
or achievements to differ materially from
anticipated results, performance or achieve-
ments. All statements contained herein that
are not clearly historical in nature are forward-
looking and the words “anticipate.” “believe,”
‘expect,” *estimate,” “plan,” and similar
expressions are generally intended to
identify forward-looking statements. The
forward-looking statements in this report
include statements addressing the following
subjects: future financial condition and
operating resufts. Economic, business,
competitive and/or regulatory factors
affecting Tyco Electronics’ businesses are
exampies of factors, among others, that
could cause actual results to differ materially
from those described in the forward-looking
statements. In addition, Tyco Electronics’
historical combined financial information,
for periods prior to its separation from
Tyco International Ltd., is not necessarily
representative of the results it would have
achieved as an independent, publicly traded
company and may not be a relfable indicator
of its future results, Tyco Electronics has no
intention and is under no obligation to
update or alter (and expressly disclaims any
such intention or obligation to do so) its
forward-looking statements whether as a
result of new information, future events or
otharwise, except to the extent required by
law. More detailed information about these
and other factors is set forth in Tyco
Electronics’ Annual Report on Form 10-K/A
for the fiscal year ended September 28, 2008,
as well as in current reports on Form 8-K
and other reports filed by Tyco Electronics.

TRADEMARKS

TE logo and Tyco Electronics are trademarks,
All preduct names appearing in this document
are trademarks owned by or licensed to, the
company or its subsidiaries.

ADJUSTED INCOME FROM OPERATIONS RECONCILIATION
in US$ Millions

Adjustments

. Restructuring
Impairment of and Other
_ | Goodwill Separation| Charges, Net | Qther
US land Long-iived! Related | and Related | ltems | Adjusted

GAAP | Assets Costs Costs Net  |(Non-GAAP)
Income from Operations:
Fiscal 2008 %1746 $ 1370 $ - $ 194 $ (6)®) $ 2071
Fiscal 2007 716 - g5@ 100 agzom 1788
Fiscal 2006 1,742 - - 13 - 1755

(1) Consists of goodwill impairment of $303 million and lang-lived asset impairment of $34 million.

(2} Includes $44 miltion of separation costs, primarily related to employee costs, and $41 million of costs
related to building separate company functions that did not exist in the prior year.

(3) Includes %194 million of net restructuring and other charges, ef which $9 million is recorded in cost of sales.

(4) includes $97 million of net restructuring and other charges, of which $5 million is recorded in cost of sales,
and 33 million of restructuring-retated moving costs.

{9} Includes $13 million of net restructuring and other charges, of which $6 million is recorded in cost of sales.

(6) Consists of $22 million of net costs related to the settlement of legacy securities litigation, $36 million gain
on the sale of real estate, and $8 million of costs related to a customs settlement.

(7} Consists of $887 million of net costs related to legacy securities litigation.

ORGANIC SALES GROWTH RECONCILIATION
in US$ Millions
R

. ) Agquisitions/ .
COrganic® } Translation™® (pivestitures) | Total |

CHANGE IN NET SALES FOR FISCAL 2008 VS NET SALES FOR FISCAL 2007

Electronic Components $ 243 2.4% 1589 3 - % 932 9.2%
Network Solutions 16 6.1 150 - 266 140
Undersea Telecommunications 597 | 1057 3 - 600 | 106.2
Wireless Systems 69 18.0 8 - 77 19.9
TOTAL %1025 7.9% $850 $ - $1,875 14.5%

CHANGE IN NET SALES FOR FISCAL 2007 VS NET SALES FOR FISCAL 2006

TOTAL s 702 | 5.9%| saz0 | s | suae| o7

CHANGE N NET SALES FOR FISCAL 2006 VS NET SALES FOR FISCAL 2005

TOTAL $1077| 99| s | sos | s887 | 1%

{1 Represents the change in net sales resulting from volume and price changes, before consideration
of acquisitions, divestitures, and the impact of changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

{2) Represents the change in net sales resulting from changes in fareign currency exchange rates.

FREE CASH FLOW RECONCILIATION

in US% Millions
FY 2006 FY 2007 FY 2008

Net cash provided by continuing

operating activities $1.624 %1508 $1.014
Capital expenditures, net (513} {834) (577
Class action settlement - - 936
Income tax advance payment - 63 -
FREE CASH FLOW $1,111 $ 837 $1.372




SENIOR MANAGEMENT (effective 1/1/2009)

I Thomas J. Lynch
Chief Executive Officer

I Alan C. Clarke
President
Network Solutions

I Terrence R. Curtin
Executive Vice President
Chief Financial Officer

| Joseph B. Donahue
President
Automotive Division

I Charles P. Dougherty
President
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[ shu Ebe
Senior Vice President
Business Development -
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1 Gordon Hwang
Senior Vice President

| Minoru Okamoto
President
Communications &
Industrial Solutions

I Jeffrey G. Rea
President
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| Michael Robinson
Senior Vice President
Operations

| Robert A. Scott
Executive Vice President
General Counsel

| Robert Shaddock
Senior Vice President
Chief Technology Officer

| Joan E. Walnwright
Senior Vice President
Marketing &
Communications

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (effective 1/1/2009)

| Frederic M. Poses’
Retired Chairman & Chief
Executive Officer
American Standard
Companies

I Dr. Pierre R. Brondeau
President & Chief
Operating Officer
Rohm & Haas Company

| Dr. Ram Charan
Advisor to CEOs and
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I or Juergen W. Gromer
Retired President
Tyco Electronics Ltd.

§ Robert M. Hernandez
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In¢.

| Thomas J. Lynch

I paniel J. Phelan
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GlaxoSmithKline plc

| Lawrence S. Smith
Retired Executive Vice
President & Co-CFO
Comcast Corporation

| Paula A. Sheed
Chair & Chief Executive
Officer :
Phelps Prescott Group, LLC

| David P. Steiner
Chief Executive Officer
Waste Management, Inc.

| John C. Van Scoter
Senior Vice President
Texas Instruments
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I sandra s. Wijnberg
Chief Administrative Officer

China

| Jane A. Leipold
Senior Vice President
Global Human Resources

Chief Executive Officer
Tyco Electronics Litd.

Aquiline Holdings LLC

*Non-Executive Chairman of the
Tyco Electronics Board of Directors

Tyco Electronics' Annual Report includes this 2008 Annual Report Overview.

NON-GAAP MEASURES

"Qrganic Sales Growth,” "Adjusted Operating
Income,” and “Free Cash Flow” {(FCF) are
non-GAAP measures and should not be
considered replacements for GAAP results,
These measures should be used in conjunction
with the most comparable GAAP financial
measures. tnvestors are urged 1o read the
company's financial statements as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission for
more information about the mast comparable
GAAP measures.

“Organic Sales Growth" is a useful measure
used by the company to measure the under-
lying results and trends in the business. The
difference between reported net sales growth
(the most comparable GAAP measure) and
Organic Sales Growth (the non-GAAP measure)
consists of the impact from foreign currency,
acquisitions and divestitures. Qrganic Sales
Growth is a useful measure of the company's
performance because it excludes items that:
i) are not completely under management’s
control, such as the impact of foreign
currency exchange; or ii} do not reflect

the underlying growth of the company,

such as acquisition and divestiture activity.

It is also a component of the company's
compensation programs. The {imitation of
this measure is that it excludes items that
have an impact on the company’s sales. This

limitation is best addressed by using Organic
Sales Growth in combination with the GAAP
numbers,

The company has presented its operating
income before unusual items including costs
related to the separation, legal settlements,
restructuring costs, impairment charges and
other income or charges ("Adjusted Cperating
Income”). The company utilizes Adjusted
Operating Income to assess segment-level
core operating performance and to provide
insight to management in evaluating segment
operating plan execution and underlying
market conditions, It is also a significant
component in the company's incentive
compensation plans. Adjusted Operating
Income is a useful measure for investors
because it better reflects the company's
underlying operating results, trends and the

comparability of these results between periods.

The difference between Adjusted Operating
Income and operating income (the most
comparable GAAP measure) consists of the
impact of charges related to litigation settle-
ment costs, separation-related costs and
restructuring costs and other income or
charges that may mask the underlying
operating results and/or business trends.
The limitation of this measure is that it
excludes the financial impact of items that
would otherwise either increase or decrease
the company’s reported operating income.

This limitation is best addressed by using
Adjusted Cperating Income in combination
with operating income (the most comparable
GAAP measure) in order to better understand
the amounts, character and impact of any
increase or decrease on reported results,

"Free Cash Flow” (FCF) is a useful measure
of the company’s cash generation which is
free from any significant existing cbligation.
The difference between cash flows from
operating activities (the most comparable
GAAP measure) and FCF (the non-GAAP
measure) consists mainly of significant cash
outflows that the company believes are use-
ful to identify, FCF permits management and
investors to gain insight into the number
that management employs to measure cash
that is free from any significant existing
obligation. The difference reflects the impact
from net capital expenditures, voluntary
pension contributions and the cash impact
of unusual items.

Net capital expenditures are subtracted
because they represent long-term commitments.
Voluntary pension contributions are subtracted
from the GAAP measure because this activity
is driven by economic financing decisions
rather than operating activity. The company
forecasts its cash flow results excluding any
voluntary pension contributions because

it has not yet made a determination about
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